2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

F-11 ff12019 lohacoltd.htm REGISTRATION STATEMENT
As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 9, 2019
Registration No. 333-

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM F-1
REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

LOHA CO. LTD

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Not Applicable
(Translation of Registrant’s Name into English)

Cayman Islands 5140 Not Applicable

(State or other jurisdiction of (Primary Standard Industrial (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Classification Code Number) Identification No.)

Room 818, Yisibo Software Building
Haitian 2nd Road, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province 518000
People’s Republic of China
+86 755-33093707
(Address, including zp code, and telephone number, including area code, of Registrant’s principal executive offices)

Cogency Global Inc.
10 East 40th Street, 10th Floor
New York, N.Y. 10016
(800)221-0102
(Names, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 1/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

Copies to:
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Kevin (Qixiang) Sun, Esq. Sarah E. Williams, Esq.
Bevilacqua PLLC Hlenoff Grossman & Schole LLP
1050 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite 500 1345 Avenue of the Americas
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Approximate date of commencement of proposedsale to public: As soon as practicable after this Registration Statement becomes effective.
If any of the securities being registered on this Formare to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act of 1933, check the following box. [

If this Formis filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following boxand list the Securities Act registration statement
number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. [J

Ifthis Formis a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following boxand list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier
effective registration statement for the same offering. O

If this Formis a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following boxand list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier
effective registration statement the same offering. [J

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging growth company as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of 1933.
Emerging growth company

If an emerging growth company that prepares its financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period
for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act. [
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Propos ed Proposed
maximum . maximum
Amount to be aggregate offering 55 00ate offering Amount of

Title of each class of securities to be registered registered price per unit price registration fee
Class A Ordinary Shares, par value US$0.0001 per share(2)3) $ [1 $ [1 S [] []
Underwriter Warrants(¥)() - - - -
Class A Ordinary Shares Underlying Underwriter Warrants 3)(4) $ [1 $ [1 $ [1] [ ]
TOTAL $ [1] $ 37,605,000 4,881.13

(1) There is no current market for the securities or price at which the shares are being offered. Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the amount of the registration fee pursuant to Rule

457(o) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

(2) Includes Class A ordinary shares that may be purchased by the underwriter pursuant to its over-allotment option.

(3) Pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, there is also being registered hereby such indeterminate number of additional Class A ordinary shares of the registrant as
may be issued or issuable because of share splits, share dividends, share distributions, and similar transactions.

(4) We have agreed to issue to the underwriter upon closing of this offering warrants to purchase 7.5% of the number of class A ordinary shares sold in this offering. The exercise price of
warrants is equal to 120% of the offering price of the class A ordinary shares offered hereby. The warrants are exercisable commencing six (6) months after the closing of this offering and will
terminate five (5) years after the effective date of the Registration Statement of which this prospectus forms a part. The Registration Statement of which this prospectus is a part also covers
class A ordinary shares issuable upon the exercise thereof. The proposed maximum aggregate offering price of the class A ordinary shares underlying the underwriter warrants has been
estimated solely for the purposes of calculating the registration fee pursuant to Rule 457(g) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. See “Underwriting.”

(5) No fee required pursuant to Rule 457(g).

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which
specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act or until the Registration Statement shall become
effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.
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The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. These securities may not be sold until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
is effective. This preliminary prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting offers to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED [ ], 2019

LOHA CO. LTD

[ ] of Class A Ordinary Shares

This is the initial public offering of Loha Co. Ltd, a Cayman Islands exempted company with limited liability whose principal place of business is in Shenzhen, China. We are offering on a firm
commitment basis [ ] Class A ordinary shares, par value $0.0001 per share.

Our issued and outstanding share capital consists of Class A ordinary shares and Class B ordinary shares. Class B ordinary shares are convertible at the option of the holder into Class A
ordinary shares on a 1:1 basis and are entitled to five (5) votes per share. Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for either our Class A ordinary shares or Class B ordinary shares.
We intend to list our Class A ordinary shares on the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American] under the symbol “LLOHA” and have submitted the application to list our Class A ordinary shares
on the Nasdaq Capital Market. We believe that upon the completion of this offering, we will meet the standards for listing on the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American]. We cannot guarantee
that we will be successful in listing our Class A ordinary shares on the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American]; however, we will not complete this offering unless we are so listed.

Investing in our Class A ordinary shares involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 7 of this prospectus for a discussion of information that should be considered
in connection with an investment in our Class A ordinary shares.

We are an “emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Act of 2012, as amended, and, as such, are eligible for to reduced public company reporting requirements.

While we initially expect to be a “controlled company” under the rules of [Nasdaq/NYSE] immediately after consummation of this offering, we do not intend to avail ourselves of the corporate
governance exemptions afforded to a “controlled company” under the rules of [Nasdaq/NYSE].

Per Share Total

Initial public offering price

Underwriting discounts and commissions(D
Proceeds to us, before expenses $ $
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(1) Represents underwriting discount and commissions equal to 7.5% per Class A ordinary share, which is the underwriting discount we have agreed to pay on all investors in this offering.
Does not include expense allowance, payable to the underwriter, or the reimbursement of certain expenses of the underwriter. See “Underwriting” beginning on page 106 of this prospectus
for additional information regarding total underwriter compensation.

In addition to the underwriting discounts listed above and the expense allowance described in the footnote, we have agreed to issue to the underwriter upon the closing of this offering warrants
to purchase 7.5% of'the total number of Class A ordinary shares being sold in this offering. The exercise price of the compensation warrants is equal to 120% of the offering price of the shares
offered hereby. Assuming the exercise of the over-allotment option in full and an exercise price of §[ ] per Class A ordinary share, we would receive, in the aggregate, $[ ] upon exercise of the
warrants, of which there can be no guarantee. The warrants are exercisable commencing six (6) months after the closing of this offering and will terminate five (5) years after the effective date of
the registration statement for this offering of which this prospectus is a part. The registration statement of which this prospectus is a part also covers the Class A ordinary shares issuable upon
the exercise thereof. For additional information regarding our arrangement with the underwriter, please see “Underwriting” beginning on page 106.

We have granted the underwriter an option, exercisable for 45 days fromthe date of this prospectus, to purchase up to an additional [ ] shares on the same terms as the other shares being
purchased by the underwriter fromus.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete.
Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The underwriter expects to deliver the Class ordinary shares to purchasers in this offering on or about [ ], 2019.
Maxim Group LLC

The date of this prospectus is [ ], 2019
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You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectus we may authorize to be delivered or made available to you. Neither we, nor the
underwriter has authorized anyone to provide you with different information. The information in this prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus, regardless of the time of
delivery of this prospectus, or any free writing prospectus, as the case may be, or any sale of Class A ordinary shares.

For investors outside the United States: Neither we, nor the underwriter has done anything that would permit this offering or possession or distribution of this prospectus in any jurisdiction
where action for that purpose is required, other than in the United States. Persons outside the United States who come into possession of this prospectus must informthemselves about, and

observe any restrictions relating to, the offering of the Class A ordinary shares and the distribution of this prospectus outside the United States.

This prospectus includes statistical and other industry and market data that we obtained fromindustry publications and research, surveys and studies conducted by third parties. Industry
publications and third-party research, surveys and studies generally indicate that their information has been obtained fromsources believed to be reliable, although they do not guarantee the
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accuracy or completeness of such information. While we believe these industry publications and third-party research, surveys and studies are reliable, you are cautioned not to give undue
weight to this information.
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COMMONLY USED DEFINED TERMS

Except as otherwise indicated by the context and for the purposes of this prospectus only, references in this prospectus to:

. 2 ¢

e “we,” “us,” “our” or “our company,” are to the combined business of Loha Co. Ltd, a Cayman Islands company, and its consolidated subsidiaries and variable interest entity;

o “Lohas BVI” are to our wholly-owned subsidiary Lohas World Co. Ltd, a British Virgin Islands company;

e “Lohas HK” are to Lohas BVI’s wholly-owned subsidiary Lohas (Global) Group Co., Limited, a Hong Kong company;

e “Lohas WFOE” are to Lohas HK’s wholly-owned subsidiary Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd., a PRC company;

e “Lohas Agricultural” are to our variable interest entity Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., Ltd., a PRC company;

e “Lohas Supply Chain” are to Lohas Agricultural’s wholly-owned subsidiary Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd., a PRC company;

o “Shenzhen Lohas” are to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd., which owns 99.333334% of Lohas Agricultural.

e “Hong Kong” are to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China;

o “PRC” and “China” are to the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this prospectus, Taiwan and the special administrative regions of Hong Kong and Macau;

o “Renminbi” and “RMB?” are to the legal currency of China; and

e “U.S. dollars,” “dollars,” “US$” and “$” are to the legal currency of'the United States.

il
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights information that we present more fully in the rest of this prospectus. This summary does not contain all of the information you should consider before buying
shares in this offering. This summary contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties, such as statements about our plans, objectives, expectations, assumptions
or future events. These statements involve estimates, assumptions, known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from any
future results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. See “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.” You should read the
entire prospectus carefully, including the “Risk Factors” section and the financial statements and the notes to those statements.

THE COMPANY
Our Business

We are a technology-driven, comprehensive distributor and smart retailer of fresh and healthy products in China with a focus on health and sustainability. Our name “Lohas” is an acronym
for Lifestyles of Health and Sustainability, which is the core philosophy we deeply embrace. We have extensive experience in fresh produce supply chain management and currently have 102
overseas and 5 domestic suppliers in 16 countries. We are committed to providing our customers with high-end quality products, which mainly consist of imported fruits, wild-harvested
seafood, green vegetables and eggs, as well as nutritious dry goods. Besides the stable and lucrative traditional wholesale business, we are now actively pursuing the smart retail
development of fresh products through our smart micro marts, which are intelligent vending machines that provide unique shopping experience. The smart micro marts are deployed in high
traffic areas, such as residential communities and commute centers in large cities like Shenzhen and Guangzhou. Our smart micro marts work in combination with our online WeChat public
account, self-developed WeChat mini-program- Lohas City, group purchase program, and temperature-controlled vehicles to offer convenient shopping experience for our customers.

Our business has grown rapidly in recent years as demonstrated by our growth in revenue from approximately $57.27 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 to approximately
$85.19 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, an increase of 48.75%, and growth in net income from approximately $5.14 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 to
approximately $8.78 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, an increase of 70.70%. Our revenue increased by 43.08% from approximately $31.40 million for the six months ended
March 31, 2018 to approximately $44.92 million for the six months ended March 31, 2019 while our net income decreased by 14.58% from approximately $3.10 million to approximately $2.65
million during the same period of time, mainly due to the rise of purchase price of the majority of our imported fruits.

Our Opportunity

The growing Chinese economy is bringing more people into the middle class, many of which care for the health and well-being of their families and the planet, and are willing to spend more on
healthy foods. On one hand, the rising awareness of healthy lifestyle has given rise to stronger desire for fresh, green, and healthy products; on the other hand, the fast pace of life and work
leaves people less time for traditional market-type shopping. Instead, people are searching for ready-to-eat and ready-to-go fresh food options. This gives us a large opportunity to expand
our smart online and offline retail business. Accordingly, we believe, as a professional fresh produce supplier and technology-driven smart-retail leader, we will achieve significant growth in
the near future.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe that the following competitive strengths contribute to our success and differentiate us from our competitors:

e Unique “Lohas” philosophy emphasizing health and sustainability;
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e Innovative smart retail strategy providing on-demand access to a wide selection of fresh and healthy products to consumers.
e Robust supply chain management systemensuring reliability and quality of products;
e Strong brand loyalty amplified by launching our own brand products; and

e Experienced management team.
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Our Growth Strategies
We plan to grow and expand our business by pursuing the following growth strategies:
e Continually enhance our technology in order to retain and grow our customer base;
e Further penetrate our existing markets;
e Deploy smart micro marts to new cities and build new distribution centers;
e  Expand our private label product line;
e Expand our group purchase program;
e Continue to build our brand and team; and
e Expand globally.
Our Risks and Challenges

Our prospects should be considered in light of the risks, uncertainties, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by similar companies. Our ability to realize our business objectives
and execute our strategies is subject to risks and uncertainties, including, among others, the following:

e disruption of significant supplier relationships could negatively affect our business;
e conditions beyond our control can interrupt our supplies and increase our product costs;

e real or perceived concemns that products we sell could cause unexpected side effects, illness, injury or death could result in their discontinuance or expose us to lawsuits, either
of which could result in unexpected costs and damage to our reputation;

e fluctuations in procurement costs and availability of products may impact profitability;
e our ability to open new smart micro marts is important for our future business development, and our failure to successfully open them could negatively impact our business; and
e risks associated with our control over Lohas Agricultural, our variable interest entity in China, which is based on contractual arrangements rather than equity ownership;

In addition, we face other risks and uncertainties that may materially affect our business prospects, financial condition, and results of operations. You should consider the risks discussed in
“Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this prospectus before investing in our ordinary shares.

Our Corporate History and Structure
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We were incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands on January 10, 2019 to serve as a holding company for our PRC operations.

On February 8, 2019, we established Lohas BVI as a wholly-owned subsidiary in the British Virgin Islands. Lohas BVl is a holding company and holds all of the equity interests of Lohas HK,
which was established in Hong Kong on May 3, 2013. Lohas HK is a holding company and holds all of the equity interests of Lohas WFOE, which was established in the PRC on March 11,
2019.

Lohas WFOE has entered into contractual arrangements with our variable interest entity, Lohas Agricultural, and the shareholders of Lohas Agricultural. Lohas Agricultural is a limited
liability company established under the laws of the PRC on November 21, 2013. It holds all of the equity interests of Lohas Supply Chain, a limited liability company established under the laws
ofthe PRC on May 28, 2014. Lohas Supply Chain was formerly wholly owned by Shenzhen Lohas. Lohas Agricultural acquired Lohas Supply Chain from Shenzhen Lohas on March 27, 2019.
In addition, Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., Ltd., Tianjin Branch was established on November 25, 2014.

Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain directly operate our business. We have entered into contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders. Through these
arrangements, we exercise effective control over the operations of Lohas Agricultural and receive the economic benefits of Lohas Agricultural. As a result of these contractual arrangements,
under generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, or U.S. GAAP, we are considered the primary beneficiary of Lohas Agricultural and thus consolidate its results in our
consolidated financial statements. See “Corporate History and Structure—Our Corporate Structure” for details of these contractual arrangements.
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All of our business operations are conducted through our Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary, Lohas Supply Chain. The chart below presents our corporate structure:
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Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at Room 818, Yisibo Software Building, Haitian 2 Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province 518000, People’s Republic of China. The
telephone number at our executive offices is +86 755-33093707.

Our registered office is located at Sertus Chambers, Governors Square, Suite # 5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.
Our agent for service of process in the United States is Cogency Global Inc., located at 10 East 40th Street, 10th Floor, New York, N.Y. 10016.

Our website can be found at http://www.lohas.sh/en. The information contained on our website is not a part of this prospectus, nor is such content incorporated by reference herein, and
should not be relied upon in determining whether to make an investment in our ordinary shares.

Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm

15/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

Upon the completion of this offering, we will qualify as an “emerging growth company” under the Jumpstart Our Business Act of 2012, as amended, or the JOBS Act. As a result, we will be
permitted to, and intend to, rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements. These provisions include exemption fromthe auditor attestation requirement under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 in the assessment of the emerging growth company’s internal control over financial reporting. In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an
emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, for complying
with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging growth company can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply
to private companies. We have elected to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period. Our financial statements may therefore not be comparable to those of companies
that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.
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We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of (i) the last day ofthe fiscal year during which we have total annual gross revenues of at least $1.07 billion; (ii) the last day of
our fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of the completion of'this offering; (iii) the date on which we have, during the preceding three year period, issued more than $1.0 billion in non-
convertible debt; or (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, which could occur if
the market value of our ordinary shares that are held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as ofthe last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter. Once we cease to
be an emerging growth company, we will not be entitled to the exemptions provided in the JOBS Act discussed above.

Foreign Private Issuer Status

We are a “foreign private issuer,” as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act and Rule 3b-4(c) under the Exchange Act. As a result, we are not subject to the same requirements as U.S.
domestic issuers. Under the Exchange Act, we will be subject to reporting obligations that, to some extent, are more lenient and less frequent than those of U.S. domestic reporting companies.
For example, we will not be required to issue quarterly reports or proxy statements. We will not be required to disclose detailed individual executive compensation information. Furthermore,
our directors and executive officers will not be required to report equity holdings under Section 16 of the Exchange Act and will not be subject to the insider short-swing profit disclosure and
recovery regime.

Notes on Prospectus Presentation

Numerical figures included in this prospectus have been subject to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, numerical figures shown as totals in various tables may not be arithmetic aggregations
ofthe figures that precede them. Certain market data and other statistical information contained in this prospectus are based on information from independent industry organizations,
publications, surveys and forecasts. Some market data and statistical information contained in this prospectus are also based on management’s estimates and calculations, which are derived
from our review and interpretation of the independent sources listed above, our internal research and our knowledge of the PRC fresh produce distribution industry. While we believe such
information is reliable, we have not independently verified any third-party information and our internal data has not been verified by any independent source.

For the sake of clarity, this prospectus follows the English naming convention of first name followed by last name, regardless of whether an individual’s name is Chinese or English.

Our reporting currency is U.S. dollar and our functional currency is Renminbi. This prospectus contains translations of certain foreign currency amounts into U.S. dollars for the convenience
of'the reader. We make no representation that the Renminbi or U.S. dollar amounts referred to in this prospectus could have been or could be converted into U.S. dollars or Renminbi, as the
case may be, at any particular rate or at all. On November 29, 2019, the noon buying rate for RMB was RMB7.0308 to US$1.00, as set forth in the H.10 statistical release of the U.S. Federal
Reserve Board.
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Shares offered

Offering price

Ordinary shares outstanding immediately before
the offering

Ordinary shares outstanding immediately after
the offering

Over-allotment option

Underwriter warrants

Use of proceeds

Risk factors

Lock-up

Proposed trading market and symbol
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THE OFFERING
[ 1Class A ordinary shares (or[ ]shares if the underwriter exercises the over-allotment option in full).
We currently estimate that the initial public offering price will be $§[ ] per share.

35,744,546 Class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary shares. Our Class B ordinary shares are convertible at the option of the
holder into Class A ordinary shares on a 1:1 basis and are entitled to five (5) votes per share. See “Description of Share Capital” for more
information.

[ ]Class A ordinary shares (or[ ] Class A ordinary shares if the underwriter exercises the over-allotment option in full) and 19,000,000
Class B ordinary shares.

We have granted to the underwriter a 45-day option to purchase fromus up to an additional 15% of the Class A ordinary shares sold in the
offering ([ ]additional shares) at the initial public offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions.

Upon the closing of this offering, we will issue to the underwriter warrants to purchase 7.5% of the total number of Class A ordinary shares
being sold in this offering. The exercise price of the underwriter warrants is equal to 120% of the offering price of the Class A ordinary
shares offered hereby. The warrants are exercisable commencing six (6) months after the closing of this offering and will terminate five (5)
years after the closing of this offering. The registration statement of which this prospectus is a part also covers the Class A ordinary
shares issuable upon the exercise thereof.

We expect to receive net proceeds of approximately $[ ] million fromthis offering, assuming an initial public offering price of [ ] per Class
A ordinary share and no exercise of the underwriter’s over-allotment option, after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

We plan to use the net proceeds of this offering for (i) enhancing and expanding our business, (ii) marketing and promotion of our
products and branding, and (iii) general corporate purposes. See “Use of Proceeds” for more information on the use of proceeds.

Investing in our Class A ordinary shares involves a high degree of risk and purchasers of our Class A ordinary shares may lose part or all
of their investment. See “Risk Factors” for a discussion of factors you should carefully consider before deciding to invest in our Class A
ordinary shares.

We and our directors and executive officers are expected to enter into lock-up agreements with the underwriter to agree not to sell, transfer
or dispose of any Class A ordinary shares for a period of 3 years after this offering is completed. In addition, all of our shareholders are
expected to enter into lock-up agreements with the underwriter to agree not to sell, transfer or dispose of any Class A ordinary shares fora
period of 180 days after this offering is completed. See “Underwriting.”

We intend to list our Class A ordinary shares on the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American] under the symbol “LOHA” and have
submitted the application to list our Class A ordinary shares on the Nasdaq Capital Market.
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following summary historical financial information should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in the prospectus and
the information contained in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” below.

The following summary consolidated financial data as of September 30, 2017 and 2018 and for the years then ended have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this prospectus. We derived the summary consolidated financial data as of March 31, 2019 and for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019 from our unaudited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus, which include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, that our management considers necessary
for a fair presentation of our financial position and results of operations as of the dates and for the periods presented.

Our financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Our historical results for any period are not necessarily indicative of our future performance.

Years Ended September 30, Six Months Ended March 31,
2017 2018 2018 2019
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(In thous ands, except share and per share data)
Statements of Income Data

Total revenue $ 57266 $ 85,186 $ 31,398 $ 44,924
Total cost of revenue 48,779 70,627 26,329 38,982
Total operating expenses 2,785 4,320 1,543 2,568
Income from operations 5,702 10,239 3,526 3,374
Total other income (expenses), net 404 125 89 (206)
Income before income taxes 6,106 10,364 3,615 3,168
Income taxexpense 962 1,583 515 520
Net income $ 5144 3§ 8781 § 3,100 $ 2,648
Earnings per ordinary share

Basic and diluted $ 009 $ 016 $ 006 $ 0.05
Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding

Basic and diluted 54,744,546 54,744,546 54,744,546 54,744,546

As of As of As of
September 30, September 30, March
2017 2018 31,2019
(unaudited)
(In Thous ands)

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents $ 635 $ 82 3 3,028
Current assets 24,609 34,648 46,492
Total assets 24,794 34,849 46,812
Current liabilities 4,229 6,647 15,270
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Total liabilities 4,229 6,647 15,318

Shareholders’ equity 20,565 28,202 31,494

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 24,794  $ 34849 $ 46,812
6
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RISKFACTORS

The Class A ordinary shares being offered by us are highly speculative in nature, involve a high degree of risk and should be purchased only by persons who can afford to lose the entire
amount invested. Before purchasing any of our shares, you should carefully consider the following factors relating to our business and prospects. You should pay particular attention to the
fact that we conduct all of our operations in China and are governed by a legal and regulatory environment that in some respects differs significantly from the environment that may prevail
in the U.S. and other countries. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition or operating results will suffer, the trading price of our shares could decline,
and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Disruption of significant supplier relationships could negatively affect our business.

While we currently have 102 overseas and 5 domestic suppliers in 16 countries, our two largest suppliers of overseas fruits accounted for approximately 40.10% and 33.00% of our total
purchases in fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. For the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, our largest supplier of overseas fruits accounted for approximately
41.70% and 11.67% of our total purchases, respectively. Due to such concentration of purchases froma limited amount of third-party suppliers, the cancellation of our supply arrangement or the
disruption, delay or inability of these suppliers to supply us with fresh produce in quantities that meet our requirements may materially and adversely affect our operating results while we
establish alternative supply chain channels, which could be difficult. Our ability to continue to obtain products fromour suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner is subject to a number of
factors, some of which are not within our control. These factors include the ability of our suppliers to provide a continued source of supply, and our ability to effectively compete and obtain
competitive prices fromsuppliers. While we have entered into supply agreements with a five-year term with our major suppliers, we cannot assure you that we would be able to find replacement
suppliers on commercially reasonable terms if these agreements expire and are not renewed promptly or terminated early, which would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Conditions beyond our control can interrupt our supplies and increase our product cost.

We obtain substantially all of our products fromthird-party suppliers. Although we have not experienced difficulty to date in maintaining the supply of our produce that meets our quality
standards, there is no assurance that these products will be available to meet our needs in the future. The availability of such products at competitive prices depends on many factors beyond our
control, including shortages of qualified labor for our suppliers, work slowdowns, work interruptions, strikes or other job actions by employees of suppliers. Adverse weather conditions and
natural disasters, such as floods, droughts, storms, frosts, wildfires, earthquakes, hurricanes, pestilences and other extreme or abnormal environmental conditions, could also impair production
capabilities, disrupt our supply chain or impact demand for our products. Additionally, we procure products fromsuppliers located in various countries and we are subject to the risks associated
with political or financial instability, trade restrictions, tariffs, currency exchange rates, transport capacity and costs and other factors relating to foreign trade, any or all of which could delay our
receipt of product or increase our input costs. Our inability to obtain adequate supplies as a result of any of the foregoing factors or otherwise could mean that we could not fulfill our obligations
to customers, and customers may turn to other distributors, which could materially adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

If our products become contaminated, we may be subject to product liability claims and product recalls, which could adversely affect our financial results and damage our reputation.

As a fresh produce distributor, we believe that many customers choose our brand because of their interest in health, nutrition and food safety. As a result, we believe that our customers hold us
to a high food safety standard. However, we face inherent risks related to the safety of the food products that we distribute and sell. Our fresh produce products are at risk of contamination by
disease-causing organisms such as Salmonella, E. coli, and others. These pathogens are generally found in nature, and as a result, there is a risk that they could be present in the products
distributed or sold by us. We typically have little control over proper food handling once the product has been delivered to our wholesalers and retailers. We may need to recall products for
actual or alleged contamination, adulteration, mislabeling, or other safety concerns. Recall costs can be material. A widespread product recall could result in significant losses due to the
administrative costs of a recall, the disruption of supply, and lost sales. Recalls and other food safety concerns can also result in product liability claims, adverse publicity, damage to our
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reputation, and a loss of confidence in the safety and quality of our products. According to the Administrative Measures for Food Distribution Licensing promulgated by the National Medical
Products Administration of China (formerly the China Food and Drug Administration, or CFDA), consumers or other victims suffering from personal injuries or property damages due to defects
of products have the right to claim compensations either fromthe distributors or fromthe producers of products. In addition to claiming damages, a consumer may require a producer of food
failing to meet the food safety standards or a trader knowingly dealing in such food to pay an indemnity of ten times the price paid or three times the loss. We have also purchased Ping An food
safety insurance with an aggregate liability limit of RMB 20 million (approximately $2.98 million). However, any claims brought against us may exceed our existing or future insurance policy
coverage or limits. Any judgment against us that is in excess of our policy limits would have to be paid from our cash reserves, which would reduce our capital resources. In addition, even with
adequate insurance and indemnification from our suppliers, any claims of non-compliance could significantly damage our reputation and consumer confidence in products we sell. Customers
may avoid purchasing our certain products, or to seek alternative sources of supply for some or all of their food needs, even if the basis for concern is outside of our control. Therefore, real or
perceived quality or food safety concerns, whether or not ultimately based on fact, and whether or not involving products that we sell or vendors that supply us with products or provide us with
services, would cause negative publicity and lost confidence regarding our company, brand, or products, which could in turn harm our reputation and net sales, and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Any loss of confidence on the part of our customers would be difficult and costly to overcome.
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If we fail to effectively control food spoilage of our inventories, our operating results could be adversely affected.

We are subject to risks affecting the fresh food industry generally, including food spoilage and food contamination. As of September 30, 2017 and 2018, fruits constituted approximately 47.48%
and 89.49% of'the value of our inventories, respectively. As of March 31, 2019, such percentage increased to 98.11%. In order to deliver high-quality fresh and natural products to our customers
directly fromtheir source, we manage the entire distribution channel by eliminating the traditional layer of middlemen, which not only reduces costs but also increases the speed of delivery. In
addition, our fresh produce is temperature monitored and controlled remotely at each stage of the whole delivery process. It helps maintain freshness of produce and dramatically reduces the
spoilage rate. While we believe food spoilage currently does not have a significant impact on our operations, there is no guarantee that our business model and technology will always be able to
effectively control food spoilage of our inventories. For instance, our temperature-controlled storage and transportation systems could fail to function properly and product spoilage and
contamination could occur. Failures in our systems to ensure freshness and safety of our fresh products could negatively impact sales and accordingly have an adverse impact on our business
and results of operations.

Fluctuations in procurement costs and availability of products may impact profitability.

Our main products include fresh fruits, nuts, eggs and sea foods. Price of fresh produce fluctuates throughout the year due to the supply of and demand, which is seasonal in nature. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to mitigate vendor efforts to increase our procurement costs or competitive responses to decreasing prices, either in whole or in part. In the event we are unable to
continue mitigating potential increases of procurement costs or input costs, we may in turn consider raising our prices, and our customers may be deterred by any such price increases. In
addition, we may lower our resale prices in response to lower procurement or input costs or competitive conditions. Our profitability may be impacted either through increased costs to us or
lower prices and loss of customers due to competitive conditions, which may impact gross margins, or through reduced revenue as a result of a decline in the number and average size of
customer transactions.

Our ability to competitively serve our customers is a function of reliable and low cost transportation. Disruption of the supply of these services and/or significant increases in the cost of
these services could impact our operating income.

We use multiple forms of transportation to bring our products to market. They include truck, ocean, and air-cargo. Disruption to the timely supply of these services or dramatic increases in the
cost of these services for any reason including availability of fuel for such services, labor disputes, governmental regulation, or governmental restrictions limiting specific forms of transportation
could have an adverse effect on our ability to serve our customers and consumers and could have an adverse effect on our financial performance.

Our ability to deploy new smart micro marts is important for our future business development, and our failure to successfully deploy them could negatively impact our business.

Our ability to deploy new smart micro marts and to operate themsuccessfully has significant impact on the development of our business. We plan to deploy a significant amount of new units
within the next two years. However, we cannot assure you that we will achieve this expected level of new growth. Successful implementation of this strategy depends upon a number of factors,
including our ability to effectively achieve a level of cash flow or obtain necessary financing to support our expansion; find suitable sites for new locations; negotiate and execute leases on
acceptable terms; secure and manage the inventory necessary for the launch and operation of our smart micro marts; hire, train and retain skilled team members; promote and market new smart
micro marts; and address competitive merchandising, distribution and other challenges encountered in connection with expansion into new geographic areas and markets. If we are ineffective in
performing these activities, then our efforts to open and operate new smart micro marts may be unsuccessful or unprofitable, and we may be unable to execute our growth strategy.
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Additionally, our proposed expansion will place increased demands on our operational, managerial and administrative resources. These increased demands could cause us to operate our existing
business less effectively, which in turn could cause deterioration in the financial performance of our business. If we experience a decline in performance, we may slow or discontinue deploying
new units, or we may decide to close smart micro marts that we are unable to operate in a profitable manner. If we fail to successfully implement our growth strategy, including by deploying new
smart micro marts, our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows may be adversely affected.

We may require additional capital to fund the expansion of our business, and our inability to obtain such capital could harm our business.

To support our expanding business, we may need additional capital to continue to make significant investments in our new and existing business and marketing. We cannot assure you that cash
generated by our operations will be sufficient to allow us to fund such expansion. If cash flows fromoperations are not sufficient, we may need additional equity or debt financing to provide the
funds required to expand our business. If such financing is not available on satisfactory terms or at all, we may be unable to expand our business or to develop new business at the rate desired
and our operating results may suffer. Debt financing increases expenses, may contain covenants that restrict the operation of our business, and must be repaid regardless of operating results.
Equity financing, or debt financing that is convertible into equity, could result in additional dilution to our existing shareholders.

Our inability to obtain adequate capital resources, whether in the form of equity or debt, to fund our business and growth strategies may require us to delay, scale back or eliminate some or all of
our operations or the expansion of our business, which may have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, financial condition or prospects.

Disruptions to, or security breaches involving, information technology systems of us or third-parties that we rely on could harm our ability to run our business.

We rely extensively on information technology systems for point of sale processing, supply chain, financial reporting, human resources and various other processes and transactions. Our
information technology systems are subject to damage or interruption from power outages, computer and telecommunications failures, computer viruses, security breaches, including breaches of
our transaction processing or other systems that could result in the compromise of confidential customer or team member data, catastrophic events, and usage errors by our team members.

Our information technology systems may also fail to performas we anticipate, and we may encounter difficulties in implementing new systems, adapting these systems to changing technologies
or expanding themto meet the future needs and growth of our business. If our systems are improperly implemented, breached, damaged or cease to function properly, we may have to make
significant investments to fixor replace them; suffer interruptions in our operations; experience data loss; incur liability to our customers, employees and others; face costly litigation,
enforcement actions and penalties; and our reputation with our customers may be harmed.

Various third parties, such as our suppliers and payment processors, also rely heavily on information technology systems, and any failure of these systems could also cause loss of sales,
transactional or other data and significant interruptions to our business. Any security breach or other material interruption in the information technology systems we rely on may have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.

A significant part of our business is conducted through WeChat, a third-party social media program and if services of WeChat are limited, restricted, curtailed or degraded in any way or
become unavailable to us or our customers for any reason, our business may be materially and adversely affected.

Our smart micro marts and group purchase program work in combination with our WeChat public account and WeChat mini-programto offer convenient business experiences to our customers.
We rely on the convenience and ease of use that WeChat provides to us and our customers. For instance, we offer our customers the community group purchase programunder which a Lohas
distributor coordinates group purchases through social media services such as WeChat by placing orders and advancing payments on our WeChat “Lohas City” mini program. The operations of
our smart micro marts also rely on the services of WeChat. Once customers scan the QR code on the unit using a mobile phone, our WeChat mini-program, Lohas City, is launched on the mobile
and lead the customers to complete the purchase process. While currently there is only a small part of our revenues derived from our group purchase program, which is conducted through
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WeChat platform, we believe revenues generated through WeChat platform will continue to grow as we started our smart micro markets business in October 2018. If services of WeChat are
limited, restricted, curtailed or degraded in any way or become unavailable to us or our customers for any reason, the attractiveness of our products could be materially and adversely affected.

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 26/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

In addition, customers often conduct transactions through our WeChat public account or WeChat mini-program through third-party online payment platforms, such as WeChat Pay. In these
online payment transactions, secured transmission of confidential information, such as customers’ credit card numbers and expiration dates, personal information and billing addresses, over
public networks is essential to maintain consumer confidence. We do not have control over the security measures of our third-party online payment platformservice providers. Security breaches
of'the online third-party payment platforms that we use could expose us to litigation and possible liability for failing to secure confidential user information and could, among other things,
damage our reputation. As a result, our customers concerned about the security of their transactions may become reluctant to purchase our products involving third-party online payment
platforms.

Ifwe are unable to successfully identify market trends and react to changing consumer preferences in a timely manner, our sales may decrease.
We believe our success depends, in substantial part, on our ability to:

e anticipate, identify and react to fresh food industry trends and changing consumer preferences and demographics in a timely manner;

e translate market trends into appropriate, saleable product offerings before our competitors; and

e develop and maintain supplier and service provider relationships that provide us access to the newest product options on reasonable terms.

Consumer preferences often change rapidly and without warning, moving fromone trend to another among many product or retail concepts. Our performance is impacted by trends regarding
healthy lifestyles, dietary preferences, convenient options, meal solutions, and ingredient transparency and sustainability, as well as new and evolving methods of engaging with and delivering
our products to our customers. Consumer preferences towards fresh food products might shift as a result of, among other things, economic conditions, food safety perceptions, scientific
research or findings regarding the benefits or efficacy of such products, national media attention and the cost or sustainability of these products. A change in consumer preferences away from
our offerings would have a material adverse effect on our business. Additionally, negative publicity over the safety, efficacy or benefits of any such items may adversely affect demand for our
products, and could result in lower customer traffic, sales, results of operations and cash flows.

If we are unable to anticipate and satisfy consumer preferences in the regions where we operate with respect to product offerings and customer engagement options, our sales may decrease,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

General economic conditions that impact consumer spending or result in competitive responses could adversely affect our business.

The wholesale and retail food business is sensitive to changes in general economic conditions. Recessionary economic cycles, increases in interest rates, higher prices for commodities, fuel and
other energy, inflation, high levels of unemployment and consumer debt, depressed home values, high taxrates, tariffs and other economic factors that affect consumer spending and confidence
or buying habits may materially adversely affect the demand for products we sell. In recent years, the Chinese economy has experienced volatility due to uncertainties related to energy prices,
credit availability, difficulties in the banking and financial services sectors, decreases in home values and retirement accounts, instability in foreign markets, high unemployment and falling
consumer confidence. As a result, consumers are more cautious and could shift their spending to lower-priced competition, such as warehouse membership clubs, supermarkets or online
retailers, which could have a material and adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

In addition, prolonged inflation or deflation can impact our business. Food deflation across multiple categories, particularly in produce, could reduce sales growth and earnings if our competitors
react by lowering their retail pricing and expanding their promotional activities, which can lead to retail deflation higher than cost deflation that could reduce our sales and gross profit margins.
Food inflation, when combined with reduced consumer spending, could also reduce sales and gross profit margins. As a result, our operating results and financial condition could be materially
adversely affected.
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Competition in our industry is intense, and our failure to compete successfully may adversely affect our revenues and profitability.

We operate in the highly competitive retail food industry. Our competitors include supermarkets, natural food stores, warehouse membership clubs, online retailers and specialty stores. These
businesses compete with us for products, customers and locations. We compete on a combination of factors, primarily product selection, quality, convenience, customer engagement, location,
price and delivery options. Our success depends on our ability to offer products that appeal to our customers’ preferences, and our failure to offer such products could lead to a decrease in our
sales. To the extent that our competitors lower prices, our ability to maintain profit margins and sales levels may be negatively impacted. In addition, some competitors are aggressively expanding
their number of stores or their product offerings, increasing the space allocated to perishable, prepared and specialty foods, including fresh foods, and enhancing options of engaging with and
delivering their products to customers. Some of these competitors may have been in business longer or may have greater financial or marketing resources than we do and may be able to devote
greater resources to sourcing, promoting and selling their products. As competition in certain areas or platforms intensifies or competitors open stores or expand delivery options within close
proximity to our smart micro marts, our results of operations and cash flows may be negatively impacted through a loss of sales, decrease in market share, reduction in margin from competitive
price changes or greater operating costs.
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We depend upon third-party manufacturers for the manufacture of our smart micro marts.

We conduct no manufacturing operations and depend on an outside party to manufacture our smart micro marts. Any increase in the manufacturing costs, or our inability to lower our current
manufacturing costs, could materially adversely impact our operations and financial condition.

We intend to continue to expand our installed base of smart micro marts. Such expansion may be limited by the manufacturing capacity of our third-party manufacturer. Such third-party
manufacturer may not be able to meet our manufacturing needs in a satisfactory and timely manner. Any delays in manufacturing could adversely affect our results of operations. If there is an
unanticipated increase in demand for our smart micro marts, or our manufacturing needs are not met in a timely and satisfactory manner, we may be unable to meet demand due to manufacturing
limitations.

The loss of key management could negatively affect our business.

We are dependent upon a number of key management and other employees, including Mr. Yanyue Zhang, our chairman and chief executive officer, Yingpin Chen, our chief marketing officer, and
Xiaoqin Tan, our chief financial officer. If we were to lose the services of a significant number of key employees within a short period of time, this could have a material adverse effect on our
operations as we may not be able to find suitable individuals to replace themon a timely basis, if at all. In addition, any such departure could be viewed in a negative light by investors and
analysts, which may cause our stock price to decline.

If we are unable to attract, train and retain employees, we may not be able to grow or successfully operate our business.

Our continued success is dependent upon our ability to attract and retain qualified employees who understand and appreciate our culture and are able to represent our brand effectively and
establish credibility with our business partners and consumers. We face intense competition for qualified employees. Our ability to meet our labor needs, while controlling wage and labor-related
costs, is subject to numerous external factors, including the availability of a sufficient number of qualified persons in the work force in the markets in which we are located, unemployment levels
within those markets, prevailing wage rates, changing demographics, health and other insurance costs and changes in employment legislation. In the event of increasing wage rates, if we fail to
increase our wages competitively, the quality of our workforce could decline, causing our customer engagement to suffer, while increasing our wages could cause our earnings to decrease. If we
are unable to hire and retain employees capable of meeting our business needs and expectations, our business and brand image may be impaired. Any failure to meet our staffing needs or any
material increase in turnover rates of our employees or employee wages may adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.
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Our leased property interests may be defective and could result in claims, monetary penalties, increased cost of operation or otherwise harm on our business.

As ofthe date of the Prospectus, we operated our businesses primarily through our leased facilities located at Yisibo Software Building, Haitian 2nd Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen. However,
our lease agreements have not been filed with the relevant governmental agencies. According to applicable PRC laws, the failure to file lease agreements will not affect their binding force
between the tenant and the landlord; however, the landlord and the tenant may be subject to administrative fines for such failure to file the leases. In addition, according to applicable PRC laws, a
company shall register its main office as its registered office. Where a company fails to undergo the relevant modification registration in accordance with relevant regulations, the competent
regulatory authority may order the company to register within a prescribed time limit, and, if the company fails to do so, impose a fine of not less than RMB10,000 but not more than RMB100,000.
To comply with PRC laws, Lohas Agricultural is in the process of changing its registered office from No. 125, Building 4, Node Holiday Garden, Nanshan Street, Nanshan District, Shenzhen to its
operation site located at Rooms 805 and 818, Yisibo Software Building, Haitian 2 Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen. Lohas Supply Chain is also planning to change its registered office from
Rooms 802 and 803, Yisibo Software Building to its operation site located at Room 802, Yisibo Software Building. As of the date of the prospectus, we are not aware of any action, claimor
investigation being conducted or threatened by the competent government authorities with respect to the defects in our leased properties. However, if we are fined or penalized by government
authorities due to our failure to file our lease agreements or have the main office as our registered office, our business and financial condition may be negatively impacted.

We do not have any business insurance coverage.

Insurance companies in China currently do not offer as extensive an array of insurance products as insurance companies in more developed economies. Currently, we do not have any business
liability or disruption insurance to cover our operations. We have determined that the costs of insuring these risks and the difficulties associated with acquiring such insurance on commercially
reasonable terms make it impractical for us to have such insurance. Any uninsured business disruptions may result in substantial costs and the diversion of resources, which could have an
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Default in payment by one or more customers that have large account receivable balances could adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition.

A significant portion of our working capital consists of accounts receivable from customers. As of September 30, 2018 and March 31, 2019, we had an aggregate amount of $7.46 million and
$19.94 million, respectively, in accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts. We have been reviewing our policies that govern credit and collections, and will continue to monitor
themin light of current payment status and economic conditions. In addition, we may reduce the credit exposures of our accounts receivable by credit limits for some customers. However, there
can be no assurance that our efforts to identify potential credit risks will be successful. Our inability to timely identify high-risk customers could result in defaults at a time when such customers
have large accounts receivable balances with us. These defaults would result in significant charges against our earnings and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We may be unable to adequately protect our intellectual property rights, which could harm our business.

We rely on a combination of trademark, software copyright and domain name law and internal procedures and nondisclosure
agreements to protect our intellectual property. In particular, we believe our trademark

,our software copyright, and our domain names, including http://www.lohas.sh/en, are valuable assets. However, there can be no assurance that our intellectual property
rights will be sufficient to distinguish our products fromthose of our competitors and to provide us with a competitive advantage. Fromtime to time, third parties may use names and logos
similar to ours, may apply to register trademarks or domain names similar to ours, and may infringe or otherwise violate our intellectual property rights. There can be no assurance that our
intellectual property rights can be successfully asserted against such third parties or will not be invalidated, circumvented or challenged. Asserting or defending our intellectual property rights
could be time consuming and costly and could distract management’s attention and resources. If we are unable to prevent our competitors fromusing names, logos and domain names similar to
ours, consumer confusion could result, the perception of our brand and products could be negatively affected, and our sales and profitability could suffer as a result.
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We may be subject to intellectual property infringement claims or other allegations by third parties, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and
prospects.

- gxpm REHER £ €62

Some of the important trademarks that we are using, including , are owned by Shenzhen Lohas, a 99.333334% sharcholder of Lohas
Agricultural. Lohas Agricultural has entered into a trademark licensing agreement with Shenzhen Lohas on August 17, 2019, obtaining an exclusive license to use these trademarks during their
respective valid periods. We are required to use these trademarks within their scope of services authorized by the Chinese trademark authorities. However, our use of some of these trademarks
may be considered as beyond the authorized scope of use and as a result, we could be deemed as breaching the trademark licensing agreement by Shenzhen Lohas or even subject to claims that
our activities or the products we sell infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate the intellectual property rights of other parties. In addition, pursuant to the Trademark Law of the PRC, where
one party is licensed to use a registered trademark, the licenser shall report the license to the competent trademark office for recordation, and the trademark office will publish the license. As of
the date of this Prospectus, we are in the process of recordation of the license. An unrecorded license may not be used as a defense against a third party in good faith. Any of the above
infringement claims can be time consuming and costly to defend and may distract management’s attention and resources, even if the claims are without merit. Such claims may also require us to
enter into costly settlement or license agreements (which could, for example, prevent us fromusing our trademarks in certain geographies or in connection with certain products), pay costly
damage awards, and face a temporary or permanent injunction prohibiting us from marketing or providing the affected products, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business.

Our international operations subject us to additional business risks that may have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.
We conduct a substantial amount of business with suppliers who are located in a total of 16 countries, such as Thailand, Australia and Chile. For additional information about our foreign
sourced food products, see “Business” below. Although these suppliers are geographically dispersed, which partially mitigates the risks associated with operating in particular countries, we are

subject to the usual risks and potential costs associated with international operations, which are often beyond our control. Among others, these risks and costs include:

e local economic and political conditions, including disruptions in supply, labor, transportation (the transport of consumer goods), trading and capital markets, as a result of terrorist
attacks, natural disasters or otherwise;

e restrictive governmental actions, such as restrictions on transfers of funds and trade protection measures, including import/export duties and quotas and customs duties and tariffs;
e foreign currency fluctuations which may significant increase our procurement costs; and
e changes in legal or regulatory requirements affecting international trade, foreign investment, loans, taxes (including value-added taxes), imports, and exports.

These factors may have a material adverse effect on our ability to increase or maintain our supply of products, our financial condition or the results of our operations.

The forecasts of market growth included in this prospectus may prove to be inaccurate, and even if the markets in which we compete achieve the forecasted growth, we cannot assure you
our business will grow at similar rates, if at all.

Growth forecasts are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates that may not prove to be accurate. The forecasts contained in this prospectus may prove to
be inaccurate. Even if these markets experience the forecasted growth described in this prospectus, we may not grow our business at similar rates, or at all. Our growth is subject to many factors,
including our success in implementing our business strategy, which is subject to many risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, the forecasts of market growth included in this prospectus should
not be taken as indicative of our future growth.
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In connection with the audits of our consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, we and our independent registered public accounting
firm identified certain material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. If we fail to develop and maintain an effective system of internal control over financial
reporting, we may be unable to accurately report our financial results or prevent fiaud.

Prior to this offering, we have been a private company with limited accounting personnel and other resources with which we address our internal control over financial reporting. We have not
engaged any internal control adviser with the necessary expertise to performan internal control audit pursuant to SOX 404 in anticipation of this offering. In connection with the auditing of our
consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, we and our independent registered public accounting firmidentified the following material
weaknesses in our internal control over

financial reporting:

e our lack of accounting personnel with appropriate knowledge of U.S. GAAP and the SEC reporting and comprehensive accounting policies and procedures manual in accordance with
U.S. GAAP;

e our lack of the key monitoring mechanisms such as internal control department to oversee and monitor our risk management, business strategies and financial reporting procedures; and

o we do not have adequately designed and documented management review controls to properly detect and prevent certain accounting errors and omitted disclosures in the footnotes to
the consolidated financial statements.

As defined in the standards established by the U.S. Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, or PCAOB, a “material weakness” is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis.

We plan to take the following steps and measures to remediate the material weaknesses identified:
e We are in the process of establishing an audit committee, chaired by Jengren Michael Hwang, who has over 20 years of experience in accounting and finance. The audit committee will
be established upon the SEC’s declaration of effectiveness of our registration statement on Form F-1, of which this prospectus is a part. The audit committee will oversee our accounting

and financial reporting processes and the audits of the financial statements of our company.

e We plan to establish an internal control department to oversee and monitor our risk management, business strategies and financial reporting procedures. We will design our management
review controls to properly detect and prevent certain accounting errors and omitted disclosures in the footnotes to the consolidated financial statements.

e We intend to strengthen our financial team by employing more qualified accountants to enhance the quality of our financial reporting function.

e We plan to continue the engagement with our external financial consultant with U.S. GAAP experience to help our management in financial reporting processes.
However, the implementation of these measures may not fully address these weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, and we cannot conclude that they have been fully
remedied. Our failure to correct these weakness and deficiencies or our failure to discover and address any other weakness and deficiencies could result in our inability to accurately report our
financial results, prevent or detect fraud or provide timely and reliable financial and other information pursuant to the reporting obligations we have as a public company, which could have a

material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, it could cause our investors to lose confidence in the information we report, which could adversely
affect the price of our shares.
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We will incur increased costs as a result of being a public company, particularly after we cease to qualify as an “emerging growth company.”

Upon completion of this offering, we will become a public company and expect to incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. The
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as rules subsequently implemented by the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, imposes various requirements on the corporate governance
practices of public companies. We qualify as an “emerging growth company” pursuant to the JOBS Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting and
other requirements that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include exemption fromthe auditor attestation requirement under SOX 404 in the assessment of
the emerging growth company’s internal control over financial reporting and permission to delay adopting new or revised accounting standards until such time as those standards apply to
private companies.

We expect these rules and regulations to increase our legal and financial compliance costs and to make some corporate activities more time consuming and costly. After we are no longer an
“emerging growth company,” we expect to incur significant expenses and devote substantial management effort toward ensuring compliance with the requirements of SOX 404 and the other rules
and regulations of the SEC. For example, as a result of becoming a public company, we will need to increase the number of independent directors and adopt policies regarding internal controls
and disclosure controls and procedures. We also expect that operating as a public company will make it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance,
and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. In addition, we will incur additional costs
associated with our public company reporting requirements. It may also be more difficult for us to find qualified persons to serve on our board of directors or as executive officers. We are
currently evaluating and monitoring developments with respect to these rules and regulations, and we cannot predict or estimate with any degree of certainty the amount of additional costs we
may incur or the timing of such costs.

Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure

Ifthe PRC government deems that the contractual arrangements in relation to our consolidated variable interest entity do not comply with PRC regulatory restrictions on foreign
investment in the relevant industries, or if these regulations or the interpretation of existing regulations change in the future, we could be subject to severe penalties or be forced to
relinquish our interests in those operations.

The PRC government regulates value-added telecommunication business through strict business licensing requirements and other government regulations. These laws and regulations also
include limitations on foreign ownership of PRC companies that engage in value-added telecommunication business. Specifically, foreign investors are not allowed to own more than 50% equity
interest in any PRC company engaging in providing value-added telecommmunication business (excluding e-commerce business, domestic multi-party communications services, store and forward
services and call center services).

Because we are an exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands, we are classified as a foreign enterprise under PRC laws and regulations, and our wholly-owned
PRC subsidiary, Lohas WFOE, is a foreign-invested enterprise. Accordingly, Lohas WFOE is not eligible to operate a value-added telecommunication business (excluding e-commerce business,
domestic multi-party communications services, store and forward services and call center services) on its own which foreign-owned companies are restricted from conducting in China. We
therefore conduct our business in China through our consolidated variable interest entity, Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary, Lohas Supply Chain. Lohas WFOE has entered into a series of
contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders. For a description of these contractual arrangements, see “Corporate History and Structure—Our Corporate Structure.”

As there are substantial uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of PRC laws and regulations, including the Foreign Investment Law of the PRC (coming into force on January 1,
2020) and the Regulations on Mergers and Acquisitions of Domestic Enterprises by Foreign Investors and the relevant regulatory measures, there can be no assurance that the PRC government
authorities would ultimately agree that our corporate structure or any of the above contractual arrangements comply with PRC licensing, registration or other regulatory requirements, with
existing policies or with requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future.
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If our corporate structure and contractual arrangements are deemed by the Ministry of Commerce or other regulators having competent authority to be illegal, either in whole or in part, we may
lose control of Lohas Agricultural and may have to modify such structure to comply with regulatory requirements. However, there can be no assurance that we can achieve this without material
disruption to our business. Further, if our corporate structure and contractual arrangements are found to be in violation of any existing or future PRC laws or regulations, the relevant regulatory
authorities would have broad discretion in dealing with such violations, including:

e revoking our business and operating licenses;

e levying fines on us;

e confiscating any of our income that they deemto be obtained through illegal operations;

e shutting down our services;

e discontinuing or restricting our operations in China;

e imposing conditions or requirements with which we may not be able to comply;

e requiring us to change our corporate structure and contractual arrangements;

e restricting or prohibiting our use of the proceeds fromoverseas offerings to finance Lohas Agricultural’s business and operations; and

e taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could be harmful to our business.
Furthermore, new PRC laws, rules and regulations may be introduced to impose additional requirements that may be applicable to our corporate structure and contractual arrangements. See
“Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure—Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation and implementation of the Foreign Investment Law of PRC.” Occurrence of any of
these events could materially and adversely affect our business and financial condition and results of operations. In addition, if the imposition of any of these penalties or requirements to
restructure our corporate structure causes us to lose the right to direct the activities of Lohas Agricultural or our right to receive its economic benefits, we would no longer be able to consolidate
the financial results of Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain in our consolidated financial statements. If our corporate structure and contractual arrangements are deemed to be illegal by
relevant regulators, our business and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected and the price of our shares may decline. See “Corporate History and Structure—Our
Corporate Structure.”
Our contractual arrangements with our consolidated variable interest entity may result in adverse tax consequences to us.
Under applicable PRC laws and regulations, arrangements and transactions among related parties may be subject to audit or challenge by the PRC taxauthorities. The PRC enterprise income tax
law requires every enterprise in China to submit its annual enterprise income tax return together with a report on transactions with its related parties to the relevant tax authorities. The tax
authorities may impose reasonable adjustments on taxation if they have identified any related party transactions that are inconsistent with arm’s length principles. We could face material and
adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax authorities determine that our contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural were not made on an arm’s length basis and adjust our income and
expenses for PRC tax purposes by requiring a transfer pricing adjustment. A transfer pricing adjustment could adversely affect us by (i) increasing the taxliabilities of Lohas Agricultural without

reducing the tax liability of our subsidiaries, which could further result in late payment fees and other penalties to Lohas Agricultural for underpaid taxes; or (ii) limiting the ability of Lohas
Agricultural to obtain or maintain preferential tax treatments and other financial incentives.
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We rely on contractual arrangements with our consolidated variable interest entity and its shareholders to operate our business, which may not be as effective as direct ownership in
providing operational control and may have potential conflicts of interests with us, which may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

We rely on contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders to operate our business. For a description of these contractual arrangements, see “Corporate History and
Structure—Our Corporate Structure.” All of our revenue is attributed to Lohas Agricultural. These contractual arrangements may not be as effective as direct ownership in providing us with
control over Lohas Agricultural. If Lohas Agricultural or its shareholders fail to perform their respective obligations under these contractual arrangements, our recourse to the assets held by
Lohas Agricultural is indirect and we may have to incur substantial costs and expend significant resources to enforce such arrangements in reliance on legal remedies under PRC law. These
remedies may not always be effective, particularly in light of uncertainties in the PRC legal system. Furthermore, in connection with litigation, arbitration or other judicial or dispute resolution
proceedings, assets under the name of any of the record holders of equity interest in Lohas Agricultural, including such equity interest, may be put under court custody. As a consequence, we
cannot be certain that the equity interest will be disposed pursuant to the contractual arrangement or ownership by the record holder of the equity interest.
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All of these contractual arrangements are governed by PRC law and provide for the resolution of disputes through arbitration in the PRC. Accordingly, these contracts would be interpreted in
accordance with PRC laws and any disputes would be resolved in accordance with PRC legal procedures. The legal systemin the PRC is not as developed as in some other jurisdictions, such as
the United States. As a result, uncertainties in the PRC legal system could limit our ability to enforce these contractual arrangements. Meanwhile, there are very few precedents and little formal
guidance as to how contractual arrangements in the context of a VIE should be interpreted or enforced under PRC law. There remain significant uncertainties regarding the ultimate outcome of
such arbitration should legal action become necessary. In addition, under PRC law, rulings by arbitrators are final, parties cannot appeal the arbitration results in courts, and if the losing parties
fail to carry out the arbitration awards within a prescribed time limit, the prevailing parties may only enforce the arbitration awards in PRC courts through arbitration award recognition
proceedings, which would require additional expenses and delay. In the event that we are unable to enforce these contractual arrangements, or if we suffer significant time delays or other
obstacles in the process of enforcing these contractual arrangements, it would be very difficult to exert effective control over Lohas Agricultural, and our ability to conduct our business and our
financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. See “—Risks Related to Doing Business in China—There are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and
enforcement of PRC laws, rules and regulations.”

In connection with our operations in China, we rely on the shareholders of Lohas Agricultural to fulfill the obligations under such contractual arrangements. The interests of these shareholders
in their individual capacities as shareholders of Lohas Agricultural may differ fromthe interests of our company as a whole, as what is in the best interests of Lohas Agricultural, including
matters such as whether to distribute dividends or to make other distributions to fund our offshore requirement, may not be in the best interests of our company. There can be no assurance that
when conflicts of interest arise, any or all of these individuals or entities will act in the best interests of our company or that those conflicts of interest will be resolved in our favor. In addition,
these individuals and entities may breach or cause Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary to breach or refuse to renew the existing contractual arrangements with us.

Currently, we do not have arrangements that address potential conflicts of interest shareholders of Lohas Agricultural may encounter due to their dual roles as shareholders of Lohas
Agricultural and as beneficial owners of our company. However, we could, at all times, exercise our option under the exclusive option agreement to cause themto transfer all of their equity
ownership in Lohas Agricultural to a PRC entity or individual designated by us as permitted by the then applicable PRC laws. In addition, if such conflicts of interest arise, we could also, in the
capacity of attorney-in-fact of the then existing shareholders of Lohas Agricultural as provided under the powers of attorney, directly appoint new executive director of Lohas Agricultural. We
rely on the shareholders of Lohas Agricultural to comply with PRC laws and regulations, which protect contracts, and to provide that executive director and executive officers owe a duty of
loyalty to our company and require themto avoid conflicts of interest and not to take advantage of their positions for personal gains, and with the laws of the Cayman Islands, which provide
that directors have a duty of care and a duty of loyalty to act honestly in good faith with a view to our best interests. However, the legal frameworks of China and the Cayman Islands do not
provide guidance on resolving conflicts in the event of a conflict with another corporate governance regime. If we cannot resolve any conflicts of interest or disputes between us and the
shareholders of Lohas Agricultural, we would have to rely on legal proceedings, which could result in disruption of our business and subject us to substantial uncertainty as to the outcome of
any such legal proceedings.

Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation and implementation of the Foreign Investment Law of PRC.

On March 15, 2019, the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress passed the Foreign Investment Law of PRC, which will take effect since January 1, 2020. The Law of the People’s
Republic of China on China-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Wholly Foreign-Owned Enterprises, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
China-Foreign Contractual Joint Ventures shall be replaced at the same time. Since it is relatively new, uncertainties exist in relation to its interpretation and implementation. The Foreign
Investment Law of PRC makes no mention of variable interest entity structures, which means it does not explicitly classify whether variable interest entities that are controlled through
contractual arrangements would be deemed as foreign invested enterprises if they are ultimately “controlled” by foreign investors. Accordingly, the Foreign Investment Law of PRC sets aside
issues that still remain controversial but are relatively less urgent, such as the legality of the variable interest entity structure and leaves those less urgent issues to legislative authorization. This
means that variable interest entity structures may in the future still be regarded as “foreign investment” under separate laws, administrative regulations formulated by the State Council, and
regulatory documents according to the catch-all provision “foreign investments in other forms as provided by law, administrative regulations, or by the State Council” found in paragraph 2,
Atrticle 2 of the Foreign Investment Law of PRC.
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The Foreign Investment Law grants national treatment to foreign-invested entities, except for those foreign-invested entities that operate in industries specified as either “restricted” or
“prohibited” from foreign investment in a “negative list”. The Foreign Investment Law provides that foreign-invested entities operating in “restricted” or “prohibited” industries will require
market entry clearance and other approvals fromrelevant PRC government authorities. On June 30, 2019, the Ministry of Commerce and the National Development and Reform Commission of
China (the “NDRC”) jointly issued the latest version of Special Administrative Measures (Negative List) for Access of Foreign Investment (the “Negative List”) (2019 Edition). See “Regulations
—Regulations relating to Foreign Investment.” Currently, our business related to the value-added telecommunication business (excluding e-commerce business, domestic multi-party
communications services, store and forward services and call center services) falls within the Negative List. If our control over our VIE through contractual arrangements are deemed as foreign
investment in the future, and any business of our VIE is “restricted” or “prohibited” from foreign investment under the “negative list” promulgated or amended in the future, we may be deemed
to be in violation of the Foreign Investment Law, the contractual arrangements that allow us to have control over our VIE may be deemed as invalid and illegal, and we may be required to unwind
such contractual arrangements and/or restructure our business operations, any of which may have a material adverse effect on our business operation.

Furthermore, if future laws, administrative regulations or provisions mandate further actions to be taken by companies with respect to existing contractual arrangements, we may face substantial
uncertainties as to whether we can complete such actions in a timely manner, or at all. Failure to take timely and appropriate measures to address any of these or similar regulatory compliance
challenges could materially and adversely affect our current corporate structure and business operations.

Any failure by our consolidated variable interest entity or its shareholders to perform their obligations under our contractual arrangements with them would have a material and adverse
effect on our business.

If Lohas Agricultural or its shareholders fail to perform their respective obligations under the contractual arrangements, we may have to incur substantial costs and expend additional resources
to enforce such arrangements. We may also have to rely on legal remedies under PRC law, including seeking specific performance or injunctive relief, and claiming damages, which we cannot
assure you will be effective. For example, if the shareholders of Lohas Agricultural were to refuse to transfer their equity interest to us or our designee when we exercise the purchase option
pursuant to these contractual arrangements, or if they were otherwise to act in bad faith toward us, we may have to take legal actions to compel themto performtheir contractual obligations.

Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary conduct our business. In the event we are unable to enforce our contractual arrangements, we may not be able to exert effective control over Lohas
Agricultural, and our ability to conduct our business may be negatively affected.

The shareholders of our consolidated variable interest entity may have potential conflicts of interest with us, which may materially and adversely affect our business and financial
condition.

The equity interests of Lohas Agricultural are held, directly and indirectly, by numerous shareholders, including Mr. Yanyue Zhang, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. These shareholders
may have potential conflicts of interest with us. These shareholders may breach, or cause Lohas Agricultural to breach, the existing contractual arrangements, which would have a material
adverse effect on our ability to effectively control Lohas Agricultural and receive economic benefits fromit. For example, these shareholders may be able to cause our agreements with Lohas
Agricultural to be performed in a manner adverse to us by, among other things, failing to remit payments due under the contractual arrangements to us on a timely basis. We cannot assure you
that when conflicts of interest arise, any or all of these shareholders will act in the best interests of our company or such conflicts will be resolved in our favor.

Currently, we do not have any arrangements to address potential conflicts of interest between these shareholders and our company, except that we could exercise our purchase option under the
exclusive option agreements with these shareholders to request themto transfer all of their equity interests in Lohas Agricultural to a PRC entity or individual designated by us, to the extent
permitted by PRC laws. If we cannot resolve any conflict of interest or dispute between us and these shareholders, we would have to rely on legal proceedings, which could result in the
disruption of our business and subject us to substantial uncertainty as to the outcome of any such legal proceedings.
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We may lose the ability to use and enjoy assets held by Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain that are material to the operation of certain portion of our business if Lohas
Agricultural or Lohas Supply Chain goes bankrupt or becomes subject to a dissolution or liquidation proceeding.

As part of our contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain hold certain assets and licenses that are material to the operation of certain portion
of our business, including intellectual property and premise. If Lohas Agricultural or Lohas Supply Chain goes bankrupt and all or part of its assets become subject to liens or rights of third-
party creditors, we may be unable to continue some or all of our business activities, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Under
the contractual arrangements, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain may not, in any manner, sell, trans fer, mortgage or dispose of its assets or legal or beneficial interests in the business
without our prior consent. However, in the event that the shareholders of Lohas Agricultural breach this obligation and voluntarily liquidate Lohas Agricultural or Lohas Supply Chain, or Lohas
Agricultural or Lohas Supply Chain declares bankruptcy, or all or part of its assets become subject to liens or rights of third-party creditors, we may be unable to continue some or all of our
operations, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore, if Lohas Agricultural or Lohas Supply Chain undergoes a
voluntary or involuntary liquidation proceeding, shareholders of Lohas Agricultural or unrelated third-party creditors may claimrights to some or all of its assets, hindering our ability to operate
our business, which could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Ifthe chops of our PRC subsidiary, our VIE and its subsidiary, are not kept safely, are stolen or are used by unauthorized persons or for unauthorized purposes, the corporate governance
of these entities could be severely and adversely compromised.

In China, a company chop or seal serves as the legal representation of the company towards third parties even when unaccompanied by a signature. Each legally registered company in China is
required to maintain a company chop, which must be registered with the local Public Security Bureau. In addition to this mandatory company chop, companies may have several other chops
which can be used for specific purposes. The chops of our PRC subsidiary, our VIE and its subsidiary are generally held securely by personnel designated or approved by us in accordance with
our internal control procedures. To the extent those chops are not kept safe, are stolen or are used by unauthorized persons or for unauthorized purposes, the corporate governance of these
entities could be severely and adversely compromised and those corporate entities may be bound to abide by the terms of any documents so chopped, even if they were chopped by an
individual who lacked the requisite power and authority to do so. If any of our authorized personnel obtains, misuses or misappropriates our chops for whatever reason, we could experience
disruptions in our operations. We may also have to take corporate or legal action, which could require significant time and resources to resolve while distracting management from our operations.
Any of the foregoing could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Risks Related to Doing Business in China

Changes in the political and economic policies of the PRC government and social condition may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations
and may result in our inability to sustain our growth and expansion strategies.

Substantially all of operations are conducted in the PRC and all of our revenue is sourced fromthe PRC. Accordingly, our financial condition and results of operations are affected to a significant
extent by economic, political and legal developments and social condition in the PRC.

The PRC economy differs fromthe economies of most developed countries in many respects, including the extent of government involvement, level of development, growth rate, and control of
foreign exchange and allocation of resources. Although the PRC government has implemented measures emphasizing the utilization of market forces for economic reform, the reduction of state
ownership of productive assets, and the establishment of improved corporate governance in business enterprises, a substantial portion of productive assets in China is still owned by the
government. In addition, the PRC government continues to play a significant role in regulating industry development by imposing industrial policies. The PRC government also exercises
significant control over China’s economic growth by allocating resources, controlling payment of foreign currency-denominated obligations, setting monetary policy, regulating financial services
and institutions and providing preferential treatment to particular industries or companies.
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While the PRC economy has experienced significant growth in the past three decades, growth has been uneven, both geographically and among various sectors of the economy. The PRC
government has implemented various measures to encourage economic growth and to guide the allocation of resources. Some of these measures may benefit the overall PRC economy, but may
also have a negative effect on us. Our financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected by government control over capital investments or changes in tax
regulations that are applicable to us. In addition, the PRC government has implemented in the past certain measures to control the pace of economic growth. These measures may cause
decreased economic activity, which in turn could lead to a reduction in demand for our services and consequently have a material adverse effect on our businesses, financial condition and
results of operations.
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There are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and enforcement of PRC laws, rules and regulations.

Substantially all of our business operations are conducted in the PRC and are governed by PRC laws, rules and regulations. Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain are also
subject to laws, rules and regulations applicable to foreign investment in China. The PRC legal systemis a civil law systembased on written statutes. Unlike the common law system, prior court
decisions may be cited for reference but have limited precedential value.

In 1979, the PRC government began to promulgate a comprehensive systemof laws, rules and regulations governing economic matters in general. The overall effect of legislation over the past
three decades has significantly enhanced the protections afforded to various forms of foreign investment in China. However, China has not developed a fully integrated legal system, and
recently enacted laws, rules and regulations may not sufficiently cover all aspects of economic activities in China or may be subject to significant degrees of interpretation by PRC regulatory
agencies. In particular, because these laws, rules and regulations, especially those relating to the internet, are relatively new, and because of the limited number of published decisions and the
nonbinding nature of such decisions, and because the laws, rules and regulations often give the relevant regulator significant discretion in how to enforce them, the interpretation and
enforcement of these laws, rules and regulations involve uncertainties and can be inconsistent and unpredictable. In addition, the PRC legal systemis based in part on government policies and
internal rules, some of which are not published on a timely basis or at all, and may have a retroactive effect. As a result, we may not be aware of our violation of these policies and rules until after
the occurrence of the violation.

Any administrative and court proceedings in China may be protracted, resulting in substantial costs and diversion of resources and management attention. Since PRC administrative authorities
and courts have significant discretion in interpreting and implementing statutory and contractual terms, it may be more difficult to evaluate the outcome of administrative and court proceedings
and the level of legal protection we enjoy than in more developed legal systems. These uncertainties may impede our ability to enforce the contracts we have entered into and could materially
and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission may be required in connection with this offering under a PRC regulation. The regulation also establishes more complex
procedures for acquisitions conducted by foreign investors that could make it more difficult for us to grow through acquisitions.

On August 8, 2006, six PRC regulatory agencies, including the Ministry of Commerce, the State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission, the State Administration of Taxation,
the State Administration for Industry and Commerce, the China Securities Regulatory Commission, and the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, jointly adopted the Regulations on Mergers
and Acquisitions of Domestic Enterprises by Foreign Investors, or the M&A Rules, which came into effect on September 8, 2006 and were amended on June 22, 2009. The M&A Rules requires
that an offshore special purpose vehicle formed for overseas listing purposes and controlled directly or indirectly by the PRC Citizens shall obtain the approval of the China Securities Regulatory
Commission prior to overseas listing and trading of such special purpose vehicle’s securities on an overseas stock exchange.

The Notice of the State Council on Further Strengthening the Administration of Share Issues and Listings Overseas, or the 97 Circular, was promulgated by the State Council on June 20, 1997,
which regulates that an unlisted Chinese investment company or a listed company with Chinese investment holdings which is registered overseas shall not apply to issue shares and list a
company overseas which involve domestic assets owned for less than three (3) years. If there are special circumstances, the application must be submitted to the China Securities Supervision
and Management Committee for examination and verification and then presented to the Securities Committee of the State Council for examination and approval. At the conclusion of these market
listing activities, the unit which holds the domestic shareholders’ rights must notify the China Securities Supervision and Management Committee of the details of the case for the record. Based
on our corporate structure , our onshore assets which are controlled via VIE agreements by the offshore assets have not been controlled by the same offshore assets over three years. As a
result, the approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission is required in connection with this offering under PRC regulation. As of the date of this Prospectus we have neither applied to
the China Securities Supervision and Management Committee for examination and verification nor presented to the Securities Committee of the State Council for examination and approval. Any
party which violates the above provisions could be punished for the unauthorized issue of share certificates. The relevant department could impose an administrative penalty under the direction
of'the responsible department in charge. The higher level department in charge of the unit involved may also punish the persons in charge of the unit and the persons directly responsible.
Penalties will take the form of dismissal froma work post through to expulsion. A case which constitutes a crime will be transferred to a judicial organ which will pursue criminal liability in
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accordance with the law. In addition, the China Securities Supervision and Management Committee will impose penalties on the units involved and relevant intermediary organizations and liable
persons in accordance with the Provisional Regulations on the Administration of the Issuing and Trading of Stocks and other relevant regulations.
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In the M&A rules, there are some additional procedures and requirements that are expected to make merger and acquisition activities in China by foreign investors more time consuming and
complex, including requirements in some instances that the Ministry of Comimerce be notified in advance of any change-of-control transaction in which a foreign investor takes control of a PRC
domestic enterprise in some instances such as involving key industries, that will or may affect the security of the national economy, or results in the transfer of actual control rights of a well-
known trademark or established Chinese trade name owned by a domestic enterprise, or that the approval fromthe Ministry of Commerce be obtained in circumstances where overseas
companies established or controlled by PRC enterprises or residents acquire affiliated domestic companies. We may grow our business in part by acquiring other companies operating in our
industry. Compliance with the requirements of the new regulations to complete such transactions could be time-consuming, and any required approval processes, including approval fromthe
Ministry of Commerce, may delay or inhibit our ability to complete such transactions, which could affect our ability to expand our business or maintain our market share. See “Business—
Regulation—Regulations Relating to Overseas Listing.”

Our PRC-resident beneficial owners’ failure to complete record-filing procedure for overseas investments could subject such beneficial owners to fines and legal sanctions and may
adversely affect our business as well.

According to the Administrative Measures for Overseas Investment of Enterprise promulgated by the NDRC on December 26, 2017 and effective as of March 1, 2018, overseas investments
conducted by enterprises that are established within the territory of the PRC are required to undergo the formalities for the confirmation or recordation, among others, of an overseas investment
project, report the relevant information, and cooperate in supervisory inspection. An investor shall, in overseas investment, neither violate the laws and regulations of China nor threaten or
damage the national interests and national security of China. Sensitive projects conducted by investors directly or through overseas enterprises controlled by them require prior approval by the
NDRC, while non-sensitive projects directly conducted by investors will be subject to the record-filing requirement with the NDRC. If the investor is a local enterprise (not an enterprise managed
by the central government) and the amount of investment is less than $300 million, the authority to submit the record-filing is the NDRC’s provincial branches. Where there is an increase or
decrease in the number of investors, a major change of the place of investment or the main content and size of the project, a change of the amount of Chinese investment by 20% or more of the
original amount approved or filed or for at least $100 million, the investor shall, before the change occurs, apply for modification to the authority. Where the investor subject to prior approval,
record-filing or modification filing requirements but fails to do so, the authority may order it to suspend or cease the investment and take remedial actions during a specified period, and issue a
warning to the investor and hold the relevant persons liable; and if it is criminally liable, the offender shall be subject to criminal liability.

As of'the date of this Prospectus, to the best of our knowledge, Gongqingcheng Baorui Lohas Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership), one of the shareholders of Lohas Agricultural, has
finished the record-filing procedure; while Shenzhen Lohas is currently in the process of record-filing. We cannot assure you that the record-filing will be completed in a timely manner, or will be
completed at all, and if Shenzhen Lohas is unable to do so, the authority may order it to suspend or cease the investment, take remedial actions during a specified period, and hold relevant
persons liable, which may adversely affect our business.

Our PRC-resident beneficial owners’ failure to complete foreign exchange registration for overseas investments could subject such beneficial owners to fines and legal sanctions as well as
adversely affect our business.

The State Administration of Foreign Exchange (“SAFE”) promulgated the Circular on Relevant Issues Concerning Foreign Exchange Control on Domestic Residents’ Offshore Investment and
Financing and Roundtrip Investment through Special Purpose Vehicles, or Circular 37, on July 4, 2014, and further promulgated the Circular on Further Simplifying and Improving Policies for
Foreign Exchange Administration for Direct Investment, or Circular 13, on February 13, 2015. According to Circular 37, PRC residents (both institution and individual) shall apply for foreign
exchange registration for overseas investments before contributing their legitimate domestic and overseas assets or equities into an offshore entity, for the purpose of overseas investment and
financing, referred to in Circular 37 as a “special purpose vehicle.” A domestic institution shall undergo the foreign exchange registration procedure for foreign investment in accordance with the
Notice of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Issuing the Provisions on Foreign Exchange Administration of the Overseas Direct Investment of Domestic Institutions, and other
relevant provisions. According to Circular 13, the foreign exchange registration under domestic and overseas direct investment can be directly conducted with qualified banks in accordance with
the Circular 13 and the Operating Guidelines for Foreign Exchange Transactions for Direct Investment.
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As of'the date of this prospectus, to the best of our knowledge, our PRC resident beneficial owners, Shenzhen Lohas and Gongqingcheng Baorui Lohas Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership), with offshore investments in our company have not started the process of applying for registration for their foreign investment since Shenzhen Lohas is currently in the process of
record-filing with NDRC. While we were promised by our PRC-resident beneficial owners to apply for registration once Shenzhen Lohas has finished the record-fling procedure, as we do not
have control over our beneficial owners, we cannot assure you that all our PRC-resident beneficial owners will comply with Circular 37, Circular 13 and subsequent implementation rules. The
failure of our PRC-resident beneficial owners to register or amend their SAFE registrations in a timely manner pursuant to Circular 37, Circular 13 and subsequent implementation rules may
subject such beneficial owners to fines and legal sanctions, which may adversely affect our business.

PRC regulation of loans to, and direct investment in, PRC entities by offShore holding companies and governmental control of currency conversion may restrict or prevent us from using
the proceeds of this offering to make loans to our PRC subsidiary and variable interest entity, or to make additional capital contributions to our PRC subsidiary.

In utilizing the proceeds of this offering, we, as an offshore holding company, are permitted under PRC laws and regulations to provide funding to Lohas WFOE, which is treated as a foreign-
invested enterprise under PRC laws, through loans or capital contributions. However, loans by us to Lohas WFOE to finance its activities cannot exceed statutory limits and must be registered
with the local counterpart of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange and capital contributions to Lohas WFOE are subject to the requirement of making necessary filings in the Foreign
Investment Comprehensive Management Information System, and registration with other governmental authorities in China.

The State Administration of Foreign Exchange promulgated the Notice of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Reforming the Administration of Foreign Exchange Settlement of
Capital of Foreign-invested Enterprises, or Circular 19, effective on June 1, 2015, in replacement of the Circular on the Relevant Operating Issues Concerning the Improvement of the
Administration of the Payment and Settlement of Foreign Currency Capital of Foreign-Invested Enterprises, the Notice fromthe State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Relevant Issues
Concerning Strengthening the Administration of Foreign Exchange Businesses, and the Circular on Further Clarification and Regulation of the Issues Concermning the Administration of Certain
Capital Account Foreign Exchange Businesses. According to Circular 19, the flow and use of the RMB capital converted from foreign currency-denominated registered capital of a foreign-
invested company is regulated such that RMB capital may not be used for the issuance of RMB entrusted loans, the repayment of inter-enterprise loans or the repayment of bank loans that have
been transferred to a third party. Although Circular 19 allows RMB capital converted from foreign currency-denominated registered capital of a foreign-invested enterprise to be used for equity
investments within the PRC, it also reiterates the principle that RMB converted fromthe foreign currency-denominated capital of a foreign-invested company may not be directly or indirectly
used for purposes beyond its business scope. Thus, it is unclear whether the State Administration of Foreign Exchange will permit such capital to be used for equity investments in the PRC in
actual practice. The State Administration of Foreign Exchange promulgated the Notice of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Reforming and Standardizing the Foreign Exchange
Settlement Management Policy of Capital Account, or Circular 16, effective on June 9, 2016, which reiterates some of the rules set forth in Circular 19, but changes the prohibition against using
RMB capital converted from foreign currency-denominated registered capital of a foreign-invested company to issue RMB entrusted loans to a prohibition against using such capital to grant
loans to non-associated enterprises. Violations of Circular 19 and Circular 16 could result in administrative penalties. Circular 19 and Circular 16 may significantly limit our ability to transfer any
foreign currency we hold, including the net proceeds fromthis offering, to Lohas WFOE, which may adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to fund and expand our business in the PRC.

Due to the restrictions imposed on loans in foreign currencies extended to any PRC domestic companies, we are not likely to make such loans to Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary, each a PRC
domestic company. Meanwhile, we are not likely to finance the activities of Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary by means of capital contributions given the restrictions on foreign investment in
the businesses that are currently conducted by Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary.

In light of the various requirements imposed by PRC regulations on loans to, and direct investment in, PRC entities by offshore holding companies, we cannot assure you that we will be able to
complete the necessary government registrations or obtain the necessary government approvals on a timely basis, if at all, with respect to future loans to Lohas WFOE or Lohas Agricultural or
future capital contributions by us to Lohas WFOE. As a result, uncertainties exist as to our ability to provide prompt financial support to Lohas WFOE or to Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary
when needed. If we fail to complete such registrations or obtain such approvals, our ability to use foreign currency, including the proceeds we received fromthis offering, and to capitalize or
otherwise fund our PRC operations may be negatively affected, which could materially and adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to fund and expand our business.
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Any failure to comply with PRC regulations regarding employee share incentive plans that we intend to adopt after this offering may subject the PRC plan participants or us to fines and
other legal or administrative sanctions.

Pursuant to Circular 37, PRC residents who participate in share incentive plans in overseas non-publicly-listed companies due to their positions as director, senior management or employees of
the PRC subsidiaries of the overseas companies may submit applications to the State Administration of Foreign Exchange or its local branches for the foreign exchange registration with respect
to offshore special purpose companies. Our directors, executive officers and other employees who are PRC residents and who may be granted options may follow Circular 37 to apply for the
foreign exchange registration before our company becomes an overseas listed company. After our company becomes an overseas listed company upon completion of this offering, we and our
directors, executive officers and other employees who are PRC residents and who have may be granted options will be subject to the Notice on Issues Concerning the Foreign Exchange
Administration for Domestic Individuals Participating in Stock Incentive Plan of Overseas Publicly Listed Company, issued by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange in February 2012,
according to which, employees, directors, supervisors and other management members who are PRC residents participating in any stock incentive plan of an overseas publicly listed company are
required to register with the State Administration of Foreign Exchange through a domestic qualified agent, which could be a PRC subsidiary of such overseas listed company, and complete
certain other procedures. We currently do not have employee share incentive plans and intend to adopt one after the completion of our initial public offering. We will make efforts to comply with
these requirements if and when an employee share incentive plan is adopted in the future. However, there can be no assurance that they can successfully register with the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange in full compliance with the rules. Failure to complete the registrations may subject themto fines and legal sanctions and may also limit the ability to make payment under our
share incentive plans or receive dividends or sales proceeds related thereto, or our ability to contribute additional capital into our wholly-foreign owned enterprises in China and limit our wholly-
foreign owned enterprises’ ability to distribute dividends to us. We also face regulatory uncertainties that could restrict our ability to adopt additional share incentive plans for our directors and
employees under PRC law.

We rely to a significant extent on dividends and other distributions on equity paid by our consolidated variable interest entity to fund offShore cash and financing requirements.

We are a holding company and rely to a significant extent on dividends and other distributions on equity paid by Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain, and on remittances from Lohas
WFOE, for our offshore cash and financing requirements, including the funds necessary to pay dividends and other cash distributions to our shareholders, fund intercompany loans, service any
debt we may incur outside of China, and pay our expenses. When Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural or Lohas Supply Chain incurs additional debt, the instruments governing the debt may
restrict their ability to pay dividends or make other distributions or remittances to us. Furthermore, the laws, rules and regulations applicable to Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas
Supply Chain permit payments of dividends only from part of their retained earnings, if any, determined in accordance with applicable PRC accounting standards and regulations.

Under PRC laws, rules and regulations, Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain are required to set aside at least 10% of their net income each year to fund certain statutory
reserves until the cumulative amount of such reserves reaches 50% of their registered capital. These reserves, together with the registered capital, are not included in the retained earnings
distributable as cash dividends. Furthermore, under PRC law, they cannot distribute any profits until all of their losses from prior fiscal years have been offset. In accordance with the articles of
association of these entities, profit distributions also need to be approved by their executive directors and shareholders before any distribution plan becomes effective. As a result, these entities
are restricted in their ability to transfer a portion of their net assets to their shareholder as dividends. In addition, registered share capital and statutory reserve accounts are also restricted from
withdrawal in the PRC, up to the amount of net assets held.

Limitations on the ability of Lohas WFOE to make remittance, and on the ability of Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain to pay dividends, could limit our ability to access cash generated

by the operations of those entities, including to make investments or acquisitions that could be beneficial to our businesses, pay dividends to our shareholders or otherwise fund and conduct
our business.
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Discontinuation of any preferential tax treatment or any of the government subsidies currently available to us and accordingly the increase in the enterprise income tax or surcharges in
the PRC could result in a decrease in our profits and materially and adversely affect our results of operations.

In March 2007, the National People’s Congress of China enacted the Enterprise Income Tax Law, which became effective on January 1, 2008 and amended on February 24, 2017 and December 29,
2018. Generally, Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain, which are considered PRC resident enterprises under the Enterprise Income Tax Law and are subject to enterprise
income tax on their worldwide taxable income as determined under PRC tax laws and accounting standards at a rate of 25% while preferential tax rates, tax holidays and even tax exemption may be
granted on case-by-case basis. Lohas Agricultural was qualified as a “Software Enterprise” by Shenzhen State Tax Bureau, and therefore is entitled to a two-year exemption fromthe Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”’) commencing fromits first profitable year and a 50% deduction of 25% EIT rate for the succeeding three years, with approval by the taxauthorities. Lohas Agricultural
exempted from EIT from 2014 to 2015, and enjoyed the preferential income taxrate of 12.5% from 2016 to 2018. According to the Measures for the Handling of Matters concerning Preferential
Enterprise Income Tax Policies (the “Announcement No. 23”) revised on April 25, 2018 by the State Taxation Administration, tax authorities conduct follow-up taxaudits at any appropriate time
after the enterprises receive the preferential tax treatment. We cannot assure you that Lohas Agricultural will be able to continue to receive such preferential tax treatment. If Lohas Agricultural
fails to prove its eligibility for the preferential tax treatment due to its failure to provide materials retained for future reference as required by the tax authority or the existence of inconsistencies
between the materials retained for future reference and its actual production or operation, financial accounting, relevant technology fields, among others, or the existence of committing fraud,
Lohas Agricultural could be required to repay the income tax for the previous years at the applicable non-preferential tax rate and subject to other penalties in accordance with relevant tax laws.

In addition, an encouraged industrial enterprise located in Hengqin New District, Pingtan Comprehensive Experimental Zone or Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry
Cooperation Zone is entitled to a reduced 15% taxrate from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2020 according to finance and taxation [2014] No. 26 issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation. Lohas Supply Chain has enjoyed such preferential tax rate since 2015. On October 21, 2019, Shenzhen Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modermn Service Industry
Cooperation Zone Administration issued a notice confirming that the business of Lohas Supply Chain satisfies relevant modern logistic industry requirements under The Catalogue of the
Preferential Enterprise Income Tax for Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone. However, according to the Announcement No. 23, tax authorities conduct
follow-up taxaudits at any appropriate time after the enterprises receive the preferential tax treatment. We cannot assure you that Lohas Supply Chain will be able to continue to receive such
preferential tax treatment. If it is determined that Lohas Supply Chain is not entitled to receive the aforesaid preferential tax treatment, we could be required to repay the income tax for the
previous years at the applicable non-preferential tax rate and subject to additional penalties in accordance with relevant taxlaws. As a result, our financial condition and results of operations
could be materially and adversely affected.

Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain have also received various financial subsidies from PRC local government authorities. The financial subsidies result from discretionary incentives
and policies adopted by PRC local government authorities. Local governments may decide to change or discontinue such financial subsidies at any time. The discontinuation of such financial
subsidies or imposition of any additional taxes could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We may be treated as a resident enterprise for PRC tax purposes under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, and we may therefore be subject to PRC income tax on our global income.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its implementing rules, enterprises established under the laws of jurisdictions outside of China with “de facto management bodies” located in
China may be considered PRC taxresident enterprises for tax purposes and may be subject to the PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% on their global income. “De facto management
body” refers to a managing body that exercises substantive and overall management and control over the production, personnel, accounting books and assets of an enterprise. The State
Administration of Taxation issued the Notice Regarding the Determination of Chinese-Controlled Offshore-Incorporated Enterprises as PRC Tax Resident Enterprises on the Basis of De Facto
Management Bodies, or Circular 82, on April 22, 2009. Circular 82 provides certain specific criteria for determining whether the “de facto management body” of a Chinese-controlled offshore-
incorporated enterprise is located in China. Although Circular 82 only applies to offshore enterprises controlled by PRC enterprises, not those controlled by foreign enterprises or individuals, the
determining criteria set forth in Circular 82 may reflect the State Administration of Taxation’s general position on how the “de facto management body” test should be applied in determining the
taxresident status of offshore enterprises, regardless of whether they are controlled by PRC enterprises. If we were to be considered a PRC resident enterprise, we would be subject to PRC
enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% on our global income. In such case, our profitability and cash flow may be materially reduced as a result of our global income being taxed under the
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Enterprise Income Tax Law. We believe that none of our entities outside of China is a PRC resident enterprise for PRC tax purposes. However, the taxresident status of an enterprise is subject to
determination by the PRC tax authorities and uncertainties remain with respect to the interpretation of the term “de facto management body.”
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There are significant uncertainties under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law relating to the withholding tax liabilities of our PRC subsidiary, and dividends payable by our PRC
subsidiary to our offShore subsidiaries may not qualify to enjoy certain treaty benefits.

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its implementation rules, the profits of a foreign-invested enterprise generated through operations, which are distributed to its immediate holding
company outside China, will be subject to a withholding taxrate of 10.0%. Pursuant to a special arrangement between Hong Kong and China, such rate may be reduced to 5.0% if a Hong Kong
resident enterprise owns more than 25.0% of the equity interest in the PRC company. Lohas WFOE is wholly owned by Lohas HK. Accordingly, Lohas HK may qualify for a 5.0% taxrate in
respect of distributions from Lohas WFOE. Under the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation on Issues regarding the Administration of the Dividend Provision in Tax Treaties
promulgated on February 20, 2009, the taxpayer needs to satisfy certain conditions to enjoy the benefits under a tax treaty. These conditions include: (1) the taxpayer must be the beneficial owner
of'the relevant dividends, and (2) the corporate shareholder to receive dividends fromthe PRC subsidiary must have continuously met the direct ownership thresholds during the 12 consecutive
months preceding the receipt of the dividends. Further, the State Administration of Taxation promulgated the Notice on How to Understand and Recognize the “Beneficial Owner” in Tax Treaties
on October 27, 2009, which limits the “beneficial owner” to individuals, enterprises or other organizations normally engaged in substantive operations, and sets forth certain detailed factors in
determining the “beneficial owner” status.

Entitlement to a lower taxrate on dividends according to taxtreaties or arrangements between the PRC central government and governments of other countries or regions is subject to State
Administration of Taxation Circular 60 which provides that non-resident enterprises are not required to obtain pre-approval fromthe relevant tax authority in order to enjoy the reduced
withholding tax. Instead, non-resident enterprises and their withholding agents may, by self-assessment and on confirmation that the prescribed criteria to enjoy the tax treaty benefits are met,
directly apply the reduced withholding taxrate, and file necessary forms and supporting documents when performing tax filings, which will be subject to post-tax filing examinations by the
relevant tax authorities. As a result, we cannot assure you that we will be entitled to any preferential withholding taxrate under tax treaties for dividends received from Lohas WFOE.

We and our existing shareholders face uncertainties with respect to indirect transfers of equity interests in PRC resident enterprises or other assets attributed to a Chinese establishment of
a non-Chinese company, or immovable properties located in China owned by non-Chinese companies.

In October 2017, the State Administration of Taxation issued the Bulletin on Issues Concerning the Withholding of Non-PRC Resident Enterprise Income Tax at Source, or Bulletin 37, which
replaced the Notice on Strengthening Administration of Enterprise Income Tax for Share Transfers by Non-PRC Resident Enterprises issued by the State Administration of Taxation on

December 10, 2009, and partially replaced and supplemented rules under the Bulletin on Issues of Enterprise Income Taxon Indirect Transfers of Assets by Non-PRC Resident Enterprises, or
Bulletin 7, issued by the State Administration of Taxation on February 3, 2015. Pursuant to Bulletin 7, an “indirect transfer” of PRC assets, including a transfer of equity interests in an unlisted
non-PRC holding company of a PRC resident enterprise, by non-PRC resident enterprises may be re-characterized and treated as a direct transfer of the underlying PRC assets, if such
arrangement does not have a reasonable commercial purpose and was established for the purpose of avoiding payment of PRC enterprise income tax. As a result, gains derived fromsuch indirect
trans fer may be subject to PRC enterprise income tax. According to Bulletin 7, “PRC taxable assets” include assets attributed to an establishment in China, immoveable properties located in
China, and equity investments in PRC resident enterprises and any gains fromthe transfer of such asset by a direct holder, who is a non-PRC resident enterprise, would be subject to PRC
enterprise income taxes. When determining whether there is a “reasonable commercial purpose” of the transaction arrangement, features to be taken into consideration include: whether the main
value of the equity interest of the relevant offshore enterprise derives from PRC taxable assets; whether the assets of the relevant offshore enterprise mainly consists of direct or indirect
investment in China or if its income mainly derives from China; whether the offshore enterprise and its subsidiaries directly or indirectly holding PRC taxable assets have real commercial nature
which is evidenced by their actual function and risk exposure; the duration of existence of the business model and organizational structure; the replicability of the transaction by direct transfer of
PRC taxable assets; and the tax situation of such indirect transfer and applicable tax treaties or similar arrangements. In the case of an indirect offshore transfer of assets of a PRC establishment,
the resulting gain is to be included with the enterprise income tax filing of the PRC establishment or place of business being transferred, and may consequently be subject to PRC enterprise
income tax at a rate of 25%. Where the underlying transfer relates to immoveable properties located in China or to equity investments in a PRC resident enterprise, which is not related to a PRC
establishment or place of business of a non-resident enterprise, a PRC enterprise income tax of 10% would apply, subject to available preferential tax treatment under applicable tax treaties or
similar arrangements, and the party who is obligated to make the transfer payments has the withholding obligation. Pursuant to Bulletin 37, the withholding agent shall declare and pay the
withheld taxto the competent tax authority in the place where such withholding agent is located within 7 days fromthe date of occurrence of the withholding obligation, while the transferor is
required to declare and pay such taxto the competent tax authority within the statutory time limit according to Bulletin 7. Late payment of applicable tax will subject the transferor to default
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interest. Both Bulletin 37 and Bulletin 7 do not apply to transactions of sale of shares by investors through a public stock exchange where such shares were acquired from a transaction through a
public stock exchange.
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There is uncertainty as to the application of Bulletin 37 or previous rules under Bulletin 7. We face uncertainties as to the reporting and other implications of certain past and future transactions
where PRC taxable assets are involved, such as offshore restructuring, sale of the shares in our offshore subsidiaries or investments. Our company may be subject to filing obligations or taxes if
our company is transferor in such transactions, and may be subject to withholding obligations if our company is transferee in such transactions, under Bulletin 37 and Bulletin 7. For transfer of
shares in our company by investors that are non-PRC resident enterprises, Lohas WFOE may be requested to assist in the filing under Bulletin 37 and Bulletin 7. As a result, we may be required
to expend valuable resources to comply with Bulletin 37 and Bulletin 7 or to request the relevant transferors from whom we purchase taxable assets to comply with these circulars, or to establish
that our company should not be taxed under these circulars, which may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to restrictions on currency exchange.

All of our net income is denominated in Renminbi. The Renminbi is currently convertible under the “current account,” which includes dividends, trade and service-related foreign exchange
transactions, but not under the “capital account,” which includes foreign direct investment and loans, including loans we may secure from Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural or Lohas Supply
Chain. Currently, Lohas WFOE may purchase foreign currency for settlement of “current account transactions,” including payment of dividends to us, without the approval of the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange by complying with certain procedural requirements. However, the relevant PRC governmental authorities may limit or eliminate our ability to purchase foreign
currencies in the future for current account transactions. Foreign exchange transactions under the capital account remain subject to limitations and require approvals from, or registration with,
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange and other relevant PRC governmental authorities. Since a significant amount of our future net income and cash flow will be denominated in
Renminbi, any existing and future restrictions on currency exchange may limit our ability to utilize cash generated in Renminbi to fund our business activities outside of the PRC or pay dividends
in foreign currencies to our shareholders, including holders of our shares, and may limit our ability to obtain foreign currency through debt or equity financing for Lohas WFOE, Lohas
Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain.

We are subject to the risk of a severe or prolonged downturn in the Chinese or global economy, which may materially and adversely affect our business and financial condition.

Any prolonged slowdown in the Chinese or global economy may have a negative impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Economic conditions in China are
sensitive to global economic conditions. The global financial markets have experienced significant disruptions since 2008 as the United States, Europe and other economies have experienced
periods of recession. The recovery fromthe lows of 2008 and 2009 has been uneven and there are new challenges, including the recent escalation of trade war between the United States and
China accompanied by the slowdown of China’s economic growth since 2012, both of which may continue. International trade disputes could also result in various forms of protectionist trade
legislation and other protectionist measures that could limit our ability to operate business internationally. Significant uncertainty also exists regarding the timing of UK’s anticipated withdrawal
fromthe EU and the effects such withdrawal may have on world economy, as well as uncertainty regarding the likelihood and timing of policy changes by the Trump Administration in the U.S.
and the subsequent impact on world economy. If present Chinese and global economic uncertainties persist, we may have difficulty in obtaining funding from investors. Adverse economic
conditions could also reduce the number of consumers seeking our products. Should any of these situations occur, our revenue will decline, and our business and financial condition will be
negatively impacted. Additionally, continued turbulence in the international markets may adversely affect our ability to access the capital markets to meet liquidity needs.
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Fluctuations in exchange rates could result in foreign currency exchange losses and could materially reduce the value of your investment.

The value of the Renminbi against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, changes in political and economic conditions and the foreign
exchange policy adopted by the PRC government. On July 21, 2005, the PRC government changed its policy of pegging the value of the Renminbi to the U.S. dollar. Following the removal of the
U.S. dollar peg, the Renminbi appreciated more than 20% against the U.S. dollar over the following three years. Between July 2008 and June 2010, this appreciation halted and the exchange rate
between the Renminbi and the U.S. dollar remained within a narrow band. Since June 2010, the Renminbi has started to appreciate slowly against the U.S. dollar, though there have been periods
when the U.S. dollar has appreciated against the RMB. On August 11, 2015, the People’s Bank of China allowed the Renminbi to depreciate by approximately 2% against the U.S. dollar. Since
then, the Renminbi has depreciated against the U.S. dollar significantly. It is difficult to predict how long such depreciation of RMB against the U.S. dollar may last and when and how the
relationship between the RMB and the U.S. dollar may change again.

All of our revenue and substantially all of our costs are denominated in Renminbi. We are a holding company and we rely on dividends paid by Lohas WFOE for our cash needs. Any significant
revaluation of Renminbi may materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial position reported in Renminbi when translated into U.S. dollars, and the value of, and any
dividends payable on, our ordinary shares in U.S. dollars. To the extent that we need to convert U.S. dollars we receive fromthis offering into Renminbi for our operations, appreciation of the
Renminbi against the U.S. dollar would have an adverse effect on the Renminbi amount we would receive. Conversely, if we decide to convert our Renminbi into U.S. dollars for the purpose of
making payments for dividends on our ordinary shares or for other business purposes, appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the Renminbi would have a negative effect on the

U.S. dollar amount.

You may face difficulties in protecting your interests and exercising your rights as a shareholder since we conduct substantially all of our operations in China, and almost all of our officers
and directors reside outside the United States.

Although we are incorporated in the Cayman Islands, we conduct most of our operations in China. A majority of our offices and directors reside outside the U.S. and substantially all of the
assets of those persons are located outside of the U.S. It may be difficult for you to conduct due diligence on our company or such directors in your election of the directors and attend
shareholders meetings if the meeting is held in China. We plan to have one shareholder meeting each year at a location to be determined, potentially in China. As a result of all of the above, our
public shareholders may have more difficulty in protecting their interests through actions against our management, directors or major shareholders than would shareholders of a corporation
doing business entirely or predominantly within the U.S.

Legislation enacted in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands as to economic substance may affect our corporate structure and cause us to incur additional compliance costs.

The Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, together with several other non-European Union jurisdictions, have recently introduced legislation aimed at addressing concerns raised by the
Council of the European Union as to offshore structures engaged in certain activities which attract profits without real economic activity.

With effect from January 1, 2019, the International Tax Co-operation (Economic Substance) Law, 2018 and issued related Regulations and Guidance Notes came into force in the Cayman Islands
introducing certain economic substance requirements for “relevant entities” which are engaged in certain “relevant activities,” which in the case of exempted companies incorporated before
January 1, 2019, will apply in respect of financial years commencing July 1, 2019, onwards. A “relevant entity” includes an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands; however, it
does not include an entity that is taxresident outside the Cayman Islands. Accordingly, for so long as our company is a taxresident outside the Cayman Islands, it is not required to satisfy
the economic substance test.

Pursuant to the Economic Substance (Companies and Limited Partnerships) Act, 2018 of the British Virgin Islands that came into force on January 1, 2019, if Lohas BVI is carrying on a “relevant

activity”, then it will be required to establish economic substance in the British Virgin Islands unless it is taxresident in another jurisdiction (other than a “blacklisted” jurisdiction, which does
not include China).
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Although it is presently anticipated that these laws will have little material impact on our company or its operations, as the legislation is new and remains subject to further clarification and
interpretation it is not currently possible to ascertain the precise impact of these legislative changes on our company.
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Risks Related to this Offering and the Market for Our Class A Ordinary Shares Generally

An active trading market for our Class A ordinary shares may not develop after this offering and you may not be able to resell your ordinary shares at or above the price you paid, or at all.
Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our shares. We intend to list our Class A ordinary shares on the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American] under the symbol “LOHA”
and have submitted the application to list our Class A ordinary shares on the Nasdaq Capital Market. However, there is no guarantee that we will be successful in listing our Class A ordinary
Shares on the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American].

Even if our Class A ordinary shares are approved for listing on the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American], a liquid public market for our Class A ordinary shares may not develop. The initial
public offering price for our Class A ordinary shares has been determined by negotiation between us and the underwriter based upon several factors, including prevailing market conditions, our
historical performance, estimates of our business potential and earnings prospects, and the market valuations of similar companies. The price at which the Class A ordinary shares are traded after
this offering may decline below the initial public offering price, meaning that you may experience a decrease in the value of your hares regardless of our operating performance or prospects.

The trading price of our Class A ordinary shares may be volatile, which could result in substantial losses to you.

The trading prices of our Class A ordinary shares are likely to be volatile and could fluctuate widely due to factors beyond our control. This may happen because of broad market and industry
factors, like the performance and fluctuation in the market prices or the underperformance or deteriorating financial results of other listed companies based in China. The securities of some of
these companies have experienced significant volatility since their initial public offerings, including, in some cases, substantial price declines in the trading prices of their securities. The trading
performances of other Chinese companies’ securities after their offerings may affect the attitudes of investors toward Chinese companies listed in the United States, which consequently may
impact the trading performance of our Class A ordinary shares, regardless of our actual operating performance. In addition, any negative news or perceptions about inadequate corporate
governance practices or fraudulent accounting, corporate structure or matters of other Chinese companies may also negatively affect the attitudes of investors towards Chinese companies in
general, including us, regardless of whether we have conducted any inappropriate activities. Furthermore, securities markets may fromtime to time experience significant price and volume
fluctuations that are not related to our operating performance, such as the large decline in share prices in the United States, China and other jurisdictions in late 2008, early 2009, the second half
0f2011 and in 2015, which may have a material and adverse effect on the trading price of our shares.
In addition to the above factors, the price and trading volume of our Class A ordinary shares may be highly volatile due to multiple factors, including the following:

e regulatory developments affecting us or our industry;

e announcements of studies and reports relating to the quality of our products or those of our competitors;

e changes in the economic performance or market valuations of similar companies;

e actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly results of operations and changes or revisions of our expected results;

e changes in financial estimates by securities research analysts;

e conditions in the market for our products;

e announcements by us or our competitors of new product offerings, acquisitions, strategic relationships, joint ventures, capital raisings or capital commitments;
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e additions to or departures of our senior management;

e fluctuations of exchange rates between the Renminbi and the U.S. dollar;
e release or expiry of lock-up or other transfer restrictions on our outstanding Class A ordinary shares; and

e sales or perceived potential sales of additional shares.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, the market price for our Class A ordinary shares and trading
volume could decline.

The trading market for our Class A ordinary shares will depend in part on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business. If research analysts do
not establish and maintain adequate research coverage or if one or more of the analysts who covers us downgrades our Class A ordinary shares or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research
about our business, the market price for our Class A ordinary shares would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company or fail to publish reports on us
regularly, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which, in turn, could cause the market price or trading volume for our Class A ordinary shares to decline.
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As our initial public offering price is substantially higher than our net tangible book value per share, you will experience immediate and substantial dilution.

If you purchase Class A ordinary shares in this offering, you will pay more for your shares than the amount paid by our existing shareholders for their Class A ordinary shares on a per share
basis. As a result, you will experience immediate and substantial dilution in net tangible book value per share in relation to the price that you paid for your Class A ordinary shares. We expect the
dilution as a result of the offering to be $[ ] per share to new investors purchasing our Class A ordinary shares in this offering (assuming no exercise of the underwriter’s option to purchase
additional shares), assuming a public offering price of $[ ] per share. In addition, you will experience further dilution to the extent that our Class A ordinary shares are issued upon the vesting of
restrictive shares or exercise of options under any share incentive plans that we may adopt. All of the Class A ordinary shares issuable under our then share incentive plans will be issued at a
purchase price on a per share basis that is less than the assumed public offering price per share in this offering. See “Dilution” for a more complete description of how the value of your
investment in our shares will be diluted upon completion of this offering.

Because we do not expect to pay dividends in the foreseeable future afier this offering, you must rely on price appreciation of your Class A ordinary shares for return on your investment.

We currently intend to retain most, if not all, of our available funds and any future earnings after this offering to fund the development and growth of our business. As a result, we do not expect
to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. See “Dividend Policy.” Therefore, you should not rely on an investment in our Class A ordinary shares as a source for any future dividend
income.

Our board of directors has complete discretion as to whether to distribute dividends, subject to certain requirements of Cayman Islands law. In addition, our shareholders may by ordinary
resolution declare a dividend, but no dividend may exceed the amount recommended by our directors. Under Cayman Islands law, a Cayman Islands company may pay a dividend out of either
profit or share premium account, provided that in no circumstances may a dividend be paid if this would result in the company being unable to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. Even if our board of directors decides to declare and pay dividends, the timing, amount and form of future dividends, if any, will depend on, among other things, our future
results of operations and cash flow, our capital requirements and surplus, the amount of distributions, if any, received by us from our subsidiaries, our financial condition, contractual restrictions
and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. Accordingly, the return on your investment in our Class A ordinary shares will likely depend entirely upon any future price
appreciation of our shares. There is no guarantee that our Class A ordinary shares will appreciate in value after this offering or even maintain the price at which you purchased your shares. You
may not realize a return on your investment and you may even lose your entire investment.

Substantial future sales or perceived potential sales of shares in the public market could cause the price to decline.

Sales of Class A ordinary shares in the public market after this offering, or the perception that these sales could occur, could cause the market price of our Class A ordinary shares to decline
significantly. Upon completion of this offering, we will have [ ] Class A ordinary shares outstanding, including [ ] Class A ordinary shares newly issued in connection with this offering, assuming
the underwriter does not exercise its option to purchase additional Class A ordinary shares. All Class A ordinary shares sold in this offering will be freely transferable by persons other than our
“affiliates” without restriction or additional registration under the Securities Act. All of the other Class A ordinary shares outstanding after this offering will be available for sale, upon the
expiration of the lock-up periods described elsewhere in this prospectus, beginning fromthe date of this prospectus (if applicable to such holder), subject to volume and other restrictions as
applicable under Rules 144 and 701 under the Securities Act. Any or all of these Class A ordinary shares may be released prior to the expiration of the applicable lock-up period at the discretion
of the underwriter. To the extent shares are released before the expiration of the applicable lock-up period and sold into the market, the market price of our Class A ordinary shares could decline
significantly. See “Shares Eligible for Future Sale—Lock-up Agreements.”

If the ownership of our ordinary shares continues to be highly concentrated, it may prevent you and other minority shareholders from influencing significant corporate decisions and may
result in conflicts of interest.
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Upon completion of this offering, Lohas World (Group) Co., Limited, or Lohas World, a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Yanyue Zhang, will own approximately [ ]% of our outstanding
voting shares (or approximately [ 1% if the underwriter exercises its option to purchase additional shares in full). As a result, it owns shares sufficient for majority votes over all matters requiring
shareholder votes, including: the election of directors; mergers, consolidations, and acquisitions; the sale of all or substantially all of our assets and other decisions affecting our capital
structure; amendments to our amended and restated memorandumand articles of association; and our winding up and dissolution. This concentration of ownership may delay, deter or prevent
acts that would be favored by our other shareholders. The interests of Lohas World may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of our other shareholders. This concentration of
ownership may also have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in control of our company. Also, Lohas World may seek to cause us to take courses of action that, in its
judgment, could enhance its investment in us, but which might involve risks to our other shareholders or adversely affect us or our other shareholders, including investors in this offering. As a
result, the market price of our shares could decline, or shareholders might not receive a premium over the then-current market price of our shares upon a change in control. In addition, this
concentration of share ownership may adversely affect the trading price of our shares because investors may perceive disadvantages in owning shares in a company with significant
shareholders.
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We have considerable discretion as to the use of the net proceeds from this offering and we may use these proceeds in ways with which you may not agree.

We intend to the proceeds fromthis offering primarily to enhance and expand our business operations and for general corporate purposes. However, we have considerable discretion in the
application of the proceeds. You will not have the opportunity, as part of your investment decision, to assess whether the proceeds are being used appropriately. You must rely on the judgment
of our management regarding the application of the net proceeds of this offering. The net proceeds may be used for corporate or other purposes with which you do not agree or that do not
improve our profitability or increase our share price. The net proceeds fromthis offering may also be placed in investments that do not produce income or that lose value.

Certain judgments obtained against us by our shareholders may not be enforceable.

We are an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. We conduct our operations outside the United States and substantially all of our assets are located outside the
United States. In addition, a majority of our directors and executive officers and the experts named in this prospectus reside outside the United States, and a significant amount of their assets are
located outside the United States. As a result, it may be difficult or impossible for you to bring an action against us or against themin the United States in the event that you believe that your
rights have been infringed under the U.S. federal securities laws or otherwise. Even if you are successful in bringing an action of this kind, the laws of the Cayman Islands, China or other relevant
jurisdiction may render you unable to enforce a judgment against our assets or the assets of our directors and officers. For more information regarding the relevant laws of the Cayman Islands
and China, see “Enforceability of Civil Liabilities.”

You may experience difficulties in effecting service of legal process, enforcing foreign judgments or bringing actions in China against us or our management named in the prospectus based
on foreign laws.

We are a company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands, we conduct substantially most of our operations in China and substantially most of our assets are located in China. In
addition, most of our senior executive officers reside within China for a significant portion of the time and most are PRC nationals. As a result, it may be difficult for you to effect service of
process upon us or those persons inside mainland China. It may also be difficult for you to enforce in U.S. courts judgments obtained in U.S. courts based on the civil liability provisions of the
U.S. federal securities laws against us and our officers and directors who reside and whose assets are located outside the United States. In addition, there is uncertainty as to whether the courts
of the Cayman Islands or the PRC would recognize or enforce judgments of U.S. courts against us or such persons predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the
United States or any state.

The recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments are provided for under the PRC Civil Procedures Law. PRC courts may recognize and enforce foreign judgments in accordance with the
requirements of the PRC Civil Procedures Law based either on treaties between China and the country where the judgment is made or on principles of reciprocity between jurisdictions. China
does not have any treaties or other forms of reciprocity with the United States that provide for the reciprocal recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments. In addition, according to the PRC
Civil Procedures Law, the PRC courts will not enforce a foreign judgment against us or our directors and officers if they decide that the judgment violates the basic principles of PRC laws or
national sovereignty, security or public interest. As a result, it is uncertain whether and on what basis a PRC court would enforce a judgment rendered by a court in the United States.
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You may face difficulties in protecting your interests, and your ability to protect your rights through U.S. courts may be limited, because we are incorporated under Cayman Islands law.

We are an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Our corporate affairs are governed by our amended and restated memorandumand articles of association, the
Companies Law (2018 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and the common law of the Cayman Islands. The rights of our shareholders to take action against our directors, actions by our minority
shareholders and the fiduciary duties of our directors to us under Cayman Islands law are to a large extent governed by the common law of the Cayman Islands. The common law of the Cayman
Islands is derived in part from comparatively limited judicial precedent in the Cayman Islands as well as fromthe common law of England, the decisions of whose courts are of persuasive
authority, but are not binding, on a court in the Cayman Islands. The rights of our shareholders and the fiduciary duties of our directors under Cayman Islands law are not as clearly established
as they would be under statutes or judicial precedent in some jurisdictions in the United States. In particular, the Cayman Islands have a less developed body of securities laws than the

United States. Some U.S. states, such as Delaware, have more fully developed and judicially interpreted bodies of corporate law than the Cayman Islands. In addition, Cayman Islands companies
may not have standing to initiate a shareholder derivative action in a federal court of the United States.

Shareholders of Cayman Islands exempted companies like us have no general rights under Cayman Islands law to inspect corporate records or to obtain copies of lists of shareholders of these
companies. Our directors have discretion under our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association to determine whether or not, and under what conditions, our corporate records
may be inspected by our shareholders, but are not obliged to make them available to our shareholders. This may make it more difficult for you to obtain the information needed to establish any
facts necessary for a shareholder resolution or to solicit proxies from other shareholders in connection with a proxy contest.

As aresult of all of the above, our public shareholders may have more difficulty in protecting their interests in the face of actions taken by our management, members of our board of directors or
our controlling shareholders than they would as public shareholders of a company incorporated in the United States. For a discussion of significant differences between the provisions of the
Companies Law (2018 Revision) of the Cayman Islands and the laws applicable to companies incorporated in the United States and their shareholders. See “Description of Share Capital—
Differences in Corporate Law.”

We are a foreign private issuer within the meaning of the rules under the Exchange Act, and as such we are exempt from certain provisions applicable to U.S. domestic public companies.

Because we qualify as a foreign private issuer under the Exchange Act, we are exempt from certain provisions of the securities rules and regulations in the United States that are applicable to
U.S. domestic issuers, including:

e the rules under the Exchange Act requiring the filing with the SEC of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q or current reports on Form 8-K;
o the sections of the Exchange Act regulating the solicitation of proxies, consents, or authorizations in respect of a security registered under the Exchange Act;

e the sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiders to file public reports of their stock ownership and trading activities and liability for insiders who profit fromtrades made in a short
period of time; and

e the selective disclosure rules by issuers of material nonpublic information under Regulation FD.
We are required to file an annual report on Form 20-F within four months of the end of each fiscal year. In addition, we intend to publish our results on a quarterly basis as press releases,
distributed pursuant to the rules and regulations of the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American]. Press releases relating to financial results and material events will also be furnished to the SEC

on Form 6-K. However, the information we are required to file with or furnish to the SEC will be less extensive and less timely compared to that required to be filed with the SEC by U.S. domestic
issuers. As a result, you may not be afforded the same protections or information that would be made available to you were you investing in a U.S. domestic issuer.
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As a foreign private issuer, we are permitted to rely on exemptions from certain [Nasdaq/NYSE] corporate governance standards applicable to domestic U.S. issuers. This may afford less
protection to holders of our shares.

We are exempted from certain corporate governance requirements of [Nasdaq/NYSE] by virtue of being a foreign private issuer. As a foreign private issuer, we are permitted to follow the

governance practices of our home country, the Cayman Islands, in lieu of certain corporate governance requirements of [Nasdaq/NYSE]. As result, the standards applicable to us are
considerably different than the standards applied to domestic U.S. issuers. For instance, we are not required to:

e have a majority of the board be independent (although all of the members of the audit committee must be independent under the Exchange Act);

e have a compensation committee and a nominating committee to be comprised solely of “independent directors”; or
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e hold an annual meeting of shareholders no later than one year after the end of our fiscal year.

Although we do not currently intend to rely these “home country” exemptions, we may rely on some of these exemptions in the future. As a result, our shareholders may not be provided with the
benefits of certain corporate governance requirements of [Nasdaq/NYSE].

As a “controlled company” under the rules of the [INASDAQ /NYSE], we may choose to exempt our company from certain corporate governance requirements that could have an adverse
effect on our public shareholders.

Prior to the completion of this Offering, our directors and officers beneficially own a majority of the voting power of our outstanding Class A ordinary shares. [Even if the over-allotment option is
exercised in full, we may continue to be a “controlled company.”] [Under Rule 5615(c)(1) of the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules/NYSE Listed Company Manual 303A.00], a company of which more
than 50% of the voting power is held by an individual, group or another company is a “controlled company” and is permitted to phase in its compliance with the independent committee
requirements. Although we currently do not intend to rely on the “controlled company” exemption under the Nasdaq listing rules, we could elect to rely on this exemption in the future. If we
elected to rely on the “controlled company” exemption, a majority of the members of our board of directors might not be independent directors and our nominating and corporate governance and
compensation committees might not consist entirely of independent directors. Our status as a controlled company could cause our Class A ordinary shares to look less attractive to certain
investors or otherwise harm our trading price.

Our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association contain anti-takeover provisions that could discourage a third party from acquiring us, which could limit our
shareholders’ opportunity to sell their shares at a premium.

Our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association contain provisions to limit the ability of others to acquire control of our company or cause us to engage in change-of-control
transactions. These provisions could have the effect of depriving our shareholders of an opportunity to sell their shares at a premium over prevailing market prices by discouraging third parties
fromseeking to obtain control of our company in a tender offer or similar transaction. For example, our board of directors has the authority, without further action by our shareholders, to issue
preferred shares in one or more series and to fixtheir designations, powers, preferences, privileges, and relative participating, optional or special rights and the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions, including dividend rights, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of redemption and liquidation preferences, any or all of which may be greater than the rights associated with our
Class A ordinary shares. Preferred shares could be issued quickly with terms calculated to delay or prevent a change in control of our company or make removal of management more difficult. If
our board of directors decides to issue preferred shares, the price of our Class A ordinary shares may fall and the voting and other rights of the holders of our Class A ordinary shares may be
materially and adversely affected. In addition, our amended and restated memorandumand articles of association contain other provisions that could limit the ability of third parties to acquire
control of our company or cause us to engage in a transaction resulting in a change of control.

There is a risk that we will be a passive foreign investment company for any taxable year, which could result in adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences to U.S. investors in our shares.

In general, a non-U.S. corporation is a passive foreign investment company, or PFIC, for any taxable year in which (i) 75% or more of its gross income consists of passive income or (ii) 50% or
more of the average quarterly value of its assets consists of assets that produce, or are held for the production of, passive income. For purposes of the above calculations, a non-U.S. corporation
that owns at least 25% by value of the shares of another corporation is treated as if it held its proportionate share of the assets of the other corporation and received directly its proportionate
share of the income of the other corporation. Passive income generally includes dividends, interest, rents, royalties and certain gains. Cash is a passive asset for these purposes.

Based on the expected composition of our income and assets and the value of our assets, including goodwill, which is based on the expected price of the shares in this offering, we do not expect
to be a PFIC for our current taxable year. However, the proper application of the PFIC rules to a company with a business such as ours is not entirely clear. It is also not entirely clear how the
contractual arrangements between us and Lohas Agricultural will be treated for purposes of the PFIC rules, and we may be or become a PFIC if Lohas Agricultural is not treated as owned by us
for these purposes. Because the proper characterization of certain components of our income and assets, and the treatment of our contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural, is not
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entirely clear, because we will hold a substantial amount of cash following this offering, and because our PFIC status for any taxable year will depend on the composition of our income and
assets and the value of our assets fromtime to time (which may be determined, in part, by reference to the market price of our shares, which could be volatile), there can be no assurance that we
will not be a PFIC for our current taxable year or any future taxable year.

If we were a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. investor holds shares, certain adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences could apply to such U.S. investor. See “Taxation—United
States Federal Income Tax Considerations—Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules.”
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements that are based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to us. All statements other than
statements of historical facts are forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are contained principally in, but not limited to, the sections entitled “Prospectus Summary,” “Risk
Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Business.” These statements relate to future events or to our future financial
performance and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different
from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to,
statements about:

® our goals and strategies;

e our future business development, financial condition and results of operations;

e expected changes in our revenue, costs or expenditures;

e growth of and competition trends in our industry;

e our expectations regarding demand for, and market acceptance of, our products;

e ourexpectations regarding keeping and strengthening our relationships with investors, institutional funding partners and other parties we collaborate with;
® ourexpectation regarding the use of proceeds fromthis offering;

e fluctuations in general economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate; and

e relevant government policies and regulations relating to our industry.

2 ¢ 9 ¢ LENNT3 EENT3 2 ¢er

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “may,” “could,” “will,” “should,” “would,” “expect,” “plan,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,”
“potential,” “project” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions. You should not place undue reliance on forward-
looking statements because they involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which are, in some cases, beyond our control and which could materially affect results.
Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include, among other things, those listed under the heading “Risk Factors™ and elsewhere in this prospectus. If
one or more of these risks or uncertainties occur, or if our underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual events or results may vary significantly fromthose implied or projected by the
forward-looking statements. No forward-looking statement is a guarantee of future performance.

2 LENT3

This prospectus also contains certain data and information, which we obtained from various government and private publications. Although we believe that the publications and reports are
reliable, we have not independently verified the data. Statistical data in these publications includes projections that are based on a number of assumptions. If any one or more of the assumptions
underlying the market data is later found to be incorrect, actual results may differ fromthe projections based on these assumptions.

The forward-looking statements made in this prospectus relate only to events or information as of the date on which the statements are made in this prospectus. Although we will become a
public company after this offering and have ongoing disclosure obligations under United States federal securities laws, we do not intend to update or otherwise revise the forward-looking
statements in this prospectus, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that we will receive net proceeds fromthis offering of approximately $[ ] million, or approximately $[ ] million if the underwriter exercises the over-allotment option in full, after
deducting underwriting discounts and the estimated offering expenses payable by us. These estimates are based upon an assumed initial public offering price of $§[ ] per share. A $1.00 increase
(decrease) in the assumed initial public offering price of §[ ] per share would increase (decrease) the net proceeds to us fromthis offering by $[ ] million, assuming the number of shares offered
by us, as set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, remains the same and after deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated expenses payable by us.

The primary purposes of this offering are to create a public market for our shares for the benefit of all shareholders, retain talented employees by providing them with equity incentives and obtain
additional capital. We currently intend to use the net proceeds of this offering as follows:

e approximately 20%, or §[ ] million, for enhancing and expanding our business
e approximately 45%, or $[ ] million, for marketing and promotion of our products and branding
e approximately 35%, or $[ ] million, for general corporate purposes

The foregoing represents our current intentions to use and allocate the net proceeds of this offering based upon our present plans and business conditions. Our management, however, will have
broad discretion in the way that we use the net proceeds of this offering. Pending the final application of the net proceeds of this offering, we intend to invest the net proceeds of this offering in
short-term, interest-bearing, investment-grade securities. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to this Offering and the Market for Our Ordinary Shares Generally—We have considerable discretion
as to the use of the net proceeds fromthis offering and we may use these proceeds in ways with which you may not agree.”

In using the proceeds of this offering, we are permitted under PRC laws and regulations as an offshore holding company to provide funding to our PRC subsidiary in China only through loans or
capital contributions and to our variable interest entity only through loans within our business scope, subject to the approval of government authorities. According to the regulations related to
foreign investment and foreign currency of the PRC, as described under “Our Business—Regulation—Regulations Relating to Foreign Investment” and “—Regulations Relating to Foreign
Exchange,” any funds we transfer to our PRC subsidiary, either as a shareholder loan or as an increase in registered capital, are subject to approval by or registration with relevant governmental
authorities in China. According to the relevant PRC regulations on foreign-invested enterprises in China, there are no quantity limits on our ability to make capital contributions to our PRC
subsidiary. However, our PRC subsidiary, which is foreign-invested enterprise, may not procure loans which exceed the difference between its registered capital and its total investment amount
as recorded in the Foreign Investment Comprehensive Management Information System. According to Circular 19, RMB converted fromthe foreign currency-denominated capital of a foreign-
invested company may not be directly or indirectly used for purposes beyond its business scope. According to Circular 16, using RMB capital converted from foreign currency-denominated
registered capital of a foreign-invested company to grant loans to associated enterprises is permitted. We intend to convert most of the proceeds to RMB through our PRC subsidiary and further
develop our business within the business scope of our PRC subsidiary, variable interest entity and other subsidiaries.

In order to use the proceeds of this offering, we intend to seek the government registration or approvals after this offering. However, we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain these
government registrations or approvals on a timely basis, if at all. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Doing Business in China—PRC regulation of loans to, and direct investment in, PRC entities
by offshore holding companies and governmental control of currency conversion may restrict or prevent us fromusing the proceeds of this offering to make loans to our PRC subsidiary and our
consolidated variable interest entity, or to make additional capital contributions to our PRC subsidiary.”
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The holders of our Class A ordinary shares are entitled to dividends out of funds legally available when and as declared by our board of directors. Our board of directors has never declared a
dividend and does not anticipate declaring a dividend in the foreseeable future. Should we decide in the future to pay dividends, as a holding company, our ability to do so and meet other
obligations depends upon the receipt of dividends or other payments from our operating subsidiary and variable interest entity. In addition, our operating subsidiary or variable interest entity
may, fromtime to time, be subject to restrictions on their ability to make distributions to us, including as a result of restrictive covenants in loan agreements, restrictions on the conversion of
local currency into U.S. dollars or other hard currency and other regulatory restrictions. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our ordinary shares are entitled to
receive, ratably, the net assets available to shareholders after payment of all creditors.

Under Cayman Islands law, dividends may be declared and paid only out of funds legally available therefor, namely out of either profits or our share premiumaccount, and provided further that a
dividend may not be paid if this would result in our company being unable to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

If we determine to pay dividends on any of our Class A ordinary shares in the future, as a holding company, we will be dependent on receipt of funds from our subsidiaries and variable interest
entity.

Current PRC regulations permit our indirect PRC subsidiary, Lohas WFOE, to pay dividends to Lohas HK only out of its accumulated profits, if any, determined in accordance with Chinese
accounting standards and regulations. In addition, Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary are required to set aside at least 10% of their after-tax profits each year, if any, to fund a
statutory reserve funds until the accumulative amount of such funds reaches 50% of their registered capital. Each of such entity in China is also required to further set aside a portion of its after-
tax profits to fund the employee welfare fund, although the amount to be set aside, if any, is determined at the discretion of such entity. Although the statutory reserves can be used, among other
ways, to increase the registered capital and eliminate future losses in excess of retained earnings of the respective companies, the reserve funds are not distributable as cash dividends except in
the event of liquidation.

The PRC government also imposes controls on the conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and the remittance of currencies out of the PRC. Therefore, we may experience difficulties in
completing the administrative procedures necessary to obtain and remit foreign currency for the payment of dividends from our profits, if any. Furthermore, if Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural
and its subsidiary incur debt on their own in the future, the instruments governing the debt may restrict their ability to pay dividends or make other payments. If we are unable to receive all of the
revenues fromour operations, we may be unable to pay dividends on our ordinary shares.

Cash dividends, if any, on our Class A ordinary shares will be paid in U.S. dollars. Lohas HK may be considered a non-resident enterprise for tax purposes, so that any dividends Lohas WFOE
pays to Lohas HK may be regarded as China-sourced income and as a result may be subject to PRC withholding taxat a rate of up to 10.0%.

The PRC Government and the Hong Kong government entered into the Arrangement between the Mainland of the PRC and Hong Kong for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention
of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income (the “Arrangement”) on August 21, 2006. According to the Arrangement, 5% withholding tax rate shall be applied on the dividends paid by a
PRC resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident, provided that such Hong Kong resident directly holds at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC resident enterprise, and vice versa.
Otherwise, the withholding taxrate would be 10%. According to the Notice of the SAT on the Issues Concerning the Application of Dividend Clauses of Tax Agreements, which took effect on
February 20, 2009, a taxpayer of the other contracting party of the taxagreements, who directly holds certain percentage (normally 25% or 10%) of equity interests in a PRC company, shall be
entitled to the taxtreatment specified in the tax agreements if all of the following requirements are satisfied: (i) such taxpayer obtaining dividends shall be a companys; (ii) the equity interests and
voting shares of a PRC company directly hold by such taxpayer shall reach the stipulated percentage; and (iii) the equity interests in a PRC resident enterprise directly owned by such taxpayer
shall satisfy the stipulated percentage at any time during the 12 months prior to the obtainment of the dividends.

In current practice, a Hong Kong enterprise must obtain a taxresident certificate fromthe Hong Kong tax authority to apply for the 5% lower PRC withholding taxrate. As the Hong Kong tax
authority will issue such a taxresident certificate on a case-by-case basis, we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain the taxresident certificate fromthe relevant Hong Kong tax
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authority and enjoy the preferential withholding tax rate of 5% with respect to dividends to be paid by Lohas WFOE to its immediate holding company, Lohas HK. Lohas HK intends to apply for
the taxresident certificate when Lohas WFOE plans to declare and pay dividends to Lohas HK. However, we cannot assure you that our application will be approved promptly.
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CAPITALIZATION
The following table sets forth our total capitalization as of March 31, 2019:
e on an actual basis; and

e onan as adjusted basis to give effect to the issuance sale of [ ] Class A ordinary shares by us in this offering at an assumed initial public offering price of $[ ] per Class A ordinary share,
after deducting the underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us (assuming the over-allotment option is not exercised).

You should read this table together with our consolidated financial statements, the related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus and the information under “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

March 31,2019
Actual As Adjusted)
(in thousands) (in thous ands)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,028 %
Debt
Short term borrowings 7,013
Long-termborrowings -
Total debt 7,013
Shareholders’ equity
Class A ordinary shares, par value $0.0001* 4
Class B ordinary shares, par value $0.0001* 2
Subscription receivable (6)
Additional paid-in capital 9,452
Statutory reserve 2,040
Retained earnings 21,004
Accunulated other comprehensive loss (1,002)
Total shareholder’s equity 31,494
Total capitalization(z) $ 31,494 $

*  The shares data are presented on a retroactive basis to reflect the reorganization of the Company.

(1) As adjusted information discussed above is illustrative only. Our additional paid-in capital, accumulative profits, accumulative other comprehensive loss, total shareholder’s equity and total
capitalization following the completion of this offering are subject to adjustment based on the actual initial public offering price and other terms of this offering determined at pricing.

(2) Assuming the number of Class A ordinary shares offered by us, as set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, remains the same, and after deducting underwriting discounts and

commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us, a $1.00 increase (decrease) in the assumed initial public offering price of §[ ] per Class A ordinary share would increase
(decrease) each of additional paid-in capital, total shareholders’ equity and total capitalization by $[ ] million.
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DILUTION

Ifyou invest in our Class A ordinary shares, your interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference between the initial public offering price per Class A ordinary share and our net tangible
book value per Class A ordinary share after this offering. Dilution results fromthe fact that the assumed initial public offering price per Class A ordinary share is substantially in excess of the net
tangible book value per Class A ordinary share attributable to the existing shareholders for our presently outstanding Class A ordinary shares.

Our net tangible book value was approximately $31.32 million, or $0.88 per Class A ordinary share, as of March 31, 2019. Our net tangible book value represents the amount of our total
consolidated tangible assets (which is calculated by subtracting deferred taxassets from our total consolidated assets), less the amount of our total consolidated liabilities. Dilution is determined
by subtracting net tangible book value per Class A ordinary share after giving effect to the proceeds we will receive fromthis offering, at an assumed initial public offering price of $[ ] per Class
A ordinary share, and after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

After giving effect to the sale of §[ ] of Class A ordinary shares in this offering at an assumed initial public offering price of §[ ] per Class A ordinary share, assuming no exercise of over-allotment
option and after deducting underwriting commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us, but without adjusting for any other change in our net tangible book value subsequent to
March 31, 2019, our pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value would have been $[ ] per Class A ordinary share. This represents an immediate increase in net tangible book value of §[ ] per
Class A ordinary share to our existing shareholders and immediate dilution of $[ ] per Class A ordinary share to new investors purchasing Class A ordinary shares in this offering. The following
table illustrates this per Class A ordinary share dilution to the new investors purchasing Class A ordinary shares in this offering:

Assumed initial public offering price per Class A ordinary share $ [1]
Net tangible book value per Class A ordinary share at March 31, 2019 $ 0.88
Pro forma net tangible book value per Class A ordinary share after this offering $ [1]
Increase in net tangible book value per Class A ordinary share to the existing shareholders $ [1]
Dilution in net tangible book value per Class A ordinary share to new investors in this offering $ [1]

A $1.00 increase (decrease) in the assumed public offering price of §[ ] per Class A ordinary share would increase (decrease) our pro forma net tangible book value after giving effect to the
offering by $[ ] million, the net tangible book value per Class A ordinary share after giving effect to this offering by $[ ] per Class A ordinary share and the dilution in net tangible book value per
Class A ordinary share to new investors in this offering by $[ ] per Class A ordinary share, assuming no change to the number of Class A ordinary shares offered by us as set forth on the cover
page of this prospectus, no exercise of over-allotment option and after deducting underwriting commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

The pro forma information discussed above is illustrative only. Our net tangible book value following the completion of this offering is subject to adjustment based on the actual initial public
offering price of our Class A ordinary shares and other terms of this offering determined at pricing.

The following tables summarize the differences between our existing shareholders and the new investors with respect to the number of Class A ordinary shares purchased fromus in this
offering, the total consideration paid and the average price per Class A ordinary share paid at an assumed initial public offering price of §[ ] per Class A ordinary share, and before deducting
estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses (assuming no exercise of over-allotment option).

Share Purchased Total Consideration Average
Price
Number % Amount % Per Share
Existing shareholders* 54,744,546 [1 $ 5,474 [1 $ 0.0001
New investors [1] [1 S [] [1 § []
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Total [] 100 $ [] 100§

*  Including 35,744,546 Class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary shares, each of par value of $0.0001

The discussion and the table above exclude shares issuable upon exercise of warrants to be issued to the underwriters in this offering.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected historical financial information should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in the prospectus and the
information contained in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” below.

The following summary consolidated financial data as of September 30, 2017 and 2018 and for the years then ended have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this prospectus. We derived the summary consolidated financial data as of March 31, 2019 and for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019 from our unaudited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus, which include all adjustments, consisting of normal recurring adjustments, that our management considers necessary for
a fair presentation of our financial position and results of operations as of the dates and for the periods presented.

Our financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Our historical results for any period are not necessarily indicative of our future performance.

Years Ended September 30, Six Months Ended March 31,
2017 2018 2018 2019
(unaudited) (unaudited)

(In thous ands, except share and per share data)
Statements of Income Data

Total revenue $ 57266 $ 85,186 % 31398  $ 44,924
Total cost of revenue 48,779 70,627 26,329 38,982
Total operating expenses 2,785 4,320 1,543 2,568
Income from operations 5,702 10,239 3,526 3,374
Total other income (expenses), net 404 125 89 (206)
Income before income taxes 6,106 10,364 3,615 3,168
Income taxexpense 962 1,583 515 520
Net income $ 5144 8§ 8781 $ 3,100 $ 2,648
Earnings per ordinary share

Basic and diluted $ 009 § 016 S 006 § 0.05
Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding

Basic and diluted 54,744,546 54,744,546 54,744,546 54,744,546

As of As of As of
September 30, September 30, March
2017 2018 31,2019
(unaudited)
(In Thous ands)

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents $ 635 § 82 § 3,028
Current assets 24,609 34,648 46,492
Total assets 24,794 34,849 46,812
Current liabilities 4,229 6,647 15,270
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Total liabilities 4,229 6,647 15,318
Shareholders’ equity 20,565 28,202 31,494
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 24794  $ 34849 $ 46,812
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion together with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements that are based on our current expectations, estimates and projections about our business and operations. Our actual results may differ materially from those currently
anticipated and expressed in such forward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors, including those which we discuss under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this prospectus. See
“Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Overview

We are a technology-driven, comprehensive distributor and high-tech retailer of fresh, natural and organic products in China with a focus on health and sustainability. Our name “Lohas” is an
acronym for Lifestyles of Health and Sustainability, which is the core philosophy we deeply embrace.

Since our establishment in 2013, we have been committed to promoting the philosophy of Lohas in China, advocating a healthy and sustainable lifestyle and providing low-carbon, green,
organic, environmentally friendly and natural products. With this in mind, we have spent the past sixyears developing a robust supply chain systemto deliver safe, non-toxic and pollution-free
food, which meets the needs of mid-to-high-end consumers who have high requirements for food quality and fits the lifestyle of Lohas consumers. The sources of our products are diverse and
we currently have 102 overseas and 5 domestic suppliers in 16 countries, which reduces risk of supply disruptions and provide us sufficient options for quality and cost. Our end-to-end control
ofthe supply chain eliminates middlemen, which also reduces cost.

We generate revenue fromthree kinds of goods and services to our clients in China: sale of products (mainly imported fruits), right to use e-commerce platformand other services. We recognize
the product revenue at a point of time when we satisfy our only performance obligation by transferring the control over products, which typically upon delivery to the city distributors,
wholesalers and other retailers and acceptance by them. We recognize revenues fromthe right to use e-commerce platformat a point of time at which the license is granted. Other service fees are
mainly derived fromtechnical services provided to the city distributors, and we recognize the technical service revenue ratably over the estimated service period.

Our business has grown rapidly in recent years as demonstrated by our growth in revenue from approximate $31.40 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 to approximate $44.92 million
for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, an increase of 43.08%, and approximate $57.27 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 to approximate $85.19 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018, an increase 0f 48.75%. The increase of sales was primarily driven by rapid growth in market demand for fresh and natural products in China.

Our net income increased from approximate $5.14 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 to approximate $8.78 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, an increase of
70.70%, and our net profit margin increased by more than one percentage point over those two years from 8.98% to 10.31%, mainly due to the rise in consumption of high-end imported fruits.
However, we suffered a decline in net profit for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, compared to the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018, as a result of the rise of purchase price of majority of our
imported fruits and our inability to fully pass increased costs to our customers due to the intense market competition. Our net profit declined from approximate $3.10 million for the six months
ended March 31, 2018 to $2.65 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 and net profit margin decreased from 9.87% to 5.89%.

Principal Factors Affecting Our Financial Performance

Our operating results are primarily affected by the following factors:

o  Growth in the Chinese economy. The demand for fresh, natural and organic products is dependent upon overall economic conditions in China. General economic factors, including the
individuals’ level of disposable income, inflation rate, and the consumer price index, may affect consumers’ willingness and ability to purchase fresh, natural and organic products.
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o Industry demand and competition. We operate in the highly competitive retail food industry. Our competitors include supermarkets, natural food stores, mass or discount retailers,
warehouse membership clubs, online retailers and specialty stores. These businesses compete with us for products, customers and locations. We compete on a combination of factors,
primarily product selection, quality, convenience, customer engagement, location, price and delivery options. Our success depends on our ability to offer products that appeal to our

customers’ preferences.
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e Product pricing. Our ability to maintain profitability largely depends on our ability to continually optimize our product mixand to accurately price the products. Many fruit products we
sell are subject to significant fluctuations in terms of availability and price. As a result of such seasonal fluctuations, we have historically realized a greater portion of our net sales and
of our gross profit during the second and third calendar quarters of the year than other periods. The sales price of any fresh produce item fluctuates throughout the year due to the
supply of and demand for that particular item, as well as the pricing and availability of other fresh produce items, many of which are seasonal in nature. In order to reduce the seasonal
fluctuations and maintain the stability of supply, we procure fresh produce from various sources in different geographic areas.

e  Our ability to broaden product offerings and expand our customer base. Our ability to increase the sales of products largely depends on our ability to attract customers with diversified
product offering.

Taxation

Cayman Islands

We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Cayman Islands currently levies no taxes on individuals or corporations based upon profits, income, gains or appreciation and there is currently
no estate duty, inheritance tax or gift tax. There are no other taxes likely to be material to us levied by the government of the Cayman Islands except for stamp duties which may be applicable on
instruments executed in, or after execution brought within the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands. The Cayman Islands is not party to any double tax treaties that are applicable to any payments

made to or by our company. There are no exchange control regulations or currency restrictions in the Cayman Islands.

Payments of dividends and capital in respect of our Class A ordinary shares will not be subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and no withholding will be required on the payment ofa
dividend or capital to any holder of our Class A ordinary shares, nor will gains derived fromthe disposal of our Class A ordinary shares be subject to Cayman Islands income or corporation tax.

British Virgin Islands

Our subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands is not subject to income taxes or capital gain under current laws of British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong

According to Tax (Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018 published by Hong Kong government, form April 1, 2018, under the two-tiered profits taxrates regime, the profits taxrate for the first
HKD2 million of assessable profits will be lowered to 8.25% (half of the rate specified in Schedule 8 to the Inland Revenue Ordinance (IRO)) for corporations. Lohas HK is subject to Hong Kong
profit tax at a rate of 8.25% as it did not have assessable profit during the periods presented. Hong Kong does not impose a withholding tax on dividends.

PRC

Enterprise Income Tax

Generally, Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain, which are considered PRC resident enterprises under PRC tax law, are subject to enterprise income taxon their worldwide
taxable income as determined under PRC taxlaws and accounting standards at a rate of 25.0%. If our holding company in the Cayman Islands or any of our subsidiaries outside the PRC is
considered as a PRC resident enterprise for tax purposes, then our global income will be subject to PRC enterprise income taxat the rate of 25.0%. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Doing
Business in China—We may be treated as a resident enterprise for PRC tax purposes under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, and we may therefore be subject to PRC income taxon our
global income.”

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 82/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

40

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 83/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

Lohas Agricultural was qualified as a “Software Enterprise” by Shenzhen State Tax Bureau, and therefore is entitled to a two-year exemption fromthe EIT commencing fromits first profitable year
and a 50.0% deduction of 25.0% EIT rate for the succeeding three years, with approval by the taxauthorities. Lohas Agricultural exempted from EIT from 2014 to 2015, and enjoyed the
preferential income taxrate of 12.5% from 2016 to 2018. In 2019, Lohas Agricultural enjoyed the preferential income taxrate of 15% as an encouraged industrial enterprise which engages in
information service in Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modem Service Industry Cooperation Zone according to finance and taxation [2014] No. 26 issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation (“finance and taxation [2014] No. 26™).

An encouraged industrial enterprise located in Hengqin New District, Pingtan Comprehensive Experimental Zone or Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone is
entitled to a reduced 15.0% taxrate fromJanuary 1, 2014 to December 31, 2020 according to finance and taxation [2014] No. 26. Lohas Supply Chain has enjoyed such preferential tax rate since
2015. On October 21, 2019, Shenzhen Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone Administration issued a notice confirming that the business of Lohas Supply
Chain satisfies relevant modern logistic industry requirements under The Catalogue of the Preferential Enterprise Income Tax for Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry
Cooperation Zone.

According to the Announcement No. 23 revised on April 25, 2018 by the State Taxation Administration, tax authorities conduct follow-up tax audits at any appropriate time after the enterprises
receive the preferential tax treatment. We cannot assure you that Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain will be able to continue to receive such preferential tax treatment. If Lohas
Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain fail to prove its eligibility for the preferential tax treatment due to their failure to provide materials retained for future reference as required by the tax
authority or the existence of inconsistencies between the materials retained for future reference and its actual production or operation, financial accounting, relevant technology fields, among
others, or the existence of committing fraud, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain could be required to repay the income tax for the previous years at the applicable non-preferential tax
rate and subject to other penalties in accordance with relevant tax laws.

Value Added Tax

The amount of VAT liability is determined by applying the applicable taxrate to the invoiced amount of products sold or services provided (output VAT) less VAT paid on purchases made with
the relevant supporting invoices (input VAT). Under the commercial practice of the PRC, the Company pays VAT based on taxinvoices issued.

The VAT rate is 17.0% for taxpayers selling goods, labor services, or tangible movable property leasing services or importing goods, except otherwise specified in the PRC prior to May 1, 2018,
and 16.0% on and after May 1, 2018; the VAT rates for taxpayers selling agriculture products are 13.0%, 11.0% and 10.0%, prior to July 1, 2017, on and after July 1, 2017 to April 30, 2018, on and
after May 1, 2018, respectively.

Withholding Tax on Dividends

Dividends paid by Lohas WFOE to Lohas HK will be subject to a withholding tax rate of 10%, unless Lohas HK satisfies all the requirements under the Arrangement between the PRC and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on the Avoidance of Double Taxation and Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income and Capital and receives approval fromthe
relevant tax authority. If Lohas HK satisfies the requirements under the tax arrangement and receives approval fromthe relevant tax authority, then the dividends paid to Lohas HK would be

subject to withholding tax at a reduced taxrate of 5%. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Doing Business in China—There are significant uncertainties under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law relating to the withholding taxliabilities of our PRC subsidiary, and dividends payable by our PRC subsidiary to our offshore subsidiaries may not qualify to enjoy certain treaty benefits.”

Our Reportable Segments

Our business is managed as a single operating segment that consists of sales of products, technical services and other services and substantially all of our revenues are derived in the PRC. All
our long-lived assets are also located in the PRC.
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Results of Operations
Six Months Ended March 31, 2018 Compared to Six Months Ended March 31,2019
The following table shows key components of our results of operations during the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019, in dollars and as a percentage of our total revenue.

For the six months ended

March 31, Change
2018 2019
(in thous ands) (in thous ands) Amount %
(Unaudited)

Net revenue $ 31,398 § 44924  §$ 13,526 43.08
Less: Cost of revenue 26,329 38,982 12,653 48.06
Gross profit 5,069 5,942 873 17.22
Operating expenses:

Selling expenses 1,019 1,160 141 13.84

General and administrative expenses 524 1,408 884 168.70
Total operating expenses 1,543 2,568 1,025 66.43
Income from operations 3,526 3,374 (152) 4.31)
Other (income) expenses:

Other income, net 95 41 (549) (56.84)

Interest expenses, net 6 247 241 4,016.67
Total other (income) expenses, net (89) 206 295 (331.46)
Income before income tax expenses 3,615 3,168 (447) (12.37)
Income taxexpenses 515 520 5 0.97
Net income 3,100 2,648 (452) (14.58)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 1,217 644 (573) (47.08)
Total comprehensive income $ 4317 $ 3292 §$ (1,025) (23.74)

Net Revenues. We generate revenues mainly fromthe sales of products. Our total revenues were $44.92 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, compared to $31.40 million for the six
months ended March 31, 2018, an increase of $13.53 million, or 43.08%. Such increase was due to the customers’ substantially incremental demand for high-end quality products such as imported
fruits, particularly Chilean cherry. We expect that our net revenues will continue to grow in the future in the light of our good relationship with the suppliers, reliability and quality of products and
expansion of business.
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Cost of revenues. Our cost of revenues primarily includes payment for the purchase of products. Our cost of revenues increased by $12.65 million, or 48.06%, to $38.98 million for the six months
ended March 31, 2019 from $26.33 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018. The increment of cost was due to the increase in sales volume along with the rise in unit purchase price of the
majority of fruits.

Gross profit and gross margin. Our gross profit increased by $0.87 million, or 17.22%, to $5.94 million for the six months ended March 31, 2019 from $5.07 million for the sixmonths ended March
31, 2018. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues (gross margin) was 13.23% and 16.14% for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Such decrease was due to the combined
impact of the increased purchase price and our inability to fully pass increased costs to our customers due to the intense market competition.

Sales and marketing expenses. Our sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of salaries and benefits of operating department, freight and miscellaneous charges, royalty fee and import
agency fee. Our sales and marketing expenses increased by $0.14 million, or 13.84%, to $1.16 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 from $1.02 million for the sixmonths ended March 31,
2018. Such change was primarily due to the increase in freight and miscellaneous charges and royalty fee. As a percentage of revenue, sales and marketing expenses decreased to 2.58% for the
sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 from 3.25% for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 because the salaries and benefits of operating department and the freight charges have been under good
control and as a result did not increase at the same rate as the net revenue.
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General and administrative expenses. Our general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and benefits of members of our management, professional service fee and bad debt
expense. Our general and administrative expenses increased by $0.88 million, or 168.70%, to $1.41 million for the six months ended March 31, 2019 from $0.52 million for the six months ended
March 31, 2018. Such increase was mainly due to the increment of financial advisory service fee, audit fee and bad debt provision provided for accounts receivable. As a percentage of revenue,
general and administrative expenses increased to 3.13% for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 from 1.67% for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018.

Total other (income) expenses, net. We had $0.21 million in total other expenses for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, which was mainly consisted of interest expenses of a short-term
borrowing, as compared to $0.09 million in total other income for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018, which was primarily consisted of government subsidy.

Year Ended September 30, 2017 Compared to Year Ended September 30,2018
The following table shows key components of our results of operations during the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, in dollars and as a percentage of our total revenue.

For the years ended

September 30, Change
2017 2018
(in thous ands) (in thous ands) Amount %

Net revenue $ 57266 $ 85,186 $ 27,920 48.75
Less: Cost of revenue 48,779 70,627 21,848 44.79
Gross profit 8,487 14,559 6,072 71.54
Operating expenses:

Selling expenses 1,328 2,682 1,354 101.96

General and administrative expenses 1,457 1,638 181 12.42
Total operating expenses 2,785 4,320 1,535 55.12
Income from operations 5,702 10,239 4,537 79.57
Other income:

Other income, net 407 143 (264) (64.86)

Interest expense, net 3 18 15 500.99
Total other income 404 125 (279) 69.06
Income before income tax expense 6,106 10,364 4,258 69.73
Income taxexpense 962 1,583 621 64.55
Net income 5,144 8,781 3,637 70.70
Foreign currency translation adjustment 228 (1,144 (1,372) (601.75)
Total comprehensive income $ 5372 $ 7637 $ 2,265 40214
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Net Revenues. We generate revenues mainly fromthe sales of products. Our total revenues were $85.19 million for the year ended September 30, 2018, compared to $57.27 million for the year
ended September 30, 2017, an increase of $27.92 million, or 48.75%. Such increase was due to the customers’ incremental demand for high-end quality products such as imported fruits. We expect

that our net revenues will continue to grow in the future as a result of the expansion of our wholesale business. In addition, we started deploying smart micro marts in October 2018, which we
believe will further contribute the growth of our revenues.

Cost of revenues. Our cost of revenues primarily includes payment for the purchase of products. Our cost of revenues increased by $21.85 million, or 44.79%, to $70.63 million for the year ended
September 30, 2018 from $48.78 million for the year ended September 30, 2017. Along with the increase in sales volume, we increased our purchase volume leading to the increment of cost.
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Gross profit and gross margin. Our gross profit increased by $6.07 million, or 71.54%, to $14.56 million for the year ended September 30, 2018 from $8.49 million for the year ended September 30,
2017. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues (gross margin) was 17.09% and 14.82% for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Such increase was due to the combined
effect of stable purchase price based on our good relationships with suppliers and the appropriate increase of selling price owing to the products’ excellent quality.

Sales and marketing expenses. Our sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of salaries and benefits of operating department, freight and miscellaneous charges, royalty fee and import
agency fee. Our sales and marketing expenses increased by $1.35 million, or 101.96%, to $2.68 million for the year ended September 30, 2018 from $1.33 million for the year ended September 30,
2017. Such increase was primarily due to the increase of sales amount. As a percentage of revenue, sales and marketing expenses increased to 3.15% for the year ended September 30, 2018 from
2.32% for the year ended September 30, 2017 because the increase of salaries and benefits of operating department and the freight charges was faster than the increase of our net revenues.

General and administrative expenses. Our general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and benefits of members of our management and rental. Our general and
administrative expenses increased by $0.18 million, or 12.42%, to $1.64 million for the year ended September 30, 2018 from $1.46 million for the year ended September 30, 2017. Such increase was
mainly due to the increment of salaries and benefit of the managements. As a percentage of revenue, general and administrative expenses decreased to 1.92% for the year ended September 30,
2018 from 2.54% for the year ended September 30, 2017.

Total other income, net. We had $0.14 million in total other income for the year ended September 30, 2018, as compared to $0.41 million in total other income for the year ended September 30,
2017. Total other income for the year ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 primarily consisted of government subsidy. The significant decrease of the amount of government subsidy was mainly
caused by the change of government subsidy policies.

Income tax expense. We recorded income tax expenses of $1.58 million for the year ended September 30, 2018, as compared to $0.96 million for the year ended September 30, 2017, an increase of
$0.62 million, or 64.55%. The increase in the income tax expense mainly resulted fromthe increase in our revenues. See also “—Taxation” above.

Net income. As a result of the cumulative effect of the factors described above, our net income increased by $3.64 million, or 70.70%, to $8.78 million for the year ended September 30, 2018 from
$5.14 million for the year ended September 30, 2017.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of March 31, 2019 and September 30, 2018, we had cash and restricted cash of $3.09 million and $0.96 million, respectively. To date, we have financed our operations primarily through net cash
flow from operations and short-term borrowings. We expect to finance our operations and working capital needs in the near future frompart of our net proceeds of this offering and cash
generated through operations.

As of March 31, 2019, we had a secured short-term borrowing amounted to $7.01 million for which we pledged the accounts receivable of $8.77 million. Up to date, the balance of the secured
short-term borrowing and the pledged accounts receivable were $6.27 million and $8.79 million, respectively.

On November 20, 2018 and January 25, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain and Haier Financial Factoring (Chongqing) Co., Ltd (“Haier Factoring”) executed two factoring agreements, pursuant to which,
Lohas Supply Chain received a loan in an aggregate amount of RMB47.22 million (approximately $7.01 million) by factoring the receivables due from customers of RMB59.04 million
(approximately $8.77 million), for which Haier Factoring has the right of recourse to Lohas Supply Chain. As a result, these transactions were recognized as secured short-term borrowings.
Subsequently, Lohas Supply Chain paid off RMBS million (approximately $0.74 million) and entered into a series of new agreements to renew the secured short-term borrowings by pledging new
accounts receivable. The maturity dates of the remaining balances of RMB 17.22 million (approximately $2.56 million), RMBS miillion (approximately $0.74 million), RMB5 million (approximately
$0.74 million), and RMB15 million (approximately $2.23 million) have been extended to December 16, 2019, January 16, 2020, February 21, 2020 and March 16, 2020, respectively. The secured short-
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termborrowings were guaranteed by Mr. Yanyue Zhang, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, his spouse Mrs. Weijun Huang and Shenzhen Lohas, the majority shareholder of Lohas
Agricultural. We may renew the above short-term borrowings when they are due.

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 91/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

On December 12, 2018, Shenzhen Lohas entered into a working capital loan agreement with Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Shenzhen Branch (“SPDB”), providing for a bank loan in the
amount of RMB 22 million (approximately $3.23 million) maturing in 12 months starting on the date of first withdraw. Each of Mr. Yanyue Zhang, Ms. Weijun Huang, Lohas Agricultural, Lohas
Supply Chain and Shenzhen City Small and Medium Enterprise Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. has provided guarantee with joint liability to SPDB for Shenzhen Lohas’s repayment obligations.
The guarantee is valid until two years after the due date of performance of repayment obligation by Shenzhen Lohas in the absence of repayment. In addition, each of Mr. Yanyue Zhang, Ms.
Weijun Huang, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain provided a counter-guarantee to Shenzhen City Small and Medium Enterprise Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., which provided
guarantee to SPDB for the payment obligation of Shenzhen Lohas.

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash flows for the periods presented:

Six Months Ended

March 31, Year Ended September 30,
2018 (in 2019 (in 2017 (in 2018 (in
thousands) thousands) thousands) thousands)

(Unaudited)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 897 % (4,660) $ (629) $ (29)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (1 (51) (66) 20
Net cash provided by financing activities 395 6,687 - 252
Effect of currency translation 77 148 )] 37
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,368 2,124 (704) 206

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $4.66 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, as compared to $0.90 million provided by operating activities for the sixmonths ended March 31,
2018. For the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, the net income of $2.65 million, a decrease of advance to suppliers in the amount of $9.13 million, an increase of accounts payable in the amount of
$2.32 million and an increase of amounts due to related parties in the amount of $2.45 million, offset by an increase of accounts receivable in the amount of $13.10 million, an increase of
inventories in the amount of $5.08 million and a decrease of advance from customers in the amount of $3.17 million, were the primary drivers of the cash used in in operating activities. For the six
months ended March 31, 2018, the net income of $3.10 million, an increase of accounts payable in the amount of $1.12 million and a decrease of advance to suppliers of $2.39 million, offset by an
increase of accounts receivable in the amount of $3.35 million and an increase of inventories in the amount of $2.89 million, were the primary drivers of the cash provided by operating activities.

Net cash used in operating activities was $0.03 million for the year ended September 30, 2018, as compared to $0.63 million for the year ended September 30, 2017. For the year ended September
30, 2018, the net income of $8.78 million, an increase of advance from customers in the amount of $2.31 million, offset by an increase of accounts receivable in the amount of $5.29 million and an
increase of advance to suppliers in the amount of $7.63 million, were the primary drivers of the cash used in operating activities. For the year ended September 30, 2017, the net income of $5.14
million, a decrease of accounts receivables in the amount of $2.92 million, an increase of accounts payable in the amount of $1.69 million, offset by an increase of advance to suppliers in the
amount of $8.97 million and an increase of inventories in the amount of $2.48 million, were the primary drivers of the cash used in operating activities.

Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities was $0.05 million for the six months ended March 31, 2019, as compared to $0.001 million net cash used in investing activities for the sixmonths ended March

31, 2018. Net cash used in investing activities for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 mainly consisted of the purchase of property and equipment.
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Net cash provided by investing activities was $0.02 million for the year ended September 30, 2018, as compared to $0.07 million net cash used in investing activities for the year ended September
30, 2017. Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended September 30, 2017 mainly consisted of the purchase of property and equipment, and net cash provided by investing activities
for the year ended September 30, 2018 was the proceeds fromthe disposal of property and equipment after offset by cash used in the purchase of property and equipment.
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Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $6.69 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, as compared to $0.40 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018. Net cash provided by
financing activities for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 consisted of proceeds froma short-term borrowing in the amount of $6.93 million and repayments of the short-term borrowing in the
amount of $0.24 million. Net cash provided by financing activities for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 consisted of proceeds froma short-term bank loan in the amount of $0.47 million and
repayments of the short-termbank loan in the amount of $0.07 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $0.25 million for the year ended September 30, 2018, as compared to no cash in or out for the year ended September 30, 2017. Net cash provided by
financing activities for the year ended September 30, 2018 consisted of proceeds froma short-termbank loan in the amount of $0.45 million and repayments of the short-term bank loan in the
amount of $0.21 million.

We believe that our current levels of cash and cash flows from operations will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for our operations for at least the next 12 months. While our cost of
revenues and operating expenses increased significantly fromthe fiscal year 2017 to 2018, we successfully reduced net cash used in operating activities from $0.63 million in fiscal 2017 to $0.03
million in fiscal 2018. However, the balance of accounts receivable increased $12.48 million to $19.94 million as of March 31, 2019 from $7.46 million as of September 30, 2018 due to the fact that
considerations of some large amount sales which were close to the end of March 2019 have not been collected. In order to maintain a healthy level of accounts receivable we have been reviewing
our policies that govern credit and collections, and may reduce the credit exposures of our accounts receivable by credit limits for some customers. Moreover, by requesting our retailer
customers to pay up-front for their orders, we eliminate the risk of non-payment by these customers and improve cash flow management.

We may, however, in the future require additional cash resources due to changing business conditions, implementation of our strategy to expand our business, or other investments or
acquisitions we may decide to pursue. If our own financial resources are insufficient to satisfy our capital requirements, we may seek to sell additional equity or debt securities or obtain
additional credit facilities. The sale of additional equity securities could result in dilution to our shareholders. The incurrence of indebtedness would result in increased debt service obligations
and could require us to agree to operating and financial covenants that would restrict our operations. Financing may not be available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Any failure
by us to raise additional funds on terms favorable to us, or at all, could limit our ability to expand our business operations and could harm our overall business prospects.

Contractual Obligations

Below is a table setting forth our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2019:

Payments Due by September 30,

(in thous ands)
2022 and
Contractual Obligations Total Remaining of 2019 2020 2021 afterward
operating lease obligations $ 1,741  § 236 $ 481 $ 494 % 530
Total $ 1,741  $ 236§ 481 8§ 494§ 530

Other than those shown above, we did not have any significant capital and other commitments, long-term obligations, or guarantees as of March 31, 2019.
Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and Arrangements

We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of March 31, 2019.
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Holding Company Structure

Loha Co. Ltd is a holding company with no material operations of its own. We conduct our operations primarily through Lohas WFOE and its variable interest entity, Lohas Agricultural and its
subsidiary, Lohas Supply Chain, in China. As a result, our ability to pay dividends depends upon dividends paid by Lohas WFOE. If Lohas WFOE or any newly formed subsidiaries incur debt
on their own behalf in the future, the instruments governing their debt may restrict their ability to pay dividends to us. In addition, Lohas WFOE is permitted to pay dividends to us only out of
its retained earnings, if any, as determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations. Under PRC law, Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain are required
to set aside at least 10.0% of their after-tax profits each year, if any, to fund certain statutory reserve funds until such reserve funds reach 50.0% of their registered capital. In addition, each may
allocate a portion of their after-tax profits based on PRC accounting standards to enterprise expansion funds and staff bonus and welfare funds at their discretion, and these entities may allocate
a portion of their after-tax profits based on PRC accounting standards to a discretionary surplus fund at their discretion. The statutory reserve funds and the discretionary funds are not
distributable as cash dividends. Remittance of dividends by a wholly foreign-owned company out of China is subject to examination by the banks designated by the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange. Lohas WFOE has not paid dividends and will not be able to pay dividends until it generates accumulated profits and meet the requirements for statutory reserve funds.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Foreign Exchange Risk

All of our revenues and substantially all of our expenses are denominated in RMB. Our exposure to foreign exchange risk primarily relates to cash and cash equivalent denominated in

U.S. dollars. We do not believe that we currently have any significant direct foreign exchange risk and have not used derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to such risk. Although
our exposure to foreign exchange risks should be limited in general, the value of your investment in our shares will be affected by the exchange rate between U.S. dollar and RMB because the
value of our business is effectively denominated in RMB, while our shares will be traded in U.S. dollars.

The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies, including U.S. dollars, is based on rates set by the People’s Bank of China. The value of RMB is subject to changes in central government
policies and to international economic and political developments affecting supply and demand in the China Foreign Exchange Trading System market. The PRC government allowed the RMB to
appreciate by more than 20.0% against the U.S. dollar between July 2005 and July 2008. Between July 2008 and June 2010, this appreciation halted and the exchange rate between the RMB and
the U.S. dollar remained within a narrow band. Between June 2010 and August 2015, the PRC government has allowed the RMB to appreciate slowly against the U.S. dollar again. Since August
2015, the RMB has significantly depreciated against the U.S. dollar. It is difficult to predict how market forces or PRC or U.S. government policy may impact the exchange rate between the RMB
and the U.S. dollar in the future.

To the extent that we need to convert U.S. dollars into RMB for our operations, appreciation of the RMB against the U.S. dollar would have an adverse effect on the RMB amount we receive from
the conversion. Conversely, if we decide to convert RMB into U.S. dollars for the purpose of making payments for dividends on our shares or for other business purposes, appreciation of the
U.S. dollar against the RMB would have a negative effect on the U.S. dollar amounts available to us.

We estimate that we will receive net proceeds of approximately $[ ] in this offering, based upon an assumed initial public offering price of $[ ] per share, assuming no exercise of the over-allotment
option and after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and the estimated offering expenses payable by us. Assuming that we convert the full amount of the net proceeds fromthis
offering into RMB, a 10.0% appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the RMB, from the exchange rate of RMB6.7335 for $1.00 as of March 31, 2019 to a rate of RMB7.4069 to $1.00, will result in an
increase of RMBJ ] million in our net proceeds fromthis offering and fromthe exchange rate of RMB6.8792 for $1.00 as of September 30, 2018 to a rate of RMB7.5671 to $1.00, will result in an
increase of RMBJ ] million in our net proceeds fromthis offering. Conversely, a 10.0% depreciation of the U.S. dollar against the RMB, from the exchange rate of RMB6.7335 for $1.00 as of March
31, 2019 to a rate of RMB6.0602 to $1.00, will result in a decrease of RMB[ ] million in our net proceeds fromthis offering and fromthe exchange rate of RMB6.8792 for $1.00 as of September 30,
2018 to a rate of RMB6.1913 to $1.00, will result in a decrease of RMB[ ] million in our net proceeds fromthis offering.

Interest Rate Risk
Our exposure to interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest expenses incurred on bank borrowings and income generated by excess cash, which is mostly held in interest-bearing bank

deposits. Interest-earning instruments carry a degree of interest rate risk. We have not been exposed to material risks due to changes in interest rates, and we have not used any derivative
financial instruments to manage our interest risk exposure. However, our future interest income may fall short of expectations due to changes in market interest rates.
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After completion of this offering, we may invest the net proceeds we receive fromthe offering in interest-earning instruments. Investments in both fixed rate and floating rate interest earning
instruments carry a degree of interest rate risk. Fixed rate securities may have their fair market value adversely impacted due to a rise in interest rates, while floating rate securities may produce
less income than expected if interest rates fall.

Inflation

To date, inflation in the PRC has not materially impacted our results of operations. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the year-over-year percent changes in the consumer
price index for 2017 and 2018 were increases of 1.6% and 2.1%, respectively. Although we have not been materially affected by inflation in the past, we can provide no assurance that we will not
be affected in the future by higher rates of inflation in the PRC. For example, certain operating costs and expenses, such as employee compensation and office operating expenses may increase as
aresult of higher inflation. Additionally, because a substantial portion of our assets consists of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments, high inflation could significantly reduce
the value and purchasing power of these assets. We are not able to hedge our exposure to higher inflation in China.

Net Restricted Assets

Relevant PRC laws and regulations restrict the Lohas WFOE, VIE and VIE’s subsidiary fromtransferring a portion of their net assets, equivalent to the balance of their paid-in-capital, additional
paid-in-capital and statutory reserves to the Company in the formofloans, advances or cash dividends. Relevant PRC statutory laws and regulations restrict the payments of dividends by Lohas
WFOE, VIE and VIE’s subsidiary fromtheir respective retained earnings, if any, as determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations.

The balances of restricted net assets as of March 31, 2019, September 30, 2018 and 2017 were $11.49 million, $11.49 million and $10.61 million, respectively. Under applicable PRC laws, loans from
PRC companies to their offshore affiliated entities require governmental approval, and advances by PRC companies to their offshore affiliated entities must be supported by bona fide business
transactions.

The condensed financial statements of Loha Co., Ltd have been prepared using the same accounting policies as set out in the Company’s consolidated financial statements except that Loha Co.
Ltd used the equity method to account for investments in its subsidiaries and VIE and VIE’s subsidiary.

The Company, its subsidiaries, its VIE and its VIE’s subsidiary were included in the consolidated financial statements whereby the inter-company balances and transactions were eliminated upon
consolidation. For the purpose of the Loha Co., Ltd.’s condensed financial statements, its investments in subsidiaries are reported using the equity method of accounting.

The footnote disclosures contain supplemental information relating to the operations of Loha Co., Ltd and, as such, these statements should be read in conjunction with the notes to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP have been
condensed or omitted.

As of March 31, 2019 and September 30, 2018 and 2017, there were no material contingencies, significant provisions for long-term obligations, or guarantees of Loha Co., Ltd, except for those

which have been separately disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, if any.
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Parent-only financial statements as follow:

LOHA CO., LTD
BALANCE SHEETS
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

As of
September 30, September 30, March 31,
2017 2018 2019
(Unaudited)

Assets

Long terminvestment $ 20,565 $ 28202 3 31,494
Total assets 20,565 28,202 31,494
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities $ - $ - $ -
Shareholders’ equity

Class A ordinary shares ($0.0001 par value; 481,000,000 shares authorized; 35,744,546 shares issued and outstanding as of

September 30, 2017 and 2018 and March 31, 2019, respectively) * 4 4 4
Class B ordinary shares ($0.0001 par value; 19,000,000 shares authorized; 19,000,000 shares issued and outstanding
September 30, 2017 and 2018 and March 31, 2019, respectively) * 2 2 2

Subscription receivable (6) 6) 6)

Additional paid-in capital 9,452 9,452 9,452

Retained earnings 11,615 20,396 23,044

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (502) (1,646) (1,002)
Total shareholders’ equity 20,565 28,202 31,494
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 20,565 $ 28202 $ 31,494
* Retroactively restated to reflect the reorganization.

LOHA CO.,LTD
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In U.S. dollars in thousands)
For the years ended For the six months ended
September 30, March 31,
2017 2018 2018 2019
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(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Other income:

Share of income from subsidiaries 5,144 8781 $ 3,100 2,648
Income before income tax expense 5,144 8,781 3100 2,648
Income taxexpense - - - -
Net income 5,144 8781 $ 3,100 2,648
Other Comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation gain (loss), net of nil income taxes 228 (1,144 1,217 644
Total comprehensive income 5,372 7,637 $ 4317 3,292
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LOHA CO., LTD
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In U.S. dollars in thousands)

For the years ended For the six months ended
September 30, March 31,
2017 2018 2018 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Cash flows from operating activities $ - S - § - $ -
Cash flows frominvesting activities - - - -
Cash flows from financing activities - - - -
Effect of exchange rate changes - - - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, at beginning of year - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, at end of year $ - % - $ -3 -

Critical Accounting Policies
Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2017 and 2018 and for the years then ended are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“US GAAP”). The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2019 and for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019 have been
prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Certain information and disclosures, which are normally included in financial statements
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP, have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations, although the management believes that the disclosures made are adequate to
provide for fair presentation. The interim financial information should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements and the notes thereto included in the consolidated financial statements
as of September 30, 2017 and 2018 and for the years then ended. The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Loha, its subsidiaries, its VIE and its VIE’ subsidiaries.
Allinter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and accompanying notes, including
allowance for doubtful accounts, net realized value of inventories, the useful lives of property and equipment, impairment of long-lived assets and valuation allowance for deferred taxassets.
Actual results could differ fromthose estimates.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company applies ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands financial statement
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements.
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ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received fromthe sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) on the measurement date in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques, which is based on whether the inputs into the valuation technique are observable or unobservable. The hierarchy is as follows:
Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instruments.

Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value. Unobservable inputs are valuation technique inputs that reflect the Company’s own assumptions
about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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Management of the Company is responsible for considering the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets, short-term loans,
accounts payable, advance from customers, accrued expenses and other current liabilities and income tax payable based on the short-term maturity of these instruments to approximate their fair
values because of their short-term nature.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, the Company’s demand deposit placed with financial institutions, which have original maturities of less than three months and unrestricted
as to withdrawal and use.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash relates to government appropriation deposited in bank, which will be released upon satisfaction of agreed criteria.

Accounts Receivable, net

The Company maintains allowance for potential credit losses on accounts receivable. Management reviews the composition of accounts receivable and analyzes historical bad debt, customer
concentrations, customer credit worthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer payment patterns to estimate the allowance. Past due accounts generally written off against the
allowance for bad debts only after all collection attempts have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote.

Inventories

Inventories, primarily consisting of fruit, are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventory is determined using the weighted average cost method. Adjustments are recorded
to write down the cost of inventory to the estimated net realizable value due to slow-moving merchandise and damaged products, which is dependent upon factors such as historical and
forecasted consumer demand, and promotional environment. The Company compares the cost of inventory with its net realizable value and an adjustment is made to write down inventory to net
realizable value, if lower. There was no impairment provided for the inventories for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019 and the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018.

Advance to supplier, net

Advance to suppliers primarily consists of the prepayments to farms, import agents or other large-scale suppliers. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to state
prepayments at their estimated realizable value based on a variety of factors, including the possibility of releasing the prepayments into inventories and the aging of the prepayments, significant
one-time events, and historical experience.

Property and equipment, net

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment. Property and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less impairment
and residual value, if any, over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Category Estimated useful lives
Electronic device 3 years
Office equipment Syears
Motor vehicle 5 years

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 102/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expenses as incurred, whereas the cost of renewals and betterment that extends the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized as
additions to the related assets. Retirements, sales and disposals of assets are recorded by removing the costs, accumulated depreciation and impairment with any resulting gain or loss
recognized in the consolidated statements of income.
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Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may no longer be recoverable. When these
events occur, the Company measures impairment by comparing the carrying value of the long-lived assets to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result fromthe use of the
assets and their eventual disposition. If the sum ofthe expected undiscounted cash flow is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the Company would recognize an impairment loss, which
is the excess of carrying amount over the fair value of the assets, using the expected future discounted cash flows. No impairments of long-lived assets were recognized as of September 30, 2017
and 2018 and March 31, 2019.

Short-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings mainly consisted of the bank loan and the borrowing from third-party factoring institution. As of September 30, 2018 and March 31, 2019, the Company had bank loan and
factoring borrowing amounted to $0.24 million and $7.01 million, respectively.

Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to commitments and contingencies, including operating lease commitments, legal proceedings and claims arising out of its business that
relate to a wide range of matters, such as government investigations and tax matters. The Company recognizes a liability for such contingency if it determines it is probable that a loss has
occurred and a reasonable estimate of the loss can be made. The Company may consider many factors in making these assessments including historical and the specific facts and circumstances
of each matter.

Revenue recognition

The Company early adopted the new revenue standard Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, starting October 1, 2016 using the modified
retrospective method for contracts that were not completed as of October 1, 2017. The Company has assessed the impact of the guidance by reviewing its existing customer contracts and current
accounting policies and practices to identify differences that will result from applying the new requirements, including the evaluation of its performance obligations, transaction price, customer
payments, transfer of control and principal versus agent considerations. Based on the assessment, the Company concluded that there was no change to the timing and pattern of revenue
recognition for its current revenue streams in scope of ASC 605 and the adoption of this new guidance did not result in a cumulative effect to the opening balance sheet of retained earnings at

the adoption date.

The core principle of the new revenue standard is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those products or services. The following five steps are applied to achieve that core principle:

Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognize revenue when the company satisfies a performance obligation
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Net revenue consists of revenue fromthe sales of products, right to use e-commerce platform, and other services. The Company recognizes revenue at the amount to which it expects to be
entitled when control of the products or services is transferred to its customers. Controlis generally transferred when the Company has a present right to payment and title and the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of products or services are transferred to its customers. Payment for products and services sales is collected within a short period of time following transfer of
control or in advance to transfer of control of products, or at the commencement of delivery of services, as applicable.

The Company identifies three performance obligations for arrangements with city distributors, which are sales of products, right to use e-commerce platform, and other services. While for
arrangements with customers other than city distributor, the Company identifies only one performance obligation, which is sales of products. The Company allocates revenue to all distinct
performance obligations based on their relative estimated stand-alone selling prices.
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Sales of products. Sales of products represent sales of products (mainly imported fruit) to the city distributors, wholesalers and other retailers. Revenue allocated to the sales of products is
recognized when control has transferred to the city distributor. Control transfers upon the delivery by the self-own logistics or the entrusted third-party logistics company to the customers.

Right to use e-commerce platform. The Company granted a perpetual license to the city distributors to use the Company’s intellectual properties. Revenue allocated to the right to use e-
commerce platformis recognized when control has transferred to the city distributor. Control transfers upon the license is granted.

Other services. Other services are mainly derived fromtechnical service provided to the city distributors. Technical service refers to e-commerce platform maintenance service and software
upgrade service and will be provided continuously over the estimated service period. The Company recognizes revenues allocated to the other services ratably over the estimated service period.

The Company is a principal because the Company controls the promised products or services before transferring. No right of return or warranty is offered to customers when they obtained the
control of the products or services.

The following table identifies the disaggregation of our revenue for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019 and the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively:

For the years ended

For the six months ended March 31, September 30
2018 2019 2017 2018
(Unaudited)
Sales of products $ 30518  $ 44561 % 55694 $ 83,626
right to use e-commerce platform 627 - 801 870
other service fee or technical service fee 253 363 771 690
Total $ 31,398 $ 44924 $ 57266 $ 85,186

Shipping and handling activities are performed before the customer obtains control of the good, and they are not a separate performance obligation. The Company accounts for the pertinent
shipping and handling cost in selling expenses of products sold.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient in paragraph ASC 606-10-50-14 and does not disclose information about remaining performance obligations in (i) contracts that have an
original expected length of one year or less; and (ii) contracts where revenue is recognized as invoiced.

Timing of revenue recognition may differ fromthe timing of invoicing to customers. Accounts receivable represent amounts invoiced and revenue recognized prior to invoicing when the
Company has satisfied the Company’s performance obligation and has the unconditional right to payment. The allowance for doubtful accounts and authorized credits is estimated based upon
the Company’s assessment of various factors including historical experience, the age of the accounts receivable balances, current economic conditions and other factors that may affect the
Company’s customers’ ability to pay. The balance of accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts were $2.96 million, $7.46 million and $19.94 million as of September 30, 2017 and
2018 and March 31, 2019, respectively.

Unearned revenue consists of payments received related to unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the period, included in advance from customers in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets. The advance from customers as of September 30, 2017 and 2018 and March 31, 2019 was $1.43 million, $3.58 million and $0.45 million, respectively.

The Company applied a practical expedient to expense costs as incurred for costs to obtain a contract with a customer when the amortization period would have been one year or less. The
Company has no material incremental costs of obtaining contracts with customers that the Company expects the benefit of those costs to be longer than one year which need to be recognized as
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assets.
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Cost of sales
Cost of sales mainly consists of cost of products purchased from farms and distributors, staff cost of technical service and other services.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average ordinary shares outstanding during the periods. Diluted earnings per
share is calculated by dividing net income attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average ordinary shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the effect of dilutive ordinary
share equivalent (computed using the treasury stock or if converted method). Potential ordinary shares that have an anti-dilutive effect (i.e., those that increase income per share or decrease loss
per share) are excluded fromthe calculation of diluted earnings per share. For the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019 and the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, the Company had
no dilutive shares.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under ASC 740. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective taxbases.

Deferred taxassets and liabilities are measured using enacted taxrates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in taxrates is recognized in income in the period including the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established, when
necessary, to reduce deferred taxassets to the amount expected to be realized. Current income taxes are provided for in accordance with the laws of the relevant taxing authorities.

The provisions of ASC 740-10-25, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” prescribe a more-likely-than-not threshold for consolidated financial statement recognition and measurement of
a taxposition taken (or expected to be taken) in a taxreturn. This interpretation also provides guidance on the recognition of income tax assets and liabilities, classification of current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions, and related disclosures. The Company’s operating subsidiaries in PRC are subject to
examination by the relevant tax authorities. According to the PRC Tax Administration and Collection Law, the statute of limitations is three years if the underpayment of taxes is due to
computational errors made by the taxpayer or the withholding agent. The statute of limitations is extended to five years under special circumstances, where the underpayment of taxes is more
than RMB 100,000 ($14,537). In the case of transfer pricing issues, the statute of limitation is ten years. There is no statute of limitation in the case of tax evasion. Penalties and interest incurred
related to underpayment of income tax are classified as income tax expense in the period incurred.

The Company did not accrue any liability, interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its provision for income taxes line of its consolidated statements of income for the sixmonths
ended March 31, 2018 and 2019 and the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively. The Company does not expect that its assessment regarding unrecognized tax positions will
materially change over the next 12 months. On October 21, 2019, Shenzhen Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modem Service Industry Cooperation Zone Administration issued a notice confirming
that the business of Lohas Supply Chain satisfies relevant modern logistic industry requirements under The Catalogue of the Preferential Enterprise Income Tax for Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone.

Value added tax (“VAT”)
The Company is subject to VAT and related surcharges on revenue generated fromsales of fruit and products. The Company records revenue net of VAT. This VAT may be offset by qualified

input VAT paid by the Company to suppliers. Net VAT balance between input VAT and output VAT is recorded in the line item of accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheets.
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The VAT rate is 17% for taxpayers selling products, labor services, or tangible movable property leasing services or importing products, except otherwise specified in the PRC prior to May 1,
2018, and 16.0% on and after May 1, 2018; the VAT rates for taxpayers selling Agricultural products are 13.0%, 11.0% and 10.0%, prior to July 1, 2017, on and after July 2017 1, to April 2018, on
and after May 1, 2018, respectively. The Company is also subject to surcharges of'sales according to PRC tax law.
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Foreign currency translation

The Company’s principal country of operations is the PRC. The financial position and results of its operations are determined using RMB, the local currency, as the functional currency. The
Company’s financial statements are reported using U.S. Dollars (“US$”). The results of operations and the consolidated statements of cash flows denominated in foreign currency are translated
at the average rate of exchange during the reporting period. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable rates of exchange in
effect at that date. The equity denominated in the functional currency is translated at the historical rate of exchange at the time of capital contribution. Because cash flows are translated based on
the average translation rate, amounts related to assets and liabilities reported on the consolidated statements of cash flows will not necessarily agree with changes in the corresponding balances
on the consolidated balance sheets. Translation adjustments arising fromthe use of different exchange rates fromperiod to period are included as a separate component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) included in consolidated statements of changes in equity. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in the results of operations.

The value of RMB against US$ and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, changes in the PRC’s political and economic conditions. Any significant revaluation of
RMB may materially affect the Company’s financial condition in terms of US$ reporting. The following table outlines the currency exchange rates that were used in creating the consolidated
financial statements included in this Registration Statement:

As of As of
March 31, September 30,
2019 2018 2017
Balance sheet items, except for equity accounts 6.7335 6.8792 6.6369
For the six months ended For the years ended
March 31, September, 30
2018 2019 2017 2018
Items in the statements of income and comprehensive income, and statements of cash flows 6.4548 6.8149 6.5516 6.8099

No representation is made that the RMB amounts could have been, or could be, converted into U.S. dollars at the rates used in translation.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued, ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)”, which supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in ASC 605, Revenue Recognition.
The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those products or services. The accounting guidance also requires additional disclosure regarding the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a
contract. ASU 2014-09 can be adopted using one of two retrospective application methods.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), Deferral of the Effective Date”, which defers the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one year.

In March 2016, the FASB issued an amendment to the standard, ASU 2016-08, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent Considerations” Under the
amendment, an entity is required to determine whether the nature of'its promise is to provide the specified good or service itself (that is, the entity is a principal) or to arrange for that good or
service to be provided by the other party (as an agent).
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In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-10, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing”, to clarify identifying performance
obligations and the licensing implementation guidance, which retaining the related principles for those areas.

In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-12, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients”. This update addresses narrow-scope
improvements to the guidance on collectability, noncash consideration and completed contracts at transition. The update provides a practical expedient for contract modifications at transition
and an accounting policy election related to the presentation of sales taxes and other similar taxes collected from customers.

In December 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-20, “Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The updates in ASU 2016-20 affect narrow
aspects of the guidance issued in ASU 2014-09.

The Company early adopted the new revenue standard Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, starting October 1, 2016 using the modified
retrospective method for contracts that were not completed as of October 1, 2017. The adoption of this ASC 606 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842)”. It requires that a lessee recognize the assets and liabilities that arise from operating leases. A lessee should recognize in
the statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. For leases
with a term of 12 months or less, a lessee is permitted to make an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities. For public business
entities, the amendments in this update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those annual periods. For
other entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early
application is permitted for all entities. The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act 0f 2012 (the “JOBS Act”). Under the JOBS Act,
emerging growth companies (“EGCs”) can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act until such time as those standards apply to
private companies. In July 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2018-11, Lease (Topic 842) Targeted Improvements. The amendments in this Update provide entities with
an additional (and optional) transition method to adopt the new leases standard and provide lessors with a practical expedient, by class of underlying asset, to not separate nonlease components
fromthe associated lease component and, instead, to account for those components as a single component if the nonlease components otherwise would be accounted for under the new revenue
guidance (Topic 606). As an EGC, the Company will adopt ASU 2016-02 from October 1, 2020 and will use the additional modified retrospective transition method provided by ASU No. 2018-11
for the adoption. The Company does not expect the adoption of these amendments to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In June 2016, the FASB amended guidance related impairment of financial instruments as part of ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses
on Financial Instruments. The guidance replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology with an expected credit loss model for which a company recognizes an allowance based on the
estimate of expected credit loss. The ASU is effective for public company for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. For all other entities
including EGC, the ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. Early application will be
permitted for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that this guidance will have on
its consolidated financial statements.

Recently issued ASUs by the FASB, except for the ones mentioned above, are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial
position.
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CORPORATE HISTORY AND STRUCTURE
Our History
We were incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands on January 10, 2019 to serve as a holding company for our PRC operations.

On February 8, 2019, we established Lohas BVI as a wholly-owned subsidiary in the British Virgin Islands. Lohas BVl is a holding company and holds all of the equity interests of Lohas HK,
which was established in Hong Kong on May 3, 2013. Lohas HK is a holding company and holds all of the equity interests of Lohas WFOE, which was established in the PRC on March 11, 2019.

Lohas WFOE has entered into contractual arrangements with our variable interest entity, Lohas Agricultural, a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on November 21,
2013. Lohas Agricultural holds all of the equity interests of Lohas Supply Chain, a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on May 28, 2014. Lohas Supply Chain was
formerly wholly owned by Shenzhen Lohas. Lohas Agricultural acquired Lohas Supply Chain from Shenzhen Lohas on March 27, 2019. In addition, Lohas Agricultural Information Technology
Co., Ltd., Tianjin Branch was established on November 25, 2014.

Our Corporate Structure

All of our business operations are conducted through our Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary. The chart below presents our corporate structure:
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Our consolidated variable interest entity, Lohas Agricultural, and its subsidiary directly operate our business. As described under “Our Business—Regulation—Regulations Relating to Foreign
Investment,” PRC laws and regulations currently restrict foreign ownership and investment in value-added telecommunication businesses(excluding e-commerce business, domestic multi-party

communications services, store and forward services and call center services) in China. Since Lohas Agricultural conducts value-added telecommunication business (information services via
internet), in August, 2019, we reorganized our corporate structure and entered into contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders. Through these arrangements, we

exercise effective control over the operations of Lohas Agricultural and receive the economic benefits of it. As a result of these contractual arrangements, under U.S. GAAP, we are considered
the primary beneficiary of Lohas Agricultural and thus consolidate its results in our consolidated financial statements.

57

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm

114/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

On August 16,2019, Shenzhen Lohas held a shareholder meeting at which shareholders representing 92.77% of voting rights of Shenzhen Lohas adopted a resolution approving the contractual
arrangements. On the same date, the contractual arrangements were entered into by relevant parties.

In the opinion of Commerce & Finance Law Offices, our PRC legal counsel, (i) the ownership structure of Lohas WFOE and Lohas Agricultural, both currently and after giving effect to this
offering, do not contravene any PRC laws and regulations in effect; (ii) each of the agreements under the contractual arrangements among Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders
governed by PRC law are valid, binding and enforceable, and will not result in any violation of PRC laws or regulations currently in effect.

However, we have been further advised by our PRC legal counsel that there are substantial uncertainties regarding the interpretation and application of current and future PRC laws, regulations
and rules, and there can be no assurance that the PRC regulatory authorities will ultimately take a view that is consistent with the opinion stated above. Accordingly, the PRC regulatory
authorities may in the future take a view that is contrary to or otherwise different fromthe above opinion of our PRC legal counsel. If the PRC government finds that the agreements that establish
the structure for operating our business do not comply with PRC government restrictions on foreign investment in our businesses, we could be subject to severe penalties including being
prohibited from continuing operations. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure—If the PRC government deems that the contractual arrangements in relation to our
consolidated variable interest entity do not comply with PRC regulatory restrictions on foreign investment in the relevant industries, or if these regulations or the interpretation of existing
regulations change in the future, we could be subject to severe penalties or be forced to relinquish our interests in those operations” and “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Doing Business in
China—There are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and enforcement of PRC laws, rules and regulations.”

The following is a summary of the currently effective contractual arrangements by and among Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders.
Agreements that provide us with effective control over Lohas Agricultural

Shareholders’ Voting Rights Proxy Agreement. Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Wting Rights Proxy Agreement among Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders, each
shareholder irrevocably authorized Lohas WFOE or any person(s) designated by Lohas WFOE to act as its attorney-in-fact to exercise all of'its rights as a shareholder of Lohas Agricultural,
including, but not limited to, the right to convene shareholders’ meetings, vote and sign any resolution as a sharecholder, appoint directors and other senior executives to be appointed and
removed by the shareholder, the right to sell, transfer, pledge and dispose of all or a portion of the shares held by such shareholder, and other shareholders voting rights permitted by the articles
of association of Lohas Agricultural. The term of this agreement is for ten years. Unless Lohas WFOE gives a non-renewal notice 30 days prior to the expiration, this agreement will be renewed
automatically for successive ten years.

Equity Pledge Agreement. Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement among Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders, the shareholders have agreed to pledge 100% equity
interest in Lohas Agricultural to Lohas WFOE to guarantee the performance by Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders of their obligations under the Shareholders’ Voting Rights Proxy
Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement, the Exclusive Consultation and Service Agreement and the Exclusive Option Agreement. If Lohas Agricultural or its shareholders breach their
contractual obligations under these agreements, Lohas WFOE, as pledgee, will have the right to dispose of the pledged equity interests in Lohas Agricultural and will have priority in receiving
the proceeds fromsuch disposal. The shareholders also agreed that, without prior written consent of Lohas WFOE, they will not dispose of the pledged equity interests or create or allow any
encumbrance on the pledged equity interests. The pledge of equity interests in Lohas Agricultural has been registered with the relevant office of the State Administration for Industry and
Commerce in accordance with the PRC Property Rights Law.
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Agreements that allow us to receive economic benefits from Lohas Agricultural

Exclusive Consultation and Service Agreement. Pursuant to the Exclusive Consultation and Service Agreement between Lohas WFOE and Lohas Agricultural, Lohas WFOE or its
designated person has the exclusive right to provide Lohas Agricultural with technical support, consulting and other services in return for certain fees. Specifically, after making up the annual
losses of previous years (if necessary) and deducting the necessary costs, expenses, taxes incurred in the corresponding financial year and withdrawing accumulation funds in accordance with
law, Lohas WFOE is entitled to receive the remaining part income of Lohas Agricultural as the service fees, which will be paid quarterly. Without Lohas WFOE’s prior written consent, Lohas
Agricultural may not accept any services subject to this agreement fromany third party. Lohas WFOE will have the exclusive ownership of all intellectual property rights created as a result of the
performance of this agreement. The term of this agreement is for ten years. Unless Lohas WFOE gives a non-renewal notice 30 days prior to the expiration, this agreement will be renewed
automatically for successive ten years.

Agreements that provide us with the option to purchase the equity interests in Lohas Agricultural

Exclusive Option Agreements. Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement among Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders, the shareholders irrevocably granted Lohas
WFOE or any third party designated by Lohas WFOE an exclusive option to purchase all or part of their equity interests in Lohas Agricultural at a price of RMB10 (approximately $1.46) for each
purchase; provided that if the lowest price permitted by applicable PRC laws is greater than RMBI10, then that price shall apply. The shareholders further agreed that they will neither create any
pledge or encumbrance on their equity interests in Lohas Agricultural, nor transfer, gift or otherwise dispose of their equity interests in Lohas Agricultural to any person other than Lohas WFOE
or its designated third party. The shareholders and Lohas Agricultural agreed that they will operate Lohas Agricultural’s business in the ordinary course and maintain the asset value of Lohas
Agricultural and refrain from any actions or omissions that may affect Lohas Agricultural’s operating status and asset value. Furthermore, without Lohas WFOE’s prior written consent, the
shareholders and Lohas Agricultural agreed not to, among other things: amend the articles of association of Lohas Agricultural; increase or decrease the registered capital of Lohas Agricultural;
sell, trans fer, mortgage or dispose of in any manner any material assets of Lohas Agricultural or legal or beneficial interest in the material business or revenues of Lohas Agricultural; merge,
consolidate with, acquire or invest in any person, or provide any loans; or distribute dividends. The term of this agreement is for ten years. Unless Lohas WFOE gives a non-renewal notice prior
to the expiration, this agreement will be renewed automatically for successive ten years until all equity interests have been transferred or assigned in accordance with the agreement.
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INDUSTRY

Information included in this prospectus relating to our industry, industry size, share of industry sales, industry position, industry capacities, industry demand, growth rates, penetration rates,
and other industry data consists of estimates based on reports compiled by professional third-party organizations and analysts, data from external sources, our knowledge of our sales and the
industry in which we operate, and our own calculations based on such information. While we have compiled, extracted, and reproduced industry data from external sources, including third-party,
industry, or general publications, we have not independently verified the data. Similarly, while we believe our management estimates to be reasonable, they have not been verified by any
independent sources. Forecasts and other forward-looking information with respect to industry and ranking are subject to the same qualifications and additional uncertainties regarding the other
forward-looking statements in this prospectus.
Among others, we refer to estimates compiled by using publicly available data fromthe following industry sources:

e International Monetary Fund, an international organization that promotes global monetary cooperation

e  The Statistical Communiqué on National Economic and Social Development, Chinese National Bureau of Statistics

e Jefferies Financial Group, an investment banking, asset management and direct investing firm

e McKinsey & Company, a global marketing research firm

o  Furomonitor, a global market research company

e Analysys.cn (%), a Chinese data analytics company

e Rabobank, a Dutch Agricultural Finance company

e Qianzhan Industry Research Institute (FTH&K), a Chinese research firm

o China Briefing from Dezan Shira & Associates, a publisher of articles, magazines, and guides on doing business in Asia

® Research and Markets, a global market research store
Market Overview
The Chinese consumer has traditionally maintained a higher degree of preference for fresh produce and seafood than their Western counterparts. As the Chinese economy has grown at double
digit rates over the past decade, white-collar and tech-workers have found less time for traditional town market-type perishable grocery shopping and created more demand for ready-to-eat, on-
the-go food shopping. Recognizing this need, we have expanded our traditional and profitable baseline business of fresh food supply chain management to add smart micro mart technology. We
have designed and distributed high-tech consumer vending machines that combine the health benefits of wholesome fresh food with the convenience of strategically located self-serve

refrigerators and freezers.

Continued Growth in the Chinese Economy
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In spite of the negative effects of escalating tariffs imposed by the US and weakening external demand, the International Monetary Foundation still forecasts the Chinese economy to grow 6.2%
in 2019 and 6.0% in 2020 due to policy stimulus by the Chinese government. That is below last year’s 6.6% growth in gross domestic product, which was already China’s slowest annual growth
in nearly three decades. Additionally, the Chinese government’s response has been to invest heavily in new measures intended to stimulate the economy, including tax cuts and accommodating
monetary policy.

According to Chinese National Bureau of Statistics, in 2018, the total retail sales of consumer goods reached RMB 38,098.7 billion, a growth of 9.0% over the previous year. Further analysis
showed that the retail sales of consumer goods in urban areas stood at RMB 32,563.7 billion, up by 8.8%, and that in rural areas reached RMB 5,535.0 billion, up by 10.1%. Grouped by
consumption patterns, the retail sales of commodities were RMB 33,827.1 billion, up by 8.9%. Of the total retail sales of commodities, the year-on-year growth of sales for grain, oil and food went
up by 10.2%.

New retail trend

In retrospect, the development of retail in China has gone through the periods of traditional retail, e-commerce retail represented by Alibaba, community retail mostly conducted through the
social media platform of WeChat and is now going towards smart new retail. Smart new retail integrates the offline shopping experience of traditional retail, the online shopping convenience and
coverage of e-commerce retail, as well as the consumer loyalty developed fromthe social proof of community retail. According to a McKinsey & Company report in April 2019, the top 3 buying
factors Chinese consumers seek in fresh-food retailers are assortment, quality, and convenience. A “must-do” for a modern food retailer in China is to develop a distinctive online-to-offline
offering that could combine the broader assortment of buying online and the convenience of quick product delivery.
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Large and Expanding Chinese Fresh Food Industry

A Euromonitor International report in April 2019 states that rising consumer health-consciousness exerted a significant influence on the development of fresh food in China in 2018. Fresh food is
the core focus for many store-based retailers, since it is an area of considerable and consistent demand that is well insulated against downturns in economic conditions. With ongoing
urbanization, changing lifestyles and increasing consumer purchasing power, we believe that as a supplier of fresh foods, we are well-positioned for continued growth. It is also well believed that
fresh food is an indispensable necessity in daily life and plays an important role in the retail consumer market. According to an Analysys.cn study in February 2018 on China’s fresh food e-
commerce analysis, China’s fresh food market size reached RMBI1.79 trillion in 2017, growing 6.9% from2016. This report also projects China’s fresh food market to exceed RMB2 trillion in 2019.

Key Market Growth Drivers

By 2050, it is expected that more than 30% of China’s population will be aged 60 years and older, resulting in the significantly increasing consumption of health food products. Increasing levels
of education and an Internet savvy Chinese middle class are additional factors of growth. Consuming organic and healthy food products is now considered a status symbol in Chinese society,
and has in a short time created and expanded the country’s lifestyle products market. Scoring 12 points above the global average, China is today known to be one of the most health-conscious
nations worldwide. 73% of Chinese consumers are willing to pay extra for food deemed healthier and 58 percent of the Chinese middle class (aged 20-49 years) say they will to pay more for ethical
brands.

According to Dutch Agricultural Finance group Rabobank, China needs to improve its cold supply chain to meet the demands for perishable food options for the growing middle class.
Increasing consumption of fruit and vegetables, dairy, seafood and meat in China is being driven by continued economic growth and urbanization. “China’s demand for fresh, safe and high-
quality food is outstripping its capacity to produce and deliver domestically,” explained Paul Bosch, a Rabobank researcher. However, the growth in consumption of perishable food in China will
only continue if supply chains deliver on quality and safety. In response to this market need, we have been leveraging end-to-end supply chain technology to deliver quality and safe fresh
foods.

As reported by Qianzhan Industry Research Institute, the size of the fresh food e-commerce market in China soared significantly from RMB 4 billion ($579 million) in 2012 to RMB 139.13 billion in
2017. The report forecasts the total size of the domestic fresh e-commerce market will reach RMB 256.5 billion in 2019, up 31.7% from2018. The report also indicates that as monthly family
incomes increase, people will order more fresh food online. In 2018, among families earing more than RMB 30,000 per month, 36.8% of consumers will place online orders four times a week.

According to the statistics of the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the per capita disposable income of China’s residents in 2018 was RMB 28,228, an increase of 8.7% over the previous
year; the per capita consumption expenditure was RMB 1,853, an increase of 8.4% over the previous year. China has a population of nearly 1.4 billion, and there are about 400 million middle-class
consumers. Fresh food consumption is dominated by inhabitants of large cities. Middle-class families are the biggest segment of fresh food consumers. Individuals with monthly income of more
than RMB 8,000 account for 43.6%.

As an April 2019 study by McKinsey & Company, “What Chinese Consumers Want from Fresh-food Retailers”, discovered, none of the large retailers in China stand out in consumers’ minds as
a fresh-food winner. When McKinsey conducted similar surveys in four European countries and the United States, consumers recognized at least one modern retailer in each country as being
exemplary in fresh food. That was not the case in China, which means that there is a vast opportunity in that market for a focused, innovative fresh food supplier with retailer capabilities to rise
above the competition. We believe we are best positioned to take advantage of this opportunity with superior technology, better marketing and a more optimized supply chain.
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Industry Characteristics

The termcold chain refers to the series of actions and equipment applied to maintain a product within a specified low-temperature range fromharvest to consumption. We maintain an
“unbroken” cold chain - an uninterrupted series of refrigerated production, storage and distribution activities, along with the associated equipment and logistics, which maintain the low-
temperature range that best preserves product quality and safety.

China has a large and rapidly growing cold chain logistics industry. According to a Research and Markets report, the market size of cold chain logistics in China rose to RMB 258.8 billion in 2017,
showing a compound annual growth rate 0of 20.5% from 2010 to 2017. As the cold chain industry policies and standards become clear in China, the rise of fresh food e-businesses and financial
innovation will facilitate progresses in the cold chain logistics industry in the future. By 2022, China’s cold chain logistics market is expected to be worth RMB 512.9 billion, with a compound
annual growth rate of 14.7% from 2017 to 2022.

The Chinese government has introduced a number of policy measures to promote the improvement of cold chain logistics and to address shortcomings. Among these policy measures are:
“Guiding Opinions on Actively Promoting Supply Chain Innovation and Application” issued by the State Council in October 2017; in September 2017, the Ministry of Commerce and the Ministry
of Agriculture issued the “Deepening the Cooperation between Agriculture and Business to Vigorously Develop E-Commerce of Agricultural Products.” In April 2017, the State Council issued
the “Opinions on Accelerating the Development of Cold Chain Logistics to Ensure Food Safety and Promote Consumption Upgrades.” We believe we meet and/or exceed all government
mandates to improve the cold chain, using temperature-controlled shipping, quality control monitoring and food safety testing throughout the process fromsource to consumption.

Compared with developed economies, the freshness-preserving transportation ratio of cold storage processing of agricultural products in China was relatively low. While the fresh produce loss
rate is about 5% in developed economies such as Europe, the US and Japan, the loss rate in China is as high as 15-20%, and the fresh refrigerated transportation ratio is much lower than that in
developed countries. Due to the application and use of technology and superior operations, we believe we have dramatically reduced the fresh produce loss rate in our cold supply chain.

We believe that the continued, albeit cooled-off growth of the Chinese economy, and the subsequent expansion of the middle class, with an appetite for fresh, wholesome and safe produce,

combined with the technology to deliver products to consumers conveniently, on a mass-scale, uniquely positions us for rapid and profitable market growth in the coming decades.
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BUSINESS
Overview

We are a technology-driven, comprehensive distributor and smart retailer of fresh and healthy products in China with a focus on health and sustainability. Our name “Lohas” is an acronym for
Lifestyles of Health and Sustainability, which is the core philosophy we deeply embrace. We have extensive experience in fresh produce supply chain management and currently have 102
overseas and 5 domestic suppliers in 16 countries. We are committed to providing our customers with high-end quality products, which mainly consist of imported fruits, wild-harvested seafood,
green vegetables and eggs, as well as nutritious dry goods. Besides the stable and lucrative traditional wholesale business, we are now actively pursuing the smart retail development of fresh
products through our smart micro marts, which are intelligent vending machines that provide unique shopping experience. The smart micro marts are deployed in high traffic areas, such as
residential communities and commute centers in large cities like Shenzhen and Guangzhou. Our smart micro marts work in combination with our online WeChat public account, self-developed
WeChat mini-program- Lohas City, group purchase program, and temperature-controlled vehicles to offer convenient shopping experiences for our customers.

In late 2018, we began offering the community group purchase programthat takes advantage of social proof group buying behavior. Within each group, a Lohas distributor coordinates group
purchases through social media services such as WeChat by placing orders and advancing payments on our “Lohas City” mini programthere. Such coordinated purchases help us to further
optimize our supply chain, remove intermediate warehouses storage and transportation from our cold supply chain, and speed up delivery.

Our business has grown rapidly in recent years as demonstrated by our growth in revenue from approximate $31.40 million for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 to approximate $44.92 million
for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, an increase of 43.08%, and approximate $57.27 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 to approximate $85.19 million for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2018, an increase of 48.75%. Our net income increased from approximate $5.14 million for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 to approximate $8.78 million for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018, an increase of 70.70%, and our net profit margin increased by more than one percentage point over those two years from 8.98% to 10.31%, mainly due to the rise in
consumption of high-end imported fruits.

Our Business Model

We operate an F2B2C (“Farmto Business to Consumer’”) model, which allows us to deliver high-quality fresh and natural products to our customers directly fromtheir source. Some important
aspects of how we operate include:

o we directly manage the entire distribution channel;

o we have diversity of sourcing with products procured frommany farms in many different countries;
e we started introducing smart micro marts to automate retail sales in October 2018;

e our retailers pre-order and pre-pay;

o we have temperature controls and rapid movement of perishable products; and

e we offer consumers group purchase driven by social media.

What is different about our model? Why is this important?
No middlemen Significant reduction in costs
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Reliable sources of products Enhances product quality and safety
Minimal inventory in pipeline More efficient use of working capital
Smart micro marts (automated self-serve vending machines) since October 2018. Eliminates retail overhead and provides consumers with healthy vending options
Pre-orders and pre-payment We are not on the hook for unsold products, and payment is guaranteed, which results in low
financial risks
Temperature monitored and controlled remotely at each stage Maintaining freshness of produce and dramatically reduce spoilage rate
Group purchase Social media organized buying groups serve as new retail outlets
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Our Competitive Strengths
We believe that the following competitive strengths contribute to our success and differentiate us from our competitors:

Unique “Lohas” philosophy emphasizing health and sustainability Our name “Lohas” is an acronym for Lifestyles of Health and Sustainability, which is the core philosophy we
deeply embrace. Our products are sourced from 16 countries, which mainly consist of imported fruits, wild-harvested seafood, pollution-free vegetables and eggs, as well as nutritious dry goods.
We are able to maintain the high quality of our products by working closely with our international suppliers. Accordingly, we monitor our independent growers to ensure that their products meet
our agricultural and quality control standards, offer technical assistance on certain aspects of production and packing and, in some cases, manage the farms. The quality assurance process starts
fromthe farms and continues as harvested products enter our packaging facilities. Consistent with this strategy, our product selection process removes items that do not meet our strict quality
guidelines. All products undergo a stringent review process to ensure the products we sell meet our standards. We believe such transparency helps us earn trust with our customers over the
long run.
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Innovative smart retail strategy providing on-demand access to a wide selection of firesh and healthy products to consumers. Unlike the sugar or sodium-based products found in
traditional vending machines, since October 2018, we started to offer fresh, natural, organic and healthy food choices in our smart micro marts. The produce in the smart micro marts is kept fresh
daily using a replenishment network of temperature-controlled delivery vehicles. Our smart micro marts are placed in areas with convenience of purchase in mind. Examples include residential
communities and commute centers in large cities, which guarantee a high level of stable daily traffic. Our deployment of smart micro marts addresses the problem of “the last 100 meters of
delivery,” meeting the growing consumer needs for ready-to-eat and on-the-go fresh food. To buy food on the smart micro marts, our customers just need scan the QR code to unlock the door,
then take out whatever they want and close the door. Transactions will be completed instantly and automatically through mobile payments. We designed and developed this vending technology
and process, which earned us 2 software copyrights. Meanwhile, transaction data will be collected and analyzed to better serve our customers with quality on-demand products.
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Robust supply chain management system ensuring reliability and quality of products. We have re-engineered supply chain management, eliminating the traditional layer of
middlemen, which results in several major benefits. A portion of the cost reduction is passed along to consumers, providing us with critical wholesale and retail price advantages. Our fresh
produce is also temperature monitored and controlled remotely at each stage of the whole delivery process, which results a reduction of perishable food spoilage. While food spoilage is an
ongoing and growing issue in the highly perishable produce industry, we believe our product food spoilage does not have a significant impact on our operations. Reducing food spoilage lowers
operating costs.

Strong brand loyalty amplified by launching our own brand products. In addition to fresh produce, we carry a line of Lohas branded products that reflect the principles of healthy and
sustainable lifestyle. Our brand is well received and is gaining popularity as we provide quality and affordable fresh products to more people, and build an online community of followers from
around the world who truly understand what the Lohas brand represents.

Experienced management team. We have assembled a management team of highly experienced leaders with significant industry expertise. Our senior leaders have track records of
producing profitable growth in a wide variety of industries and economic conditions. Our Chairman and CEO, Mr. Yanyue Zhang, the founder of our company has been in the traditional
wholesale and distribution industry of imported fruits for more than ten years. Mr. Zhang and his family have built partnerships with 17 production farms and about 90 suppliers all over the world
in the past 16 years.

Our Growth Strategies

We believe we are in the early but fast-growing stages of realizing our goal to bring fresh, healthy food options to consumers around the world. Our growth strategies are focused on
continuously improving our technology to attract more customers, leveraging consumer transactional data to increase sales, introducing new products, and exploring new markets.

To date, our investments in information technology, including purchasing, receiving, inventory, warehousing, distribution, retail, point-of-sale, accounting, reporting and financial systems, have
driven our growth. Since we have proven that our business is scalable and manageable during rapid growth periods, we are poised to expand in several areas as follows:

Continually enhance our technology in order to retain and grow our customer base. We will invest in improving our technologies involving smart micro marts and developing a
traceability system that monitors how our products move along our entire distribution pipeline. Our technologies on smart micro marts will be updated to improve mobile functionality and
develop new features, bringing to customers better shopping experience. We will continue to explore in our big data analysis, artificial intelligence and machine learning capabilities to deepen the
personalized experience that we offer to all of our customers. We will also expand our cross-selling and up-selling efforts on our mobile platform. We expect our traceability systemto enable us to
move products faster along our supply chain while maintaining strict quality control, which we believe will reduce food spoilage rate and leads to higher profit margin. We also expect the
traceability systemto be able to show our customers how our products are moving along the supply chain, assuring our customers of the quality and safety of our products. We plan to enhance
our technologies using funds generated from our daily operations.

Further penetrate our existing markets. We will expand the number of smart micro marts in about 90 Chinese cities where we currently operate. We will use customer purchase data to
identify the best locations for future unit deployments and provide tailored recommendations and services for regular customers. In addition, we will continue to bring in more varieties of fresh
food based on our customers’ needs and explore new ways of marketing to stimulate buying. We will also develop smart micro marts that sell frozen seafood other than fresh produce. The frozen
seafood models will accelerate placement of smart micro marts throughout our network.

Deploy smart micro marts to new cities and build new distribution centers. We will take into consideration local purchasing power, consumption level, geographical locations and
other relevant factors to add new cities in our development strategy. To support our plan to deploy smart micro marts, we plan to establish retailer support centers to provide technical support
and provide fast delivery service in cities like Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Chongqing, Changsha and Shanghai over the next two years. Overall, we plan to increase our network of smart micro marts to
approximately 3,000 operating units by the end of calendar 2021 and expect to use part of the proceeds fromthis offering to fund this expansion.
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Expand our private label product line. In addition to fresh produce, we carry a line of Lohas branded products. We will continue to expand the scope of our Lohas branded packaged
items to include more wild-harvested seafood, nuts and other items based on products trending among consumers in China. As long as the product aligns with our core values of health and
sustainability, the item can be branded and added to our distribution system for sale at retail outlets.
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Expand our group purchase program. Our group purchase programdelivers products to entire residential communities, either to door or to personalized storage units. Our
coordinators use WeChat to organize large group purchases of products among residents of residential communities. Group purchases provide our customers with cost savings while resulting in
large orders for us. Orders are placed using our WeChat mini-program and physical delivery occurs within hours. The convenient home delivery solution brings products directly to the buyers’
doorsteps if they are at home, or to “smart storage lockers” if they are not at home. Similar to the way Amazon.comhas deployed storage and pick up units in the U.S., our lockers are individually
assigned to customers, and products are kept fresh until locker is opened and items are retrieved.

Continue to build our brand and team. The fast expansion of our new retail business requires strong brand recognition and more talents. We will continue to increase the awareness,
credibility, and influence of the Lohas brand by enhancing our online and offline marketing efforts so that the brand effect would help drive market expansion. We will continue to enhance our
online marketing activities by advertisements via various social media channels such as WeChat and our company website. Offline marketing activities are conducted through cooperating with
local partners, organizing training camps for our wholesalers and retailers, and various promotional events. Specifically, we will target Lohas consumer profiles with personalized content in the
most effective traditional, digital and social media. Our content will reinforce our consumer value proposition to raise awareness and interest of our smart micro marts to drive incremental new
sales as well as retain existing customers. Our WeChat mini-program, Lohas City, leads to more ways to target specific user segments using customer acquisition, growth and retention strategies.
Meanwhile, we will invest in cultivating our marketing and technology teams through training existing employees and hiring new high-skilled and qualified personnel to make the teams more
creative and responsive, ensuring global expansion of our business.

Expand globally. Ultimately, by enhancing our marketing capabilities, we will look to expand our business models outside of China, first among Pacific rim countries, many of which we
already source our products fromtoday. Additionally, we plan to broaden our distribution network to penetrate overseas markets. The government of China has made enormous capital
investments in the “Belt & Road” initiative. This project is creating a vast network of railways, energy pipelines, highways, and streamlined border crossings, both westward—through the
mountainous former Soviet republics—and southward, to Pakistan, India, and the rest of Southeast Asia, with the stated goal of allowing Chinese companies expand into new markets. We intend
to replicate the rapid expansion we have achieved in China and to collaborate with local partners in overseas markets where it would be efficient to do so. We also strive to partner with well-
established companies so that we complement each other in capabilities of marketing, distributing and customer services.

Our Products

We focus our product offerings on fresh, green and healthy foods. Foods are generally considered “fresh” if they are minimally processed or in their raw state not subject to any type of
preservation or freezing. Green foods can be broadly defined as foods that are environmentally friendly, minimally processed and are free of synthetic preservatives, artificial sweeteners, colors,
flavors and other additives, growth hormones, antibiotics, hydrogenated oils, stabilizers and enmulsifiers. Essentially, our products are largely free of non-naturally occurring chemicals and are as
near to their whole, natural state as possible.

Product Selection Guidelines

We have a set of strict quality guidelines covering all products we sell. For example, we sell only fresh, green and healthy products and do not approve for sale food known to contain synthetic
preservatives, artificial colors, flavors, or sweeteners or partially hydrogenated or hydrogenated oils, regardless of the proportion of its natural or organic ingredients. We actively research new
products in the marketplace through our product vendors, private label manufacturers, data analysis, customer requests and general trends in popular media.

What We Sell

We offer over 148 fresh, green and healthy products, which mainly consist of imported fruits, wild-harvested seafood, vegetables, eggs, as well as nutritious dry goods.
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Our primary product line contains a wide variety of fresh fruit. Our top fresh fruit items include durians from Thailand, cherries from Canada, the United States, and Chile, gold kiwis from New
Zealand, grapes from Australia, dragon fruits from Vietnam, sugar apples from Taiwan, oranges from Australia, South Africa and the United States, and avocados from Mexico. We strive to offer
a variety of high-end fresh produce offerings that are not typically found at conventional food retailers in China.
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We also offer wild-harvested seafood. For example, we have bluefin tuna fromthe Pacific Ocean, which is stored and transported in specially designed freezers with -60 degrees Celsius instant
freezing technologies, so that customers can enjoy the best tuna through our platform. In addition, we carry a line of Lohas branded products that reflect the principles of healthy living and
sustainability. These include popular items in packaged good varieties, such as Lohas bottled water, Lohas nuts and Lohas raisins.

Sourcing

The sources of our products are diverse. We currently have 102 overseas and 5 domestic suppliers in 16 countries. We believe the supply chain diversification is critical to enhance the stability

of supply and quality of our products.
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We also believe, based on our industry experience, that our strong relationships in the produce business provide us a competitive advantage and enable us to offer high-quality produce at
prices we believe are significantly below those of conventional food retailers and even further below high-end natural and organic food retailers. We select farms and suppliers based on their
reputation, industry positions, historical output stability and product quality.

Avocado

During the fiscal years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, our two largest suppliers of overseas fiuits accounted for approximately 40.10% and 33.00% of our total purchases in fiscal years
ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to our Business and Industry—Disruption of significant supplier relationships could negatively affect our
business.”

We enter into standard supply agreements with our international suppliers. Typically, the supplier is responsible for the cost of carriage and assumes all risks until the goods are delivered to the
port of destination. Once the goods arrive at port of destination in China, we are responsible for all risks. We normally ask our suppliers to arrange certain insurance for loss or damage of goods
during the transport.

Distribution
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We sell our products to wholesalers, independent retailers and through our smart micro marts. We also have a group purchase program through which we sell to entire residential communities.
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, approximately 46.22% and 53.78% of our revenues were derived from our distributions to wholesalers and retailers, respectively. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2018, approximately 80.24% and 19.76% of our revenues were derived from distributions to wholesalers and retailers, respectively. Among the revenues derived fromour
distributions to retailers in the fiscal year 2018, approximately 1.97% was generated from group purchases.
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Wholesalers

Currently, we have 177 wholesalers located in 71 cities in China. Our wholesaler customers mainly consist of large fruit wholesale companies. Typically, these wholesalers place orders with us
after the fresh products have departed the countries of origin. Once these products arrive at port of destination in China, third party logistics companies will deliver these products to each
wholesaler’s designated location where the products are inspected and accepted by the wholesalers. Our wholesaler customers will then pay us in accordance with the terms of their orders.

Retailers

We currently service 115 retailer customers (including 98 city distributors and 17 other retailers) located in 19 cities in China with daily deliveries of fresh products using services provided by
third party logistics companies. Our retailer customers are mainly located in coastal cities in southeastern China. They place orders through our WeChat mini-program, Lohas City, and the
payment is made when the order is placed. By requesting our retailer customers to pay up-front, we eliminate the risk of non-payment. Our retailer customers mainly consist of retail stores who
sell to end consumers as well as direct delivery service providers that distribute our products to institutional customers such as business offices.

Smart Micro Marts

Since October 2018, we have also developed smart micro marts and deployed about 300 units at residential communities and commute centers in cities like Shenzhen and Guangzhou. Smart micro
marts are refrigerated fresh food vending machines that, when used in combination with our WeChat mini-program, allow consumers to purchase produce and other items using electronic mobile
payments. Each smart micro mart typically offers 6-8 different types of products at a time. We restock these smart micro marts on a daily basis with delivery vehicles operated by us.

Unlike the sugar or sodium-based consumable products found in traditional vending machines, we offer fresh, natural and healthy food choices in our smart micro marts. The products in the
smart micro marts are kept fresh daily using a replenishment network of temperature-controlled delivery vehicles. All fresh products remain stored in a temperature-controlled environment, which
is monitored and controlled froma central location, until purchase. Our end-to-end control of our supply chain and daily replenishment system means that the products purchased at our smart
micro marts meet or exceed our customers’ expectations for safety, freshness and quality.

Our smart micro mart delivers a simple and elegant purchase experience. Once the user scans the QR code on the unit using a mobile phone, our WeChat mini-program, Lohas City, is launched on
the mobile phone and the door is unlocked. The user then opens the door and selects products. The smart mart detects which item was removed and adds it to the mini-program’s shopping cart.
Ifthe user decides to put an item back, that iteminstantly disappears fromthe shopping cart. To complete the transaction, the user simply closes the door. The transaction completes with a
mobile payment.
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Smart micro marts are placed in areas with convenience of purchase in mind, such as residential communities and commute centers in large cities. Future locations are expected to include office
buildings and hospitals, which normally have a good and stable flow of foot traffic. We typically pay a monthly lease for our smart micro mart locations. The average lease for a smart micro mart
is approximately RMB150 (approximately $22.35) per month.

Our smart micro marts were manufactured by a third-party manufacturer, Gnangdong Husky Refrigeration Technology Co., Ltd.

Group Purchase Program

Results of market research and our pilot program have provided encouraging data for the development and commercialization of our group purchase program. In late 2018, we began offering the
community group purchase programthat takes advantage of social proof group buying behavior. Within each group, a Lohas distributor coordinates group purchases through social media

services such as WeChat by placing orders and advancing payments on our “Lohas City” mini program. Such coordinated purchases help us to further optimize our supply chain, remove
intermediate warehouses storage and transportation fromour cold supply chain, and speed up delivery.
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In addition, group purchases provide our customers with cost savings while resulting in large orders for us. Orders are placed using our application and physical delivery typically occur within
hours. This convenient home delivery solution brings products directly to the buyers’ doorsteps if they are at home, or to “smart storage lockers” if they are not at home. Similar to the way
Amazon.comhas deployed storage and pick up units in the U.S., our lockers are individually assigned to customers, and products are kept fresh until the locker is opened and items are retrieved.
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Supply Chain Management

We have re-engineered supply chain management, eliminating the traditional layer of middlemen, resulting in several major benefits. A scan ofa product’s unique identifier code records passage
along supply chain, the source and country of origin and real-time product look-up and tracking.

Shipping fromoverseas sources is conducted via land, sea and air and is completely controlled by us. Temperature is monitored and adjusted throughout each distribution channel, and at any
moment we can be automatically notified of temperature variances outside of acceptable ranges. Upon receiving an alert, we know exactly where and what product is impacted and act swiftly to
make corrections or reject product loads from continuing in our supply pipeline.

Technology

To support our daily operations, we mainly use the following our proprietary technologies for point of sale processing, supply chain, payment and various other processes and transactions:

Software System Functions
Lohas City Mobile Internet Consumption Platform System V1.0 Management of the entire platform, such as payment method, homepage setting, function
setting of merchant management, settlement and other functions.
Lohas City Mobile Internet Merchant Management System V1.0 Functions of e-commerce platformsuch as commodity release, delivery management, customer
service, etc.
Lohas City Mall Platform Mobile Application Software (Android) V1.0 Providing a purchase entrance for operators, direct wholesale customers and consumers that

Lohas City Mall Platform Mobile Application Software (IOS) V1.0 purchase as per piece.

Lohas City Mobile Internet Operator Management System V1.0 Management functions of operators’ qualifications, payment for goods, credits, etc.

Lohas Mall Direct Wholesale System V1.0 Management functions of qualification, account period, repayment and order of direct
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wholesale customers.

Lohas Unified Fee-splitting Platform System V1.0 Interface with the fee-splitting mechanism, calculation function, etc. of business systems ofe-
commerce platform and Smart Micro Marts.

Lohas Logistics Operation System V1.0 Delivery management based on the receiver address of orders that can set the delivery area of
the carrier. The function of automatically sending delivery orders and managing the whole
delivery process.

“Lohas City” mini program An innovative platformbuilt into WeChat, facilitating discovery and purchase of our products

by consumers either individually or through our group purchase program.
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Marketing and Advertising
We advertise our products and support our brand image through the use of social media, primarily WeChat, our website, merchant associations and community promotions.

We continue to promote and enhance our digital presence to further connect with our customers. We developed and maintain a WeChat mini-program, Lohas City, on which we include mobile
coupons and customized offers based on the user’s preferences. In addition, our website, http://www.lohas.sh/en and display screens on our smart micro marts provide weekly sales flyers,
highlighting our product offerings and special deals. We also continue to expand our social media platform. By the end of July 2019, we had more than 16,000 active members of our WeChat
public account who have made at least one purchase at our smart micro marts.

In addition, we enter into cooperation agreements with qualified business entities across the country to build market share and promote brand awareness for our products and services. We seek
these business entities with required business skills and financial strength to operate as our authorized city distributors within specific geographic territories. The cooperation agreement requires
these city distributors to pay a one-time fee to us so that they can be authorized to use our intellectual properties and other technical services. In addition, they are required to purchase products
and services fromus to distribute in their territories. We are required to provide all initial training and technical support as well as continuing operating assistance to these distributors. The
typical initial term of a cooperation agreement is three years. The parties may extend the term for another three years.

Our Customers

We target Lohas consumers that actively seek out a healthier and more sustainable lifestyle. Our target customer seeks a wide assortment of high-quality fresh, natural and organic food at
competitive prices. We believe the majority of our customers are attracted to our fresh produce, which we offer at prices we believe are significantly below those of conventional food retailers
and even further below high-end natural and organic food retailers.

Competition

We operate within the intensely competitive and highly fragmented natural and organic food industry which encompasses a wide array of food retailers, including large conventional
independent and chain supermarkets, warechouse clubs, small grocery and convenience stores, as well as natural and organic, specialty, discount and other food retailers with brick & mortar
and/or online presence.

Based on our industry experience, we also believe consumers are increasingly focused on health and wellness and are actively seeking healthy foods in order to improve eating habits. This
overall demand for healthy products is driven by many factors, including increased awareness about the benefits of eating healthy, a greater focus on preventative health measures, and the
rising costs of health care. We believe customers are attracted to retailers with comprehensive health and wellness product offerings. As a result, food retailers are offering an increased
assortment of fresh, natural and organic foods as well as vitamins and supplements to meet this demand.

Despite the highly fragmented fresh food supply chain industry in China, we believe we have two main competitors in the “smart retail” space. These competitors are singled out as they have

similar make up and future designs as we do — they are a traditional supplier of perishable foods to independent or self-owned retailers, but are also currently investing in technology and
innovation as a break-out strategy to capture significant market share from competitors.

71

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 137/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

e  Great-Sun Foods Co., Ltd. (7 #% J #%) engages in the cultivation, post-harvest acquisition, field pre-cooling, frozen storage, product selection and classification, processing and
packaging, and cold chain distribution of over 80 types of fruits and vegetables. Founded in 1992 in Shantou, China, Great-Sun Foods Co., Ltd. (“Great-Sun”) is currently a high-volume
supplier for a number of well-known supermarket chains and wholesalers, including but not limited to Yonghui Supermarket, ParknShop, China Resources Vanguard (including Tesco
China), Xinhua Supermarket, Lianhua Supermarket, BBK Supermarket, Hualian Hypermarket, Jiajiayue Supermarket, Shangshu Yonghui Supermarket, Lotus Supermarket, Wumart, and
RT-Mart. Meanwhile, it also supplies directly fromthe field to the prominent Chinese online retailer, JD.com, with its cold-chain logistics system. Different from Great-Sun which mainly
source fromand sells products in China, vast majority of our products sourced from other countries.

e Miss Fresh (%} H fiLfif). Founded in 2014 in China, Miss Fresh (Meiri Youxian) is an online-to-offline e-commerce platformthat offers delivery services of fresh produce, including fruits,
vegetables, meat, eggs, seafood, dairy products, beverages, and other daily dining and living items. The company operates in approximately 10 large cities in China with cold chain
delivery networks. We believe we have more stable supplies and as a result, can offer products with more competitive prices.

Our strategy to maintain a dominant position over these competitors has been to accelerate the placement of smart micro marts, uphold the edge in technological innovation, and maintain
superior transparency throughout the temperature-controlled supply chain, explore opportunity for group purchases, continue to run a more efficient supply chain, and sustain a competitive
edge with faster movement of product fromharvest to consumption.

Intellectual Property

We currently hold two registered trademarks, 31 software copyrights and three domain names http://www.lohas.sh/en. We believe that our intellectual properties are valuable assets that reinforce
our customers’ favorable perception of our Lohas brand products. We consider these intellectual properties to be of material importance and actively defend and enforce such intellectual
properties. We seek to protect our intellectual properties through a combination of trademark and copyright protection laws in China, as well as through confidentiality agreements and other
measures.

O @ FEMR RARR &8 82
In addition, some of the important trademarks that we are using, including ,are owned by Shenzhen Lohas, a 99.333334% shareholder of Lohas

Agricultural. Lohas Agricultural entered into a trademark licensing agreement with Shenzhen Lohas on August 17, 2019, pursuant to which we obtained an exclusive license to use these
trademarks during their respective valid periods. We are required to use these trademarks within their respective scope of services approved by the Chinese trademark authority. However, our
use of some of the trademarks may be considered as beyond the authorized scope ofuse and as a result, we could be deemed as breaching the trademark licensing agreement by Shenzhen Lohas
or even subject to claims that our activities or the products we sell infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate the intellectual property rights of other parties. In addition, pursuant to the
Trademark Law of the PRC, where one party is licensed to use a registered trademark, the licenser shall report the license to the competent trademark office for recordation, and the trademark
office will publish the license. As of the date of this Prospectus, we are in the process of recordation of the license. An unrecorded license may not be used as a defense against a third party in
good faith. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Risks Related to Our Business and Industry — We may be subject to intellectual property infringement claims or other allegations by third
parties, which may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and prospects.”

Facilities
Our corporate headquarters are located in Yisibo Software Building, Haitian 2nd Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, where we lease an area of approximately 691 square

meters until November 2021. We are currently paying RMB109,482.88 (approximately $16,259) monthly to the landlord for the rent and other related fees. We believe that we will be able to obtain
adequate facilities, principally through leasing, to accommodate our future expansion plans.
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Employees

As of March 31, 2019, we had a total of 70 employees. The following table shows the number of our employees by function.

Function Number of Employees
Finance 7
Administration 2
Procurement 8
Technology 11
Marketing and Sales 27
Strategies 2
Logistics 5
Seafood 3
Brand Management’ 5
Total 70

As required by laws and regulations in China, we contribute to various statutory employee benefit plans that are organized by municipal and provincial governments, including pension, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and maternity insurance plans as well as the housing provident fund. We are required under Chinese law to make contributions
to employee benefit plans at specified percentages of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of our employees, up to a maximum amount specified by the local government from time to
time. We believe we are in full compliance with the applicable PRC laws with respect to the employment matter.

We enter into standard labor contracts with our key employees. The labor contract with our key personnel typically includes a confidentiality covenant that requires employees to protect our
confidential information during their employment. In addition, employees are prohibited from entering into another employment relationship with a third party, which may adversely affect our
business.

None of our employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements. We consider our relations with our employees to be good, and we have never experienced a strike or significant work
stoppage.

Insurance

We pay various statutory employee benefits, including housing fund, pension insurance, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance to
designated government agencies for the benefit of our employees. We have purchased Ping An food safety insurance with an aggregate liability limit of RMB20 million. However, we do not
maintain business interruption insurance, general third-party liability insurance, product liability insurance or key-man insurance. We consider our insurance coverage to be sufficient for our
business operations in China and in line with market practice.

Legal Proceedings
Fromtime to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and

an adverse result in these or other matters may arise fromtime to time that may harmour business. We are currently not aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.
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Regulation

This section sets forth a summary of the most significant laws, rules and regulations that affect our business activities in the PRC or our shareholders’ rights to receive dividends and other
distributions fromus.

Regulations on Company Law

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law, pronulgated by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress (the “SCNPC”) on December, 29 1993, effective as of July 1, 1994, and as revised
on December 25, 1999, August 28, 2004, October 27, 2005, December 28, 2013 and October 26, 2018, the establishment, operation and management of corporate entities in the PRC are governed by
the PRC Company Law. The PRC Company Law defines two types of companies: limited liability companies and limited stock companies.

Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain are all limited liability companies established under the PRC Company Law. Unless otherwise stipulated in the related laws on foreign

investment, foreign invested companies are also required to comply with the provisions of the PRC Company Law.
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Regulations on Food industry

Food Distribution License

According to the Administrative Measures for Food Distribution Licensing, which was promulgated by the China Food and Drug Administration on August 31, 2015 and was latest amended on
November 17,2017, entities engaging in food distributions and catering services in the PRC shall obtain a food distribution license. The food distribution license is issued by food and drug
administration at or above the county level and is valid for five years. Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain have obtained the food distribution license, respectively.

Food Safety

The Food Safety Law of the PRC, or the Food Safety Law, was promulgated by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on February 28, 2009 and was latest amended on
December 29, 2018. The Regulation on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the PRC was promulgated by the State Council on July 20, 2009 and was latest amended on February 6, 2016.
According to the Food Safety Law, food producers and traders shall be responsible for the safety of the food which they produce or deal in. Food producers and traders shall engage in
production and trade in accordance with laws, regulations, and food safety standards, ensure food safety, have integrity and self-discipline, take responsibility to the society and the public,
accept supervision fromthe society, and assume social responsibilities.

Food Recall System

The State has also established a food recall systemunder the requirement provided in the Food Safety Law. The Administrative Measures for Food Recall, or the Food Recall Measures, was
promulgated by the China Food and Drug Administration on March 11, 2015 and became effective on September 1, 2015. According to the Food Recall Measures, food producers and distributors
shall be the primary persons responsible for food safety and bear the obligations to recall and dispose unsafe foods.

Where any food producer or distributor finds that any ofthe foods it produced or sold is unsafe, it shall immediately cease the production or sale of such food and take necessary measures to
prevent and control food safety risks. Where any food producer knows that any of the foods it produced is unsafe, it shall voluntarily recall such food. Based on the seriousness and urgency
degree of food safety risks, food recall is divided into three levels.

Level I recall: Where the food has caused or may cause serious health damages or death after consumption, the food producer shall initiate the recall within 24 hours upon learning the risks and
report the recall plan to the local food and drug administration at or above the county level.

Level Il recall: Where the food has caused or may cause ordinary health damages after consumption, the food producer shall initiate the recall within 48 hours upon learning the risks and report
the recall plan to the local food and drug administration at or above the county level.

Level IIl recall: Where the food label or mark has false indications, the food producer shall initiate the recall within 72 hours upon learning the risks and report the recall plan to the local food and
drug administration at or above the county level. If the food with defective label or mark will not cause health damage after consumption, the food producer shall rectify and may voluntarily recall

such food.

Consumer Protection

According to the Food Safety Law, consumers suffering damages caused by food which does not meet food safety standards may claim compensations from either producers or distributors.
Producers or distributors must make compensation upon requirements and shall not pass the buck. The one who pays the compensation has the right to receive reimbursement fromthe
accountable party. Where producers knowingly produce or distributors knowingly sell unqualified foods, consumers may also claim punitive damages.

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 142/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

According to the Laws of the PRC on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, which was promulgated by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on October 31, 1993
and was latest amended on October 25, 2013, and the Product Quality Law of the PRC, which was promulgated by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on February 22, 1993
and was latest amended on December 29, 2018, consumers or other victims suffering from personal injuries or property damages due to defects of products have the right to claim compensations
either fromthe distributors or fromthe producers of the products.
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According to the Tort Law of the PRC, which was promulgated by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on December 26, 2009 and became effective on July 1, 2010,
producers shall bear tortious liability for any damage caused by their defective products, while distributors shall bear tortious liability for any damage caused due to defects resulting fromtheir
own fault.

Regulations on Online Trading

Pursuant to the Measures on Investigation of Delinquency Actions for Online Food Safety, which was promulgated by the China Food and Drug Administration on July 13, 2016 and became
effective on October 1, 2016, food producers and distributors engaging in online food trading through its own online platformshall also file with the food and drug administrative department at
or above the county level to acquire a filing number. If they fail to file with the food and drug administrative department at or above the county level, food producers and distributors may be
ordered to make corrections and given a warning, and if they refuse to make corrections, they will be fined for not less than RMB 5,000 but not more than RMB 30,000. Lohas Agricultural has
filed with Shenzhen Food and Drug Administration and obtained the confirmation of filing on November 15, 2019.

Pursuant to the E-Commerce Law of the PRC, which was promulgated by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on August 31, 2018 and became effective on January 1, 2019,
and the Administrative Measures for Online Trading, which was promulgated by the SAIC on January 26, 2014 and became effective on March 15, 2014, e-commerce business operators shall
obtain relevant administrative licenses required by law.

Regulations on Importation and Exportation of Goods

The major PRC laws and regulations governing import and export of goods are Foreign Trade Law of the PRC, or the Foreign Trade Law, Regulations of the PRC on the Administration of Import
and Export of Goods, or the Regulations on Import and Export of Goods, Customs Law of the PRC and Provisions of the Customs of the PRC on the Administration of Registration of Customs
Declaration Entities.

In light of the Foreign Trade Law promulgated by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on May 12, 1994, amended on April 6, 2004 and November 7, 2016 respectively, save
as otherwise provided by laws and administrative regulations, foreign trade operators engaging in goods or technology import and export shall go through the record-filing registration
formalities with the competent department of foreign trade under the State Council of the PRC or its authorized institutions. Failing to do the same, the customs shall refuse to process the
declaration and clearance of goods imported or exported submitted by such foreign trade operators. A legally registered foreign trade operator is entitled to act as other parties’ agent to handle
foreign trade businesses within its business scope. The state practices a uniformsystem of commodity quality assessment, and makes authentications, inspections, and quarantines to the import
and export commodities according to the provisions of relevant laws and administrative regulations. Lohas Supply Chain has completed the record-filing registration and obtained the registration
formissued by Shenzhen Economic and Trade and Information Commission on December 7, 2015.

Pursuant to the Customs Law of the PRC amended in 2017, all inward and outward goods shall enter or leave the territory at a place where there is a Customs office, and those goods must be
declared and duties on them paid by their sender or receiver or by representatives entrusted by the sender or receiver and approved by and registered with the Customs. To undergo customs
declaration formalities, the consignees or consigners for imported or exported goods and the customs declaration enterprises must legally register with the customs offices in accordance with
Provisions of the Customs of the PRC on the Administration of Registration of Customs Declaration Entities. Engaging in customs declaration without such registration shall be prohibited.
Lohas Supply Chain has obtained the registration certificate issued by Shenzhen Customs on December 8, 2015.

Regulations on Import and Export Inspection and Quarantine

The Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress promulgated the Law of the PRC on Import and Export Commodity Inspection, or the Import and Export Commodity Inspection Law, in
1989 and last amended on December 29, 2018. According to the Import and Export Commodity Inspection Law and its Implementations, the State Administration for Commodity Inspection shall
make and adjust a Catalog of Import and Export Commodities Subject to Compulsory Inspection. The import and export commodities which are included in the Catalog shall be inspected by the
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commodity inspection authorities. No permission shall be granted for the sale or use of import commodities specified in the Catalog until they have undergone inspection; and no permission
shall be granted for the export of export commodities specified in the Catalog until they have been found to be up to standard through inspection. For export commodities which are subject to
compulsory inspection by the commodity inspection authorities in accordance with this Law, the consignor or its agent shall apply to the same authorities for inspection in the places and within

the time limit specified by them.
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According to the Measures for the Administration of Inspection, Quarantine, and Supervision on the Fruit Entering China, which were promulgated on January 5, 2005 and last amended on
November 23, 2018, before concluding a contract or agreement on the trade of the fruit, one shall file an application to the State Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine
for going through the examination and approval formalities for the quarantine and inspection of the fruit and shall obtain an Quarantine License. The fruit on which the inspection and quarantine
has not been completed yet shall be stored in the places as designated by the inspection and quarantine institutions. No one may move, sell or use such fruit without approval.

According to the Measures for the Administration of Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Enterprises, to apply for inspection the entity shall complete the filing procedures to the Customs. The
consignor shall apply for inspection on its own or by its agent. Lohas Supply Chain has completed the filing procedures and obtained the confirmation of filing issued by Shenzhen Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau on September 26, 2017.

Regulations on Value-added Telecommunication Services

On September 25, 2000, the State Council promulgated the Telecommunications Regulations of the People’s Republic of China, or the Telecom Regulations, which was amended on July 29, 2014
and February 6, 2016. The Telecom Regulations is the primary PRC law governing telecommunication services and sets out the general regulatory framework for telecommunication services
provided by PRC companies. The Telecom Regulations distinguishes between “basic telecommunication services” and “value-added telecommunication services.” The Telecom Regulations
defines value-added telecommunications services as telecommunications and information services provided through public networks. Pursuant to the Telecom Regulations, commercial operators
of value-added telecommunications services must first obtain an operating license fromthe Ministry of Industry and Information Technology, or its provincial level counterparts.

The Catalog of Telecommunications Business, or the Catalog, which was issued as an attachment to the Telecom Regulations and last updated on June 6, 2019, further categorizes value-added
telecommunication services into two classes: Class 1 value-added telecommunication services and Class 2 value-added telecommunication services. Online data processing and transaction
processing business and Information services provided via internet fall within Class 2 value-added telecommunications services.

On July 3, 2017, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology amended the Measures on the Administration of Telecommunications Business Operating Permits, or the Telecom License
Measures, which became effective on September 1, 2017, to supplement the Telecom Regulations. The Telecom License Measures sets forth the types of licenses required to operate value-added
telecommunications services and the qualifications and procedures for obtaining such licenses. The Telecom License Measures also provides that an operator providing value-added services in
multiple provinces is required to obtain an inter-regional license, whereas an operator providing value-added services in one province is required to obtain an intra-provincial license. Any
telecommunication services operator must conduct its business in accordance with the specifications in its license.

We engage in business activities that are value-added telecommunications services as defined in the Telecom Regulations and the Catalog. To comply with the relevant laws and regulations,
Lohas Agricultural has obtained a Value-Added Telecommunications Services Operating License for providing information services via interet, or the ICP License, which will remain effective
until June 6, 2021.

Regulations Relating to Foreign Investment

Investment activities in the PRC by foreign investors are mainly governed by the Guidance Catalog of Industries for Foreign Investment (2017 revision), or the Catalog, which was promulgated
jointly by the Ministry of Commerce and the National Development and Reform Commission on June 28, 2017 and entered into force on July 28, 2017. The Catalog divides industries into four
categories in terms of foreign investment, which are “encouraged,” “restricted,” and “prohibited,” and all industries that are not listed under one of these categories are deemed to be
“permitted.” Establishment of wholly foreign-owned enterprises is generally allowed in encouraged and permitted industries. Some restricted industries are limited to equity or contractual joint
ventures, while in some cases Chinese partners are required to hold the majority interests in such joint ventures. In addition, foreign investment in restricted category projects is subject to
government approvals. Foreign investors are not allowed to invest in industries in the prohibited category. Industries not listed in the Catalog are generally open to foreign investment unless
specifically restricted by other PRC regulations.
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In June 2019, the Ministry of Commerce and the National Development and Reform Commission promulgated the Special Management Measures (Negative List) for the Access of Foreign
Investment, or the Negative List, effective July 30, 2019. Foreign investment in value-added telecommunication business (excluding e-commerce business, domestic multi-party communications
services, store and forward services and call center services) falls within the Negative List.

On March 15, 2019, the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress passed the Foreign Investment Law of PRC, which will take effect since January 1, 2020. The Law of the People’s
Republic of China on China-Foreign Equity Joint Ventures, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Wholly Foreign-Owned Enterprises, and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
China-Foreign Contractual Joint Ventures shall be replaced at the same time. The Foreign Investment Law of PRC adopts the management system of the negative list for foreign investment. A
foreign investor may not invest in a field which is prohibited by the foreign investment access negative list from investment. To invest in a field restricted by the foreign investment access
negative list frominvestment, a foreign investor shall meet the investment conditions set out in the negative list.

In light of the above restrictions and requirements, we conduct our business through our consolidated variable interest entity, Lohas Agricultural.
Relations Relating to Overseas Investment

According to the Measures for the Administration of Overseas Investment promulgated by the Ministry of Commerce on September 6, 2014 and came into effective as of October 6, 2014, the
Ministry of Commerce and the provincial departments of commerce shall subject the overseas investment of enterprises to recordation or confirmation, depending on the actual circumstances of
such investment. Except overseas investment involving sensitive country or region or any sensitive industry, overseas investment in other industries shall be subject to recordation. For local
enterprise, it shall undergo recordation with the local provincial department of commerce. Where, after recordation or confirmation is granted to an overseas investment, any overseas investment
matter indicated in the Certificate changes, an enterprise shall undergo the modification procedure with the Ministry of Commerce or the provincial department of commerce that granted
recordation or confirmation.

According to the Measures for the Administration of Overseas Investment of Enterprise promulgated by the State Development and Reform Commission on December 26, 2017 and came into
effective as of March 1, 2018, an investor shall, in overseas investment, undergo the formalities for the confirmation or recordation, among others, of an overseas investment project, report the
relevant information, and cooperate in supervisory inspection. An investor shall, in overseas investment, neither violate the laws and regulations of China nor threaten or damage the national
interests and national security of China. Sensitive projects conducted by investors directly or through overseas enterprises controlled by themshall be subject to confirmation management,
while non-sensitive projects directly conducted by investors shall be subject to recordation. If the investor is a local enterprise, and the amount of Chinese investment is less than USD 300
million, the recordation authority is the development and reform department of the provincial government at the place of registration of the investor. Where there is an increase or decrease in the
number of investors, a major change of the place of investment or the main content and size of the project, a change of the amount of Chinese investment by 20% or more of the original amount
granted confirmation or recordation or by USD 100 million or more, the investor shall, before the relevant circumstance occurs, apply for modification to the authority issuing the project
confirmation document or recordation notice. Where the investor of a project subject to confirmation or recordation management commits any of the following violations, the confirmation or
recordation authority shall order it to suspend or cease the implementation of the project and take corrective action during a specified period, and issue a warning to the investor and the relevant
persons liable; and if it is criminally punishable, the offender shall be held criminally liable in accordance with the law,(1) implementing the project without obtaining a confirmation document or
recordation notice; (2) modifying the project without the consent of the confirmation or recordation authority, if the formalities for modification of confirmation or recordation are required.

The State Administration of Foreign Exchange promulgated the Circular on Relevant Issues Concerming Foreign Exchange Control on Domestic Residents’ Offshore Investment and Financing
and Roundtrip Investment through Special Purpose Vehicles, or Circular 37, on July 4, 2014, and further promulgated the Circular on Further Simplifying and Improving Policies for Foreign
Exchange Administration for Direct Investment, or Circular 13, on February 13, 2015. According to Circular 37, PRC residents (both institution and individual) shall apply for foreign exchange
registration for overseas investments before contributing their legitimate domestic and overseas assets or equities into Special Purpose Vehicles A domestic institution shall undergo the foreign
exchange registration procedure for foreign investment in accordance with the Notice of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Issuing the Provisions on Foreign Exchange
Administration of the Overseas Direct Investment of Domestic Institutions, and other relevant provisions. According to Circular 13, the foreign exchange registration under domestic and
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overseas direct investment can be directly conducted with qualified banks in accordance with the Circular 13 and the Operating Guidelines for Foreign Exchange Transactions for Direct
Investment.
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Relations Relating to Internet Information Security and Regulations Relating to Privacy Protection

The Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress, China’s national legislative body, enacted the Decisions on the Maintenance of Internet Security on December 28, 2000 and amended
on August 27, 2009, that may subject persons to criminal liabilities in China for any attempt to use the internet to: (i) gain improper entry to a computer or system of strategic importance;

(ii) disseminate politically disruptive information; (iii) leak state secrets; (iv) spread false commercial information or (v) infringe upon intellectual property rights. In 2011, the Ministry of Public
Security amended the Administration Measures on the Security Protection of Computer Information Network with International Connections which prohibits using the internet to leak state
secrets or to spread socially destabilizing materials. If an internet information service provider violates these measures, the Ministry of Public Security and the local security bureaus may revoke
its operating license and shut down its websites.

Pursuant to the Ninth Amendment to the Criminal Law issued by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress on August 29, 2015, effective on November 1, 2015, any ICP provider
that fails to fulfill the obligations related to internet information security as required by applicable laws and refuses to take corrective measures, will be subject to criminal liability for (i) any large-
scale dissemination ofillegal information; (ii) any severe effect due to the leakage of users’ personal information; (iii) any serious loss of evidence of criminal activities; or (iv) other severe
situations, and any individual or entity that (i) sells or provides personal information to others unlawfully or (ii) steals or illegally obtains any personal information will be subject to criminal
liability in severe situations.

On November 7, 2016, the National People’s Congress Standing Committee issued the Network Security Law of the People’s Republic of China, or the Network Security Law, which took effect as
of June 1, 2017. The Network Security Law is formulated to maintain the network security, safeguard the cyberspace sovereignty, national security and public interests, protect the lawful rights
and interests of citizens, legal persons and other organizations, and requires that a network operator, which includes, among others, internet information services providers, take technical
measures and other necessary measures in accordance with the provisions of applicable laws and regulations as well as the compulsory requirements of the national and industrial standards to
safeguard the safe and stable operation of the networks, effectively respond to the network security incidents, prevent illegal and criminal activities, and maintain the integrity, confidentiality and
availability of network data. The Network Security Law emphasizes that any individuals and organizations that use networks is required to comply with the PRC Constitution and laws, abide by
public order and cannot endanger network security or make use of networks to engage in unlawful activities such as endangering national security, economic order and social order, and
infringing the reputation, privacy, intellectual property rights and other lawful rights and interests of other people. Any violation of the provisions and requirements under the Network Security
Law may subject the Internet service provider to warnings, fines, confiscation of illegal gains, revocation of licenses, cancellation of filings, closedown of websites or even criminal liabilities.

The Several Provisions on Regulating the Market Order of Internet Information Services, issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology in December 2011, provide that, an
internet information service provider may not collect any user personal information or provide any such information to third parties without the consent of a user. An internet information service
provider must expressly informthe users of the method, content and purpose of the collection and processing of such user personal information and may only collect such information necessary
for the provision of its services. An internet information service provider is also required to properly maintain the user personal information, and in case of any leak or likely leak of the user
personal information, online lending service providers must take immediate remedial measures and, in severe circumstances, make an immediate report to the telecommunications regulatory
authority.

In addition, pursuant to the Decision on Strengthening the Protection of Online Information issued by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress in December 2012 and the Order
for the Protection of Telecommunication and Internet User Personal Information issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology in July 2013, any collection and use of user
personal information must be subject to the consent of the user, abide by the principles of legality, rationality and necessity and be within the specified purposes, methods and scopes.

The Guidelines jointly released by ten PRC regulatory agencies in July 2015 purport, among other things, to require service providers to improve technology security standards, and safeguard
user and transaction information. The Guidelines also prohibit service providers fromillegally selling or disclosing users’ personal information. Pursuant to the Ninth Amendment to the Criminal
Law issued by the Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress in August 2015, which became effective in November 2015, any internet service provider that fails to fulfill the
obligations related to internet information security administration as required by applicable laws and refuses to rectify upon orders is subject to criminal penalty for the result of (i) any
dissemination of illegal information in large scale; (ii) any severe effect due to the leakage of the client’s information; (iii) any serious loss of criminal evidence; or (iv) other severe situation, and
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any individual or entity that (i) sells or provides personal information to others in a way violating the applicable law, or (ii) steals or illegally obtain any personal information is subject to criminal
penalty in severe situation.
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Regulations Relating to Intellectual Property

The Standing Committee of the National People’s Congress and the State Council have promulgated comprehensive laws and regulations to protect trademarks. The Trademark Law of the PRC
(2019 revision) promulgated on August 23, 1982 and subsequently amended on February 22, 1993, October 27, 2001, August 30, 2013 and April 23, 2019, respectively, and will come into effect on
November 1, 2019, and the Implementation Regulation of the Trademark Law (2014 revision) issued by the State Council on August 3, 2002 and amended on April 29, 2014 are the main regulations
protecting registered trademarks. The Trademark Office under the State Administration for Industry and Commerce administrates the registration of trademarks on a “first-to-file” basis, and
grants a termoften years to registered trademarks.

The PRC Copyright Law, adopted in 1990 and revised in 2001, 2010 respectively, with its implementation rules adopted on August 8, 2002 and revised in 2011 and 2013, respectively, and the

Regulations for the Protection of Computer Software as promulgated on December 20, 2001 and amended in 2011 and 2013 provide protection for copyright of computer software in the PRC.
Under these rules and regulations, software owners, licensees and transferees may register their rights in software with the National Copyright Administration Center or its local branches to
obtain software copyright registration certificates.

The Ministry of Industry and Information Technology promulgated the Administrative Measures on Internet Domain Name on August 24, 2017 to protect domain names, which became effective
on November 11, 2017 According to these measures, domain name applicants are required to duly register their domain names with domain name registration service institutions. The applicants
will become the holder of such domain names upon the completion of the registration procedure. The domain name registration in the PRC applies the “first to file” principle.

We have adopted necessary mechanisms to register, maintain and enforce intellectual property rights in China. However, we cannot assure you that we can prevent our intellectual property from
all the unauthorized use by any third party, neither can we promise that none of our intellectual property rights would be challenged any third party.

Regulations Relating to Employment

The PRC Labor Law and the Labor Contract Law require that employers must execute written employment contracts with full-time employees. All employers must compensate their employees
with wages equal to at least the local minimum wage standards. Violations of the PRC Labor Law and the Labor Contract Law may result in the imposition of fines and other administrative
sanctions, and serious violations may constitute criminal offences.

On December 28, 2012, the PRC Labor Contract Law was amended with effect on July 1, 2013 to impose more stringent requirements on labor dispatch. Under such law, dispatched workers are
entitled to pay equal to that of full-time employees for equal work, but the number of dispatched workers that an employer hires may not exceed a certain percentage of its total number of
employees as determined by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security. Additionally, dispatched workers are only permitted to engage in temporary, auxiliary or substitute work.
According to the Interim Provisions on Labor Dispatch promulgated by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security on January 24, 2014, which became effective on March 1, 2014, the
number of dispatched workers hired by an employer shall not exceed 10% of the total number of its employees (including both directly hired employees and dispatched workers). The Interim
Provisions on Labor Dispatch require employers not in compliance with the PRC Labor Contract Law in this regard to reduce the number of its dispatched workers to below 10% of the total
number of its employees prior to March 1, 2016.

Enterprises in China are required by PRC laws and regulations to participate in certain employee benefit plans, including social insurance funds, namely a pension plan, a medical insurance plan,
an unemployment insurance plan, a work-related injury insurance plan and a maternity insurance plan, and a housing provident fund, and contribute to the plans or funds in amounts equal to
certain percentages of salaries, including bonuses and allowances, of the employees as specified by the local government fromtime to time at locations where they operate their businesses or
where they are located.
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According to the Interim Regulations on the Collection and Payment of Social Insurance Premiums, the Regulations on Work Injury Insurance, the Regulations on Unemployment Insurance and
the Trial Measures on Employee Maternity Insurance of Enterprises, enterprises in the PRC shall provide benefit plans for their employees, which include basic pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, work injury insurance and basic medical insurance. An enterprise must provide social insurance by processing social insurance registration with
local social insurance agencies, and shall pay or withhold relevant social insurance premiums for or on behalf of employees. The Law on Social Insurance of the PRC, which was promulgated by
the SCNPC on October 28, 2010, became effective on July 1, 2011, and was most recently updated on December 29, 2018, has consolidated pertinent provisions for basic pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, work injury insurance and basic medical insurance, and has elaborated in detail the legal obligations and liabilities of employers who do not
comply with relevant laws and regulations on social insurance.

According to the Regulations on the Administration of Housing Provident Fund, which was promulgated by the State Counsel and became effective on April 3, 1999, and was amended on March
24,2002 and was partially revised on March 24, 2019 by Decision of the State Council on Revising Some Administrative Regulations (Decree No. 710 of the State Council), housing provident
fund contributions by an individual employee and housing provident fund contributions by his or her employer shall belong to the individual employee. Registration by PRC companies at the
applicable housing provident fund management center is compulsory and a special housing provident fund account for each of the employees shall be opened at an entrusted bank.

The employer shall timely pay up and deposit housing provident fund contributions in full amount and late or insufficient payments shall be prohibited. The employer shall process housing
provident fund payment and deposit registrations with the housing provident fund administration center. With respect to companies who violate the above regulations and fail to process
housing provident fund payment and deposit registrations or open housing provident fund accounts for their employees, such companies shall be ordered by the housing provident fund
administration center to complete such procedures within a designated period. Those who fail to process their registrations within the designated period shall be subject to a fine ranging from
RMB 10,000 to RMB 50,000. When companies breach these regulations and fail to pay up housing provident fund contributions in full amount as due, the housing provident fund administration
center shall order such companies to pay up within a designated period, and may further apply to the People’s Court for mandatory enforcement against those who still fail to comply after the
expiry of such period.

Regulations Relating to Foreign Exchange

Regulations on Foreign Currency Exchange

Under the Administrative Regulations of the PRC on Foreign Exchange promulgated on January 29, 1996 and last amended on August 5, 2008 and various regulations issued by the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange and other relevant PRC government authorities, payment of current account items in foreign currencies, such as trade and service payments, payment of
interest and dividends can be made without prior approval fromthe State Administration of Foreign Exchange by following the appropriate procedural requirements. By contrast, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies and remittance of the converted foreign currency outside the PRC for the purpose of capital account items, such as direct equity investments, loans and
repatriation of investment, requires prior approval fromthe State Administration of Foreign Exchange or its local office.

On February 13, 2015, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange promulgated the Circular on Simplifying and Improving the Foreign Currency Management Policy on Direct Investment,
effective from June 1, 2015, which cancels the requirement for obtaining approvals of foreign exchange registration of foreign direct investment and overseas direct investment fromthe State
Administration of Foreign Exchange. The application for the registration of foreign exchange for the purpose of foreign direct investment and overseas direct investment may be filed with
qualified banks, which, under the supervision of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, may review the application and process the registration.

The Circular of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Reforming the Management Approach regarding the Settlement of Foreign Capital of Foreign-invested Enterprise was
promulgated on March 30, 2015 and became effective on June 1, 2015. According to this Circular, a foreign-invested enterprise may, according to its actual business needs, settle with a bank the
portion of the foreign exchange capital in its capital account for which the relevant foreign exchange bureau has confirmed monetary contribution rights and interests (or for which the bank has
registered the account-crediting of monetary contribution). For the time being, foreign-invested enterprises are allowed to settle 100% of their foreign exchange capitals on a discretionary basis;
a foreign-invested enterprise shall truthfully use its capital for its own operational purposes within the scope of business; where an ordinary foreign-invested enterprise makes domestic equity
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investment with the amount of foreign exchanges settled, the invested enterprise shall first go through domestic re-investment registration and open a corresponding Account for Foreign
Exchange Settlement Pending Payment with the foreign exchange bureau (bank) at the place of registration. The Circular of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Reforming and
Regulating Policies on the Control over Foreign Exchange Settlement of Capital Accounts was promulgated and became effective on June 9, 2016. According to this Circular, enterprises
registered in PRC may also convert their foreign debts from foreign currency into Renminbi on self-discretionary basis. This Circular provides an integrated standard for conversion of foreign
exchange under capital account items (including but not limited to foreign currency capital and foreign debts) on self-discretionary basis, which applies to all enterprises registered in the PRC.
This Circular reiterates the principle that Renminbi converted from foreign currency-denominated capital of a company may not be directly or indirectly used for purposes beyond its business
scope and may not be used for investments in securities or other investment with the exception of bank financial products that can guarantee the principal within the PRC unless otherwise
specifically provided. Besides, the converted Renminbi shall not be used to make loans for non-affiliated enterprises unless it is within the business scope or to build or to purchase any real
estate that is not for the enterprise own use with the exception for the real estate enterprise.
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On January 26, 2017, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange promulgated the Circular on Further Improving Reform of Foreign Exchange Administration and Optimizing Genuineness and
Compliance Verification, which stipulates several capital control measures with respect to the outbound remittance of profits from domestic entities to offshore entities, including (i) banks must
check whether the transaction is genuine by reviewing board resolutions regarding profit distribution, original copies of tax filing records and audited financial statements, and (ii) domestic
entities must retain income to account for previous years’ losses before remitting any profits. Moreover, pursuant to this Circular, domestic entities must explain in detail the sources of capital
and how the capital will be used, and provide board resolutions, contracts and other proofas a part of the registration procedure for outbound investment.

On October 25, 2019, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange promulgated the Notice on Further Facilitating Cross-Board Trade and Investment, which became effective on the same date
(except for Article 8.2 thereof). The notice removed restrictions on the capital equity investment in China by non-investment foreign-invested enterprises. In addition, restrictions on the use of
funds for foreign exchange settlement of domestic accounts for the realization of assets have been removed and restrictions on the use and foreign exchange settlement of foreign investors’
security deposits have been relaxed. Eligible enterprises in the pilot area are also allowed to use revenues under capital accounts, such as capital funds, foreign debts and overseas listing
revenues for domestic payments without providing materials to the bank in advance for authenticity verification on an itemby itembasis, while the use of funds should be true, in compliance
with applicable rules and conforming to the current capital revenue management regulations.

Regulations on Foreign Exchange Registration of Overseas Investment by PRC Residents

The State Administration of Foreign Exchange issued the Circular on Relevant Issues Relating to Domestic Resident’s Investment and Financing and Roundtrip Investment through Special
Purpose Vehicles, or Circular 37, which became effective in July 2014, to replace the Circular of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange on Issues Concerning the Regulation of Foreign
Exchange in Equity Finance and Roundtrip Investments by Domestic Residents through Offshore Special Purpose Vehicles, to regulate foreign exchange matters in relation to the use of special
purpose vehicles by PRCresidents or entities to seek offshore investment and financing or conduct round trip investment in China. Circular 37 defines a “special purpose vehicle” as an offshore
entity established or controlled, directly or indirectly, by PRC residents or entities for the purpose of seeking offshore financing or making offshore investment, using legitimate onshore or
offshore assets or interests, while “round trip investment” is defined as direct investment in China by PRC residents or entities through special purpose vehicles, namely, establishing foreign-
invested enterprises to obtain the ownership, control rights and management rights. Circular 37 stipulates that, prior to making contributions into a special purpose vehicle, PRC residents or
entities be required to complete foreign exchange registration with the State Administration of Foreign Exchange or its local branch. In addition, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange
promulgated the Notice on Further Simplifying and Improving the Administration of the Foreign Exchange Concerning Direct Investment in February 2015, which amended Circular 37

and became effective on June 1, 2015, requiring PRC residents or entities to register with qualified banks rather than the State Administration of Foreign Exchange in connection with their
establishment or control of an offshore entity established for the purpose of overseas investment or financing.

PRC residents or entities who had contributed legitimate onshore or offshore interests or assets to special purpose vehicles but had not obtained registration as required before the
implementation of the Circular 37 must register their ownership interests or control in the special purpose vehicles with qualified banks. An amendment to the registration is required if there is a
material change with respect to the special purpose vehicle registered, such as any change of basic information (including change of the PRC residents, name and operation term), increases or
decreases in investment amount, transfers or exchanges of shares, and mergers or divisions. Failure to comply with the registration procedures set forth in Circular 37 and the subsequent notice,
or making misrepresentation on or failure to disclose controllers of the foreign-invested enterprise that is established through round-trip investment, may result in restrictions being imposed on
the foreign exchange activities of the relevant foreign-invested enterprise, including payment of dividends and other distributions, such as proceeds fromany reduction in capital, share transfer
or liquidation, to its offshore parent or affiliate, and the capital inflow from the offshore parent, and may also subject relevant PRC residents or entities to penalties under PRC foreign exchange
administration regulations. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Doing Business in China—PRC regulations relating to investments in offshore companies by PRC residents may subject our
PRC-resident beneficial owners or our PRC subsidiary to liability or penalties, limit our ability to inject capital into our PRC subsidiary or limit our PRC subsidiary’s ability to increase its registered
capital or distribute profits.”
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Regulations on Stock Incentive Plans

The State Administration of Foreign Exchange promulgated the Notice on Issues Concerning the Foreign Exchange Administration for Domestic Individuals Participating in Stock Incentive Plan
of Overseas Publicly Listed Company, or the Stock Incentive Plan Notice, in February 2012, replacing the previous rules issued by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange in March 2007.
Pursuant to the Stock Incentive Plan Notice and other relevant rules and regulations, PRC residents participating in stock incentive plan in an overseas publicly-listed company are required to
register with the State Administration of Foreign Exchange or its local branches and follow certain other procedures. Participants of a stock incentive plan who are PRC residents must conduct
the registration and other procedures with respect to the stock incentive plan through a qualified PRC agent, which could be a PRC subsidiary of the overseas publicly listed company or another
qualified institution appointed by the PRC subsidiary. In addition, the PRC agent is required to update the relevant registration should there be any material change to the stock incentive plan,
the PRC agent or other material changes. The PRC agent must, on behalf of the PRC residents who have the right to exercise the employee stock options, apply to the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange or its local branches for an annual quota for the payment of foreign currencies in connection with the PRC residents’ exercise of the employee stock options. The foreign
exchange proceeds received by the PRC residents fromthe sale of shares under the stock incentive plans granted and dividends distributed by the overseas listed companies must be remitted
into the bank accounts in the PRC opened by the PRC agents prior to distribution to such PRC residents.

We intend to adopt a share incentive plan after this offering, under which we will have the discretion to award incentives and rewards to eligible participants. We plan to advise the recipients of
awards under our share incentive plan to handle relevant foreign exchange matters in accordance with the Stock Incentive Plan Notice. However, we cannot guarantee that all employee awarded
equity-based incentives can successfully register with the State Administration of Foreign Exchange in full compliance with the Stock Incentive Plan Notice. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to
Doing Business in China—Any failure to comply with PRC regulations regarding employee share incentive plans may subject the PRC plan participants or us to fines and other legal or
administrative sanctions.”

Regulations on Dividend Distribution

The principal laws and regulations regulating the dividend distribution of dividends by foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC include the Company Law of the PRC, as amended in 2004, 2005,
2013 and 2018 respectively, the Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprise Law promulgated in 1986 and amended in 2000 and 2016 and its implementation regulations promulgated in 1990 and
subsequently amended in 2001 and 2014, foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC may pay dividends only out of their retained earnings, if any, determined in accordance with PRC accounting
standards and regulations. A PRC company is required to set aside as statutory reserve funds at least 10% of'its after-tax profit, until the cumulative amount of such reserve funds reaches 50%
ofits registered capital unless laws regarding foreign investment provide otherwise. A PRC company shall not distribute any profits until any losses from prior fiscal years have been offset.
Profits retained from prior fiscal years may be distributed together with distributable profits fromthe current fiscal year. Under our current corporate structure, our Cayman Islands holding
company may rely on dividend payments from Lohas WFOE, which is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise incorporated in China, to fund any cash and financing requirements we may have.
Limitation on the ability of Lohas Agricultural to make remittance to Lohas WFOE and on the ability of Lohas WFOE to pay dividends to us could limit our ability to access cash generated by
the operations of those entities. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Doing Business in China— We rely to a significant extent on dividends and other distributions on equity paid by our
consolidated variable interest entity to fund offshore cash and financing requirements.”

Regulations Relating to Overseas Listings

On August 8, 2006, six PRC regulatory agencies, including the Ministry of Commerce, the State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission, the State Administration of Taxation,
the State Administration for Industry and Commerce, the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, jointly issued the Regulations on Mergers
and Acquisitions of Domestic Enterprises by Foreign Investors, or the M&A Rules, which became effective on September 8, 2006 and was amended on June 22, 2009. These regulations, among
other things, requires that if an overseas company established or controlled by PRC companies or individuals, or PRC Citizens, intends to acquire equity interests or assets of any other PRC
domestic company affiliated with the PRC Citizens, such acquisition must be submitted to the Ministry of Commerce for approval. The M&A Rules also requires that an offshore special purpose
vehicle formed for overseas listing purposes and controlled directly or indirectly by the PRC Citizens shall obtain the approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission prior to overseas
listing and trading of such special purpose vehicle’s securities on an overseas stock exchange.
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The Notice of the State Council on Further Strengthening the Administration of Share Issues and Listings Overseas was promulgated by the State Council on June 20, 1997, which regulated that
an unlisted Chinese investment company or a listed company with Chinese investment holdings which is registered overseas shall not apply to issue shares and list a company overseas which
involve domestic assets owned for less than three (3) years. If there are special circumstances, the application must be submitted to the China Securities Supervision and Management Committee
for examination and verification and then presented to the Securities Committee of the State Council for examination and approval. At the conclusion of these market listing activities, the unit
which holds the domestic shareholders’ rights must notify the China Securities Supervision and Management Committee of the details of the case for the record. See “Risk Factors—Risks
Related to Doing Business in China—The approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission may be required in connection with this offering under a PRC regulation. The regulation also
establishes more complex procedures for acquisitions conducted by foreign investors that could make it more difficult for us to grow through acquisitions.”

Regulations Relating to Taxation

Dividend Withholding Tax

In March 2007, the National People’s Congress enacted the Enterprise Income Tax Law which became effective on January 1, 2008 and latest amended on December 29, 2018. The State Council
promulgated the Implementation Rules of the EIT Law on December 6, 2007, and became effective on January 1, 2008 and was partially amended on April 23, 2019. According to Enterprise Income
Tax Law and its Implementation Rules, dividends payable by a foreign-invested enterprise in China to its foreign enterprise investors are subject to a 10% withholding tax, unless any such
foreign investor’s jurisdiction of incorporation has a tax treaty with China that provides for a preferential withholding arrangement. The PRC Government and the Hong Kong government entered
into the Arrangement between the Mainland of the PRC and Hong Kong for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income, or the
Arrangement on August 21, 2006. According to the Arrangement, 5% withholding tax rate shall be applied on the dividends paid by a PRC resident enterprise to a Hong Kong resident, provided
that such Hong Kong resident directly holds at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC resident enterprise, and vice versa. Otherwise, the withholding tax rate would be 10%. According to the
Notice ofthe SAT on the Issues Concerning the Application of Dividend Clauses of Tax Agreements, which took effect on February 20, 2009, a taxpayer of the other contracting party of the tax
agreements, who directly holds certain percentage (normally 25% or 10%) of equity interests in a PRC company, shall be entitled to the tax treatment specified in the taxagreements if all of the
following requirements are satisfied: (i) such taxpayer obtaining dividends shall be a company; (ii) the equity interests and voting shares of a PRC company directly hold by such taxpayer shall
reach the stipulated percentage; and (iii) the equity interests in a PRC resident enterprise directly owned by such taxpayer shall satisfy the stipulated percentage at any time during the 12 months
prior to the obtainment of the dividends. According to the Administrative Measures for Tax Convention Treatment for Non-resident Taxpayers, which was promulgated by SAT on August 27,
2015, became effective on November 1, 2015 and was partially amended on June 15, 2018, the qualified non-resident taxpayers shall enjoy the convention treatment during tax declaration or
during withholding declaration via withholding agents, and shall be subject to the subsequent management by tax authorities.

Enterprise Income Tax

Under the EIT Law and its Implementation Rules, both resident enterprises and non-resident enterprises are subject to taxin the PRC. Resident enterprises are defined as enterprises that are
established in China in accordance with PRC laws, or that are established in accordance with the laws of foreign countries but are actually or in effect controlled from within the PRC. Non-
resident enterprises are defined as enterprises that are organized under the laws of foreign countries and whose actual management is conducted outside the PRC, but have established
institutions or premises in the PRC, or have no such established institutions or premises but have income generated frominside the PRC. Under the EIT Law and relevant implementing
regulations, a uniform corporate income taxrate of 25% is applied. However, if non-resident enterprises have not formed permanent establishments or premises in the PRC, or if they have formed
permanent establishment or premises in the PRC but there is no actual relationship between the relevant income derived in the PRC and the established institutions or premises set up by them,
enterprise income taxis set at the rate of 10% with respect to their income sourced frominside the PRC.
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On October 17,2017, the State Administration of Taxation issued the Bulletin on Issues Concerning the Withholding of Non-PRC Resident Enterprise Income Tax at Source, or Bulletin 37, which
replaced the Notice on Strengthening Administration of Enterprise Income Tax for Share Transfers by Non-PRC Resident Enterprises issued by the State Administration of Taxation on
December 10, 2009, and partially replaced and supplemented rules under the Bulletin on Issues of Enterprise Income Tax on Indirect Transfers of Assets by Non-PRC Resident Enterprises, or
Bulletin 7, issued by the State Administration of Taxation on February 3, 2015. Under Bulletin 7, an “indirect transfer” of assets, including equity interests in a PRC resident enterprise, by non-
PRC resident enterprises may be re-characterized and treated as a direct transfer of PRC taxable assets, if such arrangement does not have a reasonable commercial purpose and was established
for the purpose of avoiding payment of PRC enterprise income tax As a result, gains derived from such indirect transfer may be subject to PRC enterprise income tax. In respect of an indirect
offshore transfer of assets of a PRC establishment, the relevant gain is to be regarded as effectively connected with the PRC establishment and therefore included in its enterprise income tax
filing, and would consequently be subject to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 25%. Where the underlying transfer relates to the immoveable properties in China or to equity investments in a
PRCresident enterprise, which is not effectively connected to a PRC establishment of a non-resident enterprise, a PRC enterprise income taxat 10% would apply, subject to available preferential
tax treatment under applicable tax treaties or similar arrangements, and the party who is obligated to make the transfer payments has the withholding obligation. Pursuant to Bulletin 37, the
withholding party shall declare and pay the withheld taxto the competent tax authority in the place where such withholding party is located within seven days fromthe date of occurrence of the
withholding obligation. Both Bulletin 37 and Bulletin 7 do not apply to transactions of sale of shares by investors through a public stock exchange where such shares were acquired froma
transaction through a public stock exchange. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Doing Business in China—We and our existing shareholders face uncertainties with respect to indirect
transfers of equity interests in PRC resident enterprises or other assets attributed to a Chinese establishment of a non-Chinese company, or immovable properties located in China owned by non-
Chinese companies.”

Value-Added Tax

Pursuant to the Interim Regulation of the PRC on Value Added Tax, which was promulgated by the State Council on December 13, 1993 and was latest amended on November 19, 2017, and the
Rules for the Implementation of the Interim Regulation of the PRC on Value Added Tax, which was promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC on December 25, 1993 and was latest
amended on October 28, 2011, entities and individuals engaging in selling goods, providing processing, repairing or replacement services or importing goods within the territory of the PRC are
taxpayers of the VAT. Unless provided otherwise, the rate of the VAT shall be 17%.

Pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on Adjusting Value-added Tax Rates, which was promulgated on April 4, 2018 and became effective on
May 1, 2018, the taxrates of 17% and 11% applicable to any taxpayer’s VAT taxable sale or import of goods shall be adjusted to 16% and 10%, respectively.

Pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the General Administration of Customs of the PRC on Relevant Policies for Deepening the Value-

Added Tax Reform, which was promulgated on March 20, 2019 and became effective on April 1, 2019, the taxrate of 16% applicable to the VAT taxable sale or import of goods by a general VAT
taxpayer shall be adjusted to 13%, and the taxrate of 10% applicable thereto shall be adjusted to 9%.
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MANAGEMENT
Directors and Executive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our directors and executive officers.

NAME AGE POSITION

Yanyue Zhang 44 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Xiaoqin Tan 43 Chief Financial Officer

Yingpin Chen 39 Chief Marketing Officer

Jiahui Shan 43 Director and Chief Culture Officer

Weijun Huang* 45 Director

Jengren Michael Hwang* 61 Independent Director

Chester Chong* 63 Independent Director

Xiao Zhao* 52 Independent Director

* We intend to appoint Jengren Michael Hwang, Chester Chong and Xiao Zhao as our independent directors, effective upon the SEC’s declaration of effectiveness of our registration statement
on Form F-1, of which this prospectus is a part. Weijun Huang intends to resign as a director upon the appointment of the above three independent directors.

Yanyue Zhang. Mr. Zhang has served as a member of our board of directors since our inception in January 2019 and has been our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since August 2019. Mr.
Zhang is the founder of our company and founded Lohas Agricultural in 2013. In 2003, he established Lohas Mobile IoT Trading Platformto promote the concept of Lohas and advocated Lohas
consumption and Lohas culture. He was previously a network engineer and a deputy manager in the network department at Shenzhen Branch of China Mobile Communications Group Co., Ltd. In
March 2014, Mr. Zhang was named an “Asian Figure” and in 2015, he was named as the “Leading figure in the Asia-Pacific Internet industry”. In 2018, he was named as “The 16th Shenzhen
Enterprise Innovation Record - Leading Role in Independent Innovation”. Mr. Zhang has a Bachelor’s degree in mobile communication from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications.
In July 2019, he was awarded an honorary doctor of humanities by Anaheim University.

Xiaogqin Tan. Ms. Tan has been our Chief Financial Officer since August 2019. Ms. Tan has over 10 years of experience in international finance, equity investment, corporate governance and
operations. From May 2016 to June 2018, Ms. Tan was the general manager assistant and chief investment officer of Tsinghua Tsingda Innovation Investment Fund, where she was engaged in
fund establishment and equity investment. From March 2015 to May 2016, she worked for Standard Chartered Bank (Shenzhen). From March 2012 to March 2015, she was vice president of
market management in the United States Office of Shenzhen INVT Electric. From October 2007 to February 2012, she was an accountant of AP/AR at Woodgreen Community Services in Toronto,
Canada, and from September 2000 to October 2002, she worked at Agricultural Bank of China, Shenzhen Branch. Ms. Tan has degrees in accounting from Shenzhen University and Centennial
College (Canada) and an MBA from Royal Roads University (Canada).

Yingpin Chen. Ms. Chen has been our Chief Marketing Officer since August 2019 and has served as the Chief Marketing Officer of Lohas Agricultural since October 2015. Ms. Chen has over 15
years of product development and marketing experience. From March 2015 to October 2015, she was the manager of the product research and development department at SMI Holdings Group
Limited - Shenzhen Xingmei Joint Communication Co., Ltd., where she was responsible for the planning, model selection, designing, and procurement of mobile phones and terminal equipment.
From July 2010 to March 2015, she was the manager of the service management department at Yulong Computer Communication Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., where she was responsible for
the service quality management of the national outlets. From February 2003 to July 2010, she was the product manager at Shenzhen Tianyin Technology Development Co., Ltd. After graduating
with a business administration diploma fromthe junior college of Open University of China in 2017, she is now majoring in Business Administration for a bachelor’s degree at the same university.
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Jiahui Shan. Ms. Shan has been our director and Chief Culture Officer since August 2019 and has been Chief Culture Officer of Shenzhen Lohas since November 2013. Ms. Shan has over 15
years of management experience. From March 2013 to October 2013, she October 2015, she was the Deputy General Manager of Haina Chuanqiong Culture Communication Co., Ltd. in Shenzhen,
China. From September 2012 to February 2013, Ms. Shan was Board Secretary of Guangdong Longyuan Chuangjia Asset Management Co., Ltd. From December 2010 to August 2012, she acted
as Deputy General Manager of Shenzhen Jiahongtfa Electronics Co., Ltd. Ms. Shan was Duputy General Manager of Shenzhen Yu Kaicheng Harware Co., Ltd. from December 2004 to November
2010. Mr. Shan holds a bachelor’s degree in marketing from Hubei University of Economics.
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Weijun Huang. Ms. Huang has been our director since our inception in January 2019. Ms. Huang has over 15 years of management experience. From January 2014 to September 2015, she was
the General Manager of Shenzhen Centennial Health Investment Co., Ltd. From October 2015 to June 2019, she was the Head of Finance of Lohas Supply Chain. Since June 2019, she is the Head
of Finance of Shenzhen Lohas. Ms. Huang graduated from Guilin University of Aerospace Technology in 1996 and holds an associate’s degree in accounting.

Jengren Michael Hwang. Mr. Hwang has agreed to be appointed to our board of directors effective upon the SEC’s declaration of effectiveness of our registration statement on FormF-1, of
which this prospectus is a part. Mr. Hwang has over 20 years of experience in accounting and finance. Since August 2017, Mr. Hwang has been serving as a partner of Hwang & Associates CPA
LLC, an accounting firm. Prior to that, he was the chief financial officer of Continental Motors, Inc. from October 2016 to July 2017. From June 2014 to October 2016, he was the chief financial
officer of the U.S. branch of the steel tube department of Russian Union Metallurgical Group, a steel manufacturer. Prior to that, Mr. Hwang served as the chief financial officer of several
companies, including the U.S. branch of the large diesel engine and industrial compressor department of Vlkswagen Group, the international department of Baker Energy Co., Ltd., and the video
picture business group of Netherlands-based Philips in the Asia-Pacific region. He was also the manager of the heavy-duty fork truck department of Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. and
the accounting department of MHI’s American branch. Mr. Hwang has a bachelor’s degree in public health from China Medical University, a master’s degree in accounting from the University of
Houston, and is a certified public accountant in Texas.

Chester Chong. Mr. Chong has agreed to be appointed to our board of directors effective upon the SEC’s declaration of effectiveness of our registration statement on Form F-1, of which this
prospectus is a part. Mr. Chong is the Chairman of the Chinese Chamber of Commerce, and has a history with the Chamber dating back to July 1988, when he first joined as a board member. Over
the past 30 years, he has held positions with the chamber as board member (July 1988 -June 1990), vice president (July 1990-June 2002), secretary general (September 2016-December 2016),
President (January 2007-June 2017) and Board Chairman (July 2017-Present). He has had a long and successful career across a diverse set of industries, including roles as chairman of American
Magazines & Books Inc. and chairman of Superspeed Transportation Group. He was awarded the Outstanding Business Achievement Award by International Lions Club (December 1991),
recognized as Honorary California Goodwill Ambassador by the California Secretary of State (June 1991) and received both the prestigious Meritorious Service Award and Exemplary Service
Award presented by Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department (October 2005 ). He has a diploma of International Cultural Exchange issued by Peking University, China, in December 2015,
Honorary Doctoral Degree of Human Letters issued by the University for Humanistic Studies, San Diego, in July 1988, an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Business Administration, issued by
Armstrong University California in June 1996 and an Honorary Doctoral Degree of Human Letters issued by Anaheim University August 2017.

Xiao Zhao. Mr. Zhao has agreed to be appointed to our board of directors effective upon the SEC’s declaration of effectiveness of our registration statement on Form F-1, of which this
prospectus is a part. Since December 2007, Mr. Zhao has been the chairman and chief economist at Cypress Leadership Institute, a company that provides management consulting services. Since
May 2005, he served as a professor and doctoral supervisor of school of economics and management at the University of Science and Technology Beijing. From September 2002 to January 2005,
he served as the minister of macro-strategic department of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council. From March 1998 to September 2002, he
worked in the economic-policy coordination department of the State Economic and Trade Commission. Mr. Zhao has a bachelor’s degree in economics from Shandong University, a master’s
degree in economics from Nankai University, and a PhD in economics from Peking University. He has acted as a visiting scholar at Harvard University, Gordon-Conwell Theological Seminary,
Hong Kong Baptist University, and many other universities. He has published many articles on economics. He is regarded as one of the most active and influential young economists in mainland
China, and was awarded ““Youth Leader of Our Age” by Southern People Weekly.

Except that Ms. Weijun Huang is wife of Mr. Yanyue Zhang, no other family relationship exists between any of our directors and executive officers. There are no arrangements or understandings
with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others pursuant to which any person referred to above was selected as a director or member of senior management.

Board of Directors

The [Nasdaq/NYSE] listing rules generally require that a majority of an issuer’s board of directors must consist of independent directors. Our board of directors will consist of five directors,
including three independent directors, upon the SEC’s declaration of effectiveness of our registration statement on Form F-1 to which this prospectus forms a part.
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A director is not required to hold any shares in our company to qualify to serve as a director. Our board of directors may exercise all the powers of our company to borrow money, mortgage or
charge its undertaking, property and uncalled capital, and to issue debentures, bonds and other securities whenever money is borrowed or as security for any debt, liability or obligation of the
company or of any third-party.

Board Committees

Prior to the completion of this offering, we intend to establish an audit committee, a compensation committee and a nominating and corporate governance committee of our board of directors. We
intend to adopt a charter for each of the three committees prior to the completion of this offering. Each committee’s members and functions are described below.

Audit Committee
Our audit committee will consist of three independent directors, namely Jengren Michael Hwang, Chester Chong and Xiao Zhao, and will be chaired by Jengren Michael Hwang. At the
appointment of our independent directors, our board of directors will determine that each of the directors satisfies the “independence” requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act and
[Section 303A ofthe Corporate Governance Rules of the New York Stock Exchange/Rule5605(c)(2) of the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules]. We have determined that [ | qualifies as an “audit committee
financial expert.” The audit committee will oversee our accounting and financial reporting processes and the audits of the financial statements of our company. The audit committee will be
responsible for, among other things:

e appointing the independent auditors and pre-approving all auditing and non-auditing services permitted to be performed by the independent auditors;

o reviewing with the independent auditors any audit problems or difficulties and management’s response;

e discussing the annual audited financial statements with management and the independent auditors;

e reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of our accounting and internal control policies and procedures and any steps taken to monitor and control major financial risk exposures;

e reviewing and approving all proposed related party transactions;

& meeting separately and periodically with management and the independent auditors; and

e monitoring compliance with our code of business conduct and ethics, including reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of our procedures to ensure proper compliance.
Compensation Committee
Our compensation committee will consist of three independent directors, namely Jengren Michael Hwang, Chester Chong and Xiao Zhao, and will be chaired by Chester Chung. At the
appointment of our independent directors, our board of directors will determine that each of the directors satisfies the “independence” requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act and
[Section 303A of the Corporate Governance Rules of the New York Stock Exchange/Rule 5605(d)(2) of the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules]. The compensation committee will assist the board in
reviewing and approving the compensation structure, including all forms of compensation, relating to our directors and executive officers. Our chief executive officer may not be present at any

committee meeting during which his compensation is deliberated. The compensation committee will be responsible for, among other things:

e reviewing and approving, or recommending to the board for its approval, the compensation for our chief executive officer and other executive officers;
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e reviewing and recommending to the board for determination with respect to the compensation of our non-employee directors;
e reviewing periodically and approving any incentive compensation or equity plans, programs or similar arrangements; and

e selecting compensation consultant, legal counsel or other adviser only after taking into consideration all factors relevant to that person’s independence from management.

87

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 165/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Our nominating and corporate governance committee will consist of three directors, namely Jengren Michael Hwang, Chester Chong and Xiao Zhao, and will be chaired by Xiao Zhao. At the
appointment of our independent directors, our board of directors will determine that each of the directors satisfies the “independence” requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act and
[Section 303A of the Corporate Governance Rules of the New York Stock Exchange/Rule5605 of the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules]. The nominating and corporate governance committee will assist
the board of directors in selecting individuals qualified to become our directors and in determining the composition of the board and its committees. The nominating and corporate governance
committee will be responsible for, among other things:

e selecting and recommending to the board nominees for election by the shareholders or appointment by the board;
e reviewing annually with the board the current composition of the board with regards to characteristics such as independence, knowledge, skills, experience and diversity;
e making recommendations on the frequency and structure of board meetings and monitoring the functioning of the committees of the board; and

e advising the board periodically with regards to significant developments in the law and practice of corporate govermnance as well as our compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
and making recommendations to the board on all matters of corporate governance and on any remedial action to be taken.

Duties of Directors

Under Cayman Islands law, our directors have a fiduciary duty to our company to act honestly, in good faith and with a view to our best interests. Our directors also owe to our company a duty
to act with skill and care. It was previously considered that a director need not exhibit in the performance of his duties a greater degree of skill than may reasonably be expected froma person of
his knowledge and experience. However, English and Commonwealth courts have moved towards an objective standard with regard to the required skill and care and these authorities are likely to
be followed in the Cayman Islands. In fulfilling their duty of care to us, our directors must ensure compliance with our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, as amended
and restated fromtime to time. Our company has the right to seek damages if a duty owed by our directors is breached. In limited exceptional circumstances, a shareholder may have the right to
seek damages in our name if a duty owed by our directors is breached. You should refer to “Description of Share Capital—Differences in Corporate Law” for additional information on our
standard of corporate governance under Cayman Islands law.

A director who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in a contract or proposed contract with our company is required to declare the nature of his interest at a meeting of our
directors. A director may vote in respect of any contract, proposed contract, or arrangement notwithstanding that he may be interested therein, and if he does so his vote shall be counted and he
may be counted in the quorumat any meeting of our directors at which any such contract or proposed contract or arrangement is considered. Our board of directors may exercise all the powers
of our company to borrow money, mortgage or charge its undertaking, property and uncalled capital, and to issue debentures, bonds and other securities whenever money is borrowed or as
security for any debt, liability or obligation of the company or of any third party.
The functions and powers of our board of directors include, among others:

e convening shareholders’ annual general meetings and reporting its work to shareholders at such meetings;

e declaring dividends and distributions;

e appointing officers and determining the term of office of officers;
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e exercising the borrowing powers of our company and mortgaging the property of our company; and

e approving the transfer of shares of our company, including the registering of such shares in our share register.
Terms of Directors and Officers
Our officers are elected by and serve at the discretion of our board of directors. Our directors are not subject to a term of office and hold office until such time as they are removed from office by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders or until the expiration of his termor his successor has been elected and qualified. A director will be removed from office automatically if, among other
thing, the director (i) dies; (i) becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his creditors generally; (iii) is found to be or becomes of unsound mind; (iv) resigns his office by

notice in writing to our company; (v) is prohibited by law frombeing a director; and (vi) is removed fromthe office pursuant to any other provisions of our amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association.

88

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 167/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

Employment and Indemnification Agreements

We intend to enter into an employment agreement with each of our executive officers. Our executive officers will be employed for a specified time period, which will be automatically extended
unless either we or the executive officers give prior notice to terminate such employment. We may terminate the employment for cause, at any time, without notice or remuneration, for certain acts
of the executive officer, including but not limited to the commitments of any serious or persistent breach or non-observance of the terms and conditions of the employment, conviction of a
criminal offense other than one which in the opinion of the board does not affect the executive’s position, willful, disobedience of a lawful and reasonable order, misconducts being inconsistent
with the due and faithful discharge of the executive officer’s material duties, fraud or dishonesty, or habitual neglect of his or her duties. An executive officer may terminate his or her employment
at any time with not less than one-month prior written notice.

Each executive officer has agreed to hold, both during and after the employment agreement expires or is earlier terminated, in strict confidence and not to use or disclose to any person,
corporation or other entity without written consent, any confidential information. Each executive officer has also agreed to assign to our company all his or her inventions, improvements,
designs, original works of authorship, formulas, processes, compositions of matter, computer software programs, databases, mask works, concepts and trade secrets which the executive officer
may solely or jointly conceive or develop or reduce to practice, or cause to be conceived or developed or reduced to practice, during the period of the executive officer’s employment with us that
are either related to the scope of the employment or make use of the resources of the company. In addition, all executive officers have agreed to be bound by non-competition and non-
solicitation restrictions set forth in their agreements. Specifically, each executive officer has agreed to devote all his or her working time and attention to our business and use best efforts to
develop our business and interests. Moreover, each executive officer has agreed not to, for a certain period following termination of his or her employment or expiration of the employment
agreement: (i) carry on or be engaged, concerned or interested directly or indirectly whether as shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise carry on any business in direct
competition with us, (ii) solicit or entice away any of our user, client, representative or agent, or (iii) employ, solicit or entice away or attempt to employ, solicit or entice away any of our officer,
manager, consultant or employee.

In addition, each executive officer has agreed to be bound by non-competition and non-solicitation restrictions during the termof his or her employment and typically for two years following the
last date of employment. Specifically, each executive officer has agreed not to (i) approach our suppliers, clients, users or contacts or other persons or entities introduced to the executive officer
in his or her capacity as a representative of us for the purpose of doing business with such persons or entities that will harm our business relationships with these persons or entities; (ii) assume
employment with or provide services to any of our competitors, or engage, whether as principal, partner, licensor or otherwise, any of our competitors, without our express consent; or (iii) seek
directly or indirectly, to solicit the services of any of our employees who is employed by us on or after the date of the executive officer’s termination, or in the year preceding such termination,
without our express consent.

We expect to enter into indemnification agreements with our directors and executive officers, pursuant to which we will agree to indemnify our directors and executive officers against certain
liabilities and expenses incurred by such persons in connection with claims made by reason of their being such a director or officer.

Compensation of Directors and Officers

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the aggregate cash compensation and benefits that we paid to our executive officers was approximately $0.16 million, and we did not pay any
compensation to our non-executive directors. None of our directors or executive officers received any equity awards, including, options, restricted shares or other equity incentives in the year
ended September 30, 2018. We have not set aside or accrued any amount to provide pension, retirement or other similar benefits to our executive officers and directors. Lohas WFOE, Lohas
Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain are required by law to make contributions equal to certain percentages of each employee’s salary for his or her pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and other statutory benefits and a housing provident fund.
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The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of each class of our ordinary shares as of [ ], 2019 by (i) each of our directors and executive officers; (ii) all of
our directors and executive officers as a group; and (iii) each person known to us to own beneficially more than 5% of each class of our ordinary shares.

Directors and Executive Officers:

Yanyue Zhang, Chairman and CcE0®)
Xiaoqin Tan, CFO

Yingpin Chen, CMO

Jiahui Shan, Director and CCO
Weijun Huang, Director

Jengren Michael Hwang, Director
Chester Chong, Director

Xiao Zhao, Director

All directors and executive officers as a group

Other Principal Shareholders:
Lohas World (Group) Co., Limited(5)

JW Investment Management Limited (6)

*  Less than 1%.

Beneficial Owners hip(l)
Percent of Percent of
Percent of Percent of Total Total
Class A Class B Class A Class B Voting Shares Voting Shares
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Prior to After
Shares Shares Shares® Shares®) Offering @ Oifering(4)
31,000,000 19,000,000 86.73% 100% 96.37%
O 0 3k * *
O O * * *
O O 3k * *
O O * * *
0 0 * * *
0 0 * * *
0 0 * * *
31,000,000 19,000,000 86.73% 100% 96.37%
31,000,000 19,000,000 86.73% 100.00% 96.37%
4,379,564 0 12.25% * 3.35%

(1) Beneficial Ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Except as noted below, each of the
beneficial owners listed above has direct ownership of and sole voting power and investment power with respect to the ordinary shares. For each beneficial owner above, any options

exercisable within 60 days have been included in the denominator.

(2) Based on 35,744,546 Class A ordinary shares issued and outstanding as of[ ], 2019. Holders of Class A ordinary shares are entitled to one (1) vote per share.

(3) Based on 19,000,000 Class B ordinary shares issued and outstanding as of[ ], 2019. Holders of Class B ordinary shares are entitled to five (5) votes per share. Each Class B ordinary share is
convertible into one (1) Class A ordinary share at any time at the option of the holder.

(4) Percentage of Total Voting Shares represents total ownership with respect to all Class A ordinary shares and Class B ordinary shares, which vote together as a single class on all matters.
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(5) Yanyue Zhang and his wife Weijun Huang in aggregate own approximately 81.74% of Shenzhen Lohas, which in turn wholly owns Lohas World (Group) Co., Limited. Mr. Zhang is deemed to

have sole voting and dispositive powers with respect to the securities held by Lohas World (Group) Co., Limited. Mr. Zhang disclaims beneficial ownership of such securities except to the
extent of his pecuniary in such securities, if any.

(6) Rongjun Hu is the Director of JW Investment Management Limited and has voting and dispositive power over the securities held by it. Mr. Hu disclaims beneficial ownership of such
securities except to the extent of his pecuniary in such securities, if any.

None of our outstanding ordinary shares are held in the United States. Except for the Class B ordinary shares held by Lohas World (Group) Co., none of our major shareholders have different
voting rights from other shareholders. We are not aware of any arrangement that may, at a subsequent date, result in a change of control of our company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Contractual Arrangements

We have entered into contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders, including Shenzhen Lohas Holding Co. Ltd. Through Lohas World (Group) Co., Ltd, Shenzhen
Lohas indirectly owns approximately 96.37% of our issued and outstanding ordinary shares. Our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, Yanyue Zhang, owns approximately 81.74% of Shenzhen
Lohas. Through these arrangements, we exercise effective control over the operations of Lohas Agricultural and receive economic benefits of Lohas Agricultural. See “Corporate History and
Structure—Our Corporate Structure” for a summary of the contractual arrangements and “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure” for certain risks related to the contractual
arrangements.

Due from Related Parties
As of March 31, 2019, the balance due from Shenzhen Lohas to us was approximately $1.65 million.

As of March 31, 2019, there was a balance of approximately $0.26 million due from Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd., an entity controlled by Mr. Yanyue Zhang. Such
balance represents our advance payment made for Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd.’s services in connection with our purchase of smart micro marts units as described
below.

Due to Related Parties

As of March 31, 2019, there was a balance of approximately $3.30 million due to Shenzhen Lohas, which includes certain royalty fee payable to Shenzhen Lohas and loans that Lohas Supply
Chain borrowed from Shenzhen Lohas. The balance has not been paid off as of the date of this prospectus.

Guarantees by Related Parties

On November 20, 2018 and January 25, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain and Haier Factoring executed two factoring agreements (collectively as the “Factoring Agreement I”’), pursuant to which, Lohas
Supply Chain received a loan in an aggregate amount of RMB47.22 million (approximately $7.01 million) by factoring the receivables due from customers of RMB59.04 million (approximately $8.77
million), for which Haier Factoring has the right of recourse to Lohas Supply Chain. According to the Factoring Agreement I, from December 2018 through November 2019, Lohas Supply Chain is
obliged to pay factoring financing fees to Haier Factoring each month and two repayments of RMB32.22 million (approximately $4.78 million) and RMBI15 million (approximately $2.23 million) are
due on August 30, 2019 and November 16, 2019, respectively.

On August 29, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain and Haier Factoring executed another factoring agreement (the “Factoring Agreement II”’), under which Lohas Supply Chain agreed to pay off
RMB32.22 million (approximately $4.78 million) due on August 30, 2019 in exchange for a new factoring financing at the same amount. As required under Factoring Agreement II, Lohas Supply
Chain is obliged to pay factoring financing fees to Haier Factoring each month and three repayments of RMB15 million (approximately $2.23 million), RMB15 million (approximately $2.18 million)
and RMB17.22 million (approximately $2.56 million) are due on October 30, 2019, November 16, 2019 and December 16, 2019, respectively. On August 30, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain paid off
RMB32.22 million (approximately $4.78 million) and received the new factoring financing at the same amount according to the Factoring Agreement II.

On October 30, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain paid off RMB 5 million (approximately $0.74 million). On November 5, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain and Haier Factoring executed the third factoring
agreement (the “Factoring Agreement III”’), under which Lohas Supply Chain agreed to pay off RMB10 million (approximately $1.49 million) in exchange for a new factoring financing of the same
amount. On November 6, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain paid off RMB 10 million (approximately $1.49 million) and received the new factoring financing at the same amount according to the Factoring
Agreement III. On November 13, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain and Haier Factoring executed the fourth factoring agreement (the “Factoring Agreement IV”’), under which Lohas Supply Chain agreed
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to pay off RMBI15 million (approximately $2.23 million) in exchange for a new factoring financing of the same amount. On November 14, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain paid off RMB 15 million
(approximately $2.23 million) and received the new factoring financing at the same amount according to the Factoring Agreement IV. As a result, the maturity dates of the remaining balances of
RMB 17.22 million (approximately $2.56 million), RMBS million (approximately $0.74 million), RMBS5 million (approximately $0.74 million), and RMBI15 million (approximately $2.23 million) have been
extended to December 16, 2019, January 16, 2020, February 21, 2020 and March 16, 2020, respectively.

91

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 172/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

Our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Yanyue Zhang, Mr. Zhang’s wife, Mrs. Weijun Huang and Shenzhen Lohas, a shareholder of Lohas Agricultural have provided guarantee for Lohas
Supply Chain’s repayment obligations under the above factoring agreements.

On December 12, 2018, Shenzhen Lohas entered into a working capital loan agreement with SPDB, providing for loans up to RMB 22 million (approximately $3.23 million) maturing in 12 months
starting on the date of first draw. Each of Mr. Yanyue Zhang, Ms. Weijun Huang, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain has provided guarantee with joint liability to SPDB for Shenzhen
Lohas’s repayment obligations. The guarantee is valid until two years after the due date of performance of repayment obligations by Shenzhen Lohas. In addition, each of Mr. Yanyue Zhang,
Ms. Weijun Huang, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain provided counter-guaranty to Shenzhen City Small and Medium Enterprise Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., which provided
guarantee to SPDB for the loan.

Smart Micro Marts Transfer Agreement

On October 8§, 2018, in order to develop our smart micro marts business, Lohas Agricultural acquired 300 units of smart micro marts from Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co.,
Ltd., a company controlled by Mr. Yanyue Zhang, for RMB 0.78 million (approximately $0.11 million). The units were delivered to Guangzhou and Shenzhen where we currently have the smart
micro marts business.

Service Agreement

On January 1, 2019, Shenzhen Lohas and Lohas Supply Chain entered into a service agreement, under which for the period from January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, Shenzhen Lohas
granted Lohas Supply Chain a right to use all of intellectual property rights of Shenzhen Lohas. In addition, Shenzhen Lohas agreed to provide services including brand management, marketing
activity planning and enforcement, and support for brand promotion. In exchange, Lohas Supply Chain agreed to pay Shenzhen Lohas a monthly service fee in an amount of 0.50% of its monthly
revenues (excluding taxes). On August 17, 2019, the parties entered into a supplement to the service agreement, under which Shenzhen Lohas and Lohas Supply Chain agreed that the service
agreement should not apply to certain trademarks owned by Shenzhen Lohas that are subject to the trademark licensing agreement between Shenzhen Lohas and Lohas Agricultural dated on
August 17, 2019.

Trademark Licensing Agreement

On August 17, 2019, Lohas Agricultural entered into a trademark licensing agreement with Shenzhen Lohas, pursuant to which Shenzhen Lohas granted an exclusive license to Lohas
Agricultural to use its six trademarks in China during their respective valid periods. Lohas Agricultural is required to use these trademarks within their respective scope of services as authorized
by the trademark authority in China.

Employment and Indemnification Agreements

See “Management—Employment and Indemnification Agreements.”
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DESCRIPTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

We are a Cayman Islands exempted company with limited liability and our affairs are governed by our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association, and the Companies Law
(2018 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, which is referred to as the Companies Law below.

As of'the date of this prospectus, our authorized share capital is 500,000,000 ordinary shares, with a par value of $0.0001 each, of which 481,000,000 have been designated as Class A ordinary
shares and 19,000,000 have been designated as Class B ordinary shares. For the avoidance of doubt, all references to “ordinary shares” below shall be deemed to refer collectively to our Class A
ordinary shares and Class B ordinary shares.

As ofthe date of this prospectus, there are 35,744,546 Class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary shares issued and outstanding. Upon the closing of this offering, we will have
issued and outstanding [ ] Class A ordinary shares (or[ ]Class A ordinary shares if the underwriter exercises the over-allotment option in full) and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary shares. All of

our ordinary shares issued and outstanding prior to and after the completion of the offering are and will be fully paid.

The following are summaries of material provisions of our amended and restated memorandumand articles of association and the Companies Law insofar as they relate to the material terms of our
ordinary shares.

Ordinary Shares
General

All of our outstanding ordinary shares are fully paid and non-assessable. Certificates representing the ordinary shares are issued in registered form. Our shareholders who are non-residents of
the Cayman Islands may freely hold and vote their ordinary shares.

Dividends

The holders of our ordinary shares are entitled to such dividends as may be declared by our board of directors subject to the Companies Law and to the amended and restated articles of
association.

Voting Rights

Holders of Class A ordinary shares and Class B ordinary shares vote together as one class on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders. Each Class A ordinary share is entitled to one (1)
vote on all matters upon which the ordinary shares are entitled to vote and each Class B ordinary share is entitled to five (5) votes on all matters upon which the ordinary shares are entitled to
vote.

Voting at any meeting of shareholders is by show of hands unless a poll is demanded. A poll may be demanded by the chairman of such meeting or any one shareholder present in person or by
proxy.
An ordinary resolution to be passed by the shareholders requires the affirmative vote of a simple majority of votes attached to the ordinary shares cast in a general meeting, while a special

resolution requires the affirmative vote of no less than two-thirds of votes cast attached to the ordinary shares. A special resolution will be required for important matters such as a change of
name or making changes to our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association.
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Transfer of Ordinary Shares

Subject to the restrictions contained in our amended and restated articles of association, as applicable, any of our shareholders may transfer all or any of his or her ordinary shares by an
instrument of transfer in the usual or common form or any other formapproved by our board of directors; provided that, upon any sale, transfer, assignment or disposition of Class B ordinary
shares by a holder thereof to any person or entity which is not an affiliate of such holder, such Class B ordinary shares validly transferred to the new holder shall be automatically and

immediately converted into an equal number of Class A ordinary shares.
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Our board of directors may, in its absolute discretion, decline to register any transfer of any ordinary share. Our board of directors may also decline to register any transfer of any ordinary share
unless:

e the instrument of transfer is lodged with us, accompanied by the certificate for the ordinary shares to which it relates and such other evidence as our board of directors may reasonably
require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer;

e the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of ordinary shares;
e the instrument of transfer is properly stamped, if required;
e the ordinary shares transferred are fully paid and free of any lien in favor ofus; and

e any fee related to the transfer has been paid to us; and

the transfer is not to more than four joint holders.

If our directors refuse to register a transfer they shall, within three months after the date on which the instrument of transfer was lodged, send to each of the transferor and the transferee notice
of such refusal.

Conversion

Each Class B ordinary share is convertible at the option of the holder, at any time and without the payment of any additional sum, into one (1) fully paid Class A ordinary share. The Class A
ordinary shares are not convertible.

Liquidation

On a return of capital on winding up or otherwise (other than on conversion, redemption or purchase of ordinary shares), assets available for distribution among the holders of ordinary shares
shall be distributed among the holders of the ordinary shares on a pro rata basis. If our assets available for distribution are insufficient to repay all of the paid-up capital, the assets will be
distributed so that the losses are borne by our shareholders proportionately.

Calls on Ordinary Shares and Forfeiture of Ordinary Shares

Our board of directors may from time to time make calls upon shareholders for any amounts unpaid on their ordinary shares. The ordinary shares that have been called upon and remain unpaid
are subject to forfeiture.

Redemption of Ordinary Shares

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and other applicable law, we may issue ordinary shares on terms that are subject to redemption, at our option or at the option of the holders, on
such terms and in such manner, including out of capital, as may be determined by the board of directors.
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Variations of Rights of Shares

If at any time, our share capital is divided into different classes of shares, all or any of the special rights attached to any class of shares may, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law, be
varied with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a general meeting of the holders of the shares of that class. Consequently, the rights of any class of shares cannot be detrimentally
altered without a majority of two-thirds of the vote of all of the shares in that class. The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not,
unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu with such existing class
of shares.

General Meetings of Shareholders
Shareholders’ meetings may be convened by a majority of our board of directors or our chairman. Advance notice of at least ten (10) clear days is required for the convening of our annual

general shareholders’ meeting and any other general meeting of our shareholders. A quorumrequired for a meeting of shareholders consists of one or more shareholders present or by proxy,
representing not less than one-third in nominal value of the total issued voting shares in our company.
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Inspection of Books and Records
Holders of our ordinary shares will have no general right under Cayman Islands law to inspect or obtain copies of our list of shareholders or our corporate records. However, we will in our
amended and restated articles of association provide our shareholders with the right to inspect our list of shareholders and to receive annual audited financial statements. See “Where You Can
Find Additional Information.”
Changes in Capital
We may from time to time by ordinary resolution:

e increase the share capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of such classes and amount, as the resolution shall prescribe;

e consolidate and divide all or any of our share capital into shares of a larger amount than our existing shares;

e sub-divide our existing shares, or any of theminto shares of a smaller amount; or

e cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amount of our share capital by the
amount of the shares so cancelled.

We may by special resolution reduce our share capital or any capital redemption reserve in any manner permitted by law.
Exempted Company
We are an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Companies Law in the Cayman Islands distinguishes between ordinary resident
companies and exempted companies. Any company that is registered in the Cayman Islands but conducts business mainly outside of the Cayman Islands may apply to be registered as an
exempted company. The requirements for an exempted company are essentially the same as for an ordinary company except for the exemptions and privileges listed below:

e an exempted company does not have to file an annual return of its shareholders with the Registrar of Companies;

e an exempted company’s register of members is not open to inspection;

e an exempted company does not have to hold an annual general meeting;

e an exempted company may issue no par value, negotiable or bearer shares;

o an exempted company may obtain an undertaking against the imposition of any future taxation (such undertakings are usually given for 20 years in the first instance);

e an exempted company may register by way of continuation in another jurisdiction and be deregistered in the Cayman Islands;

e an exempted company may register as a limited duration company; and
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e an exempted company may register as a segregated portfolio company.
“Limited liability”” means that the liability of each shareholder is limited to the amount unpaid by the shareholder on the shares of the company. Upon the closing of this offering, we will be
subject to reporting and other informational requirements of the Exchange Act, as applicable to foreign private issuers. We currently intend to comply with the Rules of the New York Stock
Exchange/ the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules] in lieu of following home country practice after the closing of this offering.
Differences in Corporate Law
The Companies Law is modeled after that of England and Wales but does not follow recent statutory enactments in England. In addition, the Companies Law differs from laws applicable to

United States corporations and their shareholders. Set forth below is a summary of the significant differences between the provisions of the Companies Law applicable to us and the laws
applicable to companies incorporated in the State of Delaware.
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Mergers and Similar Arrangements

A merger of two or more constituent companies under Cayman Islands law requires a plan of merger or consolidation to be approved by the directors of each constituent company and
authorization by a special resolution of the members of each constituent company.

A merger between a Cayman parent company and its Cayman subsidiary or subsidiaries does not require authorization by a resolution of shareholders. For this purpose, a subsidiary is a
company of which at least ninety percent (90%) of the issued shares entitled to vote are owned by the parent company.

The consent of each holder of a fixed or floating security interest over a constituent company is required unless this requirement is waived by a court in the Cayman Islands.

Save in certain circumstances, a dissentient shareholder of a Cayman constituent company is entitled to payment of the fair value of his shares upon dissenting to a merger or consolidation. The
exercise of appraisal rights will preclude the exercise of any other rights save for the right to seck relief on the grounds that the merger or consolidation is void or unlawful.

In addition, there are statutory provisions that facilitate the reconstruction and amalgamation of companies, provided that the arrangement is approved by a majority in number of each class of
shareholders and creditors with whomthe arrangement is to be made, and who must, in addition, represent three-fourths in value of each such class of shareholders or creditors, as the case may
be, that are present and voting either in person or by proxy at a meeting, or meetings, convened for that purpose. The convening of the meetings and subsequently the arrangement must be
sanctioned by the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands. While a dissenting shareholder has the right to express to the court the view that the transaction ought not to be approved, the court can
be expected to approve the arrangement if it determines that:

e the statutory provisions as to the required majority vote have been met;

o the shareholders have been fairly represented at the meeting in question and the statutory majority are acting bona fide without coercion of the minority to promote interests adverse to
those of the class;

e the arrangement is such that may be reasonably approved by an intelligent and honest man of that class acting in respect of his interest; and

e the arrangement is not one that would more properly be sanctioned under some other provision of the Companies Law.
When a takeover offer is made and accepted by holders of 90% of the shares within four months, the offeror may, within a two-month period commencing on the expiration of such four month
period, require the holders of the remaining shares to transfer such shares on the terms of the offer. An objection can be made to the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands but this is unlikely to

succeed in the case of an offer which has been so approved unless there is evidence of fraud, bad faith or collusion.

If an arrangement and reconstruction is thus approved, the dissenting shareholder would have no rights comparable to appraisal rights, which would otherwise ordinarily be available to
dissenting shareholders of Delaware corporations, providing rights to receive payment in cash for the judicially determined value of the shares.

Shareholders’ Suits

In principle, we will normally be the proper plaintiff and as a general rule a derivative action may not be brought by a minority shareholder. However, based on English authorities, which would in
all likelihood be of persuasive authority in the Cayman Islands, there are exceptions to the foregoing principle, including when:

® acompany acts or proposes to act illegally or ultra vires;,
https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 180/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

e the act complained of, although not ultra vires, could only be effected duly if authorized by more than a simple majority vote that has not been obtained; and

e those who control the company are perpetrating a “fraud on the minority.”
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Indemnification of Directors and Executive Officers and Limitation of Liability

Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to which a company’s articles of association may provide for indemnification of officers and directors, except to the extent any such provision may
be held by the Cayman Islands courts to be contrary to public policy, such as to provide indemnification against civil fraud or the consequences of committing a crime. Our amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association permit indemnification of officers and directors for losses, damages, costs and expenses incurred in their capacities as such unless such losses or
damages arise from dishonesty or fraud which may attach to such directors or officers. This standard of conduct is generally the same as permitted under Delaware corporate law for a Delaware
corporation. In addition, we intend to enter into indemnification agreements with our directors and senior executive officers that will provide such persons with additional indemnification beyond
that provided in our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers or persons controlling us under the foregoing provisions, we have been
informed that, in the opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

Anti-Takeover Provisions in the Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association

Some provisions of our amended and restated memorandumand articles of association may discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company or management that shareholders
may consider favorable, including provisions that authorize our board of directors to issue preference shares in one or more series and to designate the price, rights, preferences, privileges and
restrictions of such preference shares without any further vote or action by our shareholders.

However, under Cayman Islands law, our directors may only exercise the rights and powers granted to themunder our amended and restated memorandumand articles of association, as amended
and restated from time to time, for what they believe in good faith to be in the best interests of our company.

Directors’ Fiduciary Duties

Under Delaware corporate law, a director of a Delaware corporation has a fiduciary duty to the corporation and its shareholders. This duty has two components: the duty of care and the duty of
loyalty. The duty of care requires that a director act in good faith, with the care that an ordinarily prudent person would exercise under similar circumstances. Under this duty, a director must
inform himself of, and disclose to shareholders, all material information reasonably available regarding a significant transaction. The duty of loyalty requires that a director act in a manner he or
she reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the corporation. He or she must not use his or her corporate position for personal gain or advantage. This duty prohibits self-dealing by a
director and mandates that the best interest of the corporation and its shareholders take precedence over any interest possessed by a director, officer or controlling shareholder and not shared
by the shareholders generally. In general, actions of a director are presumed to have been made on an informed basis, in good faith and in the honest belief that the action taken was in the best
interests of the corporation. However, this presumption may be rebutted by evidence of a breach of one of the fiduciary duties. Should such evidence be presented concerning a transaction by a
director, a director must prove the procedural fairness of the transaction, and that the transaction was of fair value to the corporation.

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, a director of a Cayman Islands company is in the position of a fiduciary with respect to the company and therefore it is considered that he owes the following
duties to the company - a duty to act bona fide in the best interests of the company, a duty not to make a profit based on his or her position as director (unless the company permits himto do so)
and a duty not to put himself'in a position where the interests of the company conflict with his or her personal interest or his or her duty to a third party. A director of a Cayman Islands company
owes to the company a duty to act with skill and care. It was previously considered that a director need not exhibit in the performance of his or her duties a greater degree of skill than may
reasonably be expected froma person of his or her knowledge and experience. However, English and Commonwealth courts have moved towards an objective standard with regard to the
required skill and care and these authorities are likely to be followed in the Cayman Islands.

Shareholder Action by Written Consent
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Under the Delaware corporate law, a corporation may eliminate the right of shareholders to act by written consent by amendment to its certificate of incorporation. Cayman Islands law and our
amended and restated articles of association provide that shareholders may approve corporate matters by way of a unanimous written resolution signed by or on behalf of each shareholder who
would have been entitled to vote on such matter at a general meeting without a meeting being held.
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Shareholder Proposals

Under the Delaware corporate law, a shareholder has the right to put any proposal before the annual meeting of shareholders, provided it complies with the notice provisions in the governing
documents. A special meeting may be called by the board of directors or any other person authorized to do so in the governing documents, but shareholders may be precluded fromcalling
special meetings.

Neither Cayman Islands law nor our amended and restated articles of association allow our shareholders to requisition a shareholders’ meeting. As an exempted Cayman Islands company, we are
not obliged by law to call shareholders’ annual general meetings. However, our amended and restated articles of association require us to call such meetings every year.

Cumulative Voting

Under the Delaware corporate law, cumulative voting for elections of directors is not permitted unless the corporation’s certificate of incorporation specifically provides for it. Cumulative voting
potentially facilitates the representation of minority shareholders on a board of directors since it permits the minority sharecholder to cast all the votes to which the shareholder is entitled on a
single director, which increases the sharecholder’s voting power with respect to electing such director. As permitted under Cayman Islands law, our amended and restated articles of association
do not provide for cumulative voting. As a result, our shareholders are not afforded any less protections or rights on this issue than shareholders of a Delaware corporation.

Removal of Directors

Under the Delaware corporate law, a director of a corporation with a classified board may be removed only for cause with the approval of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote,
unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Under our amended and restated articles of association, directors may be removed by ordinary resolution of shareholders.

Transactions with Interested Shareholders

Delaware corporate law contains a business combination statute applicable to Delaware corporations whereby, unless the corporation has specifically elected not to be governed by such statute
by amendment to its certificate of incorporation, it is prohibited from engaging in certain business combinations with an “interested shareholder” for three years following the date that such
person becomes an interested shareholder. An interested shareholder generally is a person or a group who or which owns or owned 15% or more of the target’s outstanding voting stock within
the past three years. This has the effect of limiting the ability of a potential acquirer to make a two-tiered bid for the target in which all shareholders would not be treated equally. The statute does
not apply if, among other things, prior to the date on which such shareholder becomes an interested shareholder, the board of directors approves either the business combination or the
transaction which resulted in the person becoming an interested sharcholder. This encourages any potential acquirer of a Delaware corporation to negotiate the terms of any acquisition
transaction with the target’s board of directors.

Cayman Islands law has no comparable statute. As a result, we cannot avail ourselves of the types of protections afforded by the Delaware business combination statute. However, although
Cayman Islands law does not regulate transactions between a company and its significant shareholders, it does provide that such transactions must be entered into bona fide in the best
interests of the company and for a proper corporate purpose and not with the effect of constituting a fraud on the minority shareholders.

Dissolution; Winding Up
Under the Delaware corporate law, unless the board of directors approves the proposal to dissolve, dissolution must be approved by shareholders holding 100% of the total voting power of the
corporation. Only if the dissolution is initiated by the board of directors may it be approved by a simple majority of the corporation’s outstanding shares. Delaware law allows a Delaware

corporation to include in its certificate of incorporation a supermajority voting requirement in connection with dissolutions initiated by the board. Under Cayman Islands law, a company may be
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wound up by either an order of the courts of the Cayman Islands or by a special resolution of its members or, if the company is unable to pay its debts as they fall due, by an ordinary resolution
of'its members. The court has authority to order winding up in a number of specified circumstances including where it is, in the opinion of the court, just and equitable to do so.
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and our amended and restated articles of association, our company may be dissolved, liquidated or wound up by the vote of holders of two-
thirds of our shares voting at a meeting or the unanimous written resolution of all shareholders.

Variation of Rights of Shares

Under the Delaware corporate law, a corporation may vary the rights of a class of shares with the approval of a majority of the outstanding shares of such class, unless the certificate of
incorporation provides otherwise. Under Cayman Islands law and our amended and restated articles of association, if our share capital is divided into more than one class of shares, we may vary
the rights attached to any class only with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a general meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.

Amendment of Governing Documents

Under the Delaware corporate law, a corporation’s governing documents may be amended with the approval of a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote, unless the certificate of
incorporation provides otherwise. As permitted by Cayman Islands law, our amended and restated memorandumand articles of association may only be amended by special resolution or the
unanimous written resolution of all shareholders.

Rights of Non-Resident or Foreign Shareholders

There are no limitations imposed by our amended and restated memorandum and articles of association on the rights of non-resident or foreign shareholders to hold or exercise voting rights on
our shares. In addition, there are no provisions in our amended and restated memorandumand articles of association governing the ownership threshold above which shareholder ownership
nust be disclosed.

Directors’ Power to Issue Shares

Subject to applicable law, our board of directors is empowered to issue or allot shares or grant options and warrants with or without preferred, deferred, qualified or other special rights or
restrictions.

History of Securities Issuances

Upon our incorporation on January 10, 2019, 1 ordinary share, $1.00 par value, was allotted and issued to our office service provider, who transferred the share to Loha Holding Co. Ltd, on the
same day.

On January 10, 2019, we also issued an additional 33,499 shares to Loha Holding Co. Ltd, 12,500 shares to Maigeli Co., Ltd and 4,000 shares to JW Investment Management Limited, each at a
purchase price of $1.00 per share.

On July 7, 2019, each of the 50,000 authorized and issued shares of par value $1.00 each was subdivided into 10,000 shares of par value $0.0001 each. Following this subdivision, our authorized
share capital of $50,000 was divided into 500,000,000 shares of par value $0.0001 each , including 481,000,000 Class A ordinary shares of par value of $0.0001 each and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary
shares of a par value of $0.0001 each. The 500,000,000 issued and outstanding shares of par value $0.0001 were re-designated as follows:

(1) 316,000,000 shares held in the name of Loha Holding Co. Ltd were re-designated as Class A ordinary shares;
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(2) 19,000,000 shares held in the name of Loha Holding Co. [td were re-designated as Class B ordinary shares;

(3) 125,000,000 shares held in the name of Maigeli Co., Ltd were re-designated as Class A ordinary shares; and
(4) 40,000,000 shares held in the name of JW Investment Management Limited were re-designated as Class A shares.
Following these re-designations:

(1) Loha Holding Co. Ltd surrendered an aggregate of 284,635,018 Class A Shares to us for cancellation and transferred 31,000,000 Class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary
shares to Lohas World (Group) Co., Limited, and 364,982 Class A ordinary shares to Hong Kong Bao Rui Limited;

(2) Maigeli Co., Ltd surrendered an aggregate of 125,000,000 Class A ordinary shares to us for cancellation; and

(3) JW Investment Management Limited surrendered an aggregate of 35,620,436 Class A ordinary shares to us for cancellation.
On the same day, we cancelled 445,255,454 Class A ordinary shares. Currently, the Company has 481,000,000 Class A ordinary shares of par value of $0.0001 each and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary
shares of a par value of $0.0001 each authorized, among which 35,744,546 Class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary shares are issued and outstanding. The Company has

retrospectively reflected the share subdivision and cancellation in all periods presented in this document.
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Upon completion of this offering, we will have issued and outstanding [ ] Class A ordinary shares (or[ ]Class A ordinary shares if the underwriter exercises the over-allotment option in full).
All ofthe Class A ordinary shares sold in this offering will be freely transferable without restriction under the Securities Act unless purchased by one of our affiliates as that termis defined in
Rule 144 under the Securities Act, which generally includes directors, executive officers and 10% shareholders. Sales of substantial amounts of our Class A ordinary shares in the public market
could adversely affect prevailing market prices of our Class A ordinary shares. All outstanding Class A ordinary shares prior to this offering are “restricted securities™ as that termis defined in
Rule 144 and may be sold only if they are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act or an exemption fromthe registration requirements of the Securities Act
such as those provided in Rules 144 and 701 promulgated under the Securities Act, which rules are summarized below. Restricted Class A ordinary shares may also be sold outside of the
United States in accordance with Regulation S under the Securities Act. This prospectus may not be used in connection with any resale of our Class A ordinary shares acquired in this offering
by our affiliates.

Rule 144

In general, under Rule 144 of the Securities Act, a person or entity that has beneficially owned our Class A ordinary shares for at least sixmonths and is not our “affiliate” will be entitled to sell
our Class A ordinary shares, subject only to the availability of current public information about us, and will be entitled to sell Class A ordinary shares held for at least one year without any
restriction. A person or entity that is our “affiliate” and has beneficially owned our Class A ordinary shares for at least sixmonths will be able to sell, within a rolling three month period, the
number of Class A ordinary shares that does not exceed the greater of the following:

(i) 1% ofthe then outstanding Class A ordinary shares, which immediately after this offering will equal approximately [ ] Class A ordinary shares (or[ ]Class A ordinary shares if the
underwriter exercises the over-allotment option in full); and

(i) the average weekly trading volume of our Class A ordinary shares on [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American] during the four calendar weeks preceding the date on which notice of the
sale is filed with the SEC.

Sales by affiliates under Rule 144 must be made through unsolicited brokers’ transactions. They are also subject to manner of sale provisions, notice requirements and the availability of current
public information about us.

Rule 701

In general, under Rule 701 of the Securities Act as currently in effect, each of our employees, directors or consultants who purchases our Class A ordinary shares fromus pursuant to a
compensatory stock or option plan or other written agreement relating to compensation is eligible to resell such Class A ordinary shares 90 days after we become a reporting company under the
Exchange Act in reliance on Rule 144, but without compliance with some of the restrictions, such as the holding period, contained in Rule 144. However, the Rule 701 shares would remain subject
to lock-up arrangements and would only become eligible for sale when the lock-up period expires.

Lock-up Agreements

See “Underwriting—Lock-up Agreements.”

We are not aware of any plans by any significant shareholders to dispose of significant numbers of our Class A ordinary shares. However, one or more existing shareholders or owners of
securities convertible or exchangeable into or exercisable for our Class A ordinary shares may dispose of significant numbers of our Class A ordinary shares. We cannot predict what effect, if
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any, future sales of our Class A ordinary shares, or the availability of Class A ordinary shares for future sale, will have on the trading price of our Class A ordinary shares fromtime to time. Sales
of substantial amounts of our Class A ordinary shares in the public market, or the perception that these sales could occur, could adversely affect the trading price of our Class A ordinary shares.
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TAXATION

The following sets forth material Cayman Islands, PRC and U.S. federal income tax consequences of an investment in our ordinary shares. It is based upon laws and relevant interpretations
thereof as of the date of this prospectus, all of which are subject to change. This discussion does not address all possible tax consequences relating to an investment in our ordinary shares,
such as the tax consequences under state, local and other tax laws. To the extent that the discussion relates to matters of Cayman Islands tax law, it is the opinion of Conyers Dill & Pearman,
our special Cayman Islands counsel. To the extent that the discussion relates to matters of PRC tax law, it is the opinion of Commerce & Finance Law, our special PRC counsel. To the extent
that the discussion relates to matters of U.S. federal income tax law, it is the opinion of Potomac Law Group, our U.S. tax counsel as to the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to
the U.S. Holders described herein of an investment in the ordinary shares.

Cayman Islands Taxation

The Cayman Islands currently levies no taxes on individuals or corporations based upon profits, income, gains or appreciations and there is no taxation in the nature of inheritance tax or estate
duty or withholding tax applicable to us or to any holder of our ordinary shares. There are no other taxes likely to be material to us levied by the Government of the Cayman Islands except for
stamp duties which may be applicable on instruments executed in, or after execution brought within the jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands. No stamp duty is payable in the Cayman Islands on
transfers of shares of Cayman Islands companies except those which hold interests in land in the Cayman Islands. The Cayman Islands are not party to any double tax treaties that are applicable
to any payments made to or by the Company. There are no exchange control regulations or currency restrictions in the Cayman Islands.

Payments of dividends and capital in respect of ordinary shares will not be subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and no withholding will be required on the payment of a dividend or capital
to any holder of ordinary shares, nor will gains derived fromthe disposal of ordinary shares be subject to Cayman Islands income or corporation tax.

PRC Taxation

In March 2007, the National People’s Congress of China enacted the Enterprise Income Tax Law, which became effective on January 1, 2008 and amended on February 24, 2017 and December 29,
2018. Generally, our PRC subsidiary, variable interest entity and its subsidiary, which are considered PRC resident enterprises under the Enterprise Income Tax Law, are subject to enterprise
income tax on their worldwide taxable income as determined under the Enterprise Income Tax Law.

In addition, the Enterprise Income Tax Law provides that enterprises organized under the laws of jurisdictions outside China with their “de facto management bodies” located within China may
be considered PRC resident enterprises and therefore subject to PRC enterprise income taxat the rate of 25% on their worldwide income. The Implementing Rules of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law further defines the term “de facto management body” as the management body that exercises substantial and overall management and control over the business, personnel, accounts and
properties of an enterprise. While we do not currently consider our company or any of our overseas subsidiaries to be a PRC resident enterprise, there is a risk that the PRC tax authorities may
deemour company or any of our overseas subsidiaries as a PRC resident enterprise since a substantial majority of the members of our management teamas well as the management team of our
overseas subsidiaries are located in China.

If the PRC tax authorities determine that our company or any of our overseas subsidiaries is a “resident enterprise” for PRC enterprise income tax purpose, a number of unfavorable PRC tax
consequences could follow. First, we may be subject to the enterprise income taxat a rate of 25% on our worldwide taxable income as well as PRC enterprise income taxreporting obligations. In
our case, this would mean that income such as non-China source income would be subject to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 25%. Second, under the Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
implementing rules, we may be required to withhold a 10% withholding tax from dividends we pay to our shareholders that are non-resident enterprises, including the holders of our ordinary
shares. Finally, non-resident enterprise shareholders may be subject to a 10% PRC taxon gains realized on the sale or other disposition of ordinary shares, if such income is treated as sourced
from within China. Furthermore, if we are deemed a PRC resident enterprise, dividends paid to individual investors who are non-PRC residents and any gain realized on the transfer of ordinary
shares by such investors may be subject to PRC taxat a current rate of 20% (which in the case of dividends may be withheld at source). Any PRC tax liability may be reduced under applicable tax
treaties or tax arrangements between China and other jurisdictions. If we or any of our subsidiaries established outside China are considered a PRC resident enterprise, it is unclear whether
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holders of our ordinary shares would be able to claimthe benefit of income tax treaties or agreements entered into between China and other countries or areas. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related
to Doing Business in China—We may be treated as a resident enterprise for PRC tax purposes under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, and we may therefore be subject to PRC income tax on
our global income.”
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U.S. Federal Income Taxation

The following are material U.S. federal income tax consequences to the U.S. Holders described below of owning and disposing of the ordinary shares. This discussion does not purport to be a
comprehensive description of all of the tax considerations that may be relevant to a particular person’s decision to acquire ordinary shares.

This discussion applies only to a U.S. Holder that acquires our ordinary shares in this offering and holds the ordinary shares as capital assets for U.S. federal income tax purposes. In addition, it
does not describe all of the taxconsequences that may be relevant in light of a U.S. Holder’s particular circumstances, including the alternative minimum tax, the Medicare contribution taxon net
investment income and tax consequences applicable to U.S. Holders subject to special rules, such as:

e certain financial institutions;

e dealers or traders in securities that use a mark-to-market method of taxaccounting;

e persons holding ordinary shares as part of a straddle, conversion transaction, integrated transaction or similar transaction;

e persons whose functional currency for U.S. federal income tax purposes is not the U.S. dollar;

e entities classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes and their partners or investors;

e tax-exempt entities, “individual retirement accounts” or “Roth IRAs”;

e persons that own or are deemed to own ordinary shares representing 10% or more of our voting power or value; or

e persons holding ordinary shares in connection with a trade or business outside the United States.
If a partnership (or other entity that is classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) owns ordinary shares, the U.S. federal income tax treatment of a partner will generally
depend on the status ofthe partner and the activities of the partnership. Partnerships owning ordinary shares and partners in such partnerships should consult their taxadvisers as to the

particular U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning and disposing of ordinary shares.

This discussion is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, administrative pronouncements, judicial decisions, final, temporary and proposed Treasury regulations,
and the income tax treaty between the United States and the PRC, or the Treaty, all as of the date hereof, any of which is subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect.

As used herein, a “U.S. Holder” is a beneficial owner of our ordinary shares that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes:
e acitizen or individual resident of the United States;
e acorporation, or other entity taxable as a corporation, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state therein or the District of Columbia; or

e an estate or trust the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source.
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U.S. Holders should consult their taxadvisers concerning the U.S. federal, state, local and non-U.S. taxconsequences of owning and disposing of ordinary shares in their particular
circumstances.

Taxation of Distributions

Except as described below under “—Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules,” distributions paid on our ordinary shares, other than certain pro rata distributions of ordinary shares, will be
treated as dividends to the extent paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Because we do not maintain calculations of
our earnings and profits under U.S. federal income tax principles, it is expected that distributions generally will be reported to U.S. Holders as dividends. Dividends will not be eligible for the
dividends received deduction generally available to U.S. corporations under the Code. Subject to applicable limitations and the passive foreign investment company rules described below,

dividends paid to certain non-corporate U.S. Holders may be taxable at favorable rates. Non-corporate U.S. Holders should consult their taxadvisers regarding the availability of these favorable
rates in their particular circumstances.
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Dividends will be included in a U.S. Holder’s income on the date of the U.S. Holder’s receipt. The amount of any dividend income paid in foreign currency will be the U.S. dollar amount calculated
by reference to the spot rate in effect on the date of receipt, regardless of whether the payment is in fact converted into U.S. dollars on such date. If the dividend is converted into U.S. dollars on
the date of receipt, a U.S. Holder generally should not be required to recognize foreign currency gain or loss in respect of the amount received. A U.S. Holder may have foreign currency gain or
loss if the dividend is converted into U.S. dollars after the date of receipt.

Dividends will be treated as foreign source income for foreign tax credit purposes. As described in “—PRC Taxation,” dividends paid by our company may be subject to PRC withholding tax. For
U.S. federal income tax purposes, the amount of the dividend income will include any amounts withheld in respect of PRC withholding tax. Subject to applicable limitations, which vary depending
upon the U.S. Holder’s circumstances, PRC taxes withheld from dividend payments (at a rate not exceeding the applicable rate provided in the Treaty in the case of a U.S. Holder that is eligible for
the benefits of the Treaty) generally will be creditable against a U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability. The rules governing foreign tax credits are complex, and U.S. Holders should consult
their taxadvisers regarding the creditability of foreign tax credits in their particular circumstances. In lieu of claiming a credit, a U.S. Holder may elect to deduct such PRC taxes in computing its
taxable income, subject to applicable limitations. An election to deduct foreign taxes instead of claiming foreign tax credits must apply to all foreign taxes paid or accrued in the taxable year.

Sale or Other Taxable Disposition of Ordinary Shares

Except as described below under “—Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules,” a U.S. Holder will generally recognize capital gain or loss on a sale or other taxable disposition of ordinary
shares in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized on the sale or other taxable disposition and the U.S. Holder’s adjusted taxbasis in such ordinary shares disposed of, in
each case as determined in U.S. dollars. The gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or loss if, at the time of the sale or disposition, the U.S. Holder has owned the ordinary shares for more than
one year. Long-term capital gains recognized by non-corporate U.S. Holders may be subject to taxrates that are lower than those applicable to ordinary income. The deductibility of capital losses
is subject to limitations.

As described in “—PRC Taxation,” gains on the sale of ordinary shares may be subject to PRC taxes. A U.S. Holder is entitled to use foreign tax credits to offset only the portion ofits U.S.
federal income tax liability that is attributable to foreign source income. Because under the Code capital gains of U.S. persons are generally treated as U.S. source income, this limitation may
preclude a U.S. Holder from claiming a credit for all or a portion of any PRC taxes imposed on any such gains. However, U.S. Holders that are eligible for the benefits of the Treaty may be able to
elect to treat the gain as PRC source and therefore claim foreign tax credits in respect of PRC taxes on such disposition gains. U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisers regarding their
eligibility for the benefits of the Treaty and the creditability of any PRC tax on disposition gains in their particular circumstances.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Rules

In general, a non-U.S. corporation is a PFIC for any taxable year in which (i) 75% or more of its gross income consists of passive income or (ii) 50% or more of the average quarterly value of its
assets consists of assets that produce, or are held for the production of, passive income. For purposes of the above calculations, a non-U.S. corporation that owns at least 25% by value of the
shares of another corporation is treated as if it held its proportionate share of the assets of the other corporation and received directly its proportionate share of the income of the other
corporation. Passive income generally includes dividends, interest, rents, royalties and certain gains. Cash is a passive asset for these purposes.

Based on the expected composition of our income and assets and the value of our assets, including goodwill, which is based on the expected price of our shares in this offering, we do not expect
to be a PFIC for our current taxable year. However, the proper application of the PFIC rules to a company with a business such as ours is not entirely clear. It is also not entirely clear how the
contractual arrangements between us and Lohas Agricultural will be treated for purposes of the PFIC rules, and we may be or become a PFIC if Lohas Agricultural is not treated as owned by us
for these purposes. Because the proper characterization of certain components of our income and assets, and the treatment of our contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural, is not
entirely clear, because we will hold a substantial amount of cash following this offering, and because our PFIC status for any taxable year will depend on the composition of our income and
assets and the value of our assets fromtime to time (which may be determined, in part, by reference to the market price of our ordinary shares, which could be volatile), there can be no assurance
that we will not be a PFIC for our current taxable year or any future taxable year.
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If we were a PFIC for any taxable year and any of our subsidiaries, variable interest entities or other companies in which we own or are treated as owning equity interests were also a PFIC (any
such entity referred to as a Lower-tier PFIC), U.S. Holders would be deemed to own a proportionate amount (by value) of the shares of each Lower-tier PFIC and would be subject to U.S. federal
income tax according to the rules described in the subsequent paragraph on (i) certain distributions by a Lower-tier PFIC and (ii) dispositions of shares of Lower-tier PFICs, in each case as if the
U.S. Holders held such shares directly, even though the U.S. Holders did not receive the proceeds of those distributions or dispositions.

In general, if we were a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder holds ordinary shares, gain recognized by such U.S. Holder on a sale or other disposition (including certain pledges)
ofits ordinary shares would be allocated ratably over that U.S. Holder’s holding period. The amounts allocated to the taxable year of the sale or disposition and to any year before we became a
PFIC would be taxed as ordinary income. The amount allocated to each other taxable year would be subject to tax at the highest rate in effect for individuals or corporations, as appropriate, for
that taxable year, and an interest charge would be imposed on the resulting tax liability for each such year. Furthermore, to the extent that distributions received by a U.S. Holder in any year on its
ordinary shares exceed 125% of the average of the annual distributions on ordinary shares received during the preceding three years or the U.S. Holder’s holding period, whichever is shorter,
such distributions would be subject to taxation in the same manner. In addition, if we were a PFIC (or with respect to a particular U.S. Holder were treated as a PFIC) for a taxable year in which we
paid a dividend or for the prior taxable year, the favorable taxrates described above with respect to dividends paid to certain non-corporate U.S. Holders would not apply.

Alternatively, if we were a PFIC and if our ordinary shares were “regularly traded” on a “qualified exchange,” a U.S. Holder could make a mark-to-market election that would result in tax treatment
different from the general tax treatment for PFICs described in the preceding paragraph. The ordinary shares would be treated as “regularly traded” for any calendar year in which more than a de
minimis quantity of the shares were traded on a qualified exchange on at least 15 days during each calendar quarter. The [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American], where our ordinary shares are
expected to be listed, is a qualified exchange for this purpose. If a U.S. Holder makes the mark-to-market election, the U.S. Holder generally will recognize as ordinary income any excess of the fair
market value of the ordinary shares at the end of each taxable year over their adjusted taxbasis, and will recognize an ordinary loss in respect of any excess of the adjusted taxbasis of the
ordinary shares over their fair market value at the end of the taxable year (but only to the extent of the net amount of income previously included as a result of the mark-to-market election). If a
U.S. Holder makes the election, the U.S. Holder’s tax basis in the ordinary shares will be adjusted to reflect the income or loss amounts recognized. Any gain recognized on the sale or other
disposition of ordinary shares in a year in which we are a PFIC will be treated as ordinary income and any loss will be treated as an ordinary loss (but only to the extent of the net amount of
income previously included as a result of the mark-to-market election, with any excess treated as capital loss). Ifa U.S. Holder makes the mark-to-market election, distributions paid on ordinary
shares will be treated as discussed under “—Taxation of Distributions” above.

We do not intend to provide the information necessary for U.S. Holders to make qualified electing fund elections, which if available could materially affect the tax consequences of the ownership
and disposition of our ordinary shares if we were a PFIC for any taxable year. Therefore, U.S. Holders will not be able to make such elections.

If we are a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder owns ordinary shares, we will generally continue to be treated as a PFIC with respect to the U.S. Holder for all succeeding years
during which the U.S. Holder owns ordinary shares, even if we cease to meet the threshold requirements for PFIC status.

If we were a PFIC for any taxable year during which a U.S. Holder owned any ordinary shares, the U.S. Holder would generally be required to file annual reports with the IRS. U.S. Holders should
consult their tax advisers regarding the determination of whether we are a PFIC for any taxable year and the potential application of the PFIC rules to their ownership of ordinary shares.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding
Payments of dividends and sales proceeds that are made within the United States or through certain U.S.-related financial intermediaries may be subject to information reporting and backup
withholding, unless (i) the U.S. Holder is a corporation or other “exempt recipient” and (ii) in the case of backup withholding, the U.S. Holder provides a correct taxpayer identification number

and certifies that it is not subject to backup withholding. The amount of any backup withholding froma payment to a U.S. Holder will be allowed as a credit against the U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal
income tax liability and may entitle it to a refund, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.
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Certain U.S. Holders who are individuals (or certain specified entities) may be required to report information relating to their ownership of ordinary shares, unless the ordinary shares are held in
accounts at financial institutions (in which case the accounts may be reportable if maintained by non-U.S. financial institutions). U.S. Holders should consult their taxadvisers regarding their
reporting obligations with respect to the ordinary shares.
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ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES
Cayman Islands

We are incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability. We are incorporated in the Cayman Islands because of certain benefits associated with
being a Cayman Islands company, such as political and economic stability, an effective judicial system, a favorable taxsystem, the absence of foreign exchange control or currency restrictions
and the availability of professional and support services. However, the Cayman Islands has a less developed body of securities laws as compared to the United States and provides less
protection for investors. In addition, Cayman Islands companies may not have standing to sue before the federal courts of the United States.

Our constitutional documents do not contain provisions requiring that disputes, including those arising under the securities laws of the United States, between us, our officers, directors and
shareholders, be subject to arbitration.

Substantially all of our assets are located outside the United States. In addition, a majority of our directors and executive officers are nationals or residents of jurisdictions other than the

United States and all or a substantial portion of their assets are located outside the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for investors to effect service of process within the United States
upon us or these persons, or to enforce judgments obtained in U.S. courts against us or them, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the
United States or any state in the United States. It may also be difficult for you to enforce judgments obtained in U.S. courts based on the civil liability provisions of the U.S. federal securities
laws against us and our officers and directors.

We have appointed Cogency Global Inc. as our agent to receive service of process with respect to any action brought against us in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York in
connection with this offering under the federal securities laws of the United States or of any State in the United States or any action brought against us in the Supreme Court of the State of
New York in the County of New York in connection with this offering under the securities laws of the State of New York.

Conyers Dill & Pearman, our counsel as to Cayman Islands law, has advised us that there is uncertainty as to whether the courts ofthe Cayman Islands would (i) recognize or enforce judgments
of U.S. courts obtained against us or our directors or officers that are predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the United States or any state in the United States, or
(i) entertain original actions brought in the Cayman Islands against us or our directors or officers that are predicated upon the securities laws of the United States or any state in the

United States.

Conyers Dill & Pearman has informed us that although there is no statutory enforcement in the Cayman Islands of judgments obtained in the federal or state courts of the United States (and the
Cayman Islands are not a party to any treaties for the reciprocal enforcement or recognition of such judgments), the courts of the Cayman Islands would recognize as a valid judgment, a final and
conclusive judgment in personam obtained in the Foreign Courts against our company under which a sumof money is payable (other than a sumof money payable in respect of multiple
damages, taxes or other charges of a like nature or in respect of a fine or other penalty) or, in certain circumstances, an in personam judgment for non-monetary relief, and would give a judgment
based thereon provided that (a) such courts had proper jurisdiction over the parties subject to such judgment, (b) such courts did not contravene the rules of natural justice of the Cayman
Islands, (c) such judgment was not obtained by fraud, (d) the enforcement of the judgment would not be contrary to the public policy of the Cayman Islands, (¢) no new admissible evidence
relevant to the action is submitted prior to the rendering of the judgment by the courts of the Cayman Islands, and (f) there is due compliance with the correct procedures under the laws of the
Cayman Islands.

People’s Republic of China

Commerce & Finance Law Offices, our counsel as to PRC law, has advised us that the recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments are provided for under the PRC Civil Procedure Law. PRC
courts may recognize and enforce foreign judgments in accordance with the requirements of the PRC Civil Procedure Law based either on treaties between China and the country where the
judgment is made or on principles of reciprocity between jurisdictions.
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Commerce & Finance Law Offices has advised us further that under PRC law, a foreign judgment, which does not otherwise violate basic legal principles, state sovereignty, safety or social public
interest, may be recognized and enforced by a PRC court, based either on treaties between China and the country where the judgment is made or on principles of reciprocity between
jurisdictions. As there existed no treaty or other form of reciprocity between China and the U.S. governing the recognition and enforcement of judgments as of the date of this prospectus,
including those predicated upon the liability provisions of the U.S. federal securities laws, there is uncertainty whether and on what basis a PRC court would enforce judgments rendered by
United States courts.
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UNDERWRITING

Subject to the terms and conditions of the underwriting agreement, Maxim Group LLC has agreed to purchase fromus on a firm commitment basis [ ] Class A ordinary shares at an estimated
offering price of §[ ], less the underwriting discounts and commissions.

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligation of the underwriter to purchase all of the class A ordinary shares being offered to the public is subject to specific conditions, including
the absence of any material adverse change in our business or in the financial markets and the receipt of certain legal opinions, certificates and letters fromus, our counsel and the independent
auditors. Subject to the terms of the underwriting agreement, the underwriter will purchase all of the shares being offered to the public, other than those covered by the over-allotment option
described below, if any of these shares are purchased.

Over-Allotment Option

We have granted to the underwriter an option, exercisable not later than 45 days after the date of this prospectus, to purchase up to [ ] additional Class A ordinary shares at the public offering
price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions. The underwriter may exercise this option only to cover over-allotments made in connection with the sale of the shares offered by this
prospectus. To the extent that the underwriter exercises this option, the underwriter will become obligated, subject to conditions, to purchase, and we will be obligated to sell, the additional
shares. If any additional shares are purchased, the underwriter will offer the additional shares on the same terms as those on which the other shares are being offered hereunder.

Commission and Expens es

The underwriting discounts and commissions are 7.5% of the public offering price. We have agreed to pay the underwriter the discounts and commissions set forth below, assuming either no
exercise or full exercise by the underwriter of the underwriter’s over-allotment option. We have been advised by the underwriter that the underwriter proposes to offer the shares to the public at
the public offering price set forth on the cover of this prospectus and to dealers at a price that represents a concession not in excess of §[ ] per share under the offering price. The underwriter
may allow, and these dealers may re-allow, a concession of not more than $[ ] per share to other dealers. After the offering, the underwriter may change the offering price and other selling
terms.

The following table shows the underwriting discounts and commissions payable to the underwriter by us in connection with this offering.

Total Without Total With
Fee Per Exercise of Over- Exercise of Over
Share Allotment -Allotment
Public offering price $ $ $
Discount $ $ $

(1) The fees do not include the underwriter’s warrants or expense reimbursement as described below.

In addition, we have agreed to reimburse the underwriter up to a maximum allowance of $135,000 for certain out-of-pocket expenses it incurs in connection with this offering, including, but not
limited to, filing offering materials with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, or FINRA, background checks, “road show” expenses, costs of book-building, prospectus tracking and
compliance software and the fees and disbursements of'its counsel, accountants and other agents and representatives. We have delivered to the underwriter $50,000 as an advance against
reasonably anticipated out-of-pocket expenses, which shall be applied towards the maximum expense allowance and returned to us to the extent not offset by actual out-of-pocket expenses.

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 200/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

We estimate that expenses payable by us in connection with the offering of our Class A ordinary shares, other than the underwriting discounts and commissions and the counsel fees and
disbursement reimbursement provisions referred to above, will be approximately $[ ] million.
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Underwriter Warrants

We have also agreed to issue to the underwriter warrants to purchase a number of our Class A ordinary shares equal to an aggregate of 7.5% of the shares sold in this offering. The warrants will
have an exercise price equal to 120% of the offering price of the Class A ordinary shares sold in this offering and may be exercised on a cashless basis. The warrants are exercisable commencing
six (6) months after the closing of this offering, and will be exercisable for five (5) years after the effective date of the registration statement for this offering of which this prospectus is a part. The
warrants are not redeemable by us. We have agreed to a one-time demand registration and unlimited “piggyback’ registration rights of the Class A ordinary shares underlying warrants at our
expense for a period of five (5) years after the effective date of the registration statement for this offering. The warrants and the shares underlying the warrants have been deemed compensation
by FINRA and are therefore subject to a 180-day lock-up pursuant to Rule 5110(g)(1) of FINRA. The underwriter (or permitted assignees under the Rule) may not sell, transfer, assign, pledge or
hypothecate the warrants or the shares underlying the warrants, nor will they be the subject of any hedging, short sale, derivative, put or call transaction that would result in the effective
economic disposition of the warrants or the underlying shares for a period of 180 days fromthe effective date of the registration statement for this offering, except to any FINRA member
participating in the offering and their bona fide officers or partners or as otherwise permitted under FINRA Rule 5110(g)(2). The warrants will provide for adjustment in the number and price of
such warrants (and the shares underlying such warrants) in the event of recapitalization, merger or other structural transaction to prevent mechanical dilution or in the event of a future financing
undertaken by us.

Indemnification

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriter against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act and liabilities arising frombreaches of representations and warranties
contained in the underwriting agreement, or to contribute to payments that the underwriter may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

Lock-Up Agreements

We and all of our directors, executive officers have agreed that, subject to certain exceptions, they will not, without the prior written consent of the underwriter, for a period of 3 years after the
date of this prospectus, or in the case of existing beneficial owners for a period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus: (i) offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, grant, lend or otherwise transfer
or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any Class A ordinary shares or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Class A ordinary shares; (ii) enter into any swap or other
arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Class A ordinary shares; or (iii) make any demand for or exercise any right with
respect to the registration of any Class A ordinary shares or any security convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for Class A ordinary shares, whether any such transaction described
above is to be settled by delivery of Class A ordinary shares or such other securities, in cash or otherwise.

Listing

We intend to list our Class A ordinary shares on the [Nasdaq Capital Market/NYSE American] under the symbol “LLOHA” and have submitted the application to list our Class A ordinary shares
on the Nasdaq Capital Market. We make no representation that such application will be approved or that the Class A ordinary shares will trade on such market either now or at any time in the
future.

Hectronic Distribution

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on the internet sites or through other online services maintained by the underwriter, or by its affiliates. In those cases, prospective
investors may view offering terms online and prospective investors may be allowed to place orders online. Other than the prospectus in electronic format, the information on the underwriter’s

website is not part of this prospectus or the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, has not been approved and/or endorsed by us or the underwriter in its capacity as
underwriter and should not be relied upon by investors.
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Price Stabilization, Short Positions and Penalty Bids

In connection with the offering the underwriter may engage in stabilizing transactions, over-allotment transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids in accordance with
Regulation M under the Exchange Act:

e  Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchase the underlying security so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum.

®  Over-allotment involves sales by the underwriter of shares in excess of the number of shares the underwriter is obligated to purchase, which creates a syndicate short position. The
short position may be either a covered short position or a naked short position. In a covered short position, the number of Class A ordinary shares over-allotted by the underwriter is
not greater than the number of Class A ordinary shares that may be purchased in the over-allotment option. In a naked short position, the number of Class A ordinary shares involved is

greater than the number of Class A ordinary shares in the over-allotment option. The underwriter may close out any covered short position by either exercising the over-allotment option
and/or purchasing Class A ordinary shares in the open market.
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e  Syndicate covering transactions involve purchases of Class A ordinary shares in the open market after the distribution has been completed in order to cover syndicate short positions.
In determining the source of Class A ordinary shares to close out the short position, the underwriter will consider, among other things, the price of Class A ordinary shares available for
purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which it may purchase Class A ordinary shares through the over-allotment option. If the underwriter sells more Class A ordinary
shares than could be covered by the over-allotment option, a naked short position, the position can only be closed out by buying Class A ordinary shares in the open market. A naked
short position is more likely to be created if the underwriter is concerned that there could be downward pressure on the price of the Class A ordinary shares in the open market after
pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in the offering.

®  Penalty bids permit the underwriter to reclaima selling concession froma syndicate member when the Class A ordinary shares originally sold by the syndicate member is purchased in a
stabilizing or syndicate covering transaction to cover syndicate short positions.

These stabilizing transactions, syndicate covering transactions and penalty bids may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of our Class A ordinary shares or preventing or
retarding a decline in the market price of our Class A ordinary shares. As a result, the price of our Class A ordinary shares may be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open
market. Neither we nor the underwriter make any representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of our
Class A ordinary shares. In addition, neither we nor the underwriter make any representations that the underwriters will engage in these stabilizing transactions or that any transaction, once
commenced, will not be discontinued without notice.

No Prior Public Market

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our Class A ordinary shares and the offering price for our Class A ordinary shares will be determined through negotiations between us
and the underwriter. Among the factors to be considered in these negotiations will be prevailing market conditions, our financial information, market valuations of other companies that we and
the underwriter believe to be comparable to us, estimates of our business potential, the present state of our development and other factors deemed relevant.

We offer no assurances that the offering price will correspond to the price at which our Class A ordinary shares will trade in the public market subsequent to this offering or that an active trading
market for our shares will develop and continue after this offering.

Other Terms

In addition, we have agreed to grant to the underwriter, upon the consummation of this offering, a right of first refusal to act as a lead managing underwriter, book runner or placement agent, with
at least 75% of'the economics for a two handed deal and 50% of the economics for a three handed deal, for any and all future public and private equity, equity-linked or debt (excluding
commercial bank debt) offerings of our company, for a period of eighteen (18) months fromthe commencement of sales of this offering.

Offers Outside the United States

Other than in the United States, no action has been taken by us or the underwriter that would permit a public offering of the shares offered by this prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for
that purpose is required. The shares offered by this prospectus may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, nor may this prospectus or any other offering material or advertisements in
connection with the offer and sale of any such shares be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliance with the applicable rules and
regulations of that jurisdiction. Persons into whose possession this prospectus comes are advised to informthemselves about and to observe any restrictions relating to the offering and the
distribution of this prospectus. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any Class A ordinary shares offered by this prospectus in any jurisdiction
in which such an offer or a solicitation is unlawful.
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The underwriter is expected to make offers and sales both in and outside the United States through its selling agents. Any offers and sales in the United States will be conducted by broker-
dealers registered with the SEC.
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Australia

No placement document, prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure document has been lodged with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (“ASIC”), in
relation to the offering. This prospectus does not constitute a prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure document under the Corporations Act 2001 (the “Corporations Act”),
and does not purport to include the information required for a prospectus, product disclosure statement or other disclosure document under the Corporations Act. Any offer in Australia of the
Class A ordinary shares may only be made to persons (the “Exempt Investors™) who are “sophisticated investors” (within the meaning of section 708(8) of the Corporations Act), “professional
investors” (within the meaning of section 708(11) of the Corporations Act) or otherwise pursuant to one or more exemptions contained in section 708 of the Corporations Act so that it is lawful to
offer the Class A ordinary shares without disclosure to investors under Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act. The Class A ordinary shares applied for by Exempt Investors in Australia must not
be offered for sale in Australia in the period of 12 months after the date of allotment under the offering, except in circumstances where disclosure to investors under Chapter 6D of the
Corporations Act would not be required pursuant to an exemption under section 708 of the Corporations Act or otherwise or where the offer is pursuant to a disclosure document which complies
with Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act. Any person acquiring Class A ordinary shares must observe such Australian on-sale restrictions. This prospectus contains general information only
and does not take account of the investment objectives, financial situation or particular needs of any particular person. It does not contain any Class A ordinary shares recommendations or
financial product advice. Before making an investment decision, investors need to consider whether the information in this prospectus is appropriate to their needs, objectives and
circumstances, and, if necessary, seek expert advice on those matters.

Bermuda

The Class A ordinary shares may be offered or sold in Bermuda only in compliance with the provisions of the Investment Business Act of 2003 of Bermuda which regulates the sale of securities
in Bermuda. Additionally, non-Bermudian persons (including companies) may not carry on or engage in any trade or business in Bermuda unless such persons are permitted to do so under
applicable Bermuda legislation.

British Virgin Islands

The Class A ordinary shares are not being, and may not be offered to the public or to any person in the British Virgin Islands for purchase or subscription by us or on our behalf. The Class A
ordinary shares may be offered to companies incorporated under the BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 (British Virgin Islands) (each a BVI Company), but only where the offer will be made to,
and received by, the relevant BVI Company entirely outside of the British Virgin Islands.

This prospectus has not been, and will not be, registered with the Financial Services Commission of the British Virgin Islands. No registered prospectus has been or will be prepared in respect of
the Class A ordinary shares for the purposes of the Securities and Investment Business Act, 2010, or SIBA or the Public Issuers Code of the British Virgin Islands.

The Class A ordinary shares may be offered to persons located in the British Virgin Islands who are “qualified investors” for the purposes of SIBA. Qualified investors include (i) certain entities
which are regulated by the Financial Services Commission in the British Virgin Islands, including banks, insurance companies, licensees under SIBA and public, professional and private mutual
funds; (i) a company, any securities of which are listed on a recognized exchange; and (iii) persons defined as “professional investors” under SIBA, which is any person (a) whose ordinary
business involves, whether for that person’s own account or the account of others, the acquisition or disposal of property of the same kind as the property, or a substantial part of our property;
or (b) who has signed a declaration that he, whether individually or jointly with his spouse, has a net worth in excess of US$1,000,000 and that he consents to being treated as a professional
investor. The ordinary shares are not being, and may not be offered to the public or to any person in the British Virgin Islands for purchase or subscription by or on behalf of the Company. The
ordinary shares may be offered to companies incorporated under the BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 (British Virgin Islands), but only where the offer will be made to, and received by, the
relevant BVI company entirely outside of the British Virgin Islands.

Canada
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Resale Restrictions

The distribution of Class A ordinary shares in Canada is being made only in the provinces of Ontario, Quebec, Alberta and British Columbia on a private placement basis exempt fromthe
requirement that we prepare and file a prospectus with the securities regulatory authorities in each province where trades of these securities are made. Any resale of the Class A ordinary shares
in Canada must be made under applicable securities laws which may vary depending on the relevant jurisdiction, and which may require resales to be made under available statutory exemptions

or under a discretionary exemption granted by the applicable Canadian securities regulatory authority. Purchasers are advised to seek legal advice prior to any resale of the Class A ordinary
shares.
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Representations of Canadian Purchasers

By purchasing the Class A ordinary shares in Canada and accepting delivery of a purchase confirmation, a purchaser is representing to us and the dealer from whomthe purchase confirmation is
received that:

e the purchaser is entitled under applicable provincial securities laws to purchase the Class A ordinary shares without the benefit of a prospectus qualified under those securities laws as
it is an “accredited investor” as defined under National Instrument 45-106 — Prospectus Exemptions,

e the purchaseris a “permitted client” as defined in National Instrument 31-103 — Registration Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations,
o where required by law, the purchaser is purchasing as principal and not as agent, and
e the purchaser has reviewed the text above under Resale Restrictions.

Contflicts of Interest

Canadian purchasers are hereby notified that the underwriters are relying on the exemption set out in section 3A.3 or 3A 4, if applicable, of National Instrument 33-105 — Underwriting Conflicts
fromhaving to provide certain conflict of interest disclosure in this document.

Statutory Rights of Action

Securities legislation in certain provinces or territories of Canada may provide a purchaser with remedies for rescission or damages if the offering memorandum (including any amendment thereto)
such as this document contains a misrepresentation, provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities
legislation of the purchaser’s province or territory. The purchaser of these securities in Canada should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province
or territory for particulars of these rights or consult with a legal advisor.

Enforcement of Legal Rights

All of our directors and officers as well as the experts named herein may be located outside of Canada and, as a result, it may not be possible for Canadian purchasers to effect service of process
within Canada upon us or those persons. All or a substantial portion of our assets and the assets of those persons may be located outside of Canada and, as a result, it may not be possible to
satisfy a judgment against us or those persons in Canada or to enforce a judgment obtained in Canadian courts against us or those persons outside of Canada.

Taxation and Eligibility for Investment

Canadian purchasers of the Class A ordinary shares should consult their own legal and taxadvisors with respect to the taxconsequences of an investment in the Class A ordinary shares in their
particular circumstances and about the eligibility of the Class A ordinary shares for investment by the purchaser under relevant Canadian legislation.

Cayman Islands

This prospectus does not constitute a public offer of the ordinary shares, whether by way of sale or subscription, in the Cayman Islands. Each underwriter has represented and agreed that it has
not offered or sold, and will not offer or sell, directly or indirectly, any Class A ordinary shares to the public in the Cayman Islands.
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Dubai International Financial Center

This document relates to an exempt offer in accordance with the Offered Securities Rules of the Dubai Financial Services Authority. This document is intended for distribution only to persons of
a type specified in those rules. It must not be delivered to, or relied on by, any other person. The Dubai Financial Services Authority has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying any
documents in connection with exempt offers. The Dubai Financial Services Authority has not approved this document nor taken steps to verify the information set out in it, and has no
responsibility for it. The Class A ordinary shares which are the subject of the offering contemplated by this document may be illiquid and/or subject to restrictions on their resale. Prospective

purchasers of the Class A ordinary shares offered should conduct their own due diligence on the Class A ordinary shares. If you do not understand the contents of this document you should
consult an authorized financial advisor.
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European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member State), each underwriter represents and agrees that
with effect fromand including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State, it has not made and will not make an offer of Class A ordinary shares
which are the subject of the offering contemplated by this prospectus to the public in that Relevant Member State other than:

e to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

e to fewer than 100 or, if the Relevant Member State has implemented the relevant provision of the 2010 PD Amending Directive, 150, natural or legal persons (other than qualified
investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the Prospectus Directive, subject to obtaining the prior consent of the representatives for any such offer; or

e in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, provided that no such offer of Class A ordinary shares shall require us or any underwriter to publish a
prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an “offer to the public” in relation to any Class A ordinary shares in any Relevant Member State means the communication in any formand by
any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the Class A ordinary shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the Class A ordinary
shares, as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that Member State, the expression Prospectus Directive means Directive
2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto, including the 2010 PD Amending Directive, to the extent implemented in the Relevant Member State), and includes any relevant implementing measure in
the Relevant Member State and the expression “2010 PD Amending Directive” means Directive 2010/73/EU.

United Kingdom
Each ofthe underwriters severally represents warrants and agrees as follows:
e it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within
the meaning of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue or sale of the Class A ordinary shares in circumstances in

which Section 21 of the FSMA does not apply to us; and

e it has complied with, and will comply with all applicable provisions ofthe FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the Class A ordinary shares in, fromor otherwise
involving the United Kingdom.

France

Neither this prospectus nor any other offering material relating to the Class A ordinary shares described in this prospectus has been submitted to the clearance procedures of the Autorité des
Marchés Financiers or of the competent authority of another member state of the European Economic Area and notified to the Autorité des Marchés Financiers. The Class A ordinary shares
have not been offered or sold and will not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, to the public in France. Neither this prospectus nor any other offering material relating to the Class A ordinary
shares has been or will be:

e to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

e to fewer than 100 og, if the relevant member state has implemented the relevant provision of the 2010 PD Amending Directive, 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors
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as defined in the Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the Prospectus Directive, subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant Dealer or Dealers nominated by us for any
such offer; or
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e in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive;

o released, issued, distributed or caused to be released, issued or distributed to the public in France; or

e used in connection with any offer for subscription or sale of the Class A ordinary shares to the public in France.
Such offers, sales and distributions will be made in France only:

e to qualified investors (investisseurs qualifiés) and/or to a restricted circle of investors (cercle restreint d’investisseurs), in each case investing for their own account, all as defined in,
and in accordance with articles 1.411-2, D.411-1, D.411-2, D.734-1, D.744-1, D.754-1 and D.764-1 of the French Code monétaire et financier;

e toinvestment services providers authorized to engage in portfolio management on behalf of third parties; or

e in atransaction that, in accordance with article L.411-2-1I-1°-or-2°-or 3° of the French Code monétaire et financier and article 211-2 of the General Regulations (Reéglement Général) of the
Autorité des Marchés Financiers, does not constitute a public offer (appel public a I’épargne).

The Class A ordinary shares may be resold directly or indirectly, only in compliance with articles L.411-1, L.411-2, L.412-1 and L.621-8 through L.621-8-3 of the French Code monétaire et financier.
Germany

This prospectus does not constitute a Prospectus Directive-compliant prospectus in accordance with the German Securities Prospectus Act (Wertpapierprospektgesetz) and does therefore not
allow any public offering in the Federal Republic of Germany (“Germany”) or any other Relevant Member State pursuant to § 17 and § 18 of the German Securities Prospectus Act. No action has
been or will be taken in Germany that would permit a public offering of the Class A ordinary shares, or distribution of a prospectus or any other offering material relating to the Class A ordinary
shares. In particular, no securities prospectus (Wertpapierprospekt) within the meaning of the German Securities Prospectus Act or any other applicable laws of Germany, has been or will be
published within Germany, nor has this prospectus been filed with or approved by the German Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (Bundesanstalt fiir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht) for
publication within Germany.

Each underwriter will represent, agree and undertake, (i) that it has not offered, sold or delivered and will not offer, sell or deliver the Class A ordinary shares within Germany other than in
accordance with the German Securities Prospectus Act (Wertpapierprospektgesetz) and any other applicable laws in Germany governing the issue, sale and offering of Class A ordinary shares,
and (ii) that it will distribute in Germany any offering material relating to the Class A ordinary shares only under circumstances that will result in compliance with the applicable rules and
regulations of Germany.

This prospectus is strictly for use of the person who has received it. It may not be forwarded to other persons or published in Germany.

Hong Kong

The Class A ordinary shares may not be offered or sold in Hong Kong by means of any document other than (i) to “professional investors” as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571) of Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance, or (ii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a “prospectus” as defined in the Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance. No advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Class A
ordinary shares may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to
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be accessed or read by, the public of Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to Class A ordinary shares which are or are
intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to “professional investors” as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance and any rules made under that Ordinance.
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Israel

This prospectus does not constitute a prospectus under the Israeli Securities Law, 5728-1968, and has not been filed with or approved by the Israel Securities Authority. In Israel, this prospectus
is being distributed only to, and is directed only at, investors listed in the first addendum, or the Addendum, to the Israeli Securities Law, consisting primarily of joint investment in trust funds,
provident funds, insurance companies, banks, portfolio managers, investment advisors, members of the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange, underwriters purchasing for their own account, venture capital
funds, entities with equity in excess of NIS 50 million and qualified individuals, each as defined in the Addendum (as it may be amended fromtime to time), collectively referred to as qualified
investors. Qualified investors may be required to submit written confirmation that they meet the criteria for one of the categories of investors set forth in the prospectus.

Italy
The offering of Class A ordinary shares has not been registered with the Commissione Nazionale per le Societa e la Borsa(“CONSOB”) pursuant to Italian securities legislation and,
accordingly, no Class A ordinary shares may be offered, sold or delivered, nor copies of this prospectus or any other documents relating to the Class A ordinary shares may not be distributed in
Italy except:
e to “qualified investors”, as referred to in Article 100 of Legislative Decree No. 58 of 24 February 1998, as amended (the “Decree No. 58”) and defined in Article 26, paragraph 1, letter d) of
CONSOB Regulation No. 16190 of 29 October 2007, as amended (“Regulation No. 16190”) pursuant to Article 34-ter, paragraph 1, letter b) of CONSOB Regulation No. 11971 of 14 May
1999, as amended (“Regulation No. 11971”); or

e in any other circumstances where an express exemption from compliance with the offer restrictions applies, as provided under Decree No. 58 or Regulation No. 11971.

Any offer, sale or delivery of the Class A ordinary shares or distribution of copies of this prospectus or any other documents relating to the Class A ordinary shares in the Republic of Italy must
be:

e made by investment firms, banks or financial intermediaries permitted to conduct such activities in the Republic of Italy in accordance with Legislative Decree No. 385 of 1
September 1993, as amended (the “Banking Law”), Decree No. 58 and Regulation No. 16190 and any other applicable laws and regulations;

e in compliance with Article 129 of the Banking Law, and the implementing guidelines of the Bank of Italy, as amended; and
e in compliance with any other applicable notification requirement or limitation which may be imposed, from time to time, by CONSOB or the Bank of Italy or other competent authority.

Please note that, in accordance with Article 100-bis of Decree No. 58, where no exemption fromthe rules on public offerings applies, the subsequent distribution of the Class A ordinary shares
on the secondary market in Italy must be made in compliance with the public offer and the prospectus requirement rules provided under Decree No. 58 and Regulation No. 11971.

Furthermore, the Class A ordinary shares which are initially offered and placed in Italy or abroad to qualified investors only but in the following year are regularly (“sistematicamente’)
distributed on the secondary market in Italy to non-qualified investors become subject to the public offer and the prospectus requirement rules provided under Decree No. 58 and Regulation No.
11971. Failure to comply with such rules may result in the sale of the Class A ordinary shares being declared null and void and in the liability of the intermediary transferring the Class A ordinary

shares for any damages suffered by such non-qualified investors.

Japan

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 214/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

The Class A ordinary shares have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan (Law No. 25 of 1948, as amended) and accordingly, will not be
offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in Japan, or for the benefit of any Japanese Person or to others for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to any Japanese Person, except in
compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines promulgated by relevant Japanese governmental or regulatory authorities in effect at the relevant time. For the purposes
of'this paragraph, “Japanese Person” shall mean any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan.
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Kuwait

Unless all necessary approvals fromthe Kuwait Ministry of Commerce and Industry required by Law No. 31/1990 “Regulating the Negotiation of Securities and Establishment of Investment
Funds,” its Executive Regulations and the various Ministerial Orders issued pursuant thereto or in connection therewith, have been given in relation to the marketing and sale ofthe Class A
ordinary shares, these may not be marketed, offered for sale, nor sold in the State of Kuwait. Neither this prospectus (including any related document), nor any of the information contained
therein is intended to lead to the conclusion of any contract of whatsoever nature within Kuwait.

PRC
This prospectus has not been and will not be circulated or distributed in the PRC, and the Class A ordinary shares may not be offered or sold, and will not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly,
to any resident of the PRC or to persons for re-offering or resale, directly or indirectly, to any resident of the PRC except pursuant to applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. For the purpose
of this paragraph, the PRC does not include Taiwan and the Special Administrative Regions of Hong Kong and Macao.
Qatar
The Class A ordinary shares have not been and will not be offered, sold or delivered at any time, directly or indirectly, in the State of Qatar (“Qatar”) in a manner that would constitute a public
offering. This prospectus has not been reviewed or approved by or registered with the Qatar Central Bank, the Qatar Exchange or the Qatar Financial Markets Authority. This prospectus is
strictly private and confidential, and may not be reproduced or used for any other purpose, nor provided to any person other than the recipient thereof.
Saudi Arabia
This prospectus may not be distributed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia except to such persons as are permitted under the Offers of Securities Regulations issued by the Capital Market
Authority. The Capital Market Authority does not make any representation as to the accuracy or completeness of this prospectus, and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
arising from, or incurred in reliance upon, any part of this prospectus. Prospective purchasers of the securities offered hereby should conduct their own due diligence on the accuracy of the
information relating to the securities. If you do not understand the contents of this prospectus you should consult an authorized financial adviser.
Singapore
This prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this prospectus and any other document or material in connection with the
offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of Class A ordinary shares may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the Class A ordinary shares be offered or sold, or be made the
subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than

e to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the “SFA”),

e toarelevant person pursuant to Section 275(1), or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275, of the SFA, or

o otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the Class A ordinary shares are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which is:

e acorporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned
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by one or more individuals, each of whomis an accredited investor; or
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e atrust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor,
securities (as defined in Section 239(1) of the SFA) of that corporation or the beneficiaries’ rights and interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferred within
sixmonths after that corporation or that trust has acquired the Class A ordinary shares pursuant to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA except:

(a) to an institutional investor or to a relevant person defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA, or to any person arising from an offer referred to in Section 275(1A) or Section 276(4)(i)(B) of
the SFA;

(b) where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer;

(c) where the transfer is by operation of law;

(d) as specified in Section 276(7) of the SFA; or

(e) as specified in Regulation 32 of the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Shares and Debentures) Regulations 2005 of Singapore.
Switzerland

This document is not intended to constitute an offer or solicitation to purchase or invest in the Class A ordinary shares described herein. The Class A ordinary shares may not be publicly
offered, sold or advertised, directly or indirectly, in, into or from Switzerland and will not be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange or on any other exchange or regulated trading facility in Switzerland.
Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the Class A ordinary shares constitutes a prospectus as such termis understood pursuant to article 652a or article
1156 of the Swiss Code of Obligations or a listing prospectus within the meaning of the listing rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange or any other regulated trading facility in Switzerland, and neither
this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the Class A ordinary shares may be publicly distributed or otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland.

Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the offering, nor the Company nor the Class A ordinary shares have been or will be filed with or approved by any
Swiss regulatory authority. The Class A ordinary shares are not subject to the supervision by any Swiss regulatory authority, e.g., the Swiss Financial Markets Supervisory Authority FINMA
(FINMA), and investors in the Class A ordinary shares will not benefit from protection or supervision by such authority.

Taiwan

The Class A ordinary shares have not been and will not be registered or filed with, or approved by, the Financial Supervisory Commission of Taiwan pursuant to relevant securities laws and
regulations and may not be offered or sold in Taiwan through a public offering or in circumstances which constitute an offer within the meaning of the Securities and Exchange Act of Taiwan or
relevant laws and regulations that require a registration, filing or approval of the Financial Supervisory Commission of Taiwan. No person or entity in Taiwan has been authorized to offer or sell
the Class A ordinary shares in Taiwan.

United Arab Emirates
(Excluding the Dubai International Financial Center)
The Class A ordinary shares have not been, and are not being, publicly offered, sold, promoted or advertised in the United Arab Emirates (“U.A.E.”) other than in compliance with the laws of the

U.A E. Prospective investors in the Dubai International Financial Centre should have regard to the specific selling restrictions on prospective investors in the Dubai International Financial
Centre set out below.
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The information contained in this prospectus does not constitute a public offer of Class A ordinary shares in the U.A E. in accordance with the Commercial Companies Law (Federal Law No. 8 of
1984 of the U.A.E., as amended) or otherwise and is not intended to be a public offer. This prospectus has not been approved by or filed with the Central Bank of the United Arab Emirates, the
Emirates Securities and Commodities Authority or the Dubai Financial Services Authority, or DFSA. If you do not understand the contents of this prospectus, you should consult an authorized
financial adviser. This prospectus is provided for the benefit of the recipient only, and should not be delivered to, or relied on by, any other person.
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EXPENSES RELATED TO THIS OFFERING

Set forth below is an itemization of our total expenses, excluding underwriting discounts and commissions, which are expected to be incurred in connection with the offer and sale of the Class A
ordinary shares by us. With the exception of the SEC registration fee, the FINRA filing fee and the [Nasdaq/NYSE] listing fee, all amounts are estimates.

Amount

SEC registration fee $
FINRA filing fee

[Nasdaq/NYSE] listing fee

Accounting fees and expenses

Legal fees and expenses

Printing fees and expenses

Miscellaneous

TOTAL $
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LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters as to the United States federal and New York law in connection with this offering will be passed upon for us by Bevilacqua PLLC. Certain legal matters as to the

United States federal and New York law in connection with this offering will be passed upon for the underwriter by Ellenoff Grossman & Schole LLP. The validity of the Class A ordinary shares
offered in this offering and certain other legal matters as to Cayman Islands law will be passed upon for us by Conyers Dill & Pearman. Legal matters as to PRC laws will be passed upon for us by
Commerce & Finance Law Offices, and for the underwriter by B&D Law Firm. Bevilacqua PLLC may rely upon Conyers Dill & Pearman with respect to matters governed by Cayman Islands law
and Commerce & Finance Law Offices with respect to matters governed by PRC law. Ellenoff Grossman & Schole LLP may rely upon B&D Law Firm with respect to matters governed by PRC law.
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EXPERTS
Our consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2018 and 2017 and for the years then ended included in this prospectus have been audited by Marcum Bermstein & Pinchuk LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing herein. Such financial statements are included in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority

as experts in accounting and auditing.

The offices of Marcum Bernstein & Pinchuk LLP are located at Suite 830, 7 Penn Plaza, New York, New York, 10001.
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form F-1, including relevant exhibits and schedules, under the Securities Act with respect to the class A ordinary shares to be sold in this
offering. This prospectus, which constitutes a part of the registration statement, does not contain all of the information contained in the registration statement. You should read the registration
statement on Form F-1 and its exhibits and schedules for further information with respect to us and the Class A ordinary shares.

Immediately upon completion of this offering, we will become subject to periodic reporting and other informational requirements of the Exchange Act as applicable to foreign private issuers.
Accordingly, we will be required to file reports, including annual reports on Form 20-F, and other information with the SEC. The SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC. The address of the website is www.sec.gov. Additionally, we will make these filings
available, free of charge, on our website at http://www.lohas.sh/en as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such materials with, or furnish themto, the SEC. The information
on our website, other than these filings, is not, and should not be, considered part of this prospectus and is not incorporated by reference into this document.

As a foreign private issuer, we are exempt fromthe rules of the Exchange Act prescribing the furnishing and content of proxy statements to shareholders, and our executive officers, directors and

principal shareholders are exempt fromthe reporting and short-swing profit recovery provisions contained in Section 16 of the Exchange Act. In addition, we will not be required under the
Exchange Act to file periodic reports and financial statements with the SEC as frequently or as promptly as U.S. companies whose securities are registered under the Exchange Act.
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MARCUMB

ACCOUNTAMTS 2 ADVISORS

T

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGIS TERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
LOHA CO.,LTD

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of LOHA CO., LTD (the “Company”) as of September 30, 2017 and 2018, the related consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended September 30, 2018, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial
statements”). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2017 and 2018, and the results of'its
operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended September 30, 2018, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a
public accounting firmregistered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and performthe audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

/s/ Marcum Bemnstein & Pinchuk LLP
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2018.

New York, New York
August 30,2019
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LOHA CO., LTD
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

As of September 30,

2017 2018
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 635 882
Restricted cash 121 80
Accounts receivable, net 2,955 7,463
Inventories 4,147 3,065
Advance to suppliers, net 14,516 21,274
Amounts due fromrelated parties 1,769 1,844
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 466 40
Total current assets 24,609 34,648
Property and equipment, net 86 41
Deferred taxassets, net 28 92
Other non-current assets 71 68
TOTAL ASSETS $ 247194 34,849
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans $ - 240
Accounts payable 2,163 1,396
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 184 191
Advance from customers 1,429 3,578
Amounts due to a related party 274 805
Income tax payable 179 437
Total current liabilities 4,229 6,647
Total liabilities 4229 6,647
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity
Class A ordinary shares ($0.0001 par value; 481,000,000 shares authorized; 35,744,546 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2017
and 2018, respectively) * 4 4
Class B ordinary shares ($0.0001 par value; 19,000,000 shares authorized; 19,000,000 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2017 and 2 2
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2019/12/10
2018, respectively) *
Subscription receivable ©6) 6)
Additional paid-in capital 9,452 9,452
Statutory reserve 1,162 2,040
Retained earmings 10,453 18,356
Accunmulated other comprehensive loss (502) (1,646)
Total shareholders’ equity 20,565 28,202
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 24,794 $ 34,849
*  The shares and per share data are presented on a retroactive basis to reflect the reorganization (Note 10).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
F-3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net revenue
Less: Cost of revenue
Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling expenses

General and administrative expenses
Total operating expenses

Income from operations

Other income:
Other income, net

Interest expense, net
Total other income

Income before income tax expense

Income taxexpense

Net income

Other Comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation gain (loss), net of nil income taxes

Total comprehensive income

Earnings per ordinary share *
Basic and diluted

Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding*
Basic and diluted

LOHA CO., LTD

(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

*  The shares and per share data are presented on a retroactive basis to reflect the reorganization (Note 10).
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For the years ended

September 30,
2017 2018
57266 $ 85,186
48,779 70,627
8,487 14,559
1,328 2,682
1,457 1,638
2,785 4,320
5,702 10,239
407 143
€) (18)
404 125
6,106 10,364
962 1,583
5144  § 8,781
228 (1,144)
5372 $ 7,637
009 § 0.16
54,744,546 54,744,546
229/311
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LOHA CO., LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

Accumulated
Class A ordinary Class B ordinary Additional other
shares shares Subscription paid-in Statutory ~ Accumulated comprehensive Total
Shares * Amount Shares * Amount receivable capital reserve profit income (loss) equity

Balance as of September 30,2016 35,744,546 § 4 19,000,000 $ 2 8 © $ 9452 § 647 § 584  $ (7300 $§ 15193
Net income - - - - - - - 5,144 - 5,144
Statutory reserve - - - - - - 515 (515) - -
Foreign currency translation

adjustment - - - - - - - 228 228
Balance as of September 30,2017 35,744,546 $ 4 19,000,000 $ 2 3 6 $ 9452  $ 1,162 $ 10453 $ (502) $ 20,565
Net income - - - - - - - 8,781 - 8,781
Statutory reserve - - - - - - 878 (878) - -
Foreign currency translation

adjustment - - - - - - - - (1,144) (1,144)
Balance as of September 30,2018 35744546 § 4 19,000,000 $ 2 3 © $ 9452 $ 2040 $ 18356  $ (1,6460) $ 28202
*  The shares and per share data are presented on a retroactive basis to reflect the reorganization (Note 10).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
F-5
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income
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LOHA CO., LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In U.S. dollars in thousands)

For the years ended

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred tax provision

Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Advance to suppliers
Amounts due fromrelated parties
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other non-current assets
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Advance from customers
Amounts due to a related party
Income tax payable

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceed fromdisposal of property and equipment
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES::

Proceeds from short-term borrowings
Repayments of short-term borrowings
Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes

September 30,
2017 2018
$ 5144  $ 8,781
185 450
34 25
27 (68)
2,923 (5,294)
(2,477) 983
(8,965) (7,633)
172 (144)
(€1)) 430
(69) -
1,685 (726)
140 12
502 2,309
267 568
(112) 278
(629) (29)
(66) (38)
58
(66) 20
- 458
- (206)
- 252
® (37
232/311
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Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (704) 206
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, at beginning of year 1,460 756
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, at end of year $ 756§ 962

SUPPLEMENTAL DIS CLOS URE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Income tax paid $ 1,101 $ 1,374
Interests paid $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Loha Co., Ltd (“Loha”), its subsidiaries and variable interest entity (“VIE”) of which Loha or its
subsidiaries are the primary beneficiaries. Loha, its subsidiaries and VIE are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Company”.

Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Lohas Agricultural’), which was incorporated in Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC on November 21, 2013, is mainly engaged in
development, operation and maintenance of software related to e-commerce platform.

Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (“Lohas Supply Chain”), which was incorporated in Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC on May 28, 2014, is mainly engaged in purchase, sales
and distribution of high-end quality products primarily including imported fruits, wild seafood, vegetables and eggs, as well as nutritious dry food products. Lohas Supply Chain was
formerly wholly owned by Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. Lohas Agricultural acquired Lohas Supply Chain from Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. on March 27, 2019.

On January 10, 2019, Loha was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

On February 8, 2019, Lohas World Co., Ltd (“Lohas BVI”’) was established as a wholly-owned subsidiary in the British Virgin Islands. Lohas BVI is a holding company and holds all of the
equity interests of Lohas (Global) Group Co., Limited.

On May 3, 2019, Lohas BVI incorporated Lohas (Global) Group Co., Limited (“Lohas HK”), a holding company formed in accordance with laws and regulations of Hong Kong, and holds all
of'the equity interests of Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd (“Lohas WFOE”), which was established in the PRC on March 11, 2019.

Reorganization

In anticipation of an initial public offering (“IPO”) of its equity securities, Loha undertook a reorganization and became the ultimate holding company of Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas
WFOE, which were under same ultimate controlling shareholder before and after the reorganization. Details of the subsidiaries and VIE of Loha are set out below:
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES - continued

Percentage of

Date of Place of effective Principal

Name Incorporation incorporation ownership Activities

Wholly owned subsidiaries

Lohas World Co., L td February 8,2019 BVI 100% Holding company of Lohas HK

Lohas (Global) Group Co., Limited May 3, 2019 Hong Kong 100% Holding company of Lohas WFOE

Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology March 11,2019 PRC 100% Technical support, consulting and other
Co., Itd services

VIE and wholly owned subsidiary of VIE

Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., November 21, 2013 PRC VIE Development, operation and maintenance of
Ltd software

Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., May 28, 2014 PRC Wholly owned subsidiary of ~ Purchase, sales and distribution of high-end
Ltd VIE quality products such as imported fruits

Effective on August 16, 2019, Lohas Agricultural, shareholders of Lohas Agricultural and Lohas WFOE entered into a series of contractual agreements (the “VIE Agreements” which are
described below). As a result, Loha, through its wholly owned subsidiaries Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas WFOE, has been determined to be the primary beneficiary of Lohas Agricultural
and Lohas Agricultural became the VIE of Loha. Accordingly, the Company consolidates Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary Lohas Supply Chain’s results of operations, assets and
liabilities and cash flows.

Immediately before and after reorganization completed on August 16, 2019 as describe above, Loha together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas WFOE and
its VIE were effectively controlled by the same shareholders; therefore, the reorganization was accounted for as a recapitalization. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
been prepared as if the current corporate structure has been in existence throughout the periods presented. The consolidation of the Company has been accounted for at historical cost at
the beginning of the first period presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES - continued

The VIE Agreements

The PRC government regulates value-added telecommunication businesses through strict business licensing requirements and other government regulations. These laws and regulations
also include limitations on foreign ownership of PRC companies that engage in value-added telecommunication businesses. Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas WFOE (their PRC subsidiary)
are considered as foreign invested enterprises. To comply with these regulations, Loha conducts the majority of its activities in PRC through its VIE Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary
Lohas Supply Chain.

Lohas WFOE has entered into the following contractual arrangements with Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders, that enable Loha to (i) have power to direct the activities that most
significantly affect the performance of Lohas Agricultural, and (ii) receive the benefits of Lohas Agricultural that could be significant to Lohas Agricultural. Loha is fully and exclusively
responsible for the management of Lohas Agricultural, absorbs all risk of losses of Lohas Agricultural and has the exclusive right to exercise all voting rights of Lohas Agricultural’s
shareholders. Therefore, in accordance with ASC 810 “Consolidation”, Loha is considered as the primary beneficiary of Lohas Agricultural and has consolidated Lohas Agricultural’s assets,
liabilities, results of operations, and cash flows in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Shareholders’ Voting Rights Proxy Agreement

On August 16, 2019, each shareholder of Lohas Agricultural, executed Shareholders’ Wting Rights Proxy Agreement with Lohas WFOE and Lohas Agricultural, whereby sharcholders of
Lohas Agricultural irrevocably authorized Lohas WFOE or any person(s) designated by Lohas WFOE to act as its attorney-in-fact to exercise all of its rights as a shareholder of Lohas
Agricultural, including, but not limited to, the right to convene sharecholders’ meetings, vote and sign any resolution as a shareholder, appoint directors and other senior executives to be
appointed and removed by the shareholder, the right to sell, transfer, pledge and dispose of all or a portion of the shares held by such shareholder, and other shareholders voting rights
permitted by the articles of association of Lohas Agricultural. The termof'this agreement is for ten years. Unless Lohas WFOE gives a non-renewal notice 30 days prior to the expiration, this
agreement will be renewed automatically for successive ten years.

Exclusive Option Agreement

Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders have entered into an Exclusive Option Agreement with Lohas WFOE on August 16, 2019. Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement among Lohas
WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders, the shareholders irrevocably granted Lohas WFOE or any third party designated by Lohas WFOE an exclusive option to purchase all or part
of their equity interests in Lohas Agricultural at a price of RMBO0.01 (approximately $0.0015) for each purchase; provided that if the lowest price permitted by applicable PRC laws is greater
than RMBO0.01, then that price shall apply. The shareholders further agreed that they will neither create any pledge or encumbrance on their equity interests in Lohas Agricultural, nor
transfer, gift or otherwise dispose of their equity interests in Lohas Agricultural to any person other than Lohas WFOE or its designated third party. The shareholders and Lohas Agricultural
agreed that they will operate Lohas Agricultural’s business in the ordinary course and maintain the asset value of Lohas Agricultural and refrain fromany actions or omissions that may
affect Lohas Agricultural’s operating status and asset value. Furthermore, without Lohas WFOE’s prior written consent, the shareholders and Lohas Agricultural agreed not to, among other
things: amend the articles of association of Lohas Agricultural; increase or decrease the registered capital of Lohas Agricultural; sell, transfer, mortgage or dispose of in any manner any
material assets of Lohas Agricultural or legal or beneficial interest in the material business or revenues of Lohas Agricultural; merge, consolidate with, acquire or invest in any person, or
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provide any loans; or distribute dividends. The term of this agreement is for ten years. Unless Lohas WFOE gives a non-renewal notice prior to the expiration, this agreement will be renewed
automatically for successive ten years until all equity interests have been transferred or assigned in accordance with the agreement.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES - continued
Exclusive Consultation and Service Agreement

On August 16, 2019, Lohas WFOE entered into an Exclusive Consultation and Service Agreement with Lohas Agricultural, pursuant to which Lohas WFOE or its designated person has the
exclusive right to provide Lohas Agricultural with technical support, consulting and other services in return for certain fees which are equal to net income of VIE and its subsidiary after
making up for the losses of previous years (if necessary) and appropriating necessary costs, expenses, taxes and statutory reserve. Without Lohas WFOE’s prior written consent, Lohas
Agricultural may not accept any services subject to this agreement fromany third party. Lohas WFOE will have the exclusive ownership of all intellectual property rights created as a result
of the performance of this agreement. The termof this agreement is for ten years. Unless Lohas WFOE gives a non-renewal notice 30 days prior to the expiration, this agreement will be
renewed automatically for successive ten years.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Under the Equity Interest Pledge Agreement dated August 16,2019 by and among Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and its sharcholders, the shareholders of Lohas Agricultural have
agreed to pledge 100% equity interest in Lohas Agricultural to Lohas WFOE to guarantee the performance by Lohas Agricultural and its shareholders of their obligations under the
Shareholders’ Woting Rights Proxy Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement, the Exclusive Consultation and Service Agreement and the Exclusive Option Agreement. If Lohas Agricultural
orits shareholders breach their contractual obligations under these agreements, Lohas WFOE, as pledgee, will have the right to dispose of the pledged equity interests in Lohas Agricultural
and will have priority in receiving the proceeds fromsuch disposal. The shareholders also agreed that, without prior written consent of Lohas WFOE, they will not dispose of the pledged
equity interests or create or allow any encumbrance on the pledged equity interests. The pledge of equity interests in Lohas Agricultural has been registered with the relevant office of the
State Administration for Industry and Commerce in accordance with the PRC Property Rights Law.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES - continued

Risks in relation to the VIE structure

Loha believes that the contractual arrangements with its VIE and their respective shareholders are in compliance with PRC laws and regulations and are legally enforceable. However,
uncertainties in the PRC legal system could limit Loha’s ability to enforce the contractual arrangements. If the legal structure and contractual arrangements were found to be in violation of
PRC laws and regulations, the PRC government could, among others:

e revoke business and operating licenses of Loha’s PRC subsidiary and VIE;

levy fines on Loha’s PRC subsidiary and VIE;

e confiscate any income of Loha’s PRC subsidiary and VIE that they deemto be obtained through illegal operations;
o shut down services of Loha’s PRC subsidiary and VIE;

e discontinue or restrict Loha’s PRC subsidiary and VIE’s operations in China;

e impose conditions or requirements with which Loha’s PRC subsidiary and VIE may not be able to comply;

e require Loha or Loha’s PRC subsidiary and VIE to restructure the relevant ownership structure or operations;

e restrict or prohibit Loha’s use of the proceeds of the additional public offering to finance Loha’s business and operations in China; and

take other regulatory or enforcement actions that could be harmful to Loha’s or Loha’s PRC subsidiary and VIE’s business.

Loha’s ability to conduct its business may be negatively affected if the PRC government were to carry out of any of the aforementioned actions. As a result, Loha may not be able to
consolidate its VIE in its consolidated financial statements as it may lose the ability to exert effective control over the VIE and their respective shareholders and it may lose the ability to
receive economic benefits fromthe VIE. Loha, however, does not believe such actions would result in the liquidation or dissolution of Loha, its PRC subsidiary and VIE.

The interests of the shareholders of VIE may diverge fromthat of Loha and that may potentially increase the risk that they would seek to act contrary to the contractual terms, for example by
influencing VIE not to pay the service fees when required to do so. Loha cannot assure that when conflicts of interest arise, shareholders of VIE will act in the best interests of Loha or that
conflicts of interests will be resolved in Loha’s favor. Loha believes the shareholders of VIE will not act contrary to any of the contractual arrangements and the exclusive option agreements
provide Loha with a mechanismto remove the current shareholders of VIE should they act to the detriment of Loha. Loha relies on certain current shareholders of VIE to fulfill their fiduciary
duties and abide by laws of the PRC and act in the best interest of Loha. If Loha cannot resolve any conflicts of interest or disputes between Loha and the shareholders of VIE, Loha would
have to rely on legal proceedings, which could result in disruption ofits business, and there is substantial uncertainty as to the outcome of any such legal proceedings.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES - continued

Total assets and liabilities presented on Loha’s consolidated balance sheets and revenues, expenses, net incomes presented on consolidated statements of income as well as the cash flows
fromoperating, investing and financing activities presented on the consolidated statements of cash flows are substantially the financial positions, income and cash flows of Loha’s VIE,
Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary Lohas Supply Chain. Loha has not provided any financial support to Lohas Agricultural for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018. The
following financial information of the VIE and the wholly owned subsidiary of VIE were included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of September 30, 2017 and 2018
and for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018:

As of September, 30
2017 2018

Total assets $ 24794 $ 34,849
Total liabilities $ 4229 $ 6,647

For the years ended September, 30

2017 2018
Total net revenue $ 57266 $ 85,186
Net income $ 5144  $ 8,781
Net cash used in operating activities $ (629) $ (29)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities $ (66) $ 20
Net cash provided by financing activities $ - 8 252
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”). The
consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries, its VIE and its VIE’s subsidiary. All inter-company transactions and balances have been
eliminated upon consolidation.
(b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and accompanying notes, including
allowance for doubtful accounts, net realizable value of inventories, the useful lives of property and equipment, impairment of long-lived assets and valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets. Actual results could differ fromthose estimates.

(¢) Fair Value Measurement

The Company applies ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands financial statement
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements.

ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received fromthe sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) on the measurement date in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques, which is based on whether the inputs into the valuation technique are observable or unobservable. The hierarchy is as follows:
Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instruments.

Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value. Unobservable inputs are valuation technique inputs that reflect the Company’s own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

Management of the Company is responsible for considering the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets, short-term
loans, accounts payable, advance from customers, accrued expenses and other current liabilities and income tax payable based on the short-term maturity of these instruments to
approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, the Company’s demand deposit placed with financial institutions, which have original maturities of less than three months and
unrestricted as to withdrawal and use.

(e) Restricted cash

Restricted cash relates to government appropriation deposited in bank, which will be released upon satisfaction of agreed criteria.

() Accounts Receivable, net

The Company maintains allowance for potential credit losses on accounts receivable. Management reviews the composition of accounts receivable and analyzes historical bad debt,
customer concentrations, customer credit worthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer payment patterns to estimate the allowance. Past due accounts generally written off
against the allowance for bad debts only after all collection attempts have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote.

(g) Inventories

Inventories, primarily consisting of fruit, are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of inventory is determined using the weighted average cost method. Adjustments are
recorded to write down the cost of inventory to the estimated net realizable value due to slow-moving merchandise and damaged products, which is dependent upon factors such as
historical and forecasted consumer demand, and promotional environment. The Company compares the cost of inventory with its net realizable value and an adjustment is made to write
down inventory to net realizable value, if lower. There were no impairment provided for the inventories for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018.

(h) Advance to supplier, net

Advance to suppliers primarily consists of the prepayments to farms, import agents or other large-scale suppliers. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to state

prepayments at their estimated realizable value based on a variety of factors, including the possibility of releasing the prepayments into inventories and the aging of the prepayments,
significant one-time events, and historical experience.
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2.

LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(i) Property and equipment, net

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment. Property and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their costs less
impairment and residual value, if any, over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Category Estimated useful lives
Electronic device 3 years
Office equipment S years
Motor vehicle Syears

Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expenses as incurred, whereas the cost of renewals and betterment that extends the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized as
additions to the related assets. Retirements, sales and disposals of assets are recorded by removing the costs, accumulated depreciation and impairment with any resulting gain or loss
recognized in the consolidated statements of income

(j) Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may no longer be recoverable. When
these events occur, the Company measures impairment by comparing the carrying value of the long-lived assets to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result fromthe
use of the assets and their eventual disposition. If the sumof the expected undiscounted cash flow is less than the carrying amount of the assets, the Company would recognize an
impairment loss, which is the excess of carrying amount over the fair value of the assets, using the expected future discounted cash flows. No impairments of long-lived assets were
recognized as of September 30, 2017 and 2018.

(k) Commitments and contingencies

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to commitments and contingencies, including operating lease commitments, legal proceedings and claims arising out of'its business
that relate to a wide range of matters, such as government investigations and tax matters. The Company recognizes a liability for such contingency if it determines it is probable that a loss
has occurred and a reasonable estimate of the loss can be made. The Company may consider many factors in making these assessments including historical and the specific facts and
circumstances of each matter.

(1) Revenue Recognition
The Company early adopted the new revenue standard Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, starting October 1, 2016 using the

modified retrospective method for contracts that were not completed as of October 1, 2017. The Company has assessed the impact of the guidance by reviewing its existing customer
contracts and current accounting policies and practices to identify differences that will result fromapplying the new requirements, including the evaluation of its performance obligations,
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transaction price, customer payments, transfer of control and principal versus agent considerations. Based on the assessment, the Company concluded that there was no change to the
timing and pattern of revenue recognition for its current revenue streams in scope of ASC 605 and the adoption of this new guidance did not result in a cumulative effect to the opening
balance sheet of retained earmings on the adoption date.
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2.

LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The core principle of the new revenue standard is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those products or services. The following five steps are applied to achieve that core principle:

Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognize revenue when the company satisfies a performance obligation

Net revenue consists of revenue fromthe sales of products, right to use e-commerce platform, and other services. The Company recognizes revenue at the amount to which it expects to be
entitled when control of the products or services is transferred to its customers. Control is generally transferred when the Company has a present right to payment and title and the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of products or services are transferred to its customers. Payment for products and services sales is collected within a short period of time
following transfer of control or in advance to transfer of control of products, or at the commencement of delivery of services, as applicable.

The Company identifies three performance obligations for arrangements with city distributors, which are sales of products, right to use e-commerce platform, and other services. While for
arrangements with customers other than city distributor, the Company identifies only one performance obligation, which is sales of products. The Company allocates revenue to all distinct

performance obligations based on their relative estimated stand-alone selling prices.

Sales of products. Sales of products represent sales of products (mainly imported fruit) to the city distributors, wholesalers and other retailers. Revenue allocated to the sales of products is
recognized when control has transferred to the city distributor. Control transfers upon the delivery by the self-own logistics or the entrusted third-party logistics company to the customers.

Right to use e-commerce platform. The Company granted a perpetual license to the city distributors to use the Company’s intellectual properties. Revenue allocated to the right to use e-
commerce platformis recognized when control has transferred to the city distributor. Control transfers upon the license is granted.

Other services. Other services are mainly derived fromtechnical service provided to the city distributors. Technical service refers to e-commerce platform maintenance service and software
upgrade service and will be provided continuously over the estimated service period. The Company recognizes revenues allocated to the other services ratably over the estimated service
period.

The Company is a principal because the Company controls the promised products or services before transferring. No right of return or warranty is offered to customers when they obtained
the control of the products or services.
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The following table identifies the disaggregation of our revenue for the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively:
For the years ended September, 30

2017 2018
Sales of products $ 55,694 $ 83,626
Right to use e-commerce platform 801 870
Other service fee or technical service fee 771 690
Total $ 57,266 $ 85,186

Shipping and handling activities are performed before the customer obtains control of the good, and they are not a separate performance obligation. The Company accounts for the pertinent
shipping and handling costs in selling expenses of products sold.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient in paragraph ASC 606-10-50-14 and does not disclose information about remaining performance obligations in (i) contracts that
have an original expected length of one year or less; and (ii) contracts where revenue is recognized as invoiced.

Timing of revenue recognition may differ fromthe timing of invoicing to customers. Accounts receivable represent amounts invoiced and revenue recognized prior to invoicing when the
Company has satisfied the Company’s performance obligation and has the unconditional right to payment. The allowance for doubtful accounts and authorized credits is estimated based
upon the Company’s assessment of various factors including historical experience, the age of the accounts receivable balances, current economic conditions and other factors that may
affect the Company’s customers’ ability to pay. The balance of accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts were $2,955 and $7,463 as of September 30, 2017 and 2018,
respectively.

Unearned revenue consists of payments received related to unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the period, included in advance from customers in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets. The advance from customers as of September 30, 2017 and 2018 were $1,429 and $3,578, respectively.

The Company applied a practical expedient to expense costs as incurred for costs to obtain a contract with a customer when the amortization period would have been one year or less. The
Company has no material incremental costs of obtaining contracts with customers that the Company expects the benefit of those costs to be longer than one year which need to be
recognized as assets.

(m) Cost of sales

Cost of sales mainly consists of cost of products purchased from farms and distributors, staff cost of technical service and other services.

(n) Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing net income attributable to ordinary sharcholders by the weighted average ordinary shares outstanding during the periods. Diluted earnings
per share is calculated by dividing net income attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average ordinary shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the effect of dilutive
ordinary share equivalent (computed using the treasury stock or if converted method). Potential ordinary shares that have an anti-dilutive effect (i.e., those that increase income per share or
decrease loss per share) are excluded fromthe calculation of diluted earnings per share. For the years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, the Company had no dilutive shares.

(o) Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under ASC 740. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective taxbases.

Deferred taxassets and liabilities are measured using enacted taxrates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or
settled. The effect on deferred taxassets and liabilities of a change in taxrates is recognized in income in the period including the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established, when
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necessary, to reduce deferred taxassets to the amount expected to be realized. Current income taxes are provided for in accordance with the laws of the relevant taxing authorities.

The provisions of ASC 740-10-25, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” prescribe a more-likely-than-not threshold for consolidated financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken (or expected to be taken) in a taxreturn. This interpretation also provides guidance on the recognition of income tax assets and liabilities, classification of
current and deferred income taxassets and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions, and related disclosures. The Company’s operating subsidiaries in
PRC are subject to examination by the relevant tax authorities. According to the PRC Tax Administration and Collection Law, the statute of limitations is three years if the underpayment of
taxes is due to computational errors made by the taxpayer or the withholding agent. The statute of limitations is extended to five years under special circumstances, where the underpayment
oftaxes is more than RMB 100,000 (§14,537). In the case of transfer pricing issues, the statute of limitation is ten years. There is no statute of limitation in the case of tax evasion. Penalties
and interest incurred related to underpayment of income tax are classified as income tax expense in the period incurred.

F-17

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 250/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

The Company did not accrue any liability, interest or penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its provision for income taxes line of its consolidated statements of income for the years
ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively. The Company does not expect that its assessment regarding unrecognized tax positions will materially change over the next 12 months. On
October 21, 2019, Shenzhen Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone Administration issued a notice confirming that the business of Lohas Supply Chain
satisfies relevant modern logistic industry requirements under The Catalogue of the Preferential Enterprise Income Tax for Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry
Cooperation Zone.

(p) Value added tax (“VAT”)

The Company is subject to VAT and related surcharges on revenue generated fromsales of fruit and products. The Company records revenue net of VAT. This VAT may be offset by
qualified input VAT paid by the Company to suppliers. Net VAT balance between input VAT and output VAT is recorded in the line item of accrued expenses and other current liabilities on
the consolidated balance sheets.

The VAT rate is 17% for taxpayers selling products, labor services, or tangible movable property leasing services or importing products, except otherwise specified in the PRC prior to May 1,
2018, and 16% on and after May 1, 2018; the VAT rates for taxpayers selling Agricultural products are 13%, 11% and 10%, prior to July 1, 2017, on and after July 2017 1, to April 2018, on and
after May 1, 2018, respectively. The Company is also subject to surcharges of sales according to PRC tax law.

(q) Foreign currency translation

The Company’s principal country of operations is the PRC. The financial position and results of'its operations are determined using RMB, the local currency, as the functional currency. The
Company’s financial statements are reported using U.S. Dollars (“US$”). The results of operations and the consolidated statements of cash flows denominated in foreign currency are
translated at the average rate of exchange during the reporting period. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable rates
of exchange in effect at that date. The equity denominated in the functional currency is translated at the historical rate of exchange at the time of capital contribution. Because cash flows are
translated based on the average translation rate, amounts related to assets and liabilities reported on the consolidated statements of cash flows will not necessarily agree with changes in the
corresponding balances on the consolidated balance sheets. Translation adjustments arising fromthe use of different exchange rates fromperiod to period are included as a separate
component of accunulated other comprehensive income (loss) included in consolidated statements of changes in equity. Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in
the results of operations.

The value of RMB against US$ and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, changes in the PRC’s political and economic conditions. Any significant
revaluation of RMB may materially affect the Company’s financial condition in terms of USS$ reporting. The following table outlines the currency exchange rates that were used in creating the
consolidated financial statements:

As of September 30,
2018 2017
Balance sheet items, except for equity accounts 6.8792 6.6369
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For the Years Ended September 30,
2018 2017
Items in the statements of income and comprehensive income, and statements of cash flows 6.5516 6.8099

No representation is made that the RMB amounts could have been, or could be, converted into U.S. dollars at the rates used in translation.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
(r) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued, ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)”, which supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in ASC 605, Revenue
Recognition. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those products or services. The accounting guidance also requires additional disclosure regarding the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs
incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. ASU 2014-09 can be adopted using one of two retrospective application methods.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), Deferral of the Effective Date”, which defers the effective date of ASU 2014-09 by one
year.

In March 2016, the FASB issued an amendment to the standard, ASU 2016-08, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent Considerations” Under the
amendment, an entity is required to determine whether the nature of'its promise is to provide the specified good or service itself (that is, the entity is a principal) or to arrange for that good or
service to be provided by the other party (as an agent).

In April 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-10, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing”, to clarify identifying performance
obligations and the licensing implementation guidance, which retaining the related principles for those areas.

In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-12, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients”. This update addresses narrow-
scope improvements to the guidance on collectability, noncash consideration and completed contracts at transition. The update provides a practical expedient for contract modifications at
transition and an accounting policy election related to the presentation of sales taxes and other similar taxes collected from customers.

In December 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-20, “Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. The updates in ASU 2016-20 affect
narrow aspects of the guidance issued in ASU 2014-09.

The Company early adopted the new revenue standard Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, starting October 1, 2016 using the

modified retrospective method for contracts that were not completed as of October 1, 2017. The adoption of this ASC 606 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842)”. It requires that a lessee recognize the assets and liabilities that arise from operating leases. A lessee should recognize
in the statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. For
leases with a term of 12 months or less, a lessee is permitted to make an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease assets and lease liabilities. For public
business entities, the amendments in this update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those annual
periods. For other entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2020. Early application is permitted for all entities. The Company is an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”).
Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies (“EGCs”) can delay adopting new or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act until such time as
those standards apply to private companies. In July 2018, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2018-11, Lease (Topic 842) Targeted Improvements. The amendments in this
Update provide entities with an additional (and optional) transition method to adopt the new leases standard and provide lessors with a practical expedient, by class of underlying asset, to
not separate nonlease components fromthe associated lease component and, instead, to account for those components as a single component if the nonlease components otherwise would
be accounted for under the new revenue guidance (Topic 606). As an EGC, the Company will adopt ASU 2016-02 from October 1, 2020 and will use the additional modified retrospective
transition method provided by ASU No. 2018-11 for the adoption. The Company does not expect the adoption of these amendments to have a material impact on its consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

In June 2016, the FASB amended guidance related impairment of financial instruments as part of ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments. The guidance replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology with an expected credit loss model for which a company recognizes an allowance based
on the estimate of expected credit loss. The ASU is effective for public company for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. For all other
entities including EGC, the ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. Early application will
be permitted for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact that this guidance will
have on its consolidated financial statements.

Recently issued ASUs by the FASB, except for the ones mentioned above, are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial
position.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE NET

As of September, 30

2017 2018
Accounts receivable $ 2980 $ 7,916
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (25) (453)
Accounts receivable, net $ 2955 % 7,463
Bad debt expenses were $25 and $450 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively.
4. INVENTORIES
As of September 30, 2017 and 2018, inventories consisted of the following:
As of September 30,
2017 2018
Fruit $ 1,969 § 2,743
Others 2,178 322

Total $ 4,147 $ 3,065

Inventories primarily consist of fruit, wild seafood, vegetables and eggs, as well as nutritious dry food products. No lower of cost or net realizable value adjustment was recorded for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018.

5. ADVANCETO SUPPLIERS, NET

As of September 30,

2017 2018
Advance to suppliers $ 14680 $ 21,433
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (164) (159)
Advance to suppliers, net $ 14516 $ 21,274

Advance to suppliers primarily consisted of the prepayments to farms, import agents or other large-scale suppliers. The provisions for bad debt allowance were $160 and $nil for the fiscal
years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
As of September 30, 2017 and 2018, property and equipment consisted of the following:

As of September 30,

2017 2018
Electronic device $ 8 § 86
Office equipment 35 34
Motor vehicle 47 -
Subtotal 170 120
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (84) (79)
Property and equipment, net $ 8% $ 41
Depreciation expenses were $34 and $25 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively.
7. SHORT-TERM LOANS
Summaries of short-termbank loans are as follows:
Annual As of September 30,
Interest Rate Maturities 2017 2018
Bank of China 5.96% December 27, 2018 $ - $ 240
$ - S 240

As of September 30, 2018, the balance of short-term loan was $0.24 million and has been fully repaid subsequently. This loan was provided to the Company to meet its working capital
requirements. The short-term loan was guaranteed by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang Chairman of the board and chief executive officer of the Company, and his spouse Mrs. Wei Jun Huang, Shenzhen
Hi-tech Investment and Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd.
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8.

LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
TAXES
a. Value-Added Tax (“VAT”)

The amount of VAT liability is determined by applying the applicable taxrate to the invoiced amount of products sold or services provided (output VAT) less VAT paid on purchases made
with the relevant supporting invoices (input VAT). Under the commercial practice of the PRC, the Company pays VAT based on taxinvoices issued.

b. Income tax
Cayman Islands

Loha is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Cayman Islands currently levies no taxes on individuals or corporations based upon profits, income, gains or appreciation and there is
currently no estate duty, inheritance tax or gift tax. Loha had no activities or profit during the periods presented.

British Virgin Islands

Lohas BVI incorporated in the British Virgin Islands is not subject to income taxes or capital gain under current laws of British Virgin Islands. Lohas BVI had no activities or profit during the
periods presented.

Hong Kong

According to Tax (Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018 published by Hong Kong government, form April 1, 2018, under the two-tiered profits taxrates regime, the profits taxrate for the first
HKD2 million of assessable profits will be lowered to 8.25% (half of the rate specified in Schedule 8 to the Inland Revenue Ordinance (IRO)) for corporations. Lohas HK is subject to Hong
Kong profit tax at a rate of 8.25% as it did not have assessable profit during the periods presented.

PRC

Generally, Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain, which are considered PRC resident enterprises under PRC tax law, are subject to enterprise income taxon their
worldwide taxable income as determined under PRC tax laws and accounting standards at a rate of 25%. If our holding company in the Cayman Islands or any of our subsidiaries outside the
PRC s considered as a PRC resident enterprise for tax purposes, then our global income will be subject to PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25%.

Lohas Agricultural was qualified as a “Software Enterprise” by Shenzhen State Tax Bureau, and therefore is entitled to a two-year exemption from the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
commencing fromits first profitable year and a 50% deduction of 25% EIT rate for the succeeding three years, with approval by the tax authorities. Lohas Agricultural exempted from EIT
from 2014 to 2015, and enjoyed the preferential income taxrate of 12.5% from 2016 to 2018.
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Lohas Supply Chain as an encouraged industrial enterprises located in Hengqin New District, Pingtan Comprehensive Experimental Zone and Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modem Service
Industry Cooperation Zone would allow for a reduced 15% taxrate from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2020 according to finance and taxation [2014] No. 26 issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Taxation and is subject to annual inspection for the qualification.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

8. TAXES - continued

The income tax provision consists of the following components:

For the years ended

Current income tax expenses
Deferred income tax benefit

Total income tax expenses $

A reconciliation between the Company’s actual provision for income taxes and the provision at the PRC, mainland statutory rate is as follows:

September 30,
2017 2018
990 1,647
(28) (64
962 § 1,583

For the years ended

Income before income taxexpense $
Computed income tax expense with statutory taxrate

Effect of preferred taxrate

R&D expenses eligible for additional deduction

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Income tax expense $

Effective income tax rate

Deferred tax assets

As of September 30, 2017 and 2018, the significant components of the deferred taxassets are summarized below:

Deferred taxassets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $

Deferred taxassets, gross
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September 30,
2017 2018
6,106 $ 10,364
1,527 2,591
(625) (1,072)
) (14)
69 78
962 $ 1,583
15.75% 15.27%
As of September 30,
2017 2018
28§ 92
28 92
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Less: valuation allowance - -
Deferred taxassets, net $ 22 90
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following is a list of related parties which the Company has transactions with:
(a) Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd., an entity controlled by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang, the Chairman of the board and chief executive officer of the Company.
(b) Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd., an entity controlled by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang.
(c) Mr Yan Yue Zhang and his spouse Mrs. Wei Jun Huang.

Amounts due fromrelated parties

Amount due fromrelated parties consisted of the following for the periods indicated:

As of September 30,
2017 2018
Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. (1) 1,769 1,709

Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd. @ - 135
Total $ 1,769  $ 1,844

(1) Amounts due from Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. consisted of Lohas Agricultural’s loan to this related party for its daily operations, which has been fully settled subsequently.

(2) Amounts due from Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd. It was the advance payment for services in connection with the Company’s purchase of smart micro marts
units.

Amounts due to a related party

Amounts due to a related party consisted of the following for the periods indicated:

As of September 30,
2017 2018

Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. (1) $ 274 $ 805

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 262/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm
(1) The balance as of September 30, 2018 was the royalty fee payable and the balance as of September 30, 2017 was the loan of Lohas Supply Chain due to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd.

Related party transactions

For the years ended

September 30,
2017 2018
Loan to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. (1) $ 909 $ 306
Loan to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Itd. @ 2,587 1,767
Loan repayment from Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. @ 298 303
Loan repayment from Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. @ 3,637 1,454
Royalty fee to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. Q) - 832
Advanced service fee to Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd. - 141
Loan guaranteed by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang and Mrs. Wei Jun Huang - 458

(1) It consisted of Lohas Agricultural’s loan to this related party for its daily operations and repayment from this related party.
(2) It consisted of Lohas Supply Chain’s loan to this related party for its daily operations and repayment fromthis related party.
(3) It was the royalty fee borne by Lohas Supply Chain, which excluded the VAT.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

10. ORDINARY SHARES

11.

The shareholders’ equity structures as of September 30, 2017 and 2018 were presented after giving retroactive effect to the reorganization of Loha that was completed on August 16, 2019.
Immediately before and after reorganization, Loha together with its wholly-owned subsidiary Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas WFOE and its VIE were effectively controlled by the same
shareholders; therefore, for accounting purpose, the reorganization was accounted for as a recapitalization. All share and per share information has been retrospectively restated to reflect
the reorganization for all periods presented.

Loha was established under the laws of the Cayman Islands on January 10, 2019. The authorized share capital is 500,000,000 ordinary shares, with a par value of $0.0001 each, of which
481,000,000 have been designated as class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 have been designated as class B ordinary shares.

Holders of class A ordinary shares and class B ordinary shares vote together as one class on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders. Each class A ordinary share is entitled to one
(1) vote on all matters upon which the ordinary shares are entitled to vote and each class B ordinary share is entitled to five (5) votes on all matters upon which the ordinary shares are
entitled to vote.

STATUTORY RESERVE AND RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The companies operate in the PRC are required to reserve 10% of their net profit after income tax, as determined in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China.
Appropriation to the statutory reserve by the Company is based on profit arrived at under PRC accounting standards for business enterprises for each year. The profit arrived at must be set
off against any accumulated losses sustained by the Company in prior years, before allocation is made to the statutory reserve. Appropriation to the statutory reserve must be made before
distribution of dividends to shareholders. The appropriation is required until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. This statutory reserve is not distributable in the form
of cash dividends.

For the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, statutory reserve activities for the Company were as follows:

Balance
Balance as of September 30, 2016 $ 647
Appropriation to statutory reserve 515
Balance as of September 30, 2017 1,162
Appropriation to statutory reserve 878
Balance as of September 30, 2018 $ 2,040

Relevant PRC laws and regulations restrict the Lohas WFOE, VIE and VIE’s subsidiary fromtransferring a portion of their net assets, equivalent to the balance of their paid-in-capital,
additional paid-in-capital and statutory reserves to the Company in the form of loans, advances or cash dividends. Relevant PRC statutory laws and regulations restrict the payments of
dividends by the Company’s VIE and VIE’s subsidiary fromtheir respective retained earnings, if any, as determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations.
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The balances of restricted net assets as of September 30, 2017 and 2018 were $10,614 and $11,492, respectively. Under applicable PRC laws, loans from PRC companies to their offshore
affiliated entities require governmental approval, and advances by PRC companies to their offshore affiliated entities must be supported by bona fide business transactions.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the years ended

September 30,
2017 2018
Numerator:
Net income $ 5144  $ 8,781
Denominator:
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding-Basic and diluted 54,744,546 54,744,546
Eamings per ordinary share- basic and diluted $ 009 $ 0.16

13. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of accounts receivable and advance to suppliers. The Company conducts credit
evaluations of'its customers and suppliers, and generally does not require collateral or other security fromthem. The Company evaluates its collection experience and long outstanding
balances to determine the need for an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company conducts periodic reviews of the financial condition and payment practices of'its customers to
minimize collection risk on accounts receivable.

The following table sets forth a summary of single customers who represent 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue:

For the years ended

September 30,
2017 2018
Percentage of the Company’s sales
Customer A 12.96% 15.50%
Customer B - 10.04%
12.96% 25.54%

The following table sets forth a summary of single customers who represent 10% or more of the Company’s total accounts receivable:

For the years ended
September 30,
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2017 2018
Percentage of the Company’s accounts receivable
Customer C 13.02% 22.79%%
Customer D 10.99% -
24.01% 22.79%
F-27
https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 267/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

13. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - continued

The following table sets forth a summary of single suppliers who represent 10% or more of the Company’s total purchase:

For the years ended

September 30,
2017 2018

Percentage of the Company’s purchase
Supplier A 19.36% 12.05%
Supplier B 13.60% 27.16%
Supplier C 11.99% -
Supplier D - 12.89%
Supplier E - 10.69%

44.95% 62.79%

The following table sets forth a summary of single suppliers who represent 10% or more of the Company’s total advance to suppliers:

For the years ended

September 30,
2017 2018

Percentage of the Company’s advance to suppliers
Supplier A 16.59% 16.88%
Supplier B 21.57% 16.46%
Supplier C - 10.18%
Supplier D 22.41% 16.02%
Supplier E 16.40% 15.42%

76.97% 74.96%

14. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company uses the management approach to determine operating segments. The management approach considers the internal organization and reporting used by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) for making decisions, allocating resources and assessing performance. The Company’s CODM has been identified as the chief executive officer, who
reviews consolidated results when making decisions about allocating resources and assessing performance of the Company. The Company manages its business as a single operating
segment engaged in sales of products, technical service and other services in the PRC. Substantially all of the Company’s revenues are derived in the PRC. All long-lived assets are located

in the PRC.
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15. ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

As of September 30, 2017 and 2018, additional paid-in capital in the consolidated balance sheet represented the combined contributed capital of the Company’s VIE and VIE’s subsidiary.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2017 AND 2018 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

The total future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating lease with respect to the office and the dormitory as of September 30, 2018 are payable as follows:

Lease
Year Ending September 30, Commitment
2019 $ 297
2020 309
2021 321
2022 and afterward 36

Total $ 963

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may be subject to legal proceedings regarding contractual and employment relationships and a variety of other matters. The Company
records contingent liabilities resulting fromsuch claims, when a loss is assessed to be probable and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. In the opinion of management, there were
no pending or threatened claims and litigation as of September 30, 2018 and through the issuance date of these consolidated financial statements.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 20, 2018 and January 25, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain signed two factoring agreements (collectively as “Factoring Agreement I”’) with Haier Financial Factoring (Chongqing) Co.,
Ltd (“Haier Factoring™) and received a total of RMB47,220 (approximately $6,864) by factoring the receivables due from customers of RMB59,045 (approximately $8,583), for which Haier
Factoring has the right of recourse to Lohas Supply Chain. From December 2018 through November 2019, Lohas Supply Chain is obliged to pay factoring financing fees to Haier Factoring
per month and two repayments of RMB32,220 (approximately $4,684) and RMBI15,000 (approximately $2,180) are due on August 30, 2019 and November 16, 2019, respectively.

On August 29, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain and Haier Factoring signed another factoring agreement (“Factoring Agreement II”’), according to which Lohas Supply Chain agreed to pay off
RMB32,220 (approximately $4,684) under Factoring Agreement I due on August 30,2019 in exchange for a new factoring financing of the same amount. As required under Factoring
Agreement II, Lohas Supply Chain is obliged to pay factoring financing fees to Haier Factoring per month and three repayments of RMB15,000 (approximately $2,180), RMB15,000
(approximately $2,180) and RMBI17,220 (approximately $2,504) are due on October 30, 2019, November 16, 2019 and December 16, 2019, respectively. On August 30, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain
has settled the first repayment of RMB32,220 (approximately $4,684) under Factoring Agreement I and received the new factoring financing in the same amount according to Factoring
Agreement II.
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Mr. Yan Yue Zhang, Mrs. Wei Jun Huang and Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Itd, a shareholder of Lohas Agricultural have provided guarantees for the repayment obligation. Through the date
ofissuance of the consolidated financial statements, Lohas Supply Chain has been paying the factoring financing fee on schedule. As the Company has a commitment to make monthly
payments, accordingly, the Company does not derecognize the receivables from customers upon factoring and accounts for the transaction as secured borrowings.

The Company has not identified other events that would have required adjustment or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements other than disclosed in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements regarding the reorganization on August 16, 2019.
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LOHA CO., LTD

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET'S
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

September 30, March 31,
2018 2019

Assets (Unaudited)
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 82 § 3,028

Restricted cash 80 58

Accounts receivable, net 7,463 19,938

Inventories 3,065 8,273

Advance to suppliers, net 21,274 12,493

Amounts due fromrelated parties 1,844 1,911

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 40 791
Total current assets 34,648 46,492
Property and equipment, net 41 78
Deferred tax assets, net 92 172
Other non-current assets 68 70
TOTAL ASSETS 34849 $ 46,812
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings 240 § 7,013
Accounts payable 1,396 3,772
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 191 204
Advance from customers 3,578 445
Amounts due to a related party 805 3,302
Income taxpayable 437 534
Total current liabilities 6,647 15,270
Long-term payable - 48
Total liabilities 6,647 15,318
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity

Class A ordinary shares ($0.0001 par value; 481,000,000 shares authorized; 35,744,546 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2018 4 4
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and March 31, 2019, respectively) *

Class B ordinary shares ($0.0001 par value; 19,000,000 shares authorized; 19,000,000 shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2018 and

March 31, 2019, respectively) * 2 2

Subscription receivable ©6) 6)
Additional paid-in capital 9,452 9,452
Statutory reserve 2,040 2,040
Retained earnings 18,356 21,004
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,646) (1,002)
Total shareholders’ equity 28,202 31,494
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 34849 $ 46,812
* The shares and per share data are presented on a retroactive basis to reflect the reorganization (Note 10).
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Net revenue
Less: Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses

Total operating expenses
Income from operations

Other income (expenses):
Other income, net
Interest expense, net

Total other income (expenses)

Income before income tax expense
Income taxexpense
Net income

Other Comprehensive income

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

LOHA CO., LTD

UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the six months ended

Foreign currency translation gain, net of nil income taxes

Total comprehensive income

Earnings per ordinary share *
Basic and diluted

Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding*

Basic and diluted

March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
$ 31,398 $ 44,924
26,329 38,982
5,069 5,942
1,019 1,160
524 1,408
1,543 2,568
3,526 3,374
95 41
(6 (247)
89 (206)
3,615 3,168
515 520
$ 3,100 $ 2,648
1,217 644
$ 4317  § 3,292
$ 006 $ 0.05
54,744,546 54,744,546
274/311
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* The shares and per share data are presented on a retroactive basis to reflect the reorganization (Note 10).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LOHA CO., LTD

UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
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Accumulated
Class A Class B Additional other
ordinary shares ordinary shares Subscription paid-in Statutory Accumulated comprehensive Total
Shares * Amount Shares * Amount receivable capital reserve profit income (loss) equity
Balance as of September 30,2018 35,744,546 § 4 19,000,000  $ 2 8 © $ 9452  § 2040 $ 18356 $ (1,646) § 28202
Net income - - - - - - - 2,648 - 2,648
Statutory reserve - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign currency translation
adjustment - - - - - - - - 644 644
Balance as of March 31,2019
(unaudited) 35,744,546 $ 4 19,000,000 $ 2 © $ 9452 % 2,040 $ 21,004 S (1,002) $ 31494

* The shares and per share data are presented on a retroactive basis to reflect the reorganization (Note 10).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds fromshort-term borrowings
Repayments of short-term borrowings
Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, at end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DIS CLOS URE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Income tax paid
Interests paid
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LOHA CO., LTD

UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS

(In U.S. dollars in thousands)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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htm
For the six months ended
March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

$ 897 % (4,660)
(1) (5D
(1) (5D
465 6,929
(70) (242)
395 6,687
77 148
1,368 2,124
756 962
$ 2,124 $ 3,086
$ 318 $ 600
$ 6 3 246
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Loha Co., Ltd (“Loha”), its subsidiaries and variable interest entity (“VIE”) of which Loha or its
subsidiaries are the primary beneficiaries. Loha, its subsidiaries and VIE are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Company”.

Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Lohas Agricultural”’), which was incorporated in Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC on November 21, 2013, is mainly engaged in development,
operation and maintenance of software related to e-commerce platform.

Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (“Lohas Supply Chain”), which was incorporated in Shenzhen, Guangdong, PRC on May 28, 2014, is mainly engaged in purchase, sales and
distribution of high-end quality products primarily including imported fruits, wild seafood, vegetables and eggs, as well as nutritious dry food products. Lohas Supply Chain was originally
wholly owned by Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. Lohas Agricultural acquired Lohas Supply Chain from Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. on April 23, 2019.

On January 10, 2019, Loha was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

On February 8, 2019, Lohas World Co., Ltd (“Lohas BVI”’) was established as a wholly-owned subsidiary in the British Virgin Islands. Lohas BVI is a holding company and holds all of the equity
interests of Lohas (Global) Group Co., Limited.

On May 3, 2019, Lohas BVI incorporated Lohas (Global) Group Co., Limited (“Lohas HK”), a holding company formed in accordance with laws and regulations of Hong Kong, and holds all of the
equity interests of Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd (“Lohas WFOE”), which was established in the PRC on March 11, 2019.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES — continued
Reorganization

In anticipation of an initial public offering (“IPO”) of its equity securities, Loha undertook a reorganization and became the ultimate holding company of Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas WFOE,
which were under same ultimate controlling shareholder before and after the reorganization. Details of the subsidiaries and VIE of Loha are set out below:

Percentage of

Date of Place of effective Principal

Name Incorporation incorporation ownership Activities

Wholly owned subsidiaries

Lohas World Co., L td February 8, 2019 BVI 100% Holding company of Lohas HK

Lohas (Global) Group Co., Limited May 3, 2019 Hong Kong 100% Holding company of Lohas WFOE

Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology March 11, 2019 PRC 100% Technical support, consulting and other
Co., Itd services

VIE and wholly owned subsidiary of VIE

Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., November 21, 2013 PRC VIE Development, operation and maintenance of
Ltd software

Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., May 28, 2014 PRC Wholly owned subsidiary of  Purchase, sales and distribution of high-end
Ltd VIE quality products such as imported fruits

Effective on August 16, 2019, Lohas Agricultural, shareholders of Lohas Agricultural and Lohas WFOE entered into a series of contractual agreements (the “VIE Agreements” which are
described below). As a result, Loha, through its wholly owned subsidiaries Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas WFOE, has been determined to be the primary beneficiary of Lohas Agricultural and
Lohas Agricultural became the VIE of Loha. Accordingly, the Company consolidates Lohas Agricultural and its subsidiary Lohas Supply Chain’s results of operations, assets and liabilities and
cash flows.

Immediately before and after reorganization completed on August 16,2019 as describe above, Loha together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas WFOE and its
VIE were effectively controlled by the same shareholders; therefore, the reorganization was accounted for as a recapitalization. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared as if the current corporate structure has been in existence throughout the periods presented. The consolidation of the Company has been accounted for at historical cost at the
beginning of the first period presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of September 30, 2018, which has been derived fromaudited financial statements, and the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements as of March 31, 2019 and for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”). Certain information and disclosures, which are normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, have been
condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. Management believes that the disclosures made are adequate to provide a fair presentation. The interim financial information
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 and 2017.

This basis of accounting involves the application of accrual accounting and consequently, revenues and gains are recognized when earned, and expenses and losses are recognized when
incurred. The Company’s financial statements are expressed in U.S. Dollars.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present a fair statement of the Company’s unaudited condensed consolidated financial
position as of March 31, 2019, its consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the six-month periods ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, as applicable, have been made. The interim results
of operations are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full fiscal year or any future periods.

(b) Short-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings mainly consisted of the bank loan and the borrowing from third-party factoring institution.

(c¢) Revenue Recognition

The Company early adopted the new revenue standard Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, starting October 1, 2016 using the modified
retrospective method for contracts that were not completed as of October 1, 2017. The Company has assessed the impact of the guidance by reviewing its existing customer contracts and current
accounting policies and practices to identify differences that will result from applying the new requirements, including the evaluation of'its performance obligations, transaction price, customer
payments, transfer of control and principal versus agent considerations. Based on the assessment, the Company concluded that there was no change to the timing and pattern of revenue
recognition for its current revenue streams in scope of ASC 605 and the adoption of this new guidance did not result in a cumulative effect to the opening balance sheet of retained earnings on

the adoption date.

The core principle of the new revenue standard is that a company should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those products or services. The following five steps are applied to achieve that core principle:

Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
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Step 3: Determine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when the company satisfies a performance obligation
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Net revenue consists of revenue fromthe sales of products, right to use e-commerce platform, and other services. The Company recognizes revenue at the amount to which it expects to be
entitled when control of the products or services is transferred to its customers. Control is generally transferred when the Company has a present right to payment and title and the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of products or services are transferred to its customers. Payment for products and services sales is collected within a short period of time following transfer of
control or in advance to transfer of control of products, or at the commencement of delivery of services, as applicable.

The Company identifies three performance obligations for arrangements with city distributors, which are sales of products, right to use e-commerce platform, and other services. While for
arrangements with customers other than city distributor, the Company identifies only one performance obligation, which is sales of products. The Company allocates revenue to all distinct

performance obligations based on their relative estimated stand-alone selling prices.

Sales of products. Sales of products represent sales of products (mainly imported fruit) to the city distributors, wholesalers and other retailers. Revenue allocated to the sales of products is
recognized when control has transferred to the city distributor. Control transfers upon the delivery by the self-own logistics or the entrusted third-party logistics company to the customers.

Right to use e-commerce platform. The Company granted a perpetual license to the city distributors to use the Company’s intellectual properties. Revenue allocated to the right to use e-
commerce platformis recognized when control has transferred to the city distributor. Control transfers upon the license is granted.

Other services. Other services are mainly derived fromtechnical service provided to the city distributors. Technical service refers to e-commerce platform maintenance service and software
upgrade service and will be provided continuously over the estimated service period. The Company recognizes revenues allocated to the other services ratably over the estimated service period.

The Company is a principal because the Company controls the promised products or services before transferring. No right of return or warranty is offered to customers when they obtained the
control of the products or services.

The following table identifies the disaggregation of our revenue for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively:

For the six months ended

March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Sales of products $ 30,518  $ 44,561
Right to use e-commerce platform 627 -
Other service fee or technical service fee 253 363
Total $ 31,398 $ 44,924
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Shipping and handling activities are performed before the customer obtains control of the good, and they are not a separate performance obligation. The Company accounts for the pertinent
shipping and handling costs in selling expenses of products sold.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient in paragraph ASC 606-10-50-14 and does not disclose information about remaining performance obligations in (i) contracts that have an
original expected length of one year or less; and (ii) contracts where revenue is recognized as invoiced.

Timing of revenue recognition may differ fromthe timing of invoicing to customers. Accounts receivable represent amounts invoiced and revenue recognized prior to invoicing when the
Company has satisfied the Company’s performance obligation and has the unconditional right to payment. The allowance for doubtful accounts and authorized credits is estimated based upon
the Company’s assessment of various factors including historical experience, the age of the accounts receivable balances, current economic conditions and other factors that may affect the
Company’s customers’ ability to pay.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Unearned revenue consists of payments received related to unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the period, included in advance from customers in the Company’s consolidated
balance sheets.

The Company applied a practical expedient to expense costs as incurred for costs to obtain a contract with a customer when the amortization period would have been one year or less. The
Company has no material incremental costs of obtaining contracts with customers that the Company expects the benefit of those costs to be longer than one year which need to be recognized as
assets.

(d) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Except for the ASUs issued but not yet adopted disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, there is no ASU issued by the FASB that is
expected to have a material impact on the condensed consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

September 30, March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited)
Accounts receivable $ 7916 $ 20,885
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (453) 947)
Accounts receivable, net $ 7463 % 19,938

Bad debt expenses were $nil and $936 for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively. As of September 30, 2018 and March 31, 2019, the amount of accounts receivable pledged
for the short-termborrowing from Haier Financial Factoring (Chongqing) Co., Ltd were $nil and $8,769, respectively (see Note 7) . Up to November 21, 2019, the pledged accounts receivable was
$8,789.

4. INVENTORIES

As of September 30, 2018 and March 31, 2019, inventories consisted of the following:

September 30, March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited)
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Fruit $ 2,743 $ 8,117
Others 322 156
Total $ 3065 $ 8,273

Inventories primarily consist of fruit, wild seafood, vegetables and eggs, as well as nutritious dry food products. No lower of cost or net realizable value adjustment was recorded for six months
ended March 31, 2018 and 2019.

5. ADVANCETO SUPPLIERS, NET

September 30, March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited)
Advance to suppliers $ 21433 $ 12,655
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (159) (162)
Advance to suppliers, net $ 21,274 $ 12,493

Advance to suppliers primarily consisted of the prepayments to farms, import agents and other large-scale suppliers. No provision for the bad debt allowance was recorded for the sixmonths
ended March 31, 2018 and 2019.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

As of September 30, 2018 and March 31, 2019, property and equipment consisted of the following:

September 30, March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited)
Electronic device $ 86 130
Office equipment 34 45
Subtotal 120 175
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (79) 97)
Property and equipment, net $ 41 78
Depreciation expenses were $18 and $16 for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively.
7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Summary of short-term borrowings is as follows:
Annual Interest September 30, March 31,
Service Charge Rate Maturities 2018 2019
(Unaudited)
Bank of China (“BOC”) N/A 5.96% December 27, 2018 $ 240 -
Haier Financial Factoring (Chongqing) Co., Ltd 1.50% 9.50% October 30, 2019 - 743
1.50% 9.50% December 16, 2019 - 2,557
2.50% 3.20% January 16, 2010 - 743
2.50% 3.20% February 21, 2010 - 743
2.50% 5.70% March 16, 2020 - 2,227
$ 240 7,013
The service charges and interest expenses were $246 and $6 for the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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As of September 30, 2018, the balance of short-termloan was $240 and has been fully repaid on December 27, 2018. This loan was provided to the Company to meet its working capital
requirements. The short-term loan was guaranteed by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang Chairman of the board and chief executive officer of the Company, and his spouse Mrs. Wei Jun Huang, Shenzhen Hi-
tech Investment and Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd.

As of March 31, 2019, the Company had a secured short-term borrowing amounted to $7,013 for which the Company pledged the accounts receivable of $8,769. Up to November 21, 2019, the
balance of the secured short-term borrowing and the pledged accounts receivable were $6,270 and $8,790 respectively.

On November 20, 2018 and January 25, 2019, Lohas Supply Chain and Haier Financial Factoring (Chongqing) Co., Ltd (“Haier Factoring”) executed two factoring agreements, pursuant to which,
Lohas Supply Chain received a loan in an aggregate amount of RMB47,220 (approximately $7,013) by factoring the receivables due from customers of RMB59,040 (approximately $8,769), for
which Haier Factoring has the right of recourse to Lohas Supply Chain, therefore, these transactions were recognized as secured short-term borrowings. Subsequently, Lohas Supply Chain paid
oft RMBS,000 (approximately $743) and entered into a series of new agreements to renew the secured short-term borrowings by pledging new accounts receivable. The maturity date of the
remaining balances of RMB 17,220 (approximately $2,557), RMBS5,000 (approximately $743), RMBS5,000 (approximately $743), and RMB15,000 (approximately $2,227) have been extended to
December 16, 2019, January 16, 2020, February 21, 2020 and March 16, 2020, respectively. The secured short-term borrowings were guaranteed by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang Chairman of the board and
chief executive officer of the Company, and his spouse Mrs. Wei Jun Huang and Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd, a shareholder of Lohas Agricultural.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
8. TAXES
a. Value-Added Tax (“VAT”)

The amount of VAT liability is determined by applying the applicable taxrate to the invoiced amount of products sold or services provided (output VAT) less VAT paid on purchases made with
the relevant supporting invoices (input VAT). Under the commercial practice of the PRC, the Company pays VAT based on taxinvoices issued.

b. Income tax
Cayman Islands

Loha is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Cayman Islands currently levies no taxes on individuals or corporations based upon profits, income, gains or appreciation and there is currently
no estate duty, inheritance tax or gift tax. Loha had no activities or profit during the periods presented.

British Virgin Islands

Lohas BVl incorporated in the British Virgin Islands is not subject to income taxes or capital gain under current laws of British Virgin Islands. Lohas BVI had no activities or profit during the
periods presented.

Hong Kong

According to Tax (Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018 published by Hong Kong government, form April 1, 2018, under the two-tiered profits taxrates regime, the profits taxrate for the first
HKD2 million of assessable profits will be lowered to 8.25% (half of the rate specified in Schedule 8 to the Inland Revenue Ordinance (IRO)) for corporations. Lohas HK is subject to Hong Kong
profit tax at a rate of 8.25% as it did not have assessable profit during the periods presented.

PRC

Generally, Lohas WFOE, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain, which are considered PRC resident enterprises under PRC tax law, are subject to enterprise income taxon their worldwide
taxable income as determined under PRC tax laws and accounting standards at a rate of 25%. If our holding company in the Cayman Islands or any of our subsidiaries outside the PRCis
considered as a PRC resident enterprise for tax purposes, then our global income will be subject to PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25%.

Lohas Agricultural was qualified as a “Software Enterprise” by Shenzhen State Tax Bureau, and therefore is entitled to a two-year exemption fromthe Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”’) commencing
fromits first profitable year and a 50% deduction of 25% EIT rate for the succeeding three years, with approval by the tax authorities. Lohas Agricultural exempted from EIT from 2014 to 2015,
and enjoyed the preferential income taxrate of 12.5% from 2016 to 2018. In 2019, Lohas Agricultural enjoyed the preferential rate of 15% as an encouraged industrial enterprise which engages in
information service in Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Moderm Service Industry Cooperation Zone according to taxation [2014] No. 26.
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Lohas Supply Chain as an encouraged industrial enterprises located in Hengqin New District, Pingtan Comprehensive Experimental Zone and Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modem Service
Industry Cooperation Zone would allow for a reduced 15% taxrate from January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2020 according to finance and taxation [2014] No. 26 issued by the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Taxation and is subject to annual inspection for the qualification.

The income tax provision consists of the following components:
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8. TAXES - continued

Current income tax expenses
Deferred income tax benefit

Total income tax expenses
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the six months ended

March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
547 601
32 (8D

T

A reconciliation between the Company’s actual provision for income taxes and the provision at the PRC, mainland statutory rate is as follows:

For the six months ended

March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Income before income tax expense $ 3615 $ 3,168
Computed income tax expense with statutory taxrate 904 792
Effect of preferred taxrate 412) (283)
Taxeffect of non-deductible expenses 27 19
Others @) ®)
Income tax expense $ 515 % 520
Effective income tax rate 14.2% 16.4%
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following is a list of related parties which the Company has transactions with:

(a) Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd., an entity controlled by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang, the Chairman of the board and chief executive officer of the Company.

(b) Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd., an entity controlled by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang.

(c) Mr Yan Yue Zhang and his spouse Mrs. Wei Jun Huang.

Amounts due fromrelated parties

Amount due fromrelated parties consisted of the following for the periods indicated:

September 30, March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited)
Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. (1) 1,709 1,654
Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd. @ 135 257
Total $ 1,844  § 1,911

(1) Amounts due from Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. consisted of Lohas Agricultural’s loan to this related party for its daily operations.

(2) Amounts due from Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd. It was the advance payment related to the Company’s smart micro marts to be delivered from Shenzhen
Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd.

Amounts due to a related party

Amounts due to a related party consisted of the following for the periods indicated:

September 30, March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited)
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Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. (1) $ 805 $ 3,302

(1) The balance as of March 31, 2019 was the royalty fee payable of $1,304 and the loan of Lohas Supply Chain due to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd of $1,998, and the balance as of
September 30, 2018 was the royalty fee payable.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

Related party transactions

For the six months ended

March 31,
2018
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Loan to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. M $ 405 73
Loan to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. () 3,225 1,227
Loan repayment from Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. M 436 164
Repayment and loan from Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. @ 3,164 3,201
Royalty fee to Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. 3) 302 449
Advanced payment to Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd. @ 143 117
Guarantee provided by Mr. Yan Yue Zhang, Mrs. Wei Jun Huang and Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. ®) 465 6,929
Guarantee provided for Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd.’s loan (©) - 3,228

(I) It consisted of Lohas Agricultural’s loan to this related party for its daily operations and repayment fromthis related party.
(2) Itconsisted of Lohas Supply Chain’s loan to this related party for its daily operations, corresponding repayment, and loan fromthis related party.
(3) It was the royalty fee borne by Lohas Supply Chain, which excluded the VAT.

(4) It was the advanced payment of smart micro marts to be delivered from Shenzhen Qianhai Lohas Mobile Network Service Co., Ltd.

(5) During the sixmonths ended March 31, 2018, the amount represents the guarantee provided by Mr. Yanyue Zhang and Mrs. Wei Jun Hunang for Lohas Supply Chain’s repayment
obligations of a bank loan from BOC. During the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, the amount represents the guarantee for the borrowings from Haier Factoring that each of Mr. Yan

Yue Zhang, Ms. WeilJun Huang, Shenzhen Lohas has provided with joint liability to Haier Factoring for Lohas Supply Chain’s repayment obligations.

(6) On December 12, 2018, Shenzhen Lohas entered into a working capital loan agreement with Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Shenzhen Branch (“SPDB”), providing for a bank loan
in the amount of up to RMB 22 miillion (approximately $3.23 million) maturing in 12 months starting on the date of first withdraw. Each of Mr. Yanyue Zhang, Ms. Weijun Huang, Lohas
Agricultural, Lohas Supply Chain and Shenzhen City Small and Medium Enterprise Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. has provided guarantee with joint liability to SPDB for Shenzhen Lohas
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World Co., Ltd.’s repayment obligations. The guarantee is valid until two years after the due date of performance of repayment obligations by Shenzhen Lohas in the absence of
repayment. In addition, each of Mr. Yanyue Zhang, Ms. Weijun Huang, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas Supply Chain provided counter-guarantee to Shenzhen City Small and Medium
Enterprise Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., which in turn provided guarantee to SPDB for the loan borrowed by Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd.

10. ORDINARY SHARES

The shareholders’ equity structures as of September 30, 2018 and March 31, 2019 were presented after giving retroactive effect to the reorganization of Loha that was completed on August 16,
2019. Immediately before and after reorganization, Loha together with its wholly-owned subsidiary Lohas BVI, Lohas HK and Lohas WFOE and its VIE were effectively controlled by the same
shareholders; therefore, for accounting purpose, the reorganization was accounted for as a recapitalization. All share and per share information has been retrospectively restated to reflect the

reorganization for all periods presented.

Loha was established under the laws of the Cayman Islands on January 10, 2019. The authorized share capital is 500,000,000 ordinary shares, with a par value of $0.0001 each, of which
481,000,000 shares have been designated as class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 shares have been designated as class B ordinary shares.

Holders of class A ordinary shares and class B ordinary shares vote together as one class on all matters submitted to a vote of shareholders. Fach class A ordinary share is entitled to one (1)
vote on all matters upon which the ordinary shares are entitled to vote and each class B ordinary share is entitled to five (5) votes on all matters upon which the ordinary shares are entitled to

vote.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

11. STATUTORY RESERVE AND RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The companies operate in the PRC are required to reserve 10% of their net profit after income tax, as determined in accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China.
Appropriation to the statutory reserve by the Company is based on profit arrived at under PRC accounting standards for business enterprises for each year. The profit arrived at must be set off
against any accumulated losses sustained by the Company in prior years, before allocation is made to the statutory reserve. Appropriation to the statutory reserve must be made before
distribution of dividends to shareholders. The appropriation is required until the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. This statutory reserve is not distributable in the formof
cash dividends.

For the sixmonths ended March 31, 2019, statutory reserve activities for the Company were as follows:

Balance
Balance as of September 30, 2018 $ 2,040
Appropriation to statutory reserve -
Balance as of March 31, 2019 (unaudited) $ 2,040

Relevant PRC laws and regulations restrict the Lohas WFOE, VIE and VIE’s subsidiary fromtransferring a portion of their net assets, equivalent to the balance of their paid-in-capital, additional
paid-in-capital and statutory reserves to the Company in the formofloans, advances or cash dividends. Relevant PRC statutory laws and regulations restrict the payments of dividends by Lohas
WFOE, VIE and VIE’s subsidiary from their respective retained earnings, if any, as determined in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations.

The balances of restricted net assets as of September 30, 2018 and March 31, 2019 were $11,492 and $11,492, respectively. Under applicable PRC laws, loans from PRC companies to their offshore
affiliated entities require governmental approval, and advances by PRC companies to their offshore affiliated entities must be supported by bona fide business transactions.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the six months ended

March 31,
2018 2019
Numerator: (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Net income $ 3100 $ 2,648
Denominator:
Weighted-average ordinary shares outstanding-Basic and diluted 54,744,546 54,744,546
Earnings per ordinary share- basic and diluted $ 006 $ 0.05

13. CONCENTRATION
Credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and advance to suppliers. As of
March 31, 2019, 99.6% of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were held by major financial institutions located in Mainland China, the remaining was the cash on hand also held in the
Company’s VIEand VIE’s subsidiary. The Company believes that these financial institutions located in Mainland China are of high credit quality. The Company conducts credit evaluations ofits
customers and suppliers, and generally does not require collateral or other security fromthem. The Company evaluates its collection experience and long outstanding balances to determine the
need for an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company conducts periodic reviews of the financial condition and payment practices of its customers to minimize collection risk on accounts
receivable.

Concentration of customers

The following table sets forth a summary of single customers who represent 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue:

For the six months ended

March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Percentage of the Company’s net revenue
Customer A - 24.51%
Customer B - 11.88%

https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/1112019 lohacoltd. htm 297/311



2019/12/10 https://www. sec. gov/Archives/edgar/data/1785880/000121390019025662/ff12019 lohacoltd. htm

The following table sets forth a summary of single customers who represent 10% or more of the Company’s total accounts receivable:

September 30, March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited)

Percentage of the Company’s accounts receivable

Customer B - 14.90%
Customer C 22.79% 13.47%

F-45
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)

13. CONCENTRATION - continued

Concentration risk ofsuppliers

The following table sets forth a summary of single suppliers who represent 10% or more of the Company’s total purchase:

Percentage of the Company’s purchase
Supplier A
Supplier B

The following table sets forth a summary of single suppliers who represent 10% or more of the Company’s total advance to suppliers:

Percentage of the Company’s advance to suppliers
Supplier C
Supplier D
Supplier E
Supplier F
Supplier A
Supplier G

14. SEGMENT REPORTING

htm

For the six months ended

March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
- 41.70%
11.67% -
September 30, March 31,
2018 2019
(Unaudited)
15.42% 21.33%
16.46% 18.71%
16.02% 15.22%
- 12.96%
16.88% 10.62%
10.18% -

The Company uses the management approach to determine operating segments. The management approach considers the internal organization and reporting used by the Company’s chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) for making decisions, allocating resources and assessing performance. The Company’s CODM has been identified as the chief executive officer, who reviews
consolidated results when making decisions about allocating resources and assessing performance of the Company. The Company manages its business as a single operating segment engaged
in sales of products, technical service and other services in the PRC. Substantially all of the Company’s revenues are derived in the PRC. All long-lived assets are located in the PRC.

15. ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
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As of September 30, 2018 and March 31, 2019, additional paid-in capital in the consolidated balance sheets represented the combined contributed capital of the Company’s VIE and VIE’s
subsidiary.
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LOHA CO., LTD
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31,2018 AND 2019 - continued
(In USS. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data)
16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

The total future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating lease with respect to the office and the dormitory as of March 31, 2019 are payable as follows:

Lease
Commitment

Six months ending September 30, 2019 $ 236
Year Ending September 30,

2020 481
2021 494
2022 and afterward 530
Total $ 1,741
Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may be subject to legal proceedings regarding contractual and employment relationships and a variety of other matters. The Company records
contingent liabilities resulting fromsuch claims, when a loss is assessed to be probable and the amount of the loss is reasonably estimable. On December 12, 2018, Lohas Agricultural and Lohas
Supply Chain provided guarantee with joint liability to SPDB for Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd.’s $3.23 million repayment obligations (see note 9). The Company believes the possibility of loss
is remote based on the current performance of Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. There were no pending or threatened claims and litigation as of March 31, 2019 and through the issuance date of
these consolidated financial statements.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through the date the financial statements were issued and determined that no events that would have required adjustment or
disclosure to the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements except for those discussed in Note 7.
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Class A Ordinary Shares
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PART II
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN THE PROSPECTUS

Item 6. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to which a company’s memorandum and articles of association may provide for indemnification of officers and directors, except to the extent any
such provision may be held by the Cayman Islands courts to be contrary to public policy, such as to provide indemnification against civil fraud or the consequences of committing a crime. Our
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association provides for indemnification of officers and directors for losses, damages, costs and expenses incurred in their capacities as such,
except through their own dishonesty, fraud or willful default in or about the conduct of our company’s business or affairs (including as a result of any mistake of judgment) or in the execution or
discharge of his duties, powers, authorities or discretions, including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any costs, expenses, losses or liabilities incurred by such director or

officer in defending (whether successfully or otherwise) any civil proceedings concerning our company or its affairs in any court whether in the Cayman Islands or elsewhere.

Under the form of indemnification agreement filed as an exhibit to this registration statement, we will agree to indemnify our directors and executive officers against certain liabilities and expenses
incurred by such persons in connection with claims made by reason of their being such a director or executive officer.

The form of underwriting agreement filed as an exhibit to this registration statement will also provide for indemnification of us and our officers and directors.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling us under the foregoing provisions, we have been informed
that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

Item 7. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.
During the past three years, we issued the following shares, which were not registered under the Securities Act.
Upon our incorporation on January 10, 2019, an aggregate of 50,000 shares were authorized and issued for a purchase price of $1.00 per share.
On July 7, 2019, each of the 50,000 authorized and issued shares of par value $1.00 each was subdivided into 10,000 shares of par value $0.0001 each. Following this subdivision, our authorized
share capital of $50,000 was divided into 500,000,000 shares of par value $0.0001 each , including 481,000,000 Class A ordinary shares of par value of $0.0001 each and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary
shares of'a par value of $0.0001 each. The 500,000,000 issued and outstanding shares of par value $0.0001 were re-designated as follows:

(1) 316,000,000 shares held in the name of Loha Holding Co. Itd were re-designated as Class A ordinary shares;

(2) 19,000,000 shares held in the name of Loha Holding Co. Ltd were re-designated as Class B ordinary shares;

(3) 125,000,000 shares held in the name of Maigeli Co., Ltd were re-designated as Class A ordinary shares; and

(4) 40,000,000 shares held in the name of JW Investment Management Limited were re-designated as Class A shares.

Following these re-designations:

(1) Loha Holding Co. Ltd surrendered an aggregate of 284,635,018 class A Shares to us for cancellation and transferred 31,000,000 Class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary
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shares to Lohas World (Group) Co., Limited and 364,982 Class A ordinary shares to Hong Kong Bao Rui Limited;

(2) Maigeli Co., Ltd surrendered an aggregate of 125,000,000 Class A ordinary shares to us for cancellation; and

(3) JW Investment Management Limited surrendered an aggregate of 35,620,436 Class A ordinary shares to us for cancellation.
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On the same day, we cancelled 445,255,454 Class A ordinary shares. Currently, the Company has 481,000,000 Class A ordinary shares of par value of $0.0001 each and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary
shares of a par value of $0.0001 each authorized, among which 35,744,546 Class A ordinary shares and 19,000,000 Class B ordinary shares are issued and outstanding. The Company has
retrospectively reflected the stock subdivision and cancellation in all periods presented in this document.

No underwriters were involved in these issuances. We believe that each of the above issuances was exempt fromregistration under the Securities Act in reliance on Regulation S under the
Securities Act or pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act regarding transactions not involving a public offering.

Item 8. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description

1.1* Form of Underwriting Agreement

3.1 Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of'the registrant

4.1* Specimen Certificate for Class A ordinary Shares

4.2% Form of Underwriter’s Warrant

S5.0% Opinion of Conyers Dill & Pearman regarding the validity of the Class A ordinary shares being registered

5.2% Opinion of Bevilacqua PLLC

8.1%* Opinion of Conyers Dill & Pearman regarding certain Cayman Islands tax matters

8.2% Opinion of Commerce & Finance Law Offices regarding certain PRC tax matters (included in Exhibit 99.2)

8.3* Opinion of Potomac Law Group regarding certain U.S. tax matters

10.1 English Translation of Exclusive Consultation and Service Agreement between Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology Co., 1td. and Lohas Agricultural
Information Technology Co., Ltd. dated August 16,2019

10.2 English Translation of Shareholders’ Voting Rights Proxy Agreement among Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd., Lohas Agricultural Information
Technology Co., 1td. and each shareholder of Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., Ltd. dated August 16, 2019

10.3 English Translation of Equity Pledge Agreement among Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd., Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., L.td.
and each shareholder of Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., Ltd. dated August 16, 2019

10.4 English Translation of Exclusive Option Agreement among Lohas World (Shenzhen) Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd., Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co.,
Ltd. and each shareholder of Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., I.td. dated August 16,2019

10.5% Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and its directors and executive officers

10.6*+ Form of Employment Agreement between the Registrant and its executive officers

10.7 English Translation of Trademark Licensing Contract between Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Itd. and Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., Ltd. dated August
17,2019

10.8 English Translation of Service Agreement between Shenzhen Lohas World Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. dated January 1, 2019

10.9 English Translation of Supplement to the Service Agreement between Shenzhen Lohas World Co., 1.td. and Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. dated
August 17,2019

10.10 Form of PRC Labor Contract (English Translation)

10.11 English Translation of Lease Agreement between Lohas Agricultural Information Technology Co., Itd. and Shenzhen iDreamSky Technology Investment Management
Co., Itd. dated January 9, 2017

10.12 English Translation of Lease Agreement between Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen iDreamSky Technology Investment Management

Co., 1td. dated January 9, 2017
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10.13 English Translation of Second Supplemental Lease Agreement between Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., 1td. and Shenzhen iDreamSky Technology
Investment Management Co., 1.td. dated October 16, 2019
10.14 English Translation of FormofTohas City Authorized Distributor Cooperation Agreement
10.15 Form of Factoring A greement (with recourse) between Shenzhen Lohas Supply Chain Management Co., 1td., and Haier Financial Factoring (Chongging) Co., I.td.
10.16 Form of Supply Contract (Framework)
10.17 Form of Purchase Order
21.1 List of subsidiaries, VIE and subsidiary of VIE of the registrant
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Exhibit No. Description

23.1 Consent of Marcum Bernstein & Pinchuk LLP

23.2% Consent of Conyers Dill & Pearman (contained in Exhibit 5.1 and Exhibit 8.1)
23.3% Consent of Bevilacqua PLLC (contained in Exhibit 5.2)

23.4* Consent of Commerce & Finance Law Offices (included in Exhibit 99.2)
23.5% Consent of Potomac Law Group (included in Exhibit 8.3)

241 Power of Attorney (included in the signature page)

99.1* Code of Ethics of the registrant

99.2* Opinion of Commerce & Finance Law Offices regarding certain PRC law matters
99.3 Consent of Jengren Michael Hwang

99.4 Consent of Chester Chong

99.5 Consent of Xiao Zhao

99.6 Request for Waiver and Representation under Item 8.A .4 of Form 20-F

*  To be filed by amendment
1t Executive Compensation Plan or Agreement

(b) Financial Statement Schedules
Schedules have been omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in the financial statements or the notes thereto.
Item 9. Undertakings.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to provide to the underwriter at the closing specified in the underwriting agreements, certificates in such denominations and registered in such
names as required by the underwriter to permit prompt delivery to each purchaser.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrant under the provisions described in Item6,
or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable. In the
event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in
the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in
the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public
policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:
(1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon

Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant under Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of
the time it was declared effective.
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(2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration
statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on FormF-1 and has duly
caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Shenzhen, China, on the 9th day of December of 2019.

LOHA CO. LTD

By: /s/ Yanyue Zhang
Name:  Yanyue Zhang
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below hereby constitutes and appoints Yanyue Zhang and Xiaoqin Tan, and each of them, his or her
true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all
amendments, including post-effective amendments, to this registration statement, and any registration statement relating to the offering covered by this registration statement and filed pursuant
to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting
unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and performeach and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully for all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of said attorneys in fact and agents or their substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to
be done by virtue hereof.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Yanyue Zhang Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer) December 9, 2019
Yanyue Zhang
/s/ Xiaoqin Tan Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) December 9, 2019
Xiaoqin Tan
/s/ Jiahui Shan Director and Chief Culture Officer December 9, 2019
Jiahui Shan
/s/ Weijun Huang Director December 9, 2019
Weijun Huang
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SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE IN THE UNITED STATES

Pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, the undersigned, the duly authorized representative in the United States of Loha Co. Ltd has signed this registration statement or amendment thereto in
New York on December 9, 2019.

Authorized U.S. Representative

By: /s/ Richard Arthur
Name:  Richard Arthur
Title: ~ Assistant Secretary on behalf of Cogency Global Inc.
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